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“Values are the foundations of our social
and personal daily lives. They help us
grow and continue to make progress in
our lives in order for it to be successful.
Values are the essence of life and they
remain in our memory. We now invite
you to acquaint yourself with persons
who feel and live the same CorpBanca
values and principles. Persons who
teach us that life must be lived with
effort, inspiration and much passion.“

OUR VALUES
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Global vision
Volumes of activity

COLLABORATION
“IN CYCLING, EACH MEMBER PLAYS A KEY ROLE, SINCE
THEY ALL WORK TOWARDS A SAME GOAL, THE GROUP IS
ABLE TO ACHIEVE THE GOAL PROPOSED”

PABLO ALLENDE
REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR
NOMINATED FOR COLLABORATION

For the past 3 years he has been a member of a cycling group integrated by 12 people. They
organize outings every weekend to different places and in each of them each member plays a key
role and because of these individual collaborations the group is capable of getting to the proposed
finish line, helping each other out in different ways. On route, everyone helps out should one
of the members suffers an accident or a fall. Pablo, specifically, took on the responsibility of
making sure that the food and beverages that are necessary for each activity are indeed supplied
in each outing. Additionally, each member makes sure to teach and accompany the new members
that join the group.

LETTER FROM
THE PRESIDENT

At the level of intermediate volumes, CorpBanca was one of the entities less
impacted by the reduction of lending levels experienced by the banking system.
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Dear shareholders:
The year 2009 was, unquestionably, an
absolutely unique period in the economic
realm of things. Initially characterized by
total uncertainty and pessimism -given the
unpredictable scope of the international
financial crisis- it ended with a much more
auspicious scenario, with more promising
global expectations.
In our country, the figures reflected a period
of poor performance in this sense. In spite of
that, results were above those expected at the
beginning of the year. The preliminary figures
showed a -1.8% GDP drop and a negative
inflation of -1.4%. However, regarding prices
and their relation to the banks performance,
more relevant than inflation was the variation
experienced by the Unidad de Fomento (UF,
in its Spanish acronym) inflation index, which
dropped by -2.4%. Within this context, it is
also important to mention the drop in the rate of
foreign exchange, which dropped from CLP629
to CLP506.
From a global perspective, the banking system
was no exception to these historical events,
and it is important to state that its growth
and results were no different from those that,
historically, have prevailed during periods of
equal performance in this sense.
However, changing the accounting system to
one under the IFRS norm makes comparisons
difficult. Although this is not feasible to do in a

precise manner, preliminary figures show a drop
in lending, part of it explained by the drop in
the USD, the lower value of the UF and a lower
level of economic activity.
This was the scenario in which CorpBanca had
to compete.
However, with much satisfaction, we can state
that the Bank closed a year with record profits,
amounting to a figure somewhat higher than
CLP 85 billion, which implies a level similar to
that of 2008, based on IFRS comparisons.
Likewise, as a consequence of the drop in the
value of the UF and the maintenance of the
nominal value of Capital and Reserves -explained
by the change of the accounting system to IFRSshareholders now benefit from a greater value
in this item, estimated at approximately CLP
10,800 million.
At the level of intermediate volumes, CorpBanca
was one of the entities less impacted by the
reduction of lending levels experienced by the
banking system as a result of the restrictive
world and domestic scenario; especially during
the first half of the year. In fact, as of the closing
of 2009, the Bank was ranked 4th in terms of
market share for total lending, overtaking its
closest competitors.
Measured in nominal currency, as of December
2009 we grew by CLP 67.5 billion, which
implies a growth of 1.4% with respect to the
previous year’s closing. This is the result, on the
one hand, of a drop in the value of the UF, which

implies a nominal drop of -0.9%, and of the
appreciation of the rate of foreign exchange, with
an incidence of -2.5% on the nominal value and,
on the other hand, these were offset by a real
and significant growth of the lending volume,
equal to 4.8%, mainly driven by the boost of
the Bank’s commercial portfolio by the closing
of the ear. Additionally, we must mention that
CorpBanca lead the growth in lending aimed
at household purchases, advancing -on this
item- 37 market share points throughout the
year; while corporate banking growth was only
surpassed by that of BancoEstado, implying the
addition of 55 market share points.
Expanding the Bank’s branch network was also
an important development undertaken in 2009.
In response to the Bank’s strategic objectives and
interest to be increasingly closer to its clients, we
opened up offices in Vitacura, Bilbao and Santa
María de Manquehue; all of them on Santiago’s
eastern sector. Along these lines, during the first
quarter of 2019, we will be fully operational
at the bank’s offices in Los Dominicos and La
Dehesa, the latter of them, with a better location
and a better infrastructure.
Through this strategy, we will be providing
coverage to a sector where we had shown a
relative weakness. Now, we will also offer
excellent customer services thanks to the
equipment of these new offices built according
to first rate automation standards and thought
for providing solutions to clients.
On the other hand, the constant motivation
for excellence was also materialized in the
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Letter from the President

“we believe there is still a
long road ahead in order
to finish building the kind
of bank that we wish.
We have yet to focus one hundred percent on
clients and their needs, so that they understand
that they are indeed the Bank’s main focus”.

acknowledgments received by the Bank because
of its 2009 business management.
Thus, for example, we received the Award
to the Best 2008 Financial Sector Annual
Report awarded by Revista Gestión and
PriceWaterhouseCoopers. The Bank’s efforts in
terms of conservation and the environment were
also acknowledged with the e-Waste Award,
which represents the Bank’s contribution in
recycling electronic waste; which is a part of
one of the items of the Bank’s Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Plan.
On the other hand, the Bank’s Mutual Fund
General Management Company was once
again acknowledged for the quality of its
business management; this time by Pro Fund
Management, an appraiser company of third
party fund management companies, which
awarded its Más Valor and Selecto Global funds.
But the Bank’s management also encompasses
its support to art in its different manifestations;
therefore, we have sponsored the International
Film Festival, Sanfic; the most important display
of visual arts, Santiago’s Trienal; and the First
Contemporary Art Fair in our country, Ch.ACO.
The Bank has also maintained its support to
institutions that provide shelter to youth with
cognitive disabilities, sponsoring events at
Colegio El Golf and Fundación Mírame.
In order to carry out all these projects, the
continuous support of the Bank’s board members
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has been very important. The Bank’s Board of
Directors experienced certain changes during
the second half of the year. It reduced its
membership from 11 to 9. Thus, CorpBanca’s
new board members are, Messrs. Brian O´Neill,
Fernando Massú and Segismund SchulinZeuthen, all of them with ample banking
experience and a well earned market reputation.
Also, I think this is the right moment to
acknowledge the valuable contribution and
commitment of the outgoing board members,
Messrs. Carlos Massad, Ignacio González,
Francisco Rosende and Arturo Valenzuela; all
of them with a significant responsibility in the
progress achieved by the Bank during the period
in which they served as Board Members.
I wanted to leave a special paragraph in
order to dedicate it to Mr. Carlos Abumohor
Touma, who, after remaining for over 20 years
as Chairman of the Board of the different
banks of the group, will henceforth -given his
outstanding achievements- serve as CorpBanca’s
Honorary Chairman. His initial vision goes a
long way to explain CorpGroup’s success, always
acting based on Discipline, inspired on Service
and gathering around him the best of Talents;
all of these are Values that have transcended the
Organization to this day.
Finally, notwithstanding the progress shown
during the year, we believe there is still a long
road ahead in order to finish building the kind
of bank that we wish. We have yet to focus one
hundred percent on clients and their needs, so
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that they understand that they are indeed the
Bank’s main focus.
But, we cannot ignore that we have made
significant strides on this particular score;
thus, the evident progress achieved by the
Bank during 2009 is indelibly linked to the
commitment of its Collaborators, to whom I
thank their involvement and dedication.
Becoming the Best Bank in the country will
only be possible with the professionalism of
those persons who comprise the Organization.
And, undoubtedly, with their pride in belong
to CorpBanca.

ÁLVARO SAIEH BENDECK
President
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HISTORICAL
BACKGROUND

To these Values, we must add those assumed with the Bank’s clients, aimed
at becoming the Best Quality Service Bank.
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Toward the middle of the 19th century,
when credit services were insufficient
to boost the development of activities
such as agriculture, mining, and the first
manufacturing centers in our country, the
government of the time considered it necessary
to create financial institutions that would cover
such credit needs sheltered in the country’s
auspicious economic conditions.

the time- in solid values, and becoming a
noted actor of the country’s banking system.
Nowadays, it has extended its network onto
the world’s most important financial center:
New York.

This is how, through the initiative of important
personalities such as the then Governor
(Intendente) of Concepción and subsequent
President of Chile, Anibal Pinto Garmendia,
Banco de Concepción was founded on October
16, 1871 as a stock company that would
operate as a commercial bank of issue, deposits
and discount.

Seven years after its foundation, during the
economic crisis of 1878, Banco de Concepción
still maintained its market strength; a fact that
permitted overcoming difficult times while
keeping its own operations prosperous, such as
depicted by the annual reports of the time.

The bank’s property ownership was distributed
between 93 persons, most of them merchants,
farmers, industrialists and professionals of that
area. Revista del Sur magazine, noted then that
among its shareholders were “some of the most
respectable local signatures”.
On October 23, 1971, the Bank issued its
first credits and ever since it has operated
continuously to this date as the country’s oldest
private bank.
Banco de Concepción, ever since its inception,
became a fundamental development support
to the country’s productive activities and,
consequently, to Chile’s economic development,
springing up as a regional engine and founded
-according to testimonial publications of

The Bank’s first credits favored gas industry
companies, which supplied the public lighting
system and, particularly, the city of Concepción.

One of its founding
principles: i.e. to have a
regional bank that would
provide credit support to the
local industry, commerce,
agriculture and other
activities without the need
to depend exclusively from
other non-regional banks.

In 1881, the Bank created a Savings Unit. As
of that moment, clients were given a savings
passbook with the Bank’s seal in which to
register their deposits or withdrawals. In 1887,
the Bank’s Bylaws were amended, adding a
Mortgage Unit to their operations.
In its beginnings, Banco de Concepción
remained loyal to one of its founding
principles: i.e. to have a regional bank
that would provide credit support to the
local industry, commerce, agriculture and
other activities without the need to depend
exclusively from other non-regional banks.
The Bank -just like today- kept growing
constantly. It was part of the region’s life, its
demographic and economic growth, as well
as of the effects of the economic and natural
crises, such as 1939 earthquake. Albeit,
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Historical Background

Banco de Concepción was
founded on October 16, 1871
as a stock company that would operate as a
commercial bank of issue, deposits and discount.

remaining always firm and steady in terms of
its management.

the 8th Region, thus preserving the Bank’s
regional origins.

In 1946, began the construction of Planta
Siderúrgica de Huachipato steel plant, which
started its production in 1950. Banco de
Concepción placed its trust in this great
initiative and development focus of the country,
thus becoming one of the first bank entities
to subscribe shares of stock of Compañía de
Acero del Pacífico steel company, yet under
development.

In 1980, the Bank moved its headquarters to
Santiago, changing its business name to
Banco Concepción.

In February 1971, CORFO state development
corporation acquired one-third of the Bank’s
shares. On that same year, the Bank acquired
Banco Francés e Italiano, as a result of which
it became the property owner of its branch
offices; one of which was located in Santiago.
In 1972, Banco de Concepción acquired Banco
de Chillán, and in 1975 Banco de Valdivia;
thereby merging its operations with those
institutions and extending them to the cities of
Chillán and Valdivia.
In 1975, CORFO auctioned its Bank shares,
which were acquired by a group of persons of
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The Bank and its collaborators have exhibited
great mystique -ever since its origin- a
circumstance that has been duly highlighted
in its annual reports. In demonstration of
this, in 1981, with the occasion of the fire
that affected the entire building where the
Bank’s headquarters and all its facilities were
housed -located in Huérfanos 1072- thanks
to its personnel in a demonstration of their
commitment to the institution, the Bank closed
its doors to the public and stopped operating
just one day. It is that sort of commitment
which has kept the Bank’s identity and values in
force over time.
In 1986, the Bank was acquired by Sociedad
Nacional de Minería (SONAMI, in its Spanish
acronym) national mining association, so that
the institution had an active participation
in financing small and medium-size mining

companies. In 1987, as a way of supporting
this line of business, the Bank created the
Mining Division.
Toward the end of 1995, SONAMI sold its
majority shareholding of the Bank to the group
of investors -lead by Álvaro Saieh Bendeckwhich, as of that moment began to develop a
growth and development strategy to position
the bank as a protagonist bank of the country’s
financial system.
Within such strategy, it was considered to arrive
at an agreement with the Central Bank of Chile
regarding the junior debt (deuda subordinada)
that Banco de Concepción maintained with
the country’s issuing entity, which meant its
total extinction, and additionally -as a means of
market repositioning- its shareholders agreed to
change its name to CorpBanca.
In 1998, CorpBanca acquired Financiera Condell
savings & loan. Subsequently, it acquired the
credit portfolio of Corfinsa, which corresponded
to Banco Sudamericano’s Consumer Credit
Division. Nowadays, both institutions comprise
Banco Condell, whose operations, services and
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On the first aspect, we
have established six (6)
Values which ought to guide
the actions of the Bank’s
Collaborators so as to make
of the institution an exemplary
bank, insofar as its customer
services are concerned. The
Values are: Passion, Creativity,
Service, Collaboration,
Discipline and Talent.

products are developed and focused on middleincome persons.
In accordance with its growth plan, in
November 2002, CorpBanca issued shares in the
local marketing totaling USD 250 million that
was placed in the Emerging Companies’ Market
thus becoming Chile’s first issuer to trade its
shares in such prestigious exchange market.
In November 2004, the Bank took a step
toward internationalizing its operations upon
completing the listing process that currently
entitles it to trade its American Depositary
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Receipts (ADR’s) in the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE).

generate a greater impulse on this great project,
of which they are a fundamental piece.

In 2008, along the same sustained and safe path
to growth, the Bank projected its growth and
set itself one goal: to be among Chile’s top four
(4) Banks, with a distinctive seal and culture,
centered on the quality of its service. In order
to achieve this, it designed its so-called 2011
Flight Plan, which entails a qualitative and
quantitative change for the institution.

From the quantitative point of view, the Bank
is projecting to expand the Bank’s market share
and maintaining a sustainable profitability
over time.

On the first aspect, we have established six (6)
Values which ought to guide the actions of
the Bank’s Collaborators so as to make of the
institution an exemplary bank, insofar as its
customer services are concerned.
The Values are: Passion, Creativity, Service,
Collaboration, Discipline and Talent.
To these Values, we must add those assumed
with the Bank’s clients, aimed at becoming the
Best Quality Service Bank.
The achievement of this great challenge has
implied bringing about big changes in the
Organization. In fact, in order to strengthen
each of these Values, we have implemented three
(3) work axes, that we have denominated the
Quality, Talent and Culture fronts. Through
these axes, the Bank pretends to provide the
necessary tools to its Collaborators in order to

In 2009, and in sync with the goals thus
proposed, we successfully launched the
operations of the Bank’s New York Branch,
prior authorization of the US Federal Reserve
Board and the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency.
During that same year, we incorporated
CorpCapital Agencia de Valores S.A. securities
brokers, as a company to focus in managing the
assets and liabilities of high net worth persons,
delivering the kind of services and alternatives
that they require in conducting their businesses
and investments.
Likewise, in 2009, we incorporated SMU Corp
S.A. as a banking business support company,
whose purpose is to issue, operate and manage
credit cards, which shall be used to grant credits
to the clients of Unimarc Supermarkets at these
supermarket stores and also at other commercial
establishments beyond the referred supermarket
chain. In this manner, with the foregoing, we
achieved a strategic association that will open up
new business channels for the Bank.
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Award to the best
2008 Financial Sector
Annual Report

New York Branch
opening

CorpBanca received the Award
to the best 2008 Financial Sector
Annual Report, awarded by
PriceWaterhouseCoopers and
Revista Gestión, among the 80
most salient in the country.

CorpBanca’s New York Branch is
located in the heart of Manhattan.
It opened its doors to the public
on May 4, 2009, with a team of 14
Collaborators, who work daily to
achieve one sole and big objective:
to position CorpBanca as the best
Chilean bank operating in the
United States of America, to meet
the international financial needs
of the Bank’s clients and always
upholding the highest standard of
quality and personalized service.

Among those aspects evaluated
by the jury -comprised of scholars
and representatives of the business
community- are the quantity and
quality of the financial information
provided, as well as the Board’s
commitment to shareholders. Also
considered in the final decision
was its design, its drafting and the
printed quality of the document.

07

08

Increased geographical
coverage

CorpCapital Agencia de
Valores S.A.

In order to increase the Bank’s
geographical coverage, in line with
its size and strategic objectives,
during 2009 we opened up the
Vitacura, Bilbao and Santa María
de Manquehue branch offices in
the eastern area of Santiago. All of
them are on privileged locations,
and built and equipped according to
the highest standards of automation,
always thinking in the Bank’s
clients’ needs.

At these offices, clients may
have access to a personalized and
fast customer service, focusing
on satisfying their needs and
requirements, either through the
direct service of an executive or via
the internet platform, to which
they will have access from the
office itself.

During the year 2009, we
incorporated CorpCapital Agencia
de Valores S.A., securities agency
in order to offer new services to the
Bank’s clients related to managing
the assets and liabilities of high net
worth clients, providing new and
varied alternatives permitting those
clients to have access to a series of
local and international financial
products and services, offered to
them only by CorpBanca, thereby

During a first stage, this branch
will focus on serving the needs of
CorpBanca Chile’s clients; mainly
its Company, Corporate and
International segments, and also,
its Private Banking segment.
Likewise, the Bank will strengthen
its relations with its main corporate
clients, while developing new
bonds with Chilean export &
import companies, prioritizing
those with an active commerce
with the United States, in order to
attract and capture their foreign
trade operations.

becoming members of a select club
of co-investors on various business
opportunities.
In this manner, CorpBanca
continues to expand its financial
services, looking for the best
manner to serve its clients,
while responding efficiently to
the challenges imposed by the
financial market.

03
2009 E-Waste Award

CorpBanca was awarded the 2009
E-Waste Award, in recognition
for the Bank’s effort regarding the
implementation of sustainable
development plans for the country.
This award is awarded by the
company, Recycla, to those
organizations, the media,
institutions and persons who
have stood out during the period
for implementing programs
and disseminating socially
responsible actions that benefit the
environment through the recycling

of electronic waste materials. On
this 6th version of this award,
CorpBanca was the sole financial
institution to obtain recognition
for the actions carried out, framed
within the Bank’s own Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) plan.
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New Board of Directors

The Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting held on October 2009
agreed to reduce the number of
board members from 11 to 9 and
to increase the number of alternate
board members from 1 to 2.
The new board members are,
Messrs. Segismund ShulinZeuthen, former general manager
and president of Banco de Chile;
Fernando Massú, financial Board
Member of CorpGroup; and, Brian
O’Neill, former charge d’affairs
for Latin America at JP Morgan

and former undersecretary of the
treasury for hemispheric affairs of
the United States of America.

Ávila and don Héctor Valdés Ruiz
in their capacity as alternate
board members.

With these designations, the Board
is now comprised by Messrs.:
Álvaro Saieh Bendeck, Jorge
Andrés Saieh Guzmán, Fernando
Massú Tare, Fernando Aguad
Dagach, Julio Barriga Silva, Brian
O’Neill, Segismund ShulinZeuthen Serrano, Jorge Selume
Zaror, Hernán Somerville Senn in
their capacity as board members,
and Messrs.: Juan Rafael Gutiérrez

On the other hand, ending their
term of service at the Board were:
Messrs.: Carlos Massad, Francisco
Rosende, Ignacio González and
Arturo Valenzuela. The first three
names remain in the Group and
have assumed as board members of
the Group’s insurance companies,
while Arturo Valenzuela finished
his term because of his appointment
to serve as Representative for Latin

American Affairs of the United
States Government.
Mr. Carlos Abumohor, who until
the Shareholders’ Meeting was
the President of the Board of
Directors, has now been appointed
as Honorary President of the
Bank. His position has been
assumed by Mr. Álvaro Saieh
Bendeck. Jorge Andrés Saieh
Guzmán assumed as the Bank’s
First Vice-president and Fernando
Massú Tare assumed as the Bank’s
Second Vice-president.

04
Smu Corp S.A.

SMU S.A and CorpBanca
incorporated a new company
aimed at developing the financial
retail business, which will boost
the value and services proposals
offered to Unimarc clients, while
permitting CorpBanca to offer its
products to a significant number of
new clients.
This, through the creation of a
credit card that would permit
making purchases at Unimarc
Supermarkets (SMU, in its
Spanish acronym), and another
that will operate under an
international brand franchise that

will provide all the benefits of
this supermarket chain, plus the
additional possibility of using
it in all associated commercial
establishments.
In this manner, CorpBanca will
contribute its knowledge in
terms of credit risk management
and access to better sources of
financing for this new company.
While SMU S.A. will contribute
its knowledge of the retail world,
enabling a better understanding
of clients, detecting their
preferences, frequencies and
average purchase amounts.

This new company, SMU
CORP S.A, with a CorpBanca
shareholding of 51%, has been
incorporated as a CorpBanca
affiliate and a Business Support
Company, to be governed by
the regulations established by
the Central Bank of Chile for
credit card issuers and by the
Superintendence of Banks and
Financial Institutions; the latter
acting as supervising entity.

10
Sale of Bank Shares

As called for by current
regulations, the Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting held on
October 2009, authorized the
sale of Bank shares owned by
the Bank, equivalent to 2.5%
of its stock capital, amounting
to 5,672,732,264 shares, which
were preferentially offered to
shareholders, prorated according
to their own shareholding, in two
(2) consecutive periods of preferred
option; all of the foregoing,

pursuant to the procedure that was
duly reported to all shareholders.
The Board was thus authorized
to set the price of the shares to be
sold during the preferred option
periods agreed by it, which was
established by the Board at CLP
3.50 per share; price that compares
positively with its acquisition price
of CLP3.03 per share.

05

06

Fund Pro Performance
Awards

Trip to 2011 PLAN

During the year 2009, Fund Pro,
a New York based consulting
company aimed exclusively at
asset management activities in
Latin America, acknowledged the
performance of the funds and the
management of the investments
of CorpCapital Administradora
General de Fondos S.A. fund
management company, a Bank
affiliate, through the following
awards: Platinum Performance
Award to Fondo Más Valor

fund (of the National Debt
over 365 days segment), for
its outstanding profitability;
Platinum Performance Award
(to Fondo Selecto Global of the
Flexible Origin Debt segment),
for its outstanding profitability;
and Platinum Performance Award
to Administradora General de
Fondos general fund manager
company (of the International
Debt segment); for its outstanding
management of investments.

To transform CorpBanca in the Best
Bank in the Country was the project
in which we worked more intensely
during 2009.
In order to achieve this goal, we
created three (3) transformational
axes: the Quality Front, the Talent
Front, and the Culture Front, from
which this project’s main decisions
are lead and adopted.

11
Bond placement

During the last 2-month period
of the year 2009, successful
securities trading operations were
materialized both domestically
and internationally.
The first of them, executed during
the month of November, was
the allotment of Junior Bonds
worth UF 4,670,000, which
were principally acquired by life

insurance companies. Likewise,
during the month of December
2009, the institution made its
first inroads into the foreign debt
market by registering on a USD
500 million program based on the
US Reg S Norms. Under the aegis
of this program, we executed three
(3) allotments for an aggregate
amount of USD 199.7 million,
at a rate of Libor + 30 basic

annual points; cost, ostensibly
less expensive than alternative
fund sources accessible in foreign
markets.

TRIP TO 2011 PLAN

Unquestionably, the preparation/training of each Collaborator in order to
improve his/her on-the-job performance requires the continuous preoccupation
of the Organization.
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Ever since May of 2007, the Bank has been
working in a project of the highest importance:
to transform CorpBanca into the best bank in
the country in terms of its Quality of Service.
The goal proposed implies that persons and
companies should distinguish CorpBanca as a
landmark in terms of the quality of its customer
service model.
In the achievement of this objective, we
have determined the existence of three (3)
transformational exes:
The Quality Front, the Talent Front, and the
Culture Front.
These axes represent the synthesis of the
most transcendent aspects in projects of this
magnitude and scope.
The qualitative “jump” in organizational
behavior that the Bank is undertaking, are
represented in these three (3) fronts, which have
become vital elements toward consolidating
the above-mentioned consolidation, since this
type of objectives are not achieved with mere
investments, but it requires qualitative factors as
components that allow successful companies.
The Quality Front
The principal progress driven during 2009 was
focused on deepening the organizational culture
on the subject of Quality.

This is how we developed a full “Control Panel”
of quality indicators aimed at strengthening
the culture of following up each service and
customer service channel, to monitor compliance
with the goals to reach and to require the
corresponding improvements.

The goal proposed implies that
persons and companies should
distinguish CorpBanca as a
landmark in terms of the quality
of its customer service model.

Likewise, Quality is an integral part of the
incentives and performance evaluation system of
a very relevant group of Bank Collaborators. The
process was lead by the Bank’s Customer Service
and Sales channels.
We worked hard to develop a survey of internal
clients, building a client/supplier service
matrix around all the business and support
units of the Organization.
Finally, the Bank continued to strengthen its
service guarantees, driven during the entire
year 2008, through the adoption of customer
“service commitments” that point not only
to offer an adequate level of service, but also
to respond monetarily when something goes
wrong. Thus, during the year 2009, we not
only made progress in terms of creating a new
commitment, focused on the promise to return
the phone calls to clients in less than 24 hours
- an instance of service identified as relevant
by the financial system, but also, additionally
there was a serious concern to manage the
correct operation of the commitments assumed,
thereby achieving 94% compliance.
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Trip to 2011 Plan

OUR
ASPIRATION
FOR 2011

2011:

“TO BE THE BEST BANK”

TODAY

The Talent Front
During 2009, on this Front we reviewed
several managing processes of persons,
seeking to incorporate, develop and maintain
Collaborators with the characteristics and
competencies necessary for the challenges
imposed by Flight 2011.
The Bank worked on a new induction process
centered on motivating and aligning its new
Collaborators with the Bank’s culture and
challenges -lead by division chiefs, the general
manager and the presence of board members
of the Bank- held centrally in Santiago. With
this, we intend to provide an unforgettable
experience to each Collaborator from its first
hours in the Organization.
Likewise, the Bank developed the “Más
Cerca” (closer program, with the objective of
interiorizing its Collaborators about Flight
2011, through activities developed in Santiago
and in the Regions, in charge of division chiefs.
Some 900 persons from different branch offices
and divisions have already participated in
these meetings, with motivational activities
that include breakfasts, lunches, visits and
presentations.
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With respect to the Selection Process, and
considering that a new way of doing things
requires adequately selected persons, the Bank
has centered on new CorpBanca Collaborators
be equipped with the best professional
competencies and, above all, with the seal that
the Bank has defined. To that effect, just as how
key competencies were established for the Bank’s
Collaborators, strategies were also proposed so
that those who join the Organization be the best
professionals on the market.
On the other hand, a Management Performance
Process that is well known, shared and
valued by all is a feature common to all great
organizations, since it supports objective
decision making. On this subject, the Bank’s
efforts during 2009 have focused on generating
a solid Performance Evaluation Process;
which, among other things, includes a “360°
Evaluation” for division chiefs, and area and
district managers.
We wanted to acknowledge the Apollo Group,
integrated by high performing managers,
through Seminars and Training to support
their management practices. Similarly, we
acknowledged 29 Collaborators from different
Divisions and Affiliates, by granting 15
scholarships incorporating three (3) new types

2011

2010

2009

2008

MAY 5th 2008

of new graduate and post-graduate scholarships,
plus excellence awards for the children of the
Bank’s Collaborators.
Unquestionably, the preparation/training of
each Collaborator in order to improve his/her
on-the-job performance requires the continuous
preoccupation of the Organization. Thus, during
2009, 91% of all Collaborators were afforded
training opportunities on topics of impact to
their daily work. Some noteworthy events along
these lines were: 70% of such training hours are
face-to-face; of which, 80% are given by internal
Teacher-Trainers.
Finally, the Bank’s personnel selection and
training process would remain incomplete
should there not be a preoccupation for the
perception of Collaborators regarding their own
Job Satisfaction. Thus, in October 2009, we
carried out a survey along those lines that found
an overall level of 75% Job Satisfaction on the
part of CorpBanca’s personnel.
The Culture Front
As mentioned above, the Project described
demands introducing profound and radical
changes in the Bank’s corporate identity. This
means a change of culture.
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a Management Performance
Process that is well known,
shared and valued by all
is a feature common to all
great organizations,
since it supports objective decision making.

The foregoing is a highly challenging task,
since it entails a qualitative jump. Specifically,
it means “changing the Bank’s way of doing
things”. It is not only a question of improving,
but of changing.

•

•
The Culture Front is aimed at generating
actions that will provide the grounds to make
this “jump”.
The various dimensions on which the Bank is
developing this change are:
• a new communications and extension
strategy;
• a leadership management and coaching;
• a launching, dissemination and training of
the new values;
• a plan to align the new work methodologies;
and
• a plan to deepen the sense of pride and
belonging.
Within this context, during 2009, we
implemented actions in each of the above
dimensions, which have permitted making
substantial and sustained progress along the
“route” of this cultural change.
Among these actions, it is worth highlighting:
• the introduction of a new communications

•

•

•
•
•
•

strategy and methodology for the Bank’s
internal communications;
the reformulation and relaunching of
the Bank’s internal magazine, named
“Incorpórate” (incorporate yourself);
the development of new intranet
communication tools ((Altavoz / Sitio 2011);
the introduction of a plan of meetings and
communications from the General Manager’s
Office;
the creation and management of a team
comprised by the Bank’s best qualified
executives, named the “Apollo Group”;
the changes in project planning and followup methodology (PMO)
the reorganization of key projects;
the restructuring and methodology plan for
Committees and Meetings; and
the development and start-up of Convergence
and Symbology Plan.

Likewise, we endeavored at deepening some of
the actions that were initiated during FY-2008,
among which it is worth noting:
• the elaboration of a “history” of common
change;
• the development of alignment sessions;
• the consolidation of the new organizational
architecture and incentive models of branch
networks in Personal Banking; and

• the application of the plan to resolve
structural inconsistencies with the objectives
of Trip to 2011.
Just like in 2008, one of the most relevant
actions was the strengthening and dissemination
of the Values of CorpBanca. Undoubtedly,
the Values of the Organization represent and
determine the kind of behavior that the Bank’s
clients and our society at large, can and must
expect. These are the Values and transformation
plans that the Bank is bent on implementing,
which will ultimately enable consolidating the
CorpBanca Culture; which, basically, consists
in offering clients and the community an
Organization of integral individuals, leaders,
dynamic in their search for excellence, with a
winning mentality, and the highest standards of
integrity, honorability and transparence.
The objective is to become an Organization
that stimulates diversity and creativity, within
a space of Collaboration and Appreciation from
and to all its different levels.
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THE VALUES OF THE
ORGANIZATION

Represent the way that the Organization and its Collaborators do things.
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The cultural transformation process
undergoing in the Bank through the 2011
Trip - which is to make of CorpBanca de Best
Bank in Chile- is sustained on the integration
of its Corporate Values, since, ultimately, they
represent the way that the Organization and its
Collaborators do things.

The foregoing has lead to the implementation
of a plan of actions toward raising awareness
about each of these Values, deepening their
understanding and thus their integral and
constant awareness throughout the Organization.

Those Values that have been established as
essential in the actions of all and each and every
one of the Organization’s Collaborators are:

Passion

Creativity

Service

We are synonymous to Passion. The
energy and enthusiasm that define
the Bank’s style, involving all of us
integrally in our work at a non-stop
pace toward achieving excellence.

Change is always in our minds,
persistently looking for opportunities and
willing, humbly, to continuous learning.

We have a vocation to Serve the Bank’s
customers. Their satisfaction drives the Bank’s
actions. We walk ahead of the market, living up
to expectations and resolving on time.

Collaboration

Discipline

Talent

Is part of the Bank’s spirit. We think
in the success of the team over our
individual achievements. We act with
the highest degree of transparency
and honesty.

The Bank is a model of Discipline. We
guarantee our commitments personally
and with excellence, with an honest and
honorable behavior.

The success of our Organization stands
on the recognition of our capacities
and competencies.
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The Values of the Organization

In order to measure the degree
of awareness and commitment
of our Collaborators
with these Values, in 2009, for the first time, the Bank
participated in the “Barometer of Entrepreneurial Ethics
and Values” survey, carried out by Fundación Generación
Empresarial entrepreneurial generation foundation.

Within the context of this plan of activities,
we organized a first communication activity
in March 2009, where all Collaborators were
handed a briefcase with these Values inside, as a
symbol of the indispensable travel kit required
to “embark” onto the Bank’s 2011 Trip and
achieve the objectives thus committed.
Then, throughout the year, we conveyed one
(1) Value each month, giving full force to each
message and to its specific depiction reflecting
the experience of the defined Values.
The CorpBanca Values were substantially
incorporated in the new Collaborators’
Induction Program, based on strategic
guidelines. Corporate meetings were also
organized with similar purposes with our
old Collaborators incorporating them to
various internal activities of the Organization;
recreational, cultural, social and professional.
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In order to measure the degree of awareness
and commitment of our Collaborators with
these Values, in 2009, for the first time,
the Bank participated in the “Barometer of
Entrepreneurial Ethics and Values” survey,
carried out by Fundación Generación
Empresarial entrepreneurial generation
foundation, which permitted having an initial
diagnosis and access to subsequent monitoring
on these topics. All of these efforts were aimed
at managing actions about knowledge indicators
and the degree of internalization of Values.
One of the main findings of this survey was
that 93% of our surveyed Collaborators
indicated that the Company’s Values were
quite clearly defined, and, additionally, that
they were overwhelmingly applied throughout
the Organization.
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COMMITMENTS

Seeks to create a very demanding internal organizational culture in terms of the
need to always try “to do things right”.
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During the year 2009, the Organization
continued its policy of guaranteeing all clients
an adequate level of service through the so-called
“Commitments”, whose objective is to assume
the Organization’s liability before errors of
form or opportunity of service, by paying an
indemnification.
In this manner, the Bank commits, not merely
to convey to its clients the desire to be identified
as a Bank of excellence when it comes to Service,
but also, that it seeks to create a very demanding
internal organizational culture in terms of the
need to always try “to do things right”.
Thus, the Bank focused its efforts mainly on
adequately managing its existing commitments,
seeking to meet the promise offered; whose
outcome was a positive evolution of its
commitment compliance indicator, reaching

VOLANTE COMPRO. TRAZ.pdf
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94% compliance throughout the entire period
of measurement.
As a result of several analyses, the Organization
understood that there was a long-time financial
industry client yearning related to the real need
to get in touch with account executives. Because
of this, a decision was made to create a 9th
Commitment, consisting in “We return your
calls on time”; i.e. “If your account executive
does not return your call on time, we pay you
CLP5.000”.
Through this new Commitment, the Bank
seeks to satisfy some of the most relevant
service requirements stated by its clients and,
thus, move forward along the path of being
acknowledged -in the near future- as the Bank
that best looks after its clients.
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COMMUNICATION STRATEGY:
ONE SINGLE MESSAJE - ONE
SINGLE OBJECTIVE

There is an element of vital importance in positioning the brand in the
market, which has to do with the image that is projected through each
and every Collaborator.
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In 2008, soon after the awareness of the
CorpBanca brand name increased considerably
in the market and significant progress was
made in important general public awareness
indicators; in 2009, we attempted to position
an element that would permit adding value
to the brand, and thus, differentiate ourselves
from the rest of the market. We did this
with the communicational objective of
accompanying the commercial growth proposed
by the Bank’s Management.

During the second half of the year -right in the
middle of the world economic crisis- the Bank
launched its “Hipotecario con UF Congelada”
frozen UF mortgage loan product, ensuring a
dividend lower than that of its competitors.
Likewise, the Bank also bid in some of the main
bidding contests launched onto the market
by real estate developers, thereby assuming a
commercially aggressive policy in order
to deal with the economic crisis and the new
house overstock.

This is how during 2009 a shift occurred in the
Bank’s communicational strategy that entailed
changing its advertising agency, the media
chosen, and refocusing in order to coordinate
and unify advertising efforts with the Bank’s
commercial strategy, so that the former should
complement and support the latter.

Regarding new credit cards, in addition
to providing advertising support to the
continuous CLP 37 discount benefit on gasoline
purchases, we launched the “Corpuntos”
fidelization program as a tactical tool to
increase invoicing from current credit card
holders through an aggressive launching offer;
which, additionally, was aimed at capturing
new clients for the Bank.

This support occurred mainly on tactics, via
publicity in launching new and innovative
Personal Banking products, and via
strengthening fidelization, cross-over and client
profitability in the Company Banking area.
With respect to mortgage loans, the Bank
sought to innovate based on its customer
services, launching a product denominated
“Hipotecario GPS”. Thus, in empathy with
clients and considering that for many of them
the mortgage loan approval process is an
unknown quantity, we made available to the
public a product that is very commercially
competitive that includes an on-line follow-up
service of the entire mortgage loan process.

For the Company Banking segment, we
organized CorpBanca’s Second Economic
Seminar, which included the speaking
participation of Professor John Cochrane and
that of Finance Minister, Andrés Velasco. This
was one of the Bank’s landmark fidelization
events of the first half of the year.
Nevertheless, there is an element of vital
importance in positioning the brand in the
market, which has to do with the image that is
projected through each and every Collaborator.
Both those that perform roles in direct
contact with the public, as well as those that
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Communication Strategy: one single messaje - one single objective

the Bank is set on the right road
toward consolidating the brand
image to be shaped during 2010,
pointing toward a Bank with a differentiated personality.

work in support areas; all of them are brand
communicating agents and, consequently,
important links in the Bank’s chain of
communications.
With Collaborators thus recognized -on
their fundamental brand positioning role- it
became of paramount importance to have
clear commercial and communicational
objectives that would permit having just one
single message and one single and coherent
communication between what the Bank
projects through its media advertising and the
direct personal experience of clients -as well as
of potential clients- when facing each one of
those persons who make it possible for them to
experience the CorpBanca brand.
As of August 2009, the Bank merged its
Marketing and Internal Communications
areas, while refocusing on the internal
communications media, both in form and in
content, with the purpose of supporting their
main role; namely, to contribute toward the
feeling of pride and belonging on the part
of Collaborators. Clear messages, specific
objectives, and legible formats unified the
information that was available at different
levels of the Organization, thus generating
a single goal and a channel of information
valid for the Bank’s strategic thrust, aimed
at meeting objectives, benefits and other
miscellaneous topics, all of it toward
developing the perception of one single Bank
and a common road ahead for all.
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By having one single common goal toward
whose accomplishment everybody works -from
the commercial perspective- and one single
common communicational objective, the Bank
is conveying to the external public one single
idea of CorpBanca, whose central objective is:
to become “Chile’s Best Bank”.
In support of this initiative, during 2009 it was
discussed at different instances and with the
participation of the Bank’s Senior Management
and Administration, the emphasis that ought
to be given in order to achieve our projected
growth objectives, particularly at the Personal
Banking level.
In this manner, through adequate advertising
strategies, the Bank is set on the right road
toward consolidating the brand image to be
shaped during 2010, pointing toward a Bank
with a differentiated personality, focused on
the growth of higher-income person segments,
consolidating its PyMe small and mediumsize banking area, while also strengthening its
Wholesale Banking area, thereby delivering
a broad and integral array of banking services
with an attitude meant to invite others to
become party to this project and all to seek
support to grow and build their own place in
the world.
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COMMITMENT TO
CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The role played by the Organization -and the Group to which it belongsregarding its relationship with society, is another axis of CorpBanca’s
strategy that marked concrete focuses during the year 2009.
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Before each of the dimensions of Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR), the Bank defined
focuses that enabled it to concentrate its actions
and issue -for the first time in tandem with this
annual report- a Corporate Social Responsibility
Report, with an itemized account of each of the
actions depicted hereunder.

January in Parque Araucano; and the SANFIC 5
Santiago International Film Festival, in the
month of August, have enabled a greater access
of the public at large to see worldwide awarded
films, while also representing an incentive to the
local film industry, especially Sanfic, through its
annual awards.

Community

It is important to highlight the participation
of children from low-income families in the
film workshops organized this year during
the Festival de Cine Las Condes film festival;
which was made possible with the support of
CorpBanca.

With respect to the community, the Bank’s
specific action axes focused on two (2) areas:
Children and youth with cognitive disabilities
Through the support of four (4) foundations that
work in the development and social insertion of
children and youth with cognitive disabilities,
CorpBanca has become a party to this reality,
committing resources and getting directly
involved in these projects. Fundación Mírame,
Fundación Tacal, Amigos por Siempre and
Colegio El Golf have developed concrete actions
with the support of CorpBanca in implementing
their objectives, permitting them to raise funds
to continue working in this important task.
Likewise, several actions have been carried out in
support of Corporación Seguir Creciendo.
Cultural Extension
Mostly through Fundación CorpArtes art
foundation, the Bank has become involved
in massive efforts to extend various artistic
expressions. The Festival de Cine Las Condes
film festival, carried out during the month of

Through the Bank’s active participation in
Ch.ACO, Chile’s first Contemporary Art Fair,
we supported the extension and access to art
in a massive way, in a sample that included
important national and international art
galleries, as well as exhibitions by renowned
artists. With respect to Visual Arts, the
Bank co-sponsored the Trienal de Chile 2009,
tri-annual expo.
It is also worth mentioning CorpBanca’s
involvement in La Ciudad y las Palabras,
the city and the words project, organized by
the Pontificia Universidad Católica catholic
university, thanks to whose collaboration we
were able to benefit the Bank’s clients and the
community at large; by including the visit of
important international writers, such as Richard
Ford, Ian McEwan and Javier Marías, who gave
keynote presentations unheard of in Chile.
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Commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

It is important to highlight the
participation of children from
low-income families in the film.

The workshops organized around this project
-an eventual cradle of new representatives of
our national literature- are also made possible,
in an important part, by the financing provided
by CorpBanca.
The Environment
Our main focus of action regarding the
Environment is framed within the Principios
del Ecuador principles, of which CorpBanca is
a signatory ever since the year 2007 - being
the only domestic signatory before this
environmental organization. In accordance
with such principles, the Bank incorporated a
consideration of the social and environmental
risks eventually posed by projects over USD 10
million, in their credit evaluation process. The
existence of such risks and their corresponding
mitigating measures, become a relevant factor at
the time of approving such project financing.
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Another concrete focus of Environmental action
tackles various Energy Savings topics. In 2008,
CorpBanca was given an award in recognition
of its efficient handling of energy resources. The
Bank is continuously engaged in improving its
energy efficiency indicators, as an integral part of
its CSR strategy.
Finally, the Bank has been actively engaged
in its Electronic Recycling Initiative, which was
acknowledged by the 2009 E-Waste Award,
awarded by Recycla to CorpBanca on grounds
of its continuous commitment and execution
of concrete measures aimed at providing a safe
treatment and disposal of toxic waste.
Collaborators
In its constant preoccupation for the Quality of
Life of its Collaborators, in 2007 the Bank began
to materialize its Plan por una Vida Sana healthy
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Before each of
the dimensions of
Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR),
the Bank defined focuses that enabled
it to concentrate its actions.

lifestyle plan, which brings together a host of
sports, cultural and recreational activities for its
Collaborators and their family circle.
Within this context and for the second year
in a row, the Bank organized the Corrida
Familiar CorpBanca family marathon run,
with the participation of more than 800 of
its Collaborators, distributed among the 5 or
10-kilometer marathon runs.
Also, other activities were carried out during
the year, such as the concert given by Trinares de
Chile corporate folkloric group, the Visita de los
Hijos de Colaboradores visit of sons & daughters
of Collaborators to their parents’ offices, the
Pinta La Navidad Christmas painting contest for
the sons & daughters of Collaborators, and the
Regional Olympics. Tennis, mini-soccer and other
games were also organized.

It is important to highlight that -as part of
the Bank’s constant concern about the safety of
Collaborators- during 2009, several activities
were organized meant to prevent labor accidents,
through which the Bank’s Collaborators were
provided information necessary to safeguard
their physical integrity at work. In this sense,
in all the Bank’s branch offices throughout
the country we implemented emergency
contingency plans, and executed evacuation
drills with the support of entities competent and
trained in fire fighting and in the handling of
persons in emergency situations.
Additionally, 18 Joint Committees were
created in different branch offices around the
country; which represents more than 70% of
the Bank’s staff.

Additionally, we implemented a “Protected
Building” plan, whose main objective is to
provide support in medical emergencies of
common and/or labor origin, eventually suffered
by the Bank’s Corporate Building Collaborators.
Ethics and Values
The publication and due cognizance -on the
part of all Collaborators- of the General Code
of Conduct of CorpBanca and its Affilaites, as
well as the dissemination of CorpBanca Values
during this year, completed the framing of the
interactions of in their internal environment, as
well as in their relationship with the market,
clients and suppliers.
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CREATIVITY
“MUSIC NEEDS TO BE CONTINOUSLY RENAMED WITH
NEW ACCORDS IN ORDER TO CREATE NEW FORMS
OF EXPRESSION. THIS ALLOWS US TO ACHIEVE THE
SENSATIONS THAT WE AIM TO STIR”.

VICTOR CAYUMIL
CONCEPCION’S CUSTOMER SERVICE ASSISTANT
NOMINATED FOR CREATIVITY

Aside from work and family life he performs mainly 3 activities, to which he dedicates large
amounts of time: music, soccer and his participation within the Catholic Church community.
Regarding music, he says that he has enjoyed listening and playing music ever since he was
a child. Creativity has been an integral part of his life ever since he was very young and he
captures it by composing the lyrics and the music of songs. He has participated in many music
festivals and shows in different cities in and out of Concepcion, with his own or other well
known songs; in general he likes international popular music. He refers to himself as selflearner when it comes to learning and improving his style and technique. It is a hobby which
he lives with Passion and Discipline in order to improve his vocalization and diction.

COMPANY
IDENTIFICATION

The Bank was incorporated by virtue of public document dated August 7, 1871
executed before the Concepción Public Notary’s Office of Mr. Nicolás Peña.
Its corporate existence was approved via Executive Decree dated September 6,
1971, published in the “El Araucano” newspaper of February 20, 1872 and
registered on sheet 35 number 8 of the Commercial Register of the Concepción
Land Register corresponding to the year 1871. The last consolidated text of its
Articles of Incorporation were established by an Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting and abridged into a public document on October 15, 2009, at the
Santiago Public Notary’s Office of Mr. José Musalem Saffie.
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Business Name
CorpBanca

Address
Rosario Norte 660, Las Condes

R.U.T. taxpayer ID
97.023.000-9

Type of Company
Anonymous banking company

Telephone – fax
687 80 00 – 672 67 29

P.O. Box
Casilla 80-D

E-mail
corpbanca@corpbanca.cl

Website
www.bancocorpbanca.cl
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Board of Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Bank’s Board of Directors is integrated by nine (9) board members
and two (2) alternate members, whose identification is the following:

President
Álvaro Saieh Bendeck
Taxpayer ID: 5.911.895-1
Business Administration
Professional
Ph.D. in Economics
University of Chicago
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First Vice-president
Jorge Andrés Saieh Guzmán
Taxpayer ID: 8.311.093-7
Business Administration
Professional
Master in Economics and MBA,
University of Chicago

Second Vice-president
Fernando Massú Tare
Taxpayer ID: 6.783.826-2
Business Administration
Professional
Professional Management,
Harvard Business School, USA

Board Member
Fernando Aguad Dagach
Taxpayer ID:
6.867.306-2
Entrepreneur

Board Member
Julio Barriga Silva
Taxpayer ID:
3.406.164-5
Agricultural Engineer
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Board Member
Brian O’Neill
Passport 113017071
Business
Administration
Professional Executive

Board Member
Segismundo SchulinZeuthen Serrano
Taxpayer ID: 4.689.635-1
Business Administration
Professional

Board Member
Jorge Selume Zaror
Taxpayer ID: 6.064.619-8
Business Administration
Professional
Master of Arts in Economics,
University of Chicago

Board Member
Hernán Somerville Senn
Taxpayer ID: 4.132.185-7
Lawyer
Master on Comparative Law,
University of New York

Alternate Board
Member
Héctor Valdés Ruiz
Taxpayer ID:
5.226.609-2
Business Administration
Professional

Alternate Board
Member
Juan Rafael Gutiérrez
Ávila
Taxpayer ID:
4.176.092-3
Audit Accountant
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SHAREHOLDERS

The CorBanca’s top twelve (12) shareholders as of December 31, 2009, and
their respective shareholding within the total shares comprising the Bank’s
stock capital, are the following:
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Name or Business Name

Nº of Shares

Shareholding

112,530,207,591

50.53849

Compañía Inmobiliaria y de Inversiones Saga Limitada

20,898,831,865

9.38588

Inv. Mineras del Cantábrico S.A.

15,812,506,695

7.10156

Inv. La Punta S.A.

5,686,087,838

2.55368

Manufacturas Interamericana S.A.

5,413,342,266

2.43119

Cía. de Seguros CorpVida S.A.

4,491,865,961

2.01734

Moneda S.A. AFI para Pionero Fondo de Inversión

4,232,215,102

1.90073

Banchile C. de B. S.A.

3,653,455,692

1.64081

Celfin Capital S.A. C. de B.

3,536,180,751

1.58814

Banco de Chile por Cuenta de Terceros Ca

3,373,020,864

1.51486

Inversiones Heracles Limitada

3,279,769,354

1.47298

AFP Provida S.A. para Fondo Pensión C

2,319,975,027

1.04193

CorpGroup Banking S.A.
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As of December 31, 2009, the natural person
controlling CorpGroup Banking S.A. is Álvaro
Saieh Bendeck, Taxpayer ID N° 5.911.895-1;
who, jointly with his family, indirectly holds
75.64% of the property ownership of such
company. Additionally, Álvaro Saieh Bendeck,
jointly with his wife, indirectly holds 100%

of the property ownership of Compañía
Inmobiliaria y de Inversiones Saga S.A. real
estate and investment company, and, jointly
with his family, he holds 100% of the property
ownership of Inversiones Heracles Limitada
investment company.

The most important changes in
CorpBanca’s property ownership.
As of December 2009 -as compared to
December 31, 2008- the most important
property ownership changes in the Bank were
the following:

Bank shareholding increases, as of December 2009:

Taxpayer ID

Shareholding as of
31/12/2009

%

Shareholding as of
31/12/2008

%

Inversiones Heracles Limitada

76.062.508-6

3,279,769,354

1.47

-

-

Banco Santander por Cta. de Inv. Extranj.

97.036.000-K

1,556,572,017

0.70

-

-

Banco Itau por Cuenta de Inversionistas

76.645.030-K

1,560,276,281

0.70

528,722,618

0.24

Celfin Capital S.A. C. de B.

84.177.300-4

3,536,180,751

1.59

2,677,863,586

1.21

Cía. de Seguros CorpVida S.A.

96.571.890-7

4,491,865,961

2.02

3,729,820,940

1.69

Inv. Mineras del Cantabrico S.A.

96.625.340-1

15,812,506,695

7.10

15,120,581,509

6.83

Inversiones Santa Emilia S.A.

78.712.890-4

592,486,213

0.27

-

-

Moneda Corredora de Bolsa Limitada

76.615.490-5

576,305,140

0.26

201,150,860

0.09

Banco de Chile por Cuenta de Terceros Ca

97.004.000-5

3,373,020,864

1.51

3,010,369,578

1.36

Corp. Capital C. de B. S.A.

96.665.450-3

2,209,512,595

0.99

1,960,533,753

0.89

Name or Business Name

Bank shareholding decreases, as of December 2009:

Taxpayer ID

Shareholding as of
31/12/2009

%

Shareholding as of
31/12/2008

%

Cía. de Seg. de Vida Consorcio Nac. de Seg.

99.012.000-5

-

-

2,884,523,083

1.30

Bolsa Electrónica de Chile Bolsa de Val.

96.551.730-8

-

-

1,637,982,448

0.74

Afp Habitat S.A. para Fondo Pensión C

98.000.100-8

1,399,951,133

0.63

2,156,152,408

0.97

AFP Cuprum S.A. Fondo Tipo A

98.001.000-7

216,316,797

0.10

949,829,646

0.43

AFP Cuprum S.A. para Fondo Pensión C

98.001.000-7

2,069,031,422

0.93

2,792,630,664

1.26

AFp Cuprum S.A. Fondo Tipo B

98.001.000-7

687,494,154

0.31

1,189,574,196

0.54

AFP Habitat S.A. Fondo Tipo B

98.000.100-8

259,276,318

0.12

746,990,679

0.34

Santander S.A. C. de B.

96.683.200-2

331,220,903

0.15

716,216,761

0.32

Afp Habitat S.A. Fondo Tipo A

98.000.100-8

-

-

330,574,886

0.15

Afp Provida S.A. Fondo Tipo B

98.000.400-7

419,936,422

0.19

747,824,422

0.34

Name or Business Name
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HONORARY PRESIDENT,
MR. CARLOS ABUMOHOR

Today’s Honorary President of our Bank, began to write his story in our country
as the son of Palestinian immigrants, when, in the early part of the 20th
century and mid 1950’s, his parents decided to abandon the city of Beit Jala,
Palestine, in search of a better future for their family in these latitudes.
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Ever since the year 1996 until the month
of October 2009, Mr. Carlos Abuhomor Touma
held the position of President of CorpBanca’s
Board of Directors. As of that date, he became
the Bank’s Honorary President.
Today’s Honorary President of our Bank, began
to write his story in our country as the son of
Palestinian immigrants, when, in the early part
of the 20th century and mid 1950’s, his parents
decided to abandon the city of Beit Jala, Palestine,
in search of a better future for their family in
these latitudes. But things did not come out easy,
because they had to adapt to a new country, a new
culture and assume the difficulties inherent in
speaking another language.
So, don Carlos, still Young, developed an
admirable emotional and physical strength,
always supported by his family and by those who
integrated his inner circle: his countrymen who
were able to form a community whose common
values were trust, respect and the motivation to
achieve a common objective.
Just like the majority of Palestinian immigrants,
don Carlos’ family worked in commercial
activities. Together they went from one city of
Chile to another, offering their merchandise, to
later open up a store in downtown Santiago: in
21 de Mayo, number 673. In this place is where
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Honorary President, Mr. Carlos Abumohor

is an entrepreneur, an
optimist against all odds,
with innate qualities,
great aspirations and capacity, all of which
have made him a national business pioneer.

the first dreams of the Abumohor Family began
to come true, becoming in the manufacturers of
products which the sold with increasing success.

Palestine Stadium, which began to take shape as
project when a group of friends decided to create
a space of social encounter for their community.

Thus, don Carlos grew up as a businessman.
Working elbow to elbow with his parents and
brothers, always guided by Discipline and a solid
commitment to his work.

Upon its becoming a reality, this great work
was then presided by Carlos Abumohor for
25 years, and is to this date the location of
various cultural, social and sports activities.
Undoubtedly, the materialization of yet
another dream of this entrepreneur, to which
he dedicated a significant part of his time and
energy.

However, in spite of his dedication to the
family store, he never let his studies aside and
became one of the top students in his class.
As a studious and applied student, one of his
aspirations was to study medicine; but, the
circumstances of his life forced him to postpone
his aspirations and decided to concentrate on
the family’s business, in the expectation that
great times were ahead for the development of
commercial activities.
And he was right, since he began to industrialize
his clothing manufacturing business while
obtaining several manufacturing licenses from
North American companies.
Initially guided solely by his intuition, his good
judgment and lots of hard work, soon he began
to reap the benefits of his sacrifices.
But his business ability did not end with
that, since another of his dreams would be
materialized soon thereafter: the creation of the
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A tireless visionary
With his commercial experience in the
productive and manufacturing area and
the creation of the Palestinian Stadium, his
entrepreneurial spirit did not stop creating new
ideas and projects. He knew there were yet other
areas to know and explore. So, he decided to
enter into the financial area. He then decided
-just like that- to lead a bank.
He was labeled an idealist and many attempted
to stop him in his chimera. However, nobody
could stop don Carlos in his drive. And in his
aspiration to manage an entity that would
favor the growth of commerce and provide
financial solutions to all; since then, there was
no looking back.

Thus, along with a group of persons from his
community -who were also searching for growth
opportunities- he began to travel around the
country in search of an opportunity that would
open them the doors of this business. Needless
to say, it was not an easy task, because most of the
entrepreneurs of his community ignored the world
of finance and mistrusted the idea of a bank.
Quite aware of his strengths as well as his
weaknesses, don Carlos searched humbly for
those verse don this subject matter, managing
to incorporate into his project one of his trusted
men to this day, Alvaro Saieh. Together and
with the participation of other families of the
Palestinian Colony, they formed a business group
that the media of the time baptized as “The 10
Mosques”, who then acquired the Banco Osorno
y La Unión bank in 1986.
Carlos Abumohor presided that institution
between the years 1986 and 1995, with Alvaro
Saieh by his side, with whom he developed
a filial relationship of mutual admiration
and affection. He worked hard in the bank’s
management, leading the organization’s group
of shareholders. Things did not come out
easy. Together they faced incomprehension,
hostilities and adverse commentaries. But don
Carlos’ tenacity was fundamental in steering the
institution’s direction toward its success.
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Working hard, with discipline and tenacity,
forming a working team lead by Collaboration
and Passion to get this project to fly, the
managed to transform Banco Osorno into a
relevant bank in the financial sector, expanding
its market share from 1.7% to 9.0% in 196,
when the bank was sold; thus becoming a
historical transaction in the Chilean
banking system.
In order to achieve this growth, don Carlos
endeavored to remain close to the Bank’s
workers, visiting each of its branch offices around
the country, listening to the requirements of
its clients, preserving the unity of its Board of
Directors, while always maintaining its goals
and objectives clear.
In this manner, what was nothing but a dream,
not only materialized, but also -and, again,
with much Discipline, trust and hard workbecame a success.
A great man - a great work
Banco Concepción -nowadays CorpBanca- was
acquired in the year 1995, and ever since it
has been presided by Carlos Abumohor, who,
once again, became the axis around which the
Organization developed its achievements. In the
Bank’s increasing success story, its President has

been a key figure, contributing his vision and
experience to the business.
As demonstrated by his lifetime history, Carlos
Abumohor is an entrepreneur, an optimist
against all odds, with innate qualities, great
aspirations and capacity, all of which have made
him a national business pioneer, while rearing
several generations of collaborators who have
followed his deep and indelible tracks.
He has stood out because of his plain and close
character; also firm and tireless. He has outlined
the road ahead for this Bank to follow, on a
sustained progress toward success; just as he
has aimed his own life from his native [Sic.]
Temuco, through 21 de Mayo 673, and to what
he is today: a great man with a great work.
Carlos Abumohor Touma is an example for all
who are a part of this Institution; he clearly
incarnates the true values that inspire this Bank.
Don Carlos is an example of Passion, as he has
pursued his dreams until making them come
true; of Collaboration with others, which has
implied the humble attitude of knowing that
each one -including himself- is one more piece
in the construction of a project; of Talent, all
of them aiming at the objective proposed; of
Creativity to materialize his dreams, expanding

his view onto the horizon without self-imposing
growth limits; and, finally, of Discipline, which
is crucial at the time of carrying out a daily work
project, without ever abandoning it, regardless
of how difficult it might seem to get over the
hurdles that lie along the road.
Deep down, he is a good-natured person, patient
to listen to the position of others and their
problems, and to provide pertinent advice; a
man of transparent feelings in all his actions and
genuinely concerned about the needs of those
who surround him.
Because of these unique characteristics, Carlos
Abumohor will always guide CorpBanca’s
directors and Collaborators toward meeting
the goals proposed, inspiring them in their
search for real solutions for the Bank’s clients,
without seeking fame or wealth, but rather the
materialization of an ideal and a dream that
would become a valuable contribution to the
economy of the country that harbored him and
a solid Service enterprise: reflected in those who
are CorpBanca’s main capital: the people.
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CORPORATE
GOVERNMENT

In general terms, “Corporate Government” is a set of principles, norms and
acts by virtue of which companies direct and exert fiscal control & supervision
in order to contribute toward their effectiveness, organizational performance,
transparency and management efficiency.
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Principles
In general terms, “Corporate Government”
is a set of principles, norms and acts by virtue of
which companies direct and exert fiscal control
& supervision in order to contribute toward
their effectiveness, organizational performance,
transparency and management efficiency. In
CorpBanca, board members play a preponderant
role within the scope of the respective corporate
governments. The main function of board
members is to monitor, evaluate and offer
direction to senior management toward ensuring
that their actions are consistent with the best
practices. To that effect, several committees,
codes and manuals have been developed
to provide performance guidelines to the
Organization and to the Bank’s Collaborators.
The Board Members’ Committee
The Board Members’ Committee’s role is to
strengthen self-regulation within the Bank, thus
rendering the board members’ performance more
efficient, upon developing a fiscal control of the
activities carried out. To that effect, among its
functions is to examine the Bank’s accounting
and financial reports, the operations with related
companies/parties, as well as the fee schedule
and compensation plan systems of managers and
senior executives.
Until October 2009, CorpBanca’s Board
Members’ Committee membership was
integrated by, Carlos Massad Abud, who acted
as President; Ignacio González Martínez and
Francisco Rosende Ramírez. As of October,

and on the occasion of the appointment of new
board members, the Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting of that month appointed the following
members to the Board Members’ Committee:
Segismund Shulin-Zeutehn Serrano, to act as
Committee President, Álvaro Saieh Bendeck,
and Brian O’Neill.
The Board Members’ Committee met on nine (9)
occasions during the year 2009.
The Committee discharged all such functions
and activities referred to under numerals 1
to 5 of article 50 bis of Law 18,046; namely,
it examined the Company’s General Balance
Sheet and Financial Statements, their Notes
and the Reports of the External Auditors, it
issued its opinion about them and it approved
them; it examined the Bank’s Intermediate
Financial Statements and approved them; it
was apprised of the Bank’s monthly results
(profit/loss); it required presentations from
the different commercial manager’s offices,
evaluating their individual situation; it required
a presentation about the management of Banco
Condell’s business; it approved the Annual
Report corresponding to FY-2008; it examined
and approved the background information
regarding operations with related entities. It
received a presentation prepared by the Finance
& International Division regarding the strategies
to be followed during the current year, and yet
another presentation prepared by the Personal
Banking Manager’s Office regarding strategies
toward securing its clients’ growth, profitability
and fidelization. It attended a presentation
given by Corp Capital Corredores de Bolsa
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S.A. stock exchange brokers about its business
management. The Commercial Risk Division
made a presentation before the Committee
in order to analyze the situation about the
write-offs entered upon executing agreements
with debtors whose loans had been written-off.
The Banco Condell Division Manager’s Office
presented the results of its Division, and the
Company Division Manager’s Office made its
own presentation about those topics related to
their management. Likewise, the Committee
approved the Articles of Incorporation of the
banking support business company, SMU
Corp S.A., whose business purpose -as duly
authorized by the Superintendence for Securities
& Financial Institutions- is to issue, operate and
manage credit cards to be used to the clients of
Supermercados Unimarc supermarkets for credits
to be issued in their respective establishments.
The Committee was duly apprised of the Senior
Executive Compensation Plan payable during
FY-2009, and of that corresponding to FY-2009
that is payable during FY-2010.

control systems and compliance with its
regulations. Additionally it must strengthen
and back up the Bank’s Comptroller’s Office
function as well as its independence from
the Management, while serving as link and
coordinator of the tasks between the internal
audits and the External Auditors; and,
as liaison between the latter and the Bank’s
board members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met 16 times during the
year 2009. Normally, it meets in an ordinary
manner twice a month, and in an extraordinary
manner whenever deemed appropriate by any

The objective of the Audit Committee is to
promote the efficiency of the Bank’s internal
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The Bank’s Audit Committee was integrated
-until October 2009- by Hernán Somerville
Senn, who acted as President; by Carlos Massad
Abud, Ignacio González Martínez, Francisco
Rosende Ramírez and Arturo Valenzuela Bowie.
As of October, and on the occasion of the
designation of the new board members at the
Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the same
month, the appointees of the Audit Committee
were the Board Members, Hernán Somerville
Senn, who presides the Committee, Jorge Andrés
Saieh Guzmán, Alejandro Ferreiro Yazigi and
Miguel Angel Poduje Sapiain.

of its members. One of its ordinary monthly
meetings is attended only by Committee
members and the Comptroller’s Office Manager,
without any other bank executive. Similarly, it
meets at least once a year with the partner of
the external auditors’ firm in order to go over
the annual balance sheet before its submission
to the Board; without prejudice of those other
meetings in which his/her presence might be
required by the Committee in order to report
about facts or situations incumbent upon the
external auditors’ function.
During FY 2009, the Audit Committee
exercised all and each and every one of the
functions and activities set forth in the
regulations issued by the Superintendence
for Banks & Financial Institutions and in the
regulations applicable to its capacity as ADR
issuers. Specifically, the Audit Committee was
apprised of internal audits and of the state of
progress of the Internal Audit planning, issuing
guidelines for such annual planning exercise;
it examined the General Balance Sheet and
Profit & Loss Statements, their Notes and the
Report of the external auditors; it reviewed
and approved the 2008 Annual Report; it was
apprised of the report of the external auditors,
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Deloitte & Touche, and agreed to keep this
external audit firm; it defined the general outline
of the Comptroller’s Division. It was apprised
and discussed the various aspects related to
the norms of the Sarbanes Oxley Act. The
Committee also analyzed and emphasized the
importance of the topics related to the quality
and transparency of information; it was apprised
about the state of progress of the 2009 planning
and about the 2009 audit plan, which considers
a map of the various processes in relation to their
respective risks, in a manner such as to organize
the audits according to such distinction. It
was apprised about the restructuring of the
Comptroller’s Manager’s Office in line with
the audit plan submitted; it approved the
Audit Manual and that of Risk Classification;
the Audit Manual was made applicable to
the recently opened New York Branch Office,
designating the new Compliance Officer,
thus abiding by the OCC requirements; it
approved the Manual for the Prevention of Asset
Laundering & Terrorism Financing for the Bank
and its affiliates. It approved amendments to the
Committee’s Bylaws, adapting them to current
regulations. The manager’s office of the Legal
Services Division informed this Committee

about its functions and responsibilities regarding
the operations carried out by the New York
Branch Office -before our own domestic
legislation as well as that of the United States of
America- and about the regulations and bylaws
of the Audit Committee.

The Committee also
analyzed and emphasized
the importance of the topics
related to the quality and
transparency of information.

The Committee received the information
submitted by the manager’s office of the Personal
Banking Division regarding the application of
Circular 3,419 on commissions.
The Committee received the information
submitted by the Financial Risk and the
Financial Operations manager’s offices
concerning the status of the observations to the
audit of Regulatory Files C40, C41 and C43 on
market risks.
The Committee received the information
submitted by the Real Estate Risk manager’s
office about the situation of the real estate
project portfolio.
The Committee received the information
submitted by the respective manager’s
offices of the Product, PYME and Company
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The Committee reports
directly to the Bank’s Audit
Committee, whose liaison is
the Compliance Officer.

segments regarding the state of progress of the
normalization of the observations released about
the commercial loans issued with FOGAPE
Guarantee, small businesses guarantee fund.
The Committee received the information
submitted by the Finance & International
manager’s office about the New York Branch
Office Business Plan, informing about its active
products, its expected business volume, its
distribution channels and that branch office’s
organizational chart. Likewise, it received the
presentation of the New York Branch Office’s
Internal Auditor.
The Committee received the information
submitted by the Operational Risk manager’s
office regarding those subject matters
incumbent upon that office, reporting about the
state of progress of the various commitments
assumed with the Superintendence for Banks
& Financial Institutions, about their continued
training through e-learning courses on topics
of operating risks, and about the publication
of the Bank’s Operating Risk Policies on
information security matters.
The Committee received the information
submitted by the Bank’s Compliance Officer on
matters incumbent upon that office, such as the
review program of the New York Branch Office
and the development of remote control processes
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and the operation of the Compliance Committee
for said branch office. The Committee received
the information submitted by the Financial Risk
manager’s office about the distribution of the
flow of derivative products for the purposes of
their consideration in Regulatory File Reports
C08, C40, C41 and C43. The Committee agreed
the terms of the answers to the Superintendence
for Banks & Financial Institutions’ report about
its inspective visit during FY 2009.
Committee for the Prevention of Asset
Laundering and Terrorism Financing
This is the internal control unit that is in charge
of preventing asset laundering and terrorism
financing, whose main goal is to plan and
coordinate activities in compliance with the
policies and procedures on this subject matter;
take cognizance of the work carried out by
the Compliance Officer, as well as deciding
about the introduction of any control measure
improvements proposed by the latter.
The Committee for the Prevention of Asset
Laundering and Terrorism Financing is
integrated by one (1) board member, the
general manager, the manager of the Legal
Services Division, one (1) area manager, and the
Compliance Officer. The Committee is entitled
to summon any executive or Collaborator
deemed necessary to attend their meetings.
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The Committee received
the information submitted
by the Real Estate Risk
manager’s office
about the situation of the real estate
project portfolio.

This Committee meets in an ordinary manner
once a month and in an extraordinary manner
when deemed necessary by any of its members.
The Committee reports directly to the Bank’s
Audit Committee, whose liaison is the
Compliance Officer.
The Committee met eleven (11) times in
an ordinary manner and twice (2) in an
extraordinary manner.
Within the context of preventing asset
laundering and terrorism financing, the
Committee was apprised of various “suspicious
operations reports”, all of which were duly
analyzed, and deciding to report them to
the Financial Analysis Unit, in those cases
considered appropriate. Among the different
activities in which the Committee participates
actively, it appointed the Compliance Officer
for CorpBanca New York and approved the
applicable manuals on this matter. Similarly, it
approved the 2009 planning of the Compliance
manager’s office, it was apprised of the result
of the audits carried out to the Compliance
manager’s office by the Comptroller’s Division
manager’s office and the Superintendence for
Banks & Financial Institutions, and it was
apprised about the different training activities
in which participated the members of the
Compliance manager’s office, both nationally

and internationally. It was also apprised of
the control and training activities applied
to the different activities developed by the
Compliance manager’s office. Finally, it is worth
noting that the agreement entered into by
the Bank to participate in the Friendly Banks
program, organized by the Latin American Bank
Federation, whose purpose is to promote new
tools toward contributing to optimizing the
control and prevention systems against asset
laundering and terrorism financing.

Legal Services Division, the manager of the
Human Resources & Development Division, and
the Compliance Officer. The Committee reports
directly to the Bank’s Audit Committee and its
liaison is through the Compliance Office.
The Committee is governed by statutes, and it
meets at least once every two (2) months; it may
hold extraordinary meetings anytime that the
President of the Committee, the Compliance
Officer, or the majority of committee members
may so determine.

Compliance Committee
This main objective of this Committee is to
plan, establish and develop the procedures
necessary to comply with the codes of conduct,
manuals, policies and all good practice norms,
both national and international, as well as
looking after the compliance, interpretation,
management and supervision of the regulations
contained in them and the resolution of any
conflicts that their application might arise.
Similarly, it gets apprised about the work carried
out by the Compliance Office on these topics
and adopting agreements toward improving any
control measures proposed.

During 2009, this Committee met eleven (11)
times in ordinary meetings and twice (2) in
extraordinary meetings. It was apprised of and
it approved subject matters such as: the 2010
planning; the approval of a new Code of Conduct
for the Securities Market; the launching of a
new General Code of Conduct; the creation of an
intranet site named “Tú Decides, Casos Reales”
you decide - real cases, which publishes cases
referred to the strengthening of certain conducts
and good practices; the approval of a new
anonymous channel of communication and safe
telephone line; as well as of training
events on transgressions and non-compliance
of these matters.

The Committee is integrated by one Bank board
member designated by the Board of Directors,
by the general manager, the manager of the
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All its Collaborators and
board members -as well
as those of its affiliatesare subject to ethical
norms based on principles
and values toward
guiding and maintaining
the highest standards.

Comptroller’s Office
The main function of the Comptroller’s Office is
to provide support to the Board of Directors and
Senior Management in their task of safeguarding
the maintenance, application and operation of
the Bank’s internal control system, as well as to
oversee and safeguard the abidance by its norms
and procedures.
This role also entails collaborating and
supporting the care for the efficiency of control
systems and compliance with the external
regulations. In compliance of this role, the
Comptroller’s Office operates independently
and objectively, assuming an integral approach
and incorporating operational, risk and
management aspects.
Code of Conduct and Manuals for
the Handling of Market Interest
Information
The objective of CorpBanca is to continue to
move forward toward becoming Chile’s best
bank and counting on first-rate human capital.
All its Collaborators and board members -as well
as those of its affiliates- are subject to ethical
norms based on principles and values toward
guiding and maintaining the highest standards.
Within this context, CorpBanca now has a new
General Code of Conduct, which was approved
during 2009 by its Board of Directors and is
aimed at providing the criteria necessary to
obtain the kind of behavior that is expected of
each Collaborator in the Organization. This
Code provides ethical and behavioral guidelines
to Collaborators, for them to have a clear outline
of the kind of conduct that will give us a unique
and distinctive seal within the banking industry.
The foregoing is a fundamental piece of the
cultural change that we expect of the Bank’s
human team as part of its 2011 Flight. Because
of this, this document strengthens the Corporate
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Values, while it simultaneously delivers
behavioral guidelines in line with the highest
standards of conduct and good practices, both
national and international.
On the other hand, in order to establish
behavioral norms so that all the activities related
to the securities markets be carried out strictly
adhering to the current legislation and in
accordance with the ethical criteria framed in the
Bank’s Corporate Values, CorpBanca
has developed a Code of Conduct for the
Securities Market.
The main objective of this Code is to establish
behavioral standards for decision making by
the Board of Directors and by CorpBanca’s
Collaborators, prohibitions and guidelines
in the use of privileged information, while
clearly defining their communications with
the company, regarding their investment
transactions or business activities.
In order to complement this document -and based
on the principle of transparency- which means
that we must guide the transactions performed
by those persons who hold executive positions in
the Organization, CorpBanca prepared a Manual
for the Handling of Market Interest Information
aimed at CorpCapital Administradora General
de Fondos S.A. fund management company.
These are manuals that were consistently applied
throughout all of 2009.
These Manuals establish behavioral criteria that
must be adhered to by those who, by reason
of their title, position or relationship with the
Bank or with CorpCapital Administradora
General de Fondos S.A. fund management
company, have access to information of
interest. The Manuals order and guide -within
the context of the current legislation- the
treatment of policies and procedures regarding
the handling and divulgation of information
for the market.
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DISCIPLINE
“TRAINING EVERY SUNDAY AND DEMANDING NEW
GOALS FROM MYSELF EACH DAY MAKE OF THE
CORPRUNNERS A TEAM THAT WILL, UNDOUBTEDLY, GET
FAR. OUR FIRST GOAL IS: THE NEW YORK MARATHON”.

FELIPE RIVERA
DISTRIBUTION DESK MANAGER
NOMINATED FOR DISCIPLINE

Felipe feels that the corporative values that better define him out of the office are Passion and
Discipline, which are shown in running, a sports/hobby that identifies him and which he also
practices. Each time he runs he gives the best of himself in order to improve on his performance.
This collaborator found an activity that identifies him and one he enjoys. Currently, he is
training for the New York marathon, which will take place in November. Along with a
group of collaborators who share the same Passion, he created the “Corprunners”; they get
together every Sunday at 8:00 AM to train, always starting out from the isotype of our
Corporative Building.

MANAGEMENT

The Bank’s organizational structure is directed by a Board of Directors that
provides guidelines and general action outlines to the Organization via its
General Manager.
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As of December 31, 2009, CorpBanca’s
management organizational chart was
the following:
CORPBANCA
General Manager
Mario Chamorro

COMMERCIAL
AREAS

SUPPORT
AREAS

Commercial Banking
Division
Division Manager
Oscar Cerda

Operations & Systems
Division
Division Manager
Armando Ariño

Banco Condell Division
Division Manager
Julio Henríquez

Legal Services
Division
Division Manager
Cristián Canales

Personal Banking
Division
Division Manager
Cristóbal Prado

Large Companies,
Corporate & Real Estate
Banking Division
Division Manager
José Francisco Sánchez

Finance & International
Division
Division Manager
Pedro Silva

AFILLIATES

Planning & Management
Control Division
Division Manager
Sergio Benavente

SMU CORP S.A.
General Manager
María Luisa Astorino

Commercial Credit Risk
Division Manager
Luis Morales

CorpCapital Asesorías
Financieras S.A.
General Manager
Roberto Baraona

Company Credit Risk
Division
Division Manager
Fernando Valdivieso

Human Resources &
Development Division
Division Manager
Verónica Villarroel

CorpCapital Corredores
de Bolsa S.A.
General Manager
Cristián Donoso

Marketing Department
Area Manager
Jorge Gómez

Comptroller’s Division
Division Manager
José Manuel Mena

CorpCapital Adm.
General de Fondos S.A.
General Manager
Benjamín Epstein

Compliance Department
Area Manager
Marco Bravo

CorpLegal S.A.
General Manager
Gustavo Irarrázabal (S)

Agencia de Valores S.A.
General Manager
Pablo Solari

CorpBanca Corredores
de Seguros S.A.
General Manager
Roberto Vergara
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Management

The Bank’s senior administration is integrated
by the following persons:
Mario Chamorro Carrizo, Business
Administration Professional Universidad de
Chile, Master in Economics, Universidad de
Chile; MBA, University of California at Los
Angeles (UCLA), Taxpayer ID 7.893.316-K. He
has been the Bank’s General Manager since May
30, 2006. Between the months of May 2003 and
May 2006, he was the Executive President of
CorpBanca Venezuela; and, previously, between
2001 and 2003, he acted as the General Manager
of CorpBanca Chile.
Oscar Cerda Urrutia, Business Administration
Professional, Universidad de Concepción,
Taxpayer ID 6.941.260-2. He has been the
Manager of the Company Division since July
2008. Previously, since August 2007, he acted as
General Manger of Banco Ripley.
Julio Henríquez Banto, Business
Administration Professional, Universidad de
Santiago de Chile; MBA Universidad Adolfo
Ibañez, Taxpayer ID 8.943.341-K. He has been
the Manager of the Banco Condell Division,
since September 2008. Previously, since
November 2008, he acted as Manager of the
Risks Division.
Cristóbal Prado Fernández, Business
Administration Professional, Universidad
Finis Terrae; MBA Universidad Adolfo Ibáñez,
Taxpayer ID 8.711.638-7. He has been the
Manager of the Personal Banking Division since
June 2008. Previously, since March 2005, he
acted as Client Manager at CorpBanca.
José Francisco Sánchez, Business
Administration Professional, Pontificia
Universidad Católica de Chile, Taxpayer ID
5.893.066-0. He has been the Manager of Large
Corporations and Real Estate Companies since
2009. Previously, he acted as Area Manager in
the same Division, since December 2000.
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Pedro Silva Yrarrázaval, Business
Administration Professional, Universidad de
Chile; MBA University of Chicago, Taxpayer ID
7.033.426-7. He has been the Manager of the
Finance Division since October 2006. Between
the months of June 2003 and October 2006,
he acted as the General Manager of CorpBanca
Administradora General de Fondos S.A. general
fund management company.

Fernando Valdivieso Larraín, Business
Administration Professional, Pontificia
Universidad Católica de Chile, Taxpayer ID
6.063.152-2. He has been the Manger of the
Company Credit Risk Division since August
2005. Since the year 2002, he acted as Manager
of the Risks Division of Compañía de Seguros
Vida Corp., life insurance company.

Armando Ariño Joiro, Civil Engineer,
Universidad INCCA of Colombia, Taxpayer ID
14.726.855-6. He has been the Manager of the
Operations & Data Processing Division since
December 2008. Previously, as of November
2000, he acted as Manager of the Bank’s Data
Processing Division.

Verónica Villarroel Molina, Organizational
Labor Psychologist, Universidad Católica de
Chile, licensed in philosophy at Universidad
de Playa Ancha, Valparaíso, Taxpayer
ID:11.670.268-1. Since July 2009, she has
been the Manager of the Human Resources &
Development Division. Previously, since June
2005, she acted as Generalist Senior Consumer
Bank at Citibank.

Sergio Benavente Riobó, Business
Administration Professional, School of Business
Administration, Universidad Técnica Federico
Santa María; MBA, American University,
Taxpayer ID 7.579.789-3. He is the Manager of
the Planning and Management Control Division.
Previously, he acted as the Bank’s Financial Risk
Manager, since March 2008.

Jorge Gómez Alemparte, Publicist, Mónica
Herrera School of Communications, Taxpayer
ID 8.229.789-8. She has been the Marketing
Manager since January 2008. Previously,
since August 2006, she acted as the Deputy
Marketing Manager at Banco Santander.

Cristián Canales Palacios, Lawyer, Universidad
de Chile, Taxpayer ID 9.866.273-1. He is the
Manager of the Legal Services Division sin April
2003. Between the months of March 2002 and
March 2003, he acted as Manager of the Legal
Services Area.
Luis Morales Fernández, Business
Administration Professional, Pontificia
Universidad Católica de Chile, Taxpayer
ID 9.476.013-5. He is the Manager of the
Commercial Credit Risk Division sin May 2007.
Previously, as of the year 1995, he worked at
Banco Santander, where, during his last period,
he held the position of Corporate Risk Manager.

José Manuel Mena, Industrial Civil Engineer
and Master in Economic Engineering,
Universidad de Chile, Taxpayer ID 6.196.849-0.
He has been the Manager of the Comptroller’s
Division since March 2008. Ever since the
year 1995, he acted as General Manager of
BancoEstado.
Marco Bravo González, Audit Accountant,
Universidad de las Américas, Taxpayer ID
10.800.860-1. He has been the Compliance
Manager since August 2003.
Previously, since April 2000, he acted as
Chief of Banco Santander’s Asset Laundering
Prevention Department.
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As of December 2009, the total staff
of CorpBanca and its affiliates
amounted to 3,127 employees,
distributed as follows:

Senior
Executives

Professionals and
Technicians

Other Workers

Total

172

1,791

1,000

2,963

CorpCapital Adm. Gral. de Fondos S.A.

5

19

6

30

CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.

5

30

6

41

CorpCapital Asesorías Financieras S.A.

3

4

1

8

CorpBanca Corredores de Seguros S.A.

3

16

18

37

CorpLegal S.A.

3

21

24

48

191

1,881

1,055

3,127

Business Name

CorpBanca

Totales

Fee Schedule
As agreed at the Ordinary Shareholders’
Meeting of February 2009, board members
did not perceive any remuneration for
discharging the responsibilities of their office
during that year.
On the other hand -and, as agreed by the same
Meeting, those board members that belong
to the Board Members’ Committee and to the
Audit Committee, perceived professional fees
CLP187 million.

The total Fee Schedule perceived by CorpBanca’s
managers and senior executives as of December,
2009 amounted to CLP11,440 million.
Additionally, and as a function of the income
bond policy established by the Human
Resources & Development Division, jointly
with the General Manager’s Office, certain
executives were paid income bonds because of
their goal achievements.

The members of the boards of affiliate
companies did not perceive any remuneration
for discharging the responsibilities of their
office during the year 2009.
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FINANCIAL
SUMMARY

ASSETS

2004

2005

2006

2007*

2008*

2009*

ΔCLP 08-09

CCAP*

178,383

79,852

87,305

99,002

80,448

181,000

100,552

0.2%

Companies

2,183,830

2,395,325

2,671,544

3,228,054

4,426,334

4,202,531

- 223,803

11.5%

Commercial

1,489,471

1,627,219

1,802,300

2,295,097

2,794,496

2,823,622

29,126

11.2%

Foreign trade

200,944

228,460

251,788

267,448

720,484

447,339

- 273,145

14.3%

Leasing

201,335

227,709

240,736

254,363

321,632

298,215

- 23,417

6.8%

67,616

65,081

76,015

90,159

53,618

43,242

- 10,376

-7.2%

221,309

245,728

298,905

319,106

354,957

366,270

11,313

8.8%

3,155

1,128

1,800

1,881

181,147

223,843

42,696

103.5%

Persons

542,096

661,662

846,935

1,019,538

1,174,365

1,223,169

48,804

14.5%

Consumption

322,589

382,487

463,175

504,448

490,212

431,272

- 58,940

5.0%

Housing mortgages

197,414

252,060

363,452

515,089

684,153

791,897

107,744

26.1%

22,093

27,115

20,308

23,199

38,228

94,846

56,618

27.5%

2,725,926

3,056,987

3,518,479

4,270,791

5,638,927

5,520,546

- 118,381

12.5%

(46,800)

(48,092)

(49,427)

(54,472)

(71,527)

(93,470)

- 21,943

12.2%

2,679,126

3,008,895

3,469,052

4,216,319

5,567,400

5,427,076

- 140,324

12.5%

Securities

576,715

449,554

161,917

182,496

654,438

848,778

194,340

6.7%

Other

166,664

211,152

208,171

282,481

296,205

375,875

79,670

14.5%

3,600,888

3,749,453

3,926,445

4,780,297

6,124,858

6,190,613

65,755

9.5%

2004

2005

2006

2007*

2008*

2009*

ΔCLP 08-09

CCAP*

Borrowing and other debt

2,105,956

2,094,186

2,100,641

2,727,136

3,668,590

3,622,269

(46,321)

9.5%

Deposits & borrowings

1,813,362

1,872,308

1,808,141

2,394,064

3,314,554

3,181,742

(132,812)

9.8%

Current account creditors

147,068

161,890

187,081

200,413

255,870

297,951

42,081

12.5%

Other long-term debt

145,526

59,988

105,419

132,659

98,166

142,576

44,410

-0.3%

52,064

206,526

240,293

345,226

428,901

624,860

195,959

51.3%

Debt with financial entities

313,919

318,181

322,885

429,260

487,286

356,961

(130,325)

2.2%

Other liabilities

705,609

688,512

802,341

799,236

1,061,993

1,091,879

29,886

7.5%

3,177,548

3,307,405

3,466,160

4,300,858

5,646,770

5,695,969

49,199

10.2%

423,340

442,048

460,285

479,440

478,087

494,644

16,557

2.6%

3,600,888

3,749,453

3,926,445

4,780,298

6,124,857

6,190,613

65,756

9.5%

Cash

Factoring
Contingencies
Other

Expired
Total lending
Provisions
Net total lending

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Bonded loans

Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities & Shareholders’ equity
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Consolidated Indicators

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

Spread***

3.6%

3.3%

2.9%

3.1%

3.4%

3.0%

Commissions/Operating expenses

35.0%

39.2%

43.4%

44.9%

33.4%

34.2%

Efficiency

41.1%

43.1%

51.5%

48.1%

45.6%

42.7%

ROA

1.6%

1.5%

1.1%

1.1%

1.4%

1.4%

ROE

15.7%

14.6%

9.9%

11.8%

17.9%

16.9%

Basic capital****

10.2%

10.3%

10.6%

9.1%

7.8%

8.1%

Basel index

14.5%

13.5%

13.6%

11.6%

10.8%

13.9%

Loss index

0.7%

0.5%

0.4%

0.6%

1.0%

1.2%

Risk index

1.7%

1.6%

1.4%

1.3%

1.3%

1.7%

0.81%

0.89%

0.58%

0.54%

0.68%

1.72%

211.8%

177.4%

243.4%

234.8%

187.1%

98.5%

Expired/Total lending
Hedging index

Note: Real figures (restated for inflation) in CLP of Dec-09,
*

In accordance with the migration to international accounting norms (IFRS), the figures for the years 2007, 2008 and 2009 contain certain reclassifications
that render them incomparable with previous periods. For the purposes of this presentation, however, we reclassified contingency loans of the accounts,
noting them via a memorandum to the Balance Sheet [créditos contingentes de las cuentas memorando al balance].

**

CCAP: Average annual compounded growth

***

Net interest margin over productive assets (total lending + financial investments). In 2008, it considers only those investments that are available for sale.

****

Paid-in capital + Reserves / Total Assets
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THE ECONOMIC
AND FINANCIAL
ENVIRONMENT

During 2009, the world economy was negatively affected by a particularly
stressed financial structure. In such scheme of things, the drop in credit
availability ended up damaging the productive capacity of countries in the
deepest manner. Especially, the large commercial blocks (the USA, the Euro
Zone and Japan) witnessed their greatest economic contractions in decades.
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Just like the global economic activity,
2009 was a year of contraction for the local
economy. The economic crisis -which blew up
in October 2008- began to be felt in earnest in
Chile during the first half of 2009; period which
coincides with the lowest level of the various
local economic indicators.
During 2009, the world economy was negatively
affected by a particularly stressed financial
structure. In such scheme of things, the drop
in credit availability ended up damaging the
productive capacity of countries in the deepest
manner. Especially, the large commercial blocks
(the USA, the Euro Zone and Japan) witnessed
their greatest economic contractions in decades.
Thus, during the first half of the year, bad
news became commonplace in different
economies all around the world. Nevertheless,
toward the end of the first half of 2009, albeit
gradually, evidence began to emerge about a
point of inflection in the global recession. In
effect, from that point onwards, various global
indicators began to revert their sharp falls and
in some regions of the world they began, to
show straightforward indications of economic
reactivation. Thus, during the months of July,
August and September the world economy
began to walk through a process of recovery,
which was particularly evident in emergent
nations with large industrial sectors. Asian
countries -such as China and a few Latin
American countries- began to show high rates
of growth in their manufacturing production,
which triggered a reversal of the drop in the
volumes of international trade.

Such economic reversal, began to take shape
during the year’s third quarter, mostly in
response to the specific incentive policies applied
by the different governments of the world, which
heavily expanded public sector expenditures in
order to compensate the contraction of private
sector demand. Nevertheless, in the case of the
developed economies, such economic reversal
was contained because of the high degree of
uncertainty that still prevailed. Additionally,
the weakness of the labor market in several
economies and the process of household
debt release, posed a note of uncertainty
regarding the performance of consumption and
private investments.
In that sense -and, according to estimates of
the International Monetary Fund (IMF)- the
world would have been contracting at an annual
rate of -1.1% in 2009 driven by the developed
economies; which would have collapsed by
3.4%, in the eyes of the IMF.
In the local scene, the impact of the crisis was
not too different from that of other emerging
economies. The economic contraction -which
started toward the end of 2008- grew sharper
during the firsts half of 2009. However, the
second half was characterized by a moderate
recovery, which picked up its pace slightly
toward the year’s closing. All things considered,
Chile’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) dropped,
in real terms, 1.8% during the year, the worst
record since the decade of the 1980’s.
In Chile, the labor market was one of the worst
hit by the crisis. During the winter, the rate of

unemployment peaked at 10.8% during the first
moving quarter ending in July, although it did
not go as high as the one observed during the
so-called Asian Crisis, when the moving quarter
ending in August 1999 peaked at 11.9%.
In terms of inflation, the sharp drop in prices
worldwide and the brusque appreciation of
the US dollar around the world, caused an
absorption of external deflation; which, within a
local context of economic recession was quickly
passed on to domestic prices. Consequently,
and for the first time in 74 years, we witnessed
a year with negative inflation in our country,
accumulating -1.4% during 2009. Within this
deflationary context, Chile’s autonomous Central
Bank dropped its monetary instance rate (tasa de
instancia monetaria) to the historical low point
of 0.5%, and kept it there throughout the entire
year. Additionally, its concern for this deflation
lead the Central Bank to adopt non-traditional
monetary policies, such as for example, the
opening of a Term Liquidity Facility (FLAP,
in its Spanish acronym) through which
the banks could finance their financial
investments at a monetary policy rate (TPM,
in its Spanish acronym).
Finally, with respect to the rate of foreign
exchange -soon after the sharp increase in the
value of the US dollar in the middle of the
crisis- during 2009 we witnessed a process of
continuous reversal of such hike. Specifically,
the progressive weakness of the US currency
worldwide and the progressive hike in copper
prices triggered a process of nominal and real
appreciation of the Chilean peso during 2009.

71

EVOLUTION OF THE
BANKING INDUSTRY

During 2009, the international banking system faced one of its greatest tests
yet, as a result of the financial crisis initiated the previous year.
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During 2009, the international banking system
faced one of its greatest tests yet, as a result of
the financial crisis initiated the previous year.
In the case of Chile, the banks confronted the
impacts in a moderate manner, which implies
securing a high rating in the international
levels of financial sector strength and solvency.
Thus, Chile come out 4th in the bank solidity
ranking of the year 2009, according to a study
carried out by the World Economic Forum,
which ranked it at the top of all Latin American
countries and above many developed economies,
such as Japan, the USA and France.

The main factor that directed
such drop corresponded to the
rate of foreign exchange; which
impacted by -2.3 percentage
points, followed by the lower
value of the UF.

Such solid international position of our
banking industry is the outcome of a long
history and development of the nation’s
banking system, which experienced deep
transformations during this last decade, both in
terms of the diversity and quality of its supply
of financial services, as well as in terms of the
competitiveness of the sector.
Thus, in 1999, there were 30 financial
institutions operating in the country; among
them one managed by the State, and the 5
largest banks maintained a market share close
to 61%. Several mergers took place over a
period of time which lead to a situation where,
by the closing of 2009, there were only 23
financial institutions operating in the country;
and one in which the 5 largest banks now
maintain an approximate market share of 75%.
Consequently, there is a greater concentration
now as compared to 10 years ago.

73

Evolution of the Banking Industry

In 2009, we again observed
negative growth rates in
nominal lending terms.

During the year 1997, the country’s GDP grew
6.6% and, as a result of the Asian Crisis, in
1998 the country’s economic growth had already
dropped down to 3.3%, to then continue to
drop to its lowest point in 1999 with 0.7%. As
a result of such crisis, Chile’s banking system
-which in 1997 grew by 13.2% per year- in
1998 it reduced its rate of growth sharply to
4.8%, to hit its weakest point in December
2002 with an annual growth of merely 1.6%
per year. Between 2004 and 2008, however, the
nation’s banking system bounced back to growth
rates of over 10% per year and an average
elasticity of 2.6.
In 2009, we again observed negative growth
rates in nominal lending terms, with a drop of
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1.9%; a contraction driven mostly by
decreased commercial lending to 5.7%,
mostly attributable to consumer lending and
housing loans, which represented 1.3% and
7.2%, respectively.
Although economic growth is the main factor
-in statistical and historical terms- that directed
and sensitized lending variations, the persistent
appreciation of the Chilean peso before the US
dollar throughout 2009, had a significant impact
on the banking system’s lower lending amounts.
Thus, the main factor that directed such drop
corresponded to the rate of foreign exchange;
which impacted by -2.3 percentage points,
followed by the lower value of the UF; which
implied a drop of -1.1.
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Despite the contracted economic activity, by
the closing of the year 2009, a positive real
effect may be observed in the system’s lending,
following several months of contraction; which,
ultimately, resulted in an overall expansion of
1.6%. Nevertheless, the previous diagnosis
differs when considering only the private
commercial banks of the system, whose drop
was more pronounced, amounting to -5.0% and
whose variation was 47% attributable to the
drop in the rate of foreign exchange, 21% to
the drop in the value of the UF, and 32% to the
lower level of economic activity.

Industry-wide total lending (*)
Evolution of the last 5 years
2005

14.2%

2006

15.4%

2007

12.8%

2008

12.1%

2009

-1.9%

Source: SBIF
(*) 2008 and 2009 were consolidated
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traight bonds and junior
bonds grew altogether by 6.7%,
with respect to the year 2008,
totaling nearly CLP 9 billion; 69% of which corresponding
to straight bonds and 31% to junior bonds.

With respect to the type of lending, toward the
end of 2009, 62% of the total lending of the
banking system corresponded to commercial
loans, which totaled CLP 42.7 billion , followed
by 25% of housing loans, which totaled CLP
17.5 billion, and 13% to consumption, which
totaled CLP 8.7 billion. By the closing of 2008,

total commercial lending had dropped by 3
percentage points within the overall lending
structure, it had increased by 2 percentage
points in housing loans and 1 percentage point
in consumer loans. The foregoing is mostly
explained because of a severe adjustment in
commercial loans, a contention in the growth

Industry-wide growth in lending
to companies
Evolution of the last 5 years

Industry-wide growth in
consumer lending
Evolution of the last 5 years

2005

12.5%

2005

20.3%

2006

14.5%

2006

21.7%

2007

12.8%

2007

7.8%

2008

8.6%

2008

11.0%

2009

-5.7%

2009

1.3%

Source: SBIF
(*) 2008 and 2009 were consolidated
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Source: SBIF
(*) 2008 and 2009 were consolidated
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of consumer loans and, finally, because of an
expansion in housing loans.
In greater detail, the main factor that explains
the nominal 5.7% drop in commercial loans
is the sharp drop in the foreign exchange rate,
which was appreciated by about 20% during

The person segment shows
increased lending in both
consumer and housing loans.

In complementary terms, considering only
private commercial Banks, the total drop was
higher; of which, 9.4% was attributable to the
3.5% drop in the rate of foreign exchange, 5.1%
was attributable to the economic slowdown, and
0.8% to the drop in the value of the UF.

Industry-wide growth in house
mortgage lending
Evolution of the last 5 years
2005

16.2%

2006

14.6%

2007

16.2%

2008

24.2%

2009

7.2%

Source: SBIF
(*) 2008 and 2009 were consolidated

the year, thus explaining 3.6 percentage points
of such drop, followed by the economic activity
slowdown, which is associated to the drop of 1.3
percentage points and, finally, to the drop in the
value of the UF, which explains the drop of 0.8
percentage points.

The person segment shows increased lending in
both consumer and housing loans. The growth
in the former is slight, when compared with that
of the latter, of 1.3%; of which, 0.2 percentage
points were attributable to the lower value of
the UF, -0.1 percentage points to the lower rate
of foreign exchange and a real 1.5% increase in
economic activity toward the closing of the year.
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We may observe a
contraction in foreign
loans, which dropped by a
nominal 3.8%, thus adding
0.3 percentage points to
the overall drop in liabilities
adjusted by sight (pasivos
ajustados por vista).

If we were to exclude the state bank from the
system, the contraction on account of monetary
effects if of equal magnitude; namely, they
imply a drop of 0.2%, but the impact was
more moderate with an advance of 0.3
percentage points.
On the other hand, in housing, the situation
was the opposite, with a nominal increase of
7.2%, boosted by the greater demand for this
type of loans, given the low mortgage interest
rates and the lower prices of houses, all of

Industry-wide liabilities with cost +
sights (net of clearance) in the last
10 years
(In billion CLP of each year)

During 2998, the liabilities with cost + sights
(net of clearance) dropped by 2.3% with respect
to the previous year, which is mostly explained

Industry-wide net of clearance sights in
the last 10 years
(In billion CLP of each year)

1999

29,134

1999

3,672

2000

31,603

2000

4,233

2001

34,947

2001

4,423

2002

37,215

2002

5,192

2003

39,176

2003

6,116

2004

43,872

2004

7,369

2005

49,785

2005

8,036

2006

57,006

2006

9,549

2007

67,593

2007

11,544

2008

82,061

2008

12,587

2009

80,157

2009

15,429

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.
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which had a positive impact of 9.6 percentage
points; an effect that is partially offset by the
lower value of the UF, which impacted by less
than 2.4 percentage points. Upon performing
this same analysis only as it applies to private
commercial banks, we observe that such growth
was somewhat more moderate; with an economic
activity boost equivalent to 8.6%.

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.
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by a contraction of time deposits, which dropped
by 11.1% and which impact on 7.2 percentage
points of total liabilities with cost + sights (net
of clearance). The second greater impacting
factor is indebtedness on account of letters of
credit, which dropped by 13% and impacting
on the drop of 0.7 percentage points. In third
place, we may observe a contraction in foreign
loans, which dropped by a nominal 3.8%, thus
adding 0.3 percentage points to the overall drop
in liabilities adjusted by sight (pasivos ajustados
por vista). On the growth side, the sights net

of clearance increased by 30%, which implied
an increment of 0.9 percentage points in the
aggregate indicator.

Industry-wide time deposits in the last
10 years
(In billion CLP of each year)

Industry-wide evolution of the risk
index in the last 10 years

Finally, straight bonds and junior bonds grew
altogether by 6.7%, with respect to the year
2008, totaling nearly CLP 9 billion; 69% of
which corresponding to straight bonds and 31%
to junior bonds.
On the other hand, during 2009 the risk index
showed a significant increase of 68 base points,

including contingent and additional credit
provisions, thus reflecting a deterioration in the
quality of credits, both in Person as well as in
Commercial Banking.
It should be pointed out that banks are
authorized to set up provisions in addition to
those derived from applying their portfolio
evaluation models in order to safeguard
themselves before eventual non-predictable
macroeconomic fluctuations that might affect a
sector or industry or groups of debtors.

Industry-wide current and junior
bonds in the last 10 years
(In billion CLP of each year)

1999

16,579

1999

2.42%

1999

1,304.0

2000

17,766

2000

2.39%

2000

1,549.3

2001

19,133

2001

2.24%

2001

1,715.6

2002

20,058

2002

2.20%

2002

1,753.1

2003

19,444

2003

2.02%

2003

1,556.2

2004

22,774

2004

1.99%

2004

2,050.5

2005

28,772

2005

1.61%

2005

2,708.1

2006

32,755

2006

1.48%

2006

3,952.5

2007

38,325

2007

1.58%

2007

6,488.5

2008

47,607

2008

1.83%

2008

8,483.0

2009

42,319

2009

2.51%

2009

9,049.5
Bonos Subordinados

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.

Bonos Corrientes

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.
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Evolution of the Banking Industry

The banking industry
showed -during 2009profitability over capital
of 15.7%.

The level of portfolio loss, including expenses
in provisions for contingency and additional
credits, increased by 43 base points.
Similarly, the level of expired lending over total
lending increased by 182 base points; which is
explained not only because of a greater growth
of the portfolio, but also, and mostly because of

In addition to the increased system-wide credit
risk and the new treatment of overdue portfolio,

Industry-wide evolution of the loss
index in the last 10 years

Industry-wide evolution of expired debt
over total lending in the last 10 years

1999

2.19%

1999

1.67%

2000

1.67%

2000

1.73%

2001

1.41%

2001

1.62%

2002

1.33%

2002

1.82%

2003

1.20%

2003

1.63%

2004

0.76%

2004

1.20%

2005

0.52%

2005

0.91%

2006

0.44%

2006

0.75%

2007

0.84%

2007

0.75%

2008

1.25%

2008

0.91%

2009

1.68%

2009

2.73%

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.
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the entry into effect of the norm that establishes
a new concept of overdue portfolio (Bad Debt)
as that in arrears of 90 days or over, thereby
provisioning not only the installments actually
in arrears but also the entire unpaid debt.

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.
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the banks operating
in Chile maintain high
levels of capitalization.
The Basel Index as of October 2009 reached 14.35%.

In terms of results, 2009 is a year with results
similar to the average of the last 10 years.
The banking industry showed -during 2009profitability over capital of 15.7%; an indicator
that is calculated as net results over capital and
reserves without considering the provision for

minimum dividends. This is explained by the
lower result on account of interest margin (given
the lower lending volume and the lower rates) as
well as by smaller restatements in UF positions,
given the negative rate of inflation occurring
during the year. On the positive side, it is worth
noting the growth in net commissions and the
high results on account of price differences and
net change profits.

With respect to the capital adjustment
indicators, the banks operating in Chile
maintain high levels of capitalization. The Basel
Index as of October 2009 reached 14.35%.

Industry-wide evolution of the Hedging
index in the last 10 years

Industry-wide evolution of results over
capital & reserves in the last 10 years

Basel Index

the Hedging index shows a significant drop
during 2009, of at least 110 base points.

1999

146%

1999

13.50

2000

138%

2000

2001

138%

2001

12.7%

2000

13.34

17.7%

2001

12.73

2002

121%

2002

14.4%

2002

14.01

2003
2004

124%

2003

16.6%

2003

14.06

165%

2004

16.7%

2004

13.55

2005

178%

2005

17.9%

2005

12.95

2006

198%

2006

18.6%

2006

12.54

2007

210%

2007

16.2%

2007

12.18

2008

202%

2008

13.3%

2008

12.53

2009

92%

2009

15.7%

2009

14.35

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
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FINANCIAL
SERVICES

CorpBanca offers a broad array of banking services to its commercial clients and
natural persons. Additionally, through its affiliates, it provides stock brokerage
services, general fund management services, insurance brokerage services and
financial consulting services.
The following chart shows CorpBanca main lines of business:
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Stock Brokers

CORPBANCA

Large-size &
Real estate
companies

Traditional &
Private banking

Company
Banking

Person
Banking

Companies

Banco
Condell

General Fund
Management

Finance

Affiliates

Insurance
Brokers

Financial
Consulting
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the strategy and
its application

In its search for a more balanced portfolio, during the last years the Bank
has endeavored to deepen its presence in the segments of Person and Small &
Medium-size companies.
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CorpBanca’s medium and long-term strategy
is based, principally, in developing a balanced
asset portfolio, strengthening the Bank’s liability
structure, maintaining industry-leading risk
standards, promoting a culture of efficiency and
a marked commitment to meet the needs of each
one of the Bank’s clients.

During 2009, the Bank’s Personal Banking
represented 26.1% of the entire portfolio, while
Commercial Banking represented 73.9%; these
figures compare favorably with those of the
previous year, since in 2008 the Bank’s Personal
Banking represented 24% and its Commercial
Banking 76%.

In its search for a more balanced portfolio,
during the last years the Bank has endeavored
to deepen its presence in the segments of
Person and Small & Medium-size companies.

This growth in banking in the Person and
PYME segments, has been possible because
the Bank has been able to offer original and
vanguard products, always seeking to deliver

mortgage loans
12 month growth

overdue lending over
total lending

2005

27.4%
16.2%

2005

0.88%
0.91%

2006

43.6%
14.6%

2006

0.57%
0.75%

2007

42.1%
16.2%

2007

0.54%
0.75%

2008

20.8%
11.5%

2008

0.73%
0.91%

2009

19.5%
9.8%

2009

1.74%
2.73%

CorpBanca

Industry

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*) As of 2008, the information shown is consolidated.
Current industry variation is calculated using nonconsolidated 2007 figures.

CorpBanca

Industry

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions
(*)As of 2008, the information is shown consolidated.
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The Strategy and its Application

Thus, CorpBanca was the
first bank to operate with
guarantee certificates issued
by a Reciprocal Guarantee
company, and the first bank
to execute a contract with an
insurance company to offer title
certificate insurance coverage
to its clients.

better solutions in a continuous effort to
provide a service of excellence to characterize
us. These products have been arranged through
an aggressive sales force, which has permitted
expanding the Bank’s client base and improving
product cross-over with the current client base.
Thus, CorpBanca was the first bank to
operate with guarantee certificates issued by a
Reciprocal Guarantee company, and the first
bank to execute a contract with an insurance
company to offer title certificate insurance
coverage to its clients.

HEDGING INDEX (*)

The already mentioned growth materialized
without neglecting the Bank’s key second
development pillar, consisting in maintaining
leading credit risk standards. These standards
are based on robust policies to that effect and
on solid credit evaluation models; all of which
may be evidenced in the Bank’s persistently
maintaining risk indices better than those of the
system at large over the years.

RISK INDEX

2005

177%
178%

2005

1.56%
1.61%

2006

243%
198%

2006

1.40%
1.48%

2007

235%
210%

2007

1.27%
1.58%

2008

183%
202%

2008

1.34%
1.83%

2009

78%
92%

2009

1.84%
2.51%

CorpBanca

Industry

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
Note 1: The Hedging index represents the existing ratio
between the level of established provisions with respect to
overdue lending (established provisions / overdue lending).
Note 2: As of 2008, the information is shown consolidated.
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A sample of the success of this strategy may
be appreciated in the fact that, during 2009,
CorpBanca grew 2 times more than the rest of
the market, in terms of mortgage lending.

CorpBanca

Industry

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
Note 1: The Risk Index is the estimated loss percentage of
the lending portfolio obtained upon dividing established
provisions by total lending.
Note 2: As of 2008, the information is shown consolidated.
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Our team of Collaborators is
characterized by its responsible,
methodical and systematic work,
which has permitted CorpBanca to remain as one of the
industry-wide leaders in terms of efficiency.

The third key vortex of the Bank’s development
strategy is its culture of efficiency, which is
inserted into each and every one of the activities
performed and that is very related to the
Discipline Value. Our team of Collaborators
is characterized by its responsible, methodical
and systematic work, which has permitted
CorpBanca to remain as one of the industry-wide
leaders in terms of efficiency.
Finally, its aim to meet its client needs has been
a principle that has inspired the management
of the Bank. This premise is based not only in
the need to capture new clients, but also, on the
need to captivate the current ones.

SUPPORT EXPENSES / ASSETS

EfFICIENCY
CorpBanca
Industry

In this aspect, the service vocation of each of
the Bank’s Collaborators is the main engine
that drives us toward excellence along these
lines; namely, knowing the needs of such
clients, understanding their requirements, the
manner in which the Bank may meet their
needs, measuring the way in which this is
being done, while developing technological
processes that permit us to evolve along the
lines that they demand us to evolve, necessarily
implies assuming a real commitment to search
for solutions tailored to the needs of those
requiring them.

42.7%
48.3%

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
Note: The Efficiency Index reflects the ratio between support
expenses and the operating result and monetary correction
expenses; therefore, a lower percentage implies a greater
efficiency.

CorpBanca
Industry

1.98%
2.46%

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
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service
“TRAINING YOUNG SPORTSMEN WHO MANAGE TO
DEVELOP TEAMWORK, DISCIPLINE AND PASSION AS
VALUES THAT ONE MUST PUT INTO PRACTICE IN EVERY
ASPECT OF LIFE, GIVES ME GREAT SATISFACTION AND
MAKES ME FEEL ACTIVE”

JORGE ARAYA
CLIENT EXECUTIVE FOR PERSONAL BANKING COPIAPO
NOMINATED FOR SERVICE

Monday thru Friday after work, Jorge trains for 2 hours with a Physical Education
teacher, and he does it to stay fit to clear his mind and to regain the energy to charge up
the batteries for the following day. Additionally, between March and December, he is also
trainer assistant of a children’s soccer school with children up to 12 years old. With this
activity Jorge feels he is contributing to develop a new generation of teenagers interested
in sports who stay away from risk activities leading them nowhere. He is convinced that
through sports you can form better people.

2009 MANAGEMENT
ANALYSIS

The Bank’s management moved forward during 2009 according to the
predefined long-term trajectory to position the Bank as leader of Chile’s
banking industry.
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The total lending (effective plus contingent
minus interbank) volume reached CLP 5,393
million, which represented a 4% decrease
as compared to that of 2008. This decrease

7.0%

6.5%

6.0%

6.31%

2,000

6.35%

6.46%

3,000

6.82%

4,000

7.24%

6.93%

5,000

3,806

4,603

5,622

CorpBanca Lending

5,393

2009

3,337

2008

5.5%
2,968

2007

1,000

2006

Volume of activity

7.5%

2005

Finally, the sources used to finance the growth
projected have been stable liabilities, both sight
or time deposits, as well as junior bonds.

7,000

2004

Additionally, as it was commented in the bank’s
landmark “Geographic coverage increase”,
we opened up three (3) new branch offices in
Santiago on locations considered strategic for
the Bank’s growth in the person segment; and
in May, we opened up the New York Branch
Office. The latter will permit increasing the
Bank’s current client base, both commercial
and personal, in addition to strengthening its

Also, during 2009 we incorporated two (2) new
affiliates. The first, CorpCapital Agencia de
Valores S.A., through which we will offer the
Bank’s high net worth clients to manage their
assets. The second, SMU Corp S.A., through
which credit cards will be issued to be used
mainly by the SMU supermarket chain.

CorpBanca’S TOTAL LENDING
PERCENT (%) SHARE OF THE SYSTEM

CorpBanca Participation

Note: 2009 data available as of November.
Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
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Mkt. Share

The Bank’s management moved forward
during 2009 according to the predefined longterm trajectory to position the Bank as leader
of Chile’s banking industry. Thus, during such
period, the Bank showed an important volume
of business, becoming the bank with greatest
market share growth in mortgage lending, and
the third with the greatest market share growth
in company credits.

relationship with them by giving them access to
new products & services.

MMM$

World View

2009 Management Analysis
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Company lending during the
year decreased from CLP 4,044 billion
to CLP 4,113 billion; however.
in terms of market share in this segment, the Bank grew from 8.10% to 8.67%,
derived from the general contraction of the system.

Fundamentally because of the greater product
risk of the financial crisis, during 2009, the
Bank’s pace of lending growth dropped in the

CorpBanca’S COMPANY LENDING (IN
BILLION CLP) - PERCENT (%) SHARE OF THE
SYSTEM

CorpBanca’S PERSON LENDING (IN BILLION
CLP) - PERCENT (%) SHARE OF THE SYSTEM

200

6.5%

0

8.10%

7.81%
7.30%

7.56%

500

2,872

3,457

2006

2007

Commercial Lending

4,044

4,113

2009

2,587

2008

2,358

2005

0

Commercial market
participation %

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
Note: 2009 data available as of November.

4.70%

6.8%

1,000

4.6%
4.2%
3.8%
3.4%
3.0%

562

686

889

1,092

Person Lending

1,163

1,235

2009

400

4.76%

7.2%

2008

600

1,500

4.89%

7.6%

2,000

Company lending was distributed among
several economic sectors; noteworthy among
which were the Real Estate Development sector,
with a market share of 13.2%; Commerce,
with a market share of 10.62%; Financial
Services and others, with 7.02%; Investment
Companies, with 5.68%; Transportation &
Telecommunications, with 5.51%;

2007

800

4.45%

7.9%

2,500

2006

1,000

3,000

4.00%

8.3%

3,500

5.0%

2005

1,200

3.87%

1,400

8.6%

2004

9.0%

4,000
8.67%

4,500

7.79%

Company lending during the year decreased
from CLP 4,044 billion to CLP 4,113 billion;
however, in terms of market share in this
segment, the Bank grew from 8.10% to 8.67%,
derived from the general contraction of the
system.

Electrcity, Gas & Water, with 3.29%; Education
with 2.95%; the Fishing Sector, with 1.40% and
the Mining Sector, with 0.85%.

2004

was caused by the downturn in lending to
companies, which was affected both by the
negative variation of the UF, as well as by the
lowered foreign rate of exchange, which in
addition to the economic slowdown, strongly
impacted foreign trade lending.

Person market
participation %

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
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The use of junior bonds enables
the efficient use of the Bank’s
capital and reserves, consequently
permitting access to better levels of profitability over capital.

3,255

4,103

4,936

5,117

nov 2009

3,171

2008

3,011

2007

One of CorpBanca’s efforts has been to increase
its sight balances, where it evidences a share
smaller than that of its loans. In 2009, we may
observe a greater annual growth of this product,
as compared with the previous years. Market
share, in terms of sight deposits, increased from
2.58% in 2008 to 2.99% toward the end of
2009; an increase that was achieved amidst a
very competitive environment.

2006

In the slower growth one may appreciate a
different trend between mortgage lending and
consumer lending. On the one hand, the former
expanded by CLP114 billion, which represents a
16.8% increase, CorpBanca being the bank that
grew the most in terms of market share in the
industry. On the other hand, consumer lending
shrank by CLP 54 billion, mostly as a result of
the Massive Banking sector, which was, in turn,
mostly impacted by the financial crisis.

liabilities with cost plus sights
(net of clearance) (in billion clp)

2005

The use of junior bonds enables the efficient use
of the Bank’s capital and reserves, consequently
permitting access to better levels of profitability
over capital.

2004

Person segment, ending the year with CLP
1,235 billion, thereby reducing its market
participation in this segment from 4.76%
to 4.71%.

Analysis of results
During 2009, CorpBanca’s net profits amounted
to CLP 85 billion, which represents a level
similar to that observed in 2008, on the basis of
IFRS comparisons.

ordinary and junior bonds
(in billion clp)

56

223

258

369

429

663

2005

2006

2007

2008

nov 2009

The net profit of CLP 85 billion is particularly
noteworthy because of two reasons. First,
because it was achieved in a difficult economic
2004

In terms of the Bank’s financing structure, we
may observe that the financing volume with
cost plus sight balances (con costo más saldos
vistas) in real terms, remained at a level similar
to that of the previous year, experiencing a slight
CLP 41 billion contraction. It is worth noting,
however that CLP 140 billion of short-term
financing (deposits) were substituted by longterm financing (junior bonds).

Junior bonds
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Ordinary
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2.66%

2.66%

183

254

307

324

2005

2006

2007

2008

2.99%

2.58%
2.28%

168

2.8%
2.6%
2.4%
2.2%
2.0%

2009

462

% participación de mercado

Depósitos a la Vista

Source: Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.

CorpBanca’s profit evolution
figures stated in clp of each year
90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
0
41,998

51,049

86,510 85,109

2009

57,722 57,715

2008

The market share in financial investments
went from 5% in December 2008 to 5.4% in
December 2009. This greater investment stock
generated an important level of recurring income
on account of accruals and price differences.

3.0%

2007

The Bank’s 2009 gross margin reached CLP 276
billion versus CLP 295 billion in the year 2008.
This result is mainly explained by three reasons.
First, by the growth of average productive assets,
which, during the year, surpassed those of 2008
by more than CLP 750 billion?

3.2%

2006

Gross margin

3.4%

2005

The third reason that explains the increment
of the operating result is the greater income of
the Finance Area. The foregoing was mostly
the result of promotions of recurring operations
with clients of the Distribution Desk with
products such as forwards, spots and derivatives;
of increased product cross-over with clients from
other divisions of the Bank; of the increased
value offered to clients through the development
of more sophisticated financial products; and,
of the successful and active participation in the
“available for sale” investment portfolio.

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

2.28%

This result has meant both a greater ROE
(by year’s end it reached 16.9%) and a better
ROA (reaching 1.4% by the closing of 2009).
All of this has favorably impacted the Bank’s
share price, representing a 63% hike during
2009 (from CLP2.52/share by 2008 closing to
CLP4.1/share by 2009 closing).

evolution of sight (nominal)
deposits-corpbanca and its share
in the system

2004

Second, by an excellent handling of the
interest margin explained, by an increase in the
commercial spread and, by a lower financing
cost, upon shortening the average term of
borrowings in order to capture the low rates
of the monetary policy incurred during the
year, thus safeguarding the liquidity and term
mismatch risks. Both managements offset the
fall of net restatements as a result of the negative
value of the UF throughout 2009, which
dropped by 2.38%.

2004

environment; with many countries -including
Chile- in recession, that forced consumers as
well as companies to reduce their expenses and
investment projects. Second, the 200 result was
obtained under the new accounting IFRS norm,
which began to applied in January 2009, and
whose most relevant change was the elimination
of the monetary correction to capital, which
wiped out the natural coverage that banks had
in order to hedge the adverse impact of negative
inflation, such as was the case during 2009.

Note: The 2008 and 2009 data include IFRS adjustments;
reason why they are not totally comparable with the results
of previous years.
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The operating costs of the
year 2009 were inferior to
those of the previous year by
CLP 320 million, totaling CLP
126.4 billion.

With respect to net commissions, they reflected
an increase of CLP 1.2 billion, which represented
a 2.9% growth with respect to the year 2008.
This low variation result on this factor is mostly
originated because of the reduction of income
associated to credit cards and overdraft credit
accounts, because of the changes experienced in
the norms regarding collections for installment
purchases and non-agreed overdrafts.

Operating costs
The operating costs of the year 2009 were
inferior to those of the previous year by CLP
320 million, totaling CLP 126.4 billion. This
variation is explained by the reduction of sale
force expenses because of the recognition in
last December 2008 of most of the expenses
capitalized on this concept, according to the
IFRS norms.
The foregoing was offset, partly, by increased
support expenses incurred in the materialization
of policies aimed at making decided progress
in cross-section service quality, talent and
culture projects within the framework of Flight
2011. Additionally, the Bank’s automatic teller
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machine network was significantly expanded
during 2009, as part of the project to install
ATMs at all SMU supermarkets.
Moreover, introducing the IFRS norms implied
a revaluation of Fixed Assets and Intangibles,
which, in turn, implied greater expenses on
account of depreciation and amortization.

Net provisions
Net expenses in credit risk provisions increased
by CLP 14 billion, reaching CLP 69 billion.
This increase is the result, fundamentally, of
greater provisions associated to companies of
the salmon sector and greater risks from smaller
commercial debtors, which are evaluated as a
group.
Notwithstanding the increase in net expenses,
the Bank has maintained an active risk
management policy. Specifically, the risk
index, including provisions for contingency
and additional credits, is 67 base points below
the industry’s 2.51%, while the indicator of
provisions over overdue portfolio was 102% by
the closing of 2009.
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Net expenses in credit
risk provisions increased
by CLP 14 billion,
reaching CLP 69 billion.

2008/2009 comparative results
(with ifrs adjustments)
(In million CLP)

2008

2009

08-09 (clp)

08-09 (%)

214,176

193,388

(20,788)

(9.7%)

Net commissions

42,052

43,261

1,209

2.9%

Treasury

12,110

54,198

42,088

347.5%

Other net

7,833

5,087

(2,746)

(35.1%)

Gross margin

276,171

295,934

19,763

7.2%

Operating expenses

(126,068)

(126,388)

(320)

0.3%

(54,996)

(68,855)

(13,859)

25.2%

262

445

183

69.8%

95,369

101,136

5,767

6.0%

Income tax

(8,859)

(16,027)

(7,168)

80.9%

Final profit

86,510

85,109

(1,401)

(1.6%)

Net interest and restatements

Net provisions
Profits for investments in other companies
Profit before taxes
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The banking system -and this
Bank in particular- actively
contributed to the country’s
growth and development by
providing financial support to
large-size infrastructure works.

Solvency

Corporate banking

During 2009, the Bank increased its solvency, as
measured by the Basil Index, which went from
10.83% to 13.92%, as a result of the issuance
of junior bonds. Such Basil Index level gives
the Bank a solid finance basis, which allows
financing its growth strategy.

In 2009, the Bank consolidated its Wholesale
Banking model by setting up a multidisciplinary
team comprised by professionals from the Bank
and from its various affiliates, which, along with
its high shareholders’ equity and its financial
experience, permitted generating integral solutions
to Large-size Companies, Domestic corporations
and real estate developing companies, supporting
its clients during a period of crisis, with debt
rescheduling operations, project financing,
company sales & acquisitions, issuance of debt and
capital, syndicated credits, committed liquidity
lines and treasury-structured products.

14%

13.59%

15%

13.92%

BIS Ratio

12%
11%

10.83%

11.20%

13%
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DEC. 06

10%

Thus, during 2009, the Bank positioned itself
as a leading bank in terms of structuring of
derivatives, often tailored according to the needs
of clients, in order to reduce interest rate risks
and those of currencies from such clients. In this
manner, we expanded the volume traded in these
products by 218%, as compared to the previous
year, reaching USD 920 million during 2009.
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As a result of a better business management
and inspired in the Collaboration Value,
focusing on clients and working as a team,
the Bank participated in the most important
debt rescheduling that were generated. Thus,
during 2009, we financed more than USD
1,226 million, increasing income generation;
which, in turn, permitted paying important
provisions made as a consequence of the
salmon sector crisis.

Company Banking
The Company Banking Division carried out
during the year 2009 a series of actions inspired
on Service and Creativity Values, through
which it achieved a closer relationship with its
clients, while delivering a good quality of service
providing specific case-by-case solutions.

The banking system -and this Bank in
particular- actively contributed to the country’s
growth and development by providing financial
support to large-size infrastructure works, such
as seaport and airport concessions, in addition to
energy, gas and water generation projects.

Among the actions carried out during this
exercise, was a deeper segmentation of the
database in order to more effectively meet
their requirements. Additionally, quality
surveys were incorporated with Company &
PYME clients so as to obtain the feedback
necessary to continuously improve the Bank’s
service to them.

The Bank operated in all the sectors of the
economy, such as Energy, Mining, Services,
Infrastructure, Industry, Transportation,
Finance, State-owned, Retail and Real Estate,
among others.

All this was complemented with the
development of new technological tools that
permitted a better understanding of clients,
while improving the productivity of
business managers.

As to products, we made significant progress
in the development of new proposals, thus
completing the Bank’s Cash Management
project. We also continued making progress
in the delivery of services via the Internet and
created other alternatives with the purpose of
boosting the business in the PYME segment.
Noteworthy among the latter was the fact that
the Bank was the first bank to issue a credit with
Reciprocal Guarantees.
Insofar as results are concerned, the Bank
increased its Company and PYME segment
profits by approximately 40%.
Personal Banking
During 2009, the Bank’s business that focuses on
the Person segment, continued to develop a series
of projects aligned to its own medium and longterm strategic plan, which points in the direction
of continued portfolio profit-making via a greater
product linkage and cross-over; a field where
business intelligence has played a key role.
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The Bank has been developing
a new branch office model,
which gives priority to a more
direct relationship with clients
offering them a service model
unique in the banking system.

Additionally, we have been focusing efforts
in expanding the Bank’s high-income client
base; all of it under a maximum quality Service
delivery, which is what ultimately sustains
-Value-wise- all the Bank’s initiatives.
The foregoing explains the very favorable
evolution of the Bank’s financial margin, which
grew 25% as compared with that of the previous
year, as well as risk charges, which dropped 2%.
Additionally, the Bank has been developing a
new branch office model, which gives priority
to a more direct relationship with clients
offering them a service model unique in the
banking system, which is characterized -as
a differentiator- for delivering leading edge
products Basically, it is a smaller-size and more
efficient office network that has permitted us to
structure a very important growth plan aimed
at allowing the Bank to come closer to its target
clients. Some of these offices are now fully
operational, while others have yet to be opened,
to aim their efforts at higher-income sectors.
It is quite relevant to highlight the evolution
experienced by the Bank’s Mortgage Loan line
of business; a product that has enjoyed the very
significant growth of 20%, thus making us the
bank with the greater dynamism in the entire
industry while also growing in terms of market
share. This product is crucial for the Bank’s
business strategy, since it aims, precisely, at the
segment of higher-income clients, representing
all-around integral clients with a high level of
product linkages.
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Banco Condell
2009 was a period of consolidation that ended
an intense process of business restructuring and
reformulation aimed at building solid bases that
would permit achieving the results expected of
this Retail Division of CorpBanca.
This process of transformation of Banco Condell
has involved all business fronts, especially,
changes in its Credit Policy and, particularly,
in the value placed on Talent, since most of
its human resource was renewed, mainly in
its branch office network. Changes were also
introduced in the ad hoc incentive models of
the new business model, creating a business
intelligence area specializing in the segment,
among others.
On the commercial front, two important
initiatives were launched. For example, the
strategic alliance entered into with a telephone
company; the launching of two campaigns for
12-month credit cards, without interest or
commission, plus a 10% discount for Monday
purchases at SMU supermarkets; the national tour
of the singer, Américo, to promote the brand; and,
the launching of insurance coverage products,
both for current clients as well as non-clients.
Finally, considering the world crisis -that also
impacted this country- Banco Condell developed
innovative debt rescheduling products for its
clients, which permitted maintaining adequate
portfolio risk levels. Additionally, it successfully
implemented a differentiated price strategy by
client risk profile, which permitted to adequately
meet its projected business spreads and income.
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CorpCapital Administradora General
de Fondos S.A.
CorpCapital Administradora General de Fondos,
general fund management company, achieved
a noteworthy growth during 2009 in Chile’s
mutual fund market. The amount of equity
funds thus managed increased by 91%; which
represents almost double the industry’s growth
of 47%.

A landmark was established this year, since this
was the first general fund management company
of the Chilean market to contract powerful
world-class technological tools supplied by
MorningStar, a world-renowned benchmark in
the investment industry.
These tools will enable the Bank to continuously
improve its investment processes and satisfying
its clients’ advisory needs.

The foregoing enabled this fund management
company, for the first time, to surpass the USD
1 billion mark in equity funds managed on
account if its clients.

At year’s end, this company showed profits
amounting to CLP 2,453 million, which
represented a growth of 65% with respect to the
previous year.

Its rigorous and disciplined management of
investments, always supported by the Bank’s
Corporate Values, merited being awarded
important awards for its management
performance of national debt and flexible origin
funds, in addition to the award as the best
International Debt Management Company.

CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.
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During 2009, CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa
developed a number of strategies aimed at
delivering first-rate differentiating products
and at continuing to develop all its product
lines, based on one of the fundamental Values
of the Bank: Service. This enables us to thrust
forward toward excellence in a consistent and
exceptional manner.

This affiliate was the first Broker in the banking
industry to launch the Portal i-Acciones,
internet stock portal, a modern trading platform
to invest via the Internet, on line with the
Santiago Stock Exchange, permitting clients to
operate independently, while having access to
market prices in real time and at a low cost. This
year, the Portal i-Acciones increased its trading
volume by 82%.
In order to provide the Bank’s clients with
new investment alternatives, this year we
incorporated foreign investments, a move that
had a very good reception among clients.
Thus, for the second year in a row, this brokerage
company ended the year with the second largest
share of the foreign exchange market among
Stock Exchange Brokers; a business that grew
16% this year.
Upon the closing of FY-2009, this company
showed profits totaling CLP 3,381 million,
which entailed a 55% growth with respect to the
previous year.
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CorpBanca Corredores
de Seguros S.A.
During 2009, CorpBanca Corredores de Seguros
carried out a number of actions that enabled it
to continue to develop the insurance business in
an integral manner to all its client segments. It
also added a number of new products, keeping
its main focus on Service to clients through
professional advisories in all matters pertaining
to the insurance business.
During this period, this affiliate also executed
a co-brokerage Alliance with one of the
world’s principal brokerage houses, as a way of
providing better advisory services to its clients,
incorporating its insurance offer to the Large-size
companies and Corporations.
It also implemented its offer of insurance policies
through an Internet Portal, which permitted
its clients to have access to insurance products
quickly and on a timely basis. Additionally, it
expanded its offer of products in general, which

permitted its clients a better protection, both
at the personal, family, financial and physical/
material levels.
Upon the closing of FY-2009, this company
showed profits totaling CLP 4,832 million,
which entailed a 11% growth with respect to the
previous year.
CorpCapital Asesorías Financieras S.A.
Many were the noteworthy 2009 landmarks
established by this company. In the first place,
the immediate integration of this affiliate
with the other Wholesale Banking affiliates.
As a faithful reflection of the Collaboration
Value, each of the different businesses that
were structured throughout the year involved
significant teamwork.

and one that was crowned with the successful
closing of its first structuring and financing
scheme for a highway concession loan. Similarly,
structured financing schemes were also evaluated
and approved for the country’s first hospital
concession plan.
In commercial management terms, it is worth
noting that by inroading into this industry, this
affiliate has acquired new clients and developed
close working relationships with others; all
of which should translate into new business
opportunities.
Finally, the affiliate structured operations for
clients that had received its support in previous
years; which is tantamount to recognizing its
Talent in performing its work with dedication
and Discipline.

Its incursion into new lines of business -such as
the country’s Public Works Concession Industry,
promoted by that Ministry- was a challenge
that this affiliate was willing to undertake
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TALENT
“TALENT IS TO ENJOY WHAT YOU DO, NOT ALLOWING
OTHERS TO IMPOSE OR TO SELF IMPOSE LIMITS, TO BE
DISCIPLINED AND ALSO A BIT OF OBSESSION, BEING
CAREFUL AND PROLIX IN EVERYTHING”

RAUL MUÑOZ
FINANCIAL ENGINEERING ASSISTANT MANAGER
NOMINATED FOR TALENT

Ever since he was a child he has been playing Jazz; which; in his own words, is both his hobby
and his passion. Since the age of 14, he has been playing the saxophone (tenor, high, and
soprano). He came to this world influenced by his mother, who is a jazz singer. In his practice,
he puts a certain level of obsession into his music, just like he does in his work. And he assures us
that in order to be the best you require a lot of discipline and talent.

distributable profits and
dividend distribution policy

In February 2009, the Shareholders’ Meeting agreed to distribute, by way of
dividends, CLP56,310 million corresponding to 100% of the profits obtained
during FY-2008, as follows:
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Distributable
profits
(In million CLP)

Profits distributed
during the year
(In million CLP)

Chargeable
to the FY

Percent (%)
of profits
distributed

Dividend per share
(In CLP of each year)

2004

50,123.5

25,061.7

2003

50.0%

0.110448

2005

50,767.3

25,383.6

2004

50.0%

0.111866

2006

52,632.8

26,316.4

2005

50.0%

0.115978

2007

39,104.5

29,328.4

2006

75.0%

0.129251

2008

51,049.0

51,049.0

2007

100.0%

0.224975

2009

56,310.0

56,310.0

2008

100.0%

0.25422

Year

The dividend distribution policy, agreed at
the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of
February 2009, consisted in distributing at least
50% of all profits, calculating them as all the

profits obtained during a fiscal year, discounting
an equivalent sum permitting to maintain the
company’s capital constant in real terms.
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risk management
and factors

In order to manage its financial risk, the Bank has developed an
organizational structure, measurement tools and control mechanisms that
provide an adequate risk management environment, thereby safeguarding the
institution’s equity stability.
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In order to strike a fair return/
risk balance, CorpBanca has
developed an exhaustive risk
control process.

Financial Risk
CorpBanca’s financial risk management practice
is based on two concepts. The first consists in the
fact that risks generate business opportunities
and, consequently, they can generate returns.
The second consists and is based on the fact
that businesses have a limited capacity to
withstand losses. In order to strike a fair return/
risk balance, CorpBanca has developed an
exhaustive risk control process through which
it identifies, measures and manages the risks
faced by its operations.

Division, the Manager of the Planning &
Management Control Division, the Finance
Manager and the Financial Risk Manager. This
is the debating instance regarding the financial
decisions adopted by the institution. This
Committee is entrusted with the responsibility,
both of generating policies to govern financial
risk management -according to guidelines
defined by the Board Members and all other
current norms- and to review the financial
environment, the risks that have been assumed
and the results thus obtained.
Market Risks

In order to manage its financial risk, the Bank
has developed an organizational structure,
measurement tools and control mechanisms
that provide an adequate risk management
environment, thereby safeguarding the
institution’s equity stability.
The Asset & Liability Committee (CAPA, in its
Spanish acronym) is comprised of three (3) Board
Members, the General Manager of the Company,
the Manager of the Finance & International

In order to identify, measure and control market
risks, which include currency and interest
rate risks, the Bank has applied a set of tools,
both statistical and non-statistical. Among the
former, there is the VaR (Value-at-risk) and the
sensitivity models of financial margins and of
the economic value of the shareholders’ equity.
Among the latter, it applies sensitivity analyses,
stress tests to analyze the impact of extreme
market price fluctuations, scenario simulation
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based on historical events, and the maximum
exposure to certain specific type of securities.
Exchange Rate Risk
Insofar as foreign exchange rate risks are
concerned, the Bank manages its exposure
through an absolute mismatch limit and also
through its Risk Value Methodology (VaR).
During 2009, the maximum monthly average
VaR associated to the Bank’s foreign exchange
rate position amounted to USD 30,000, peaking
at US 136,000.
Rate of Interest Risk

given change of the rates of interest. On the
other hand, through the sensitivity of the
shareholders’ equity value -which is a long-term
measurement- we measure the economic risk to
the Bank’s shareholders’ equity; in other words,
changes in the present value before variations of
the interest rate structure.

Both for the local as well as for foreign
currencies, the Asset & Liability Committee
(CAPA) has established limits for the sensitivity
of the financial margin and the economic value.
The following charts show the differences
between assets and liabilities for the time bands
of 0-1 years, 1-3 years and 3+ years, both in
local as well as in foreign currencies, by the
closing of 2009.

national currency rates sensibility

foreign currency rates sensibility

120%
100%
15.87%
32.35%

80%

In managing the rate of interest risk, the Bank
controls the sensitivity of the financial margin
and the value of its shareholders’ equity before
rate of interest changes, by analyzing the “gap”
between assets and liabilities.
Through the sensitivity of the financial
margin, we measure expected interest accrual
changes over a 12-month horizon, before a
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60%
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0 - 1 year

2.62%
0.64%

1.56%
0.49%

96.74%

97.95%

Liabilities
1 - 3 years

> 3 years

CorpBanca 2009 Annual Report

111

Risk Management and Factors

During 2009, the average
monthly risk percentage
reached 6.4%, with a maximum
of 8.01% and a minimum of
4.82%, respectively.

Portfolio of Financial and Derivative
Investments

with a maximum of 8.01% and a minimum of
4.82%, respectively.

The Bank applies different models to quantify
the rate of interest risk, depending if it is a
financial instrument classified as negotiable, or
as available for sale. During the year 2009, the
Bank successfully and actively operated in the
financial investment market, taking relevant
positions both on account of its negotiations
book as well as its available for sale book.

For those instruments classified in the
Negotiations Book, the limit used to quantify
and manage the rate of interest risk has been
established on the basis of the Value-at-Risk
(VaR). Thus, during the last quarter of 2009,
the average monthly VaR amounted to CLP247
million, with a maximum of CLP372 million
and a minimum of CLP143 million.

For those instruments classified as available for
sale, the risk limit is stated as a percentage of the
Bank’s shareholders’ equity. During 2009, the
average monthly risk percentage reached 6.4%,

Regulatory Limits

Financial investments
market share

7.07%

6.09%

6.94%

8.01%

5.35%

March

5.97%

February

6.45%

5.16%

6%

4.82%

5.40%

7.02%

8%

7.35%

10%

4%
2%
0%

December January
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On the other hand, the Bank must abide by the
margins set forth by the regulatory authority
on this subject matter, which relate to capital
requirements and to the sensitivity of the
financial margin to market variations. The
following chart shows the Bank’s exposure to
market risks, as of year’s end of the last
two years.
Liquidity Risk
The Bank, through an adequate liquidity
management, has permitted to satisfactorily
finance asset growth, while meeting its acquired
financial commitments - in its originally-agreed
terms & conditions.
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The Bank applies different
models to quantify the
rate of interest risk,
depending if it is a financial instrument classified as
negotiable, or as available for sale.

In order to manage this risk, the Bank has
established internal limit indicators: in the
first place, it has established a limit to daily
institutional investor maturities, where they are
not allowed to exceed a certain amount that has
been previously established as a function of the
fund borrowing capacity under above normal
stress conditions.
In second place, a limit has been defined that
indicates that financial assets must exceed the
maturities accumulated for the next 3 days by
time deposits linked to institutional investors.
These liquidity measurements are
complemented with various stress exercises,
among which we particularly emphasize
quantifying the Bank’s potential slack with the
AFP and Mutual Fund segments.
In order to manage this risk, the Bank estimates
its liquidity position through a model of
income & expense flows, which takes into
account the economic behavior of all Balance
Sheet items and payment commitments,
pursuant to the restrictions imposed on this
subject matter by the Central Bank of Chile
and the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions. For regulatory purposes, the Bank
seeks to prudently manage the use of the limits
defined by the regulatory entities.

Counterpart Risks
Measuring counterparts’ risks is the mechanism
used to define the lines of credit allocated to
clients when they execute financial operations;
particularly, when they involve derivative
financial products.
As of December 2009, 55% of the credit risk of
the Bank’s derivative contracts stemmed from
financial sector companies, including Banks,
AFP’s, insurance companies, stock exchange
brokers, mutual funds, etc.
This section has described the main financial
risks to which the Bank is currently exposed to,
as well as the mechanisms that it uses and applies
to measure and control them. As we have stated
above, the objective of managing financial risk is to
improve decision-making, permitting to identify
strategies that optimize the risk/return ratio, thus
generating value to the Bank’s shareholders.

The objective of this Committee is to adopt all
measures permitting an adequate and efficient
management of Operating Risk & Information
Security in all the necessary initiatives so as to
ensure that financial business operations and
transactions are carried out with high security
standards, internal controls and operational
continuity, within a context of best practices and of
the Basel Committee recommendations (Basel II).
The Committee’s activities include the definition
of the policies for managing Operating Risk &
Information Security, in addition to planning,
coordinating and following up the activities
carried out in compliance of such policies.
The Committee is comprised by the General
Manager, the Manager of the Planning &
Management Control Division, the Manager of
the Operations & Systems Division, the Manager
of the Human Resources & Development
Division, the Manager of the Legal Services
Division, the Financial Risk Manager, and the
Information Security Officer.

Operating Risk
The risk management model adopted by the Bank
(defined as the risk of loss resulting from a lack of
adaptation or a failure of the processes, systems,
persons or external events) is based on a specific
functional structure comprised by an Operating
Risk & Information Security Committee, and
by a specialized Operating Risk unit; which
also includes the tasks incumbent upon the
Information Security Officer and the coordination
of the Sarbanes Oxley certification process.

The main objective of the management model
-applicable to both the Bank as well as to its
affiliates- is to effectively manage the operating
risk, with an emphasis on preventing and
mitigating operating risks and on improving the
Bank’s knowledge of existing or potential risks.
The overall management framework
associated to the model, is based on the
pillars of Culture, Quality Management, and
Quantitative Management.
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The overall management
framework associated to
the model, is based on the
pillars of Culture,
Quality Management, and Quantitative Management.

As part of this culture-generating process, the
unit in charge of Operating Risk & Information
Security carried out a number of training
activities throughout the year 2009, involving
more than 950 Collaborators of CorpBanca and
its affiliates, in order to raise awareness regarding
Operating Risk & Information Security, in
addition to SOX Certification. These activities
were complemented with e-learning courses.
In a complementary manner, informative notes
were published in the corporate intranet aimed
at raising the awareness of the organizational
community regarding the importance of
working under security norms that protect the
information, thus ensuring the continuity of
the business.
Through qualitative management, we integrate
the evaluation of operating risks based on the
identification of threats to the business process,
the impact of such threats and the subsequent
evaluation of controls aimed at mitigating risks.

Value at risk (clp)
Monthly average

In order to develop such activity, the Bank has
a self-evaluation process based on a risk map of
those business processes that the Bank’s senior
management and the affiliates have identified
as critical.
The Bank has also integrated qualitative
management practices to its key suppliers,
as a form of keeping well identified and
mitigated those risks associated to services
provided to the Bank. To that effect, the Bank
prepared a Management Model of Critical
Suppliers; a document aimed at establishing
the bases toward an adequate management of
critical service suppliers, with the objective of
efficiently and adequately controlling the risks
inherent in outsourced activities classified as
having a high impact.
Finally, through quantitative management,
we obtain and maintain operating loss data
(accountable and non-accountable),
develop the quantification model and

Evolution of market risk exposure
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To capture such loss data,
we have developed
escalating circuits in the
Bank’s different divisions.

integrate the qualitative and quantitative
management processes.
To capture such loss data, we have developed
escalating circuits in the Bank’s different
divisions, so as to have parties responsible of
identifying and communicating to the unit in
charge of Operating Risk all the operating losses
occurred in the Bank, in order to identify the
origin of such loss events and generate action
plans to mitigate their recurrence.
Company Credit Risk
The objective of managing Company Credit
Risk is to ensure that the portfolios of the
Large Companies & Corporations, Companies,
Personal Banking, Real Estate & Construction,
and International & Finance segments maintain
an adequate risk/return ratio, contributing to
keep a balance between commercial objectives
and healthy acceptance risks, in line with the
institution’s strategic objectives.
Recently, the Small & Medium-size Company
segment (PYME) was integrated to this Unit
by defining appropriate policies & processes and
creating a specialized structure for it.
The Unit that manages this risk supports its
actions on crucial pillars such as: the Talent of
its Collaborators, who are highly experienced in
the different segments that comprise its scope
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of competence; a solid risk culture, consistent
with the Bank’s strategy; the definition of
credit processes for the company business, both
regarding their approval as well as their follow
up and collection; a regulatory & preventing
risk vision; an active participation in the
credit approval process, based on a structure
segmented by markets; a supervision of the
credit process through Follow-up, Default and
ex-post Revision Committees; dissemination of
the risk culture within the Bank; continuous
training to commercial and risk area executives;
and, direct management through the
Bank’s Standardization Area of deteriorated
management & collection cases,
Insofar as training is concerned, during the
period, this Area offered a closed international
risk seminar for CorpBanca, with the
participation of several managers’ offices.
A particularly relevant feature of 2009,
especially in first half of the year, was the
proactive role assumed by the Bank before the
international financial crisis and its impact
on the local economy, which derived into
adjustment measures and a more intense
periodicity follow-up, and concrete preventive
measures. In this respect, the Unit in charge
of managing this risk in coordination with the
different business areas, implemented several
strategies focused on the most vulnerable
sectors, strengthening the criteria for admission
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Insofar as training is concerned,
during the period, this Area
offered a closed international
risk seminar for CorpBanca,
with the participation of several managers’ offices.

and follow-up, which began to normalize as
the effects of the crisis began to ease, with no
significant impact caused as a result of it.
It is important to mention the important role
played by the Unit in the design of the Credit
Policies for CorpBanca’s New York Branch
Office during 2009, through the International
Risk Management’s Office.
This Unit frequently evaluates the
macroeconomic national and international
situation, to have a vision of its eventual
impact or possibilities in different sectors of
the economy, in order to monitor the Bank’s
portfolio.
On the other hand, we improved the appraisal
process via introducing the following changes:
by centralizing the allocation of branch
office appraisals; by redefining the monthly
management control forms; by reviewing
-also on a monthly basis- the main deviations
between the appraiser & the certifier, between
appraisal & reappraisal, and between appraisal
& asset sale or divestiture.
With respect to Credit Committees, they
were also redefined, by eliminating the Senior
Committee, which was comprised by two (2)
board members plus Management and approved
credit operations falling between the authority of
the latter and that of the Executive Committee.

Three (3) different Executive Committees were
set up with the participation of at least three
(3) board members, to operate according to the
different portfolio segments and meet three
(3) times per week, thus allowing for a greater
decision-making leeway.
Commercial Risk
The year 2009 was one of complex short-term
economic factors, in spite of which this year’s
Bank risk results were better than those of 2008.
All this was the outcome of a pro-active style
of management, based on follow-up and
forecasting models and methodologies supported
on risk intelligence and collection models
that permitted anticipating, projecting and
controlling results by way of this concept in each
line of business.
Within the framework of all these arrangements,
it may be highlighted that important
modifications were introduced in the admission
& maintenance strategy ever since the middle of
the year 2008, while substantial changes were
materialized in collection methodologies and
processes. These arrangements permitted to
successfully project and confront this complex
period, adopting the decisions and generating
the called-for action plans in a timely manner.

Indeed, although write-offs increased during
2009, the adoption of the above-depicted
measures generated an improvement in the
portfolio, which resulted in lower provisions,
both in the mortgage loan portfolio as well as
in the consumer credit portfolio; additionally,
the latter experienced a significant improvement
of its provision indicators. Besides, a more
than relevant growth of write-off recovery was
achieved. In sum, the charge to results dropped
by 4%, regarding that of 2008.
In addition to the above-described shortterm actions, the Bank continued to move
forward and deepen its development plan in
Commercial Risk Management, which includes
important projects in technology investment,
and software & scoring model acquisitions from
world-level suppliers.
This plan stands on three (3) important areas:
the intensification of the systematization of
risk strategies and processes; the substantive
development of decision, forecasting and
appraisal models; and, the deepening of
collection management models.
The objectives achieved in terms of Commercial
Risk Management during 2009, can be
summarized in the satisfactory risk results,
especially because of the high predictive
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The objectives achieved in
terms of Commercial Risk
Management during 2009,
can be summarized in the satisfactory risk results,
especially because of the high predictive capacity of
the models,

capacity of the models, which entail a
consolidation of the methodology changes and
a strengthening of the management capacity of
the standardization teams of the companies that
provide the collection services. With respect to
collection, during 2009, the Bank successfully
implemented a series of action plans to manage
the relevant deviations, considering both the
changes in portfolio composition as well as the
effects of the economic evolution; it actively
participated in the customization that is being
carried out by the Bank’s main collection service
supplier, Instacob, of its new collection system
acquired from Fair Isaac. A separate mention
deserves the installation of the new RADAR
credit evaluation system. This new tool delivers
functionalities that position the Bank at the
vanguard of the industry in our country.
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In effect, as a first stage, we implemented this
tool -during the second half of the year- as
it pertains to Personal Banking. The system
consists in a platform built over the Transact 5.0
software, acquired from Experian toward the end
of the year 2008.
Finally, the Bank’s current provision models for
its consumer credit & mortgage loan portfolios
maintain the necessary hedges for the expected
losses. In this manner, the Bank abides by all the
regulations imposed by the Superintendence for
Banks & Financial Institutions.
It must be stated, however, that as part of the
natural process of updating methodologies, the
Bank is developing new provision models for
these portfolios.

The objective of these models -just like the
current ones- is to continuously evaluate the
totality of the portfolio for a timely set-up
of necessary & sufficient provisions toward
hedging eventual losses on account of eventual
non-recoveries, in addition to guaranteeing the
quality and transparence of the Bank’s debtor
classification procedures (segmentation) and
calculation methods for expected losses.
This new methodology of the provisions model
consists in using scoring systems to classify
debtors, through which a point score is calculated
according to the values shown by the client at the
time of measurement, regarding a set of variables
(performance, demographic and office (buró)
characteristics). These scores, in turn, are linked
to an estimated loss percentage; percentage, that
will become the corresponding, necessary and
sufficient provision to hedge such loss.
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Bank & Industry Credit Risk
The Bank’s Provision Structure: As of January
2009, and as a result of the application of
the New Accounting Norms (IFRS), banks
had to separate their lending portfolios into a
Normal Portfolio and a Deteriorated Portfolio.
In accordance with the foregoing, CorpBanca’s
lending portfolio as of December 31, 2009 was
the following:
The Normal Portfolio represents 94% of total
lending, while the Deteriorated Portfolio only
reaches 5.99% of it.
The Risk Index: During 2009, the Bank’s Risk
Index increased from 1.38% in December 2008
to 1.8% in December 2009; namely, an increase

of 42 base points. In the industry at large, on the
other hand, the risk level shot up 50 base points,
from 1.69% to 2.28%.
Commercial Risk: In the commercial portfolio,
the risk increased by 53 base points, from
0.84% to 1.37%, as of December 2009, which
is mostly explained by the worsening of the
risk classification of the country’s salmon
companies and, additionally, because of the risk
stemming from smaller debtors (Commercial
Risk Matrix), which fluctuated between 3.34%,
as of December 2008, to 4.28% as of September
2009. For the system at large, on the other hand,
this Risk Index started at 1.35% and ended the
year at 1.99%.

This new methodology of
the provisions model consists
in using scoring systems to
classify debtors.
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The Normal Portfolio represents
94% of total lending,
while the Deteriorated Portfolio only reaches 5.99% of it.

Consumer lending portfolio
Housing portfolio
Total lending
%

Total lending

Total provision

Total risk index

4,308,115

57,123

1.33%

427,561

33,692

7.88%

806,659

6,038

0.75%

5,542,335

96,853

1.75%

2,400

0.04%

5,542,335

99,253

1.79%

100%

98%

100%

Additional provision
Total lending with additional provision
%
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During 2009, the Risk Index of the Bank’s
Consumer Lending portfolio increased from
6.87% in December 2008, to 7.87% in
December 2009; namely, 100 percentage points;
on the other hand, the industry at large increased
its risk by 65 percentage points; namely, from
5.65% to 6.30%.
Hedging Index of Overdue Portfolio: By the
closing of the year 2009, the Bank’s overdue
total risk index evolution

2.4%
2.2%
2.0%
1.8%
1.6%
1.4%
1.2%
1.0%

Hedging Index of Portfolio Overdue in 90 days
or over: This index measures those established
provisions that hedge lending overdue by 90
days or over. The Bank’s index continued to
show good hedging levels. Thus, it may be
observed that as of November 2009 the Bank

During 2009, the Bank’s
Risk Index increased
from 1.38% in December
2008 to 1.8% in
December 2009.

risk index evolution of the consumer
lending portfolio (consolidated)
2.28%

9%
8%

1.69%
1.80%

7.87%
6.87%

7%
6%

1.38%
dec-08

portfolio amounted to CLP42,675 billion; a
figure that represents 0.91% of the lending
portfolio, versus 1.31% for the system at large.

6.30%
5.5%

5%
feb-09

apr-09

jun-09

CorpBanca

aug-09

oct-09

dec-09

System

Note: The Total Risk Index considers contingent lending and
it does not include additional provisions.
Source: In-house, with data provided by the
Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.

dec-08

feb-09

apr-09

jun-09

CorpBanca

aug-09

oct-09

dec-09

System

Note: Consolidated Consumption corresponds to the
consumer lending portfolio of Personal Banking and of the
Specialized Division.
Source: In-house preparation with data provided by the
Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
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The various reviews
performed by
comptroller and audit
entities have ratifies
that the Bank’s portfolio risk is sufficiently
acknowledged, and that it has prudent process
policies in place in that respect.

had managed to hedge 98.5% of such lending;
figure which is higher to that observed in the
system at large, which only hedged 81.9%.

The various reviews performed by comptroller
and audit entities have ratifies that the Bank’s
portfolio risk is sufficiently acknowledged, and
that it has prudent process policies in place in
that respect.
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120%
100%
80% 81.3%
60%
40% 73.6%
20%
0%

98.5%

CorpBanca Coverage Index

Oct-09

Nov-09

Sep-09

Aug-09

Jul-09

Jun-09

Apr-09

May-09

81.9%

Mar-09

Jan-09

Moreover, according to a conservative
anticipatory criteria, during 2009, the Bank
set up additional provisions in order to
hedge against unpredictable macroeconomic
fluctuations that might affect a given sector,
industry or group of debtors.

hedge provided by provisions on
overdue lending equal-to-or-higherthan 90 days

Feb-09

Sufficiency of provisions: Annually, the Bank
tests the Sufficiency of its Provisions, in
order to verify the risk evaluation processes
and the expected portfolio loss estimates of
each segment. To that effect, we perform
various analyses, random sampling and other
evaluations that permit us to state with a high
degree of confidence that the Bank’s current
provisions are indeed sufficient to hedge for the
losses expected in the various segments. The
results of these analyses are then submitted to
the Board of Directors, which subsequently
sanctions the degree of sufficiency of provisions
in each fiscal year.

System Coverage Index

Source: In-house preparation with data provided by the
Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
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investment &
finance policies

The Bank, through the manager’s office of its Finance & International Division,
must provide resources to the commercial areas while preserving a healthy finance
& liquidity structure. Likewise, such manager’s office must generate income on
its own, by developing financial solutions to the clients of the Bank’s different
segments in treasury products and foreign trade.
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Investment & Financial Structure
The Bank has structured various specialized
and interrelated units to adopt investment and
financing decisions. These units not only support
the Bank’s commercial areas, but also comprise
an income-generating business unit of their own.
The Balance Sheet Management Area looks
after the Bank’s overall Balance Sheet structure.
This implies managing liabilities in a manner
such as to convey such funds to the commercial
areas at competitive prices and at a transfer rate
proportional to the marginal cost of borrowing
funds in a given currency on given terms.
While performing the above described function,
this Area assumes currency, rate and maturity
mismatches that permit generating profits. From
this perspective, this unit is not only a support
area to other commercial areas, but also, one
that generates income from the above-described
mismatches.
The objective of the Trading Area is to secure
profits by taking positions in currency and
interest rate markets. The Unit must lean
towards positions stemming from business
carried out with Bank clients through the
Commercial Manager’s Office.
Long-term Portfolio Deputy
Manager’s Office
On the other hand, the objective of the Longterm Portfolio Area is to develop an investment
portfolio with a long-term vision, where profits
are generated for the margin of interest that

The objective of the
Trading Area is to secure
profits by taking positions
in currency and interest
rate markets.
might be obtained from the financial investment
yield and its financing cost.
The Finance Engineering Unit designs those
financial products to be distributed to clients,
and also the financials required by the Bank’s
other Finance Units, in order to adequately
manage the risks that are an integral part of the
Balance Sheet, Trading and Long-term Portfolio
books.
The objective of the Bank’s Finance Division’s
Commercial Unit is to offer financial solutions to
Bank clients that may add value to them while
generating a profit for the institution.
The income generated by this Unit, has two (2)
very important attributes: it is generated based
on relationships with clients, and it allows for
recurring income from the finance world. A
continued strengthening is being considered for
the years ahead.
Finally, the responsibility of the International
Unit is to develop and maintain the relationship
with foreign capital markets in terms of business
and financing, as well as to develop and advise
about the sale of Foreign Trade Products to the
clients of the Bank’s different segments.
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Throughout the year 2009, the
intermediation of currency &
interest rate financial instruments
continued to be a source of income.
The intermediation and maintenance of positions is performed in
accordance with predefined limits in order to keep risk levels in check.

Investment & Finance Management in
2009
During the year 2009, the Finance Area has
followed the path of boosting businesses as a
stable source of income, focusing the efforts in
those areas that provide innovative solutions to
the financial needs of clients and that constitute
an increasing income base. Thus, in the fiscal
year just ending, innovative tools were developed
that permitted the distribution and subsequent
management of interest rate & currency
derivatives to clients; the income reported by
such operations represent a 517% increase when
compared to those of the previous year.
The increasing sophistication of financial
markets and the specific demands of clients
through the use of derivative products generated
the need to create -toward the end of last year- a
specialized area to structure financial solutions
for clients and manage the risks generated by
such operations.
Throughout the year 2009, the intermediation
of currency & interest rate financial instruments
continued to be a source of income. The
intermediation and maintenance of positions is
performed in accordance with predefined limits
in order to keep risk levels in check.
The handling of the Bank’s financing structure
during 2009 was particularly challenging,
because it was used as a mechanism to offset the
negative adjustment of those assets that were
stated in Unidades de Fomento (UF).
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Among some of the 2009 landmarks, it is
important to highlight the development of
management systems that permitted the sale
of sophisticated financial structures to clients;
the launching of version 2.0 of the UF freezer
(congelador de UF), which enabled the Bank’s
mortgage loan clients to set the value of the
UF in a staggered manner for the next three (3)
years; the increase of the Bank’s Effective Net
Worth via the successful allotment of Junior
Bonds worth 4.67million UF; the growth of the
Finance Division’s Commercial Manager’s Office
reporting income representing 162% growth
with respect to the year 2008; the successful
management of the currency & rate of interest
trading units, which successfully met the goals
set out for them; and, finally the consolidation
of the area’s structure thereby establishing solid
grounds for the coming fiscal year.
The Bank’s International Manager’s Office had
a prominent performance during such period.
It actively participated in expanding the Bank’s
sources of external financing; noteworthy among
which was its registration in the so-called
“Unsecured Medium Term Note” program under
the aegis of Regulation Reg S, against which
the Bank has made three (3) issues, raising USD
200 million in advantageous financial conditions
for the institution. The recently-created
International Business Platform developed and
integrated quite rapidly with the rest of the
Bank, all of which permitted that international
business transactions and those related to
foreign trade experience a 163% income growth
amid a commercial exchange scenario of strong
worldwide contractions.
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PASsIoN
“TO BE ALWAYS WILLING TO HELP OTHERS, ALWAYS READY
TO REACT WHEN CONFRONTED WITH ADVERSITY AND
WORKING TO ACHIEVE THE GOALS WE SET TO OURSELVES
IS WHAT MOVES ME IN EVERY ASPECT OF MY LIFE”.

ANDRES MONTIEL
TRAINING COORDINATOR
NOMINATED FOR PASSION

Andrés has been a fireman since he was very young and whenever he can he shows up at fire
sites and emergency situations; just as he did for the earthquake. At 4:00 am that morning,
he was all dressed up in his uniform and ready to report to the barracks, as called for by
his Fire Company. Minutes later, he was on his way to help those who had been trapped
somewhere because of the quake. A show of passion, of assuming sacrifices for the welfare of
others and a willingness to put one’s own life on the line for the good of others.

the new york branch and the
international environment

The Bank’s US/New York Branch Office started its operations in May of
2009. The office is strategically located in the heart of Manhattan, the world’s
financial center. Unquestionably, this event constitutes one of the most important
2009 Bank development landmarks.
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The initiative of opening up a branch office
in New York responds, principally, to the
purpose of meeting the needs of clients; who,
in a highly globalized world as today’s, are
becoming increasingly active in international
markets. Within this context, New York appears
as the unmatched business platform to serve the
international needs of the Bank’s clients.
It is especially attractive to clients to operate
with a Chilean bank or with a Chelan bank’s
branch office abroad, because it gives them a
sense of “proximity” and, on the other hand,
it enables following up clients’ operations
abroad, responding to their requirements, and,
ultimately, improving the Bank’s banking
services; which is currently the Bank’s principal
strategy, thus placing CorpBanca in the category
of an international bank.
Its operations began in an international
economic scenario that was beginning to appear
somewhat more favorable; i.e. the worse part
of the world financial crisis appeared to have
subsided; all of which turned out to be a clear
advantage, since it missed the kind of risk
exposure that could have come from lending and
investments initiated on the more severe phase
of the crisis; and, on the other hand, because
it began its normal borrowing and lending

operations during the third quarter of 2009, at
a time when the most important economies of
the world had already began to show signs of
recovery from the crisis.

purchasing operations, for which a plan of action
has been launched with banks and other New
York financial institutions that group the active
participants in this business segment.

The target market of the New York Branch
Office is constituted by the corporate and
company sector mainly oriented to the
foreign trade business (import and export
companies), Chilean companies or affiliates of
Chilean companies abroad as well as local and
international Financial Institutions. Within the
universe of natural persons, its objective market
is the Person Bank segment. It is worth noting
that with the purpose of providing a better
service to the Bank’s clients, in August 2009
the Bank created the Business Platform - New
York Branch Office, integrated by executives
specializing in the kind of products offered at
the branch office, whose main responsibility is to
support account executives and ensure a service
of excellence to clients.

Insofar as the anchoring (fondeo) of the
operations, the physical presence of CorpBanca
in New York permits the Bank to diversify
its sources of financing, not only because of
the natural anchoring obtained by checking
account holders, but also because of the access to
financing with institutional investors. Finally,
it enables us to expand the lines of credit with
correspondent banks, toward which purpose we
have enacted a specific plan of action.

Insofar as business is concerned, we expect
to strengthen foreign trade, both in order to
provide services to the Bank’s company segment
clients and to offer correspondent services to
Latin American and Asian banks. The Bank will
continue to pursue its strategy of participating
in syndicated loan schemes and trade-related

During 2009, we achieved those objectives
that the Bank had set itself out to accomplish
at the beginning the project; i.e. to complete
the branch office’s implementation process,
managing each area to be in a condition to meet
its respective requirements toward achieving
the overall objectives of the branch office and
structure a client base that would permit the
progressive consolidation of business activities
-both assets & liabilities- in order to strengthen
the growth of this branch office and the
generation of income.
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main assets

As of December 31, 2009, CorpBanca’s main headquarters are located
in the Corporate Building of CorpGroup, located in Rosario Norte 660,
Municipality of Las Condes, in Santiago; and it has branch offices of
CorpBanca and Banco Condell throughout the entire country. Additionally, it
has other offices mainly located in buildings in Huérfanos 1072, Bandera 206
and Bandera 341; all of them in the Municipality of Santiago Centro.
During 2009, the Bank opened up its Lo Castillo, Bilbao and Santa María
de Manquehue branch offices; it remodeled its Vallenar office, and opened its
La Dehesa branch office early in 2010.
Following is a list of the Bank’s network of branch offices, regardless of
whether the office space is owned or leased:
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Principales Activos
Main Assets

CorpBanca’s santiago
metropolitan region
branch office network

Alameda
Av. Libertador Bernardo
O’Higgins 2206
(2) 6875505
Apoquindo
Av. Apoquindo 4759
(2) 6875193
Bernardo O’Higgins
Av. Bernardo O’Higgins 1228
(2) 6875376
Bilbao
Bilbao 2036
(2) 6875115
Casa Matriz
Huérfanos 1072
(2) 6878000
El Bosque
El Bosque Norte 0137
(2) 6875259
El Cortijo
Av. Américo Vespucio Norte 2.700
(2) 6875981
El Golf
Av. Apoquindo 3500, loc. 2
(2) 6875466
Gran Avenida
Av. José Miguel Carrera 5120
(2) 6875517
Irarrázaval
Av. Irarrazaval 2615
(2) 6875970
La Dehesa
Av. La Dehesa 1201, loc. 104
(2) 6875601

La Reina
Av. Príncipe de Gales 7085
(2) 6875235
Lo Castillo
Av. Vitacura 3900
(2) 6875100
Maipú
Av. Pajaritos 1783
(2) 6875326
Ñuñoa
Av. Irarrázaval 3333
(2) 6875344
Orrego Luco
Av. Providencia 2051
(2) 6875950
Rosario Norte
Av. Rosario Norte 660,
loc. 102
(2) 6878000
Plaza Vespucio
Froilán Roa 7205,
loc.121- 124
(2) 6875650
Providencia
Av. Providencia 1422
(2) 6875409
Puente Alto
Concha y Toro 1149, loc. 59
(2) 6875673
San Bernardo
Arturo Prat 495
(2) 6875638
San Borja
Av. Libertador Bernardo
O’Higgins 288
(2) 6875173
San Joaquín
Av. Vicuña Mackenna 4860
(2) 6875300
Santa Elena
Av. Santa Elena 2340
(2) 6875435
Santa María de Manquehue
Av. Santa María 6926
(2) 6875151
Santiago 2000
Huérfanos 770-B
(2) 6876494
Suecia
Suecia 024
(2) 6875062
Vitacura
Av. Vitacura 6635
(2) 6875138

CorpBanca’s regional branch
office network

Arica
21 de Mayo 115
(58) 252323
Iquique
Av. Ignacio Serrano 280
(57) 514017
Iquique Zofri
(C.Aux.)
Recinto Zofri, loc. 7
(57) 411075
Antofagasta
Av. San Martín 2668
(55) 433001
Copiapó
Calle Chacabuco 481
(52) 212052
Vallenar
Av. Arturo Prat 1070
(51) 611358
La Serena
Balmaceda 540
(51) 554447
Coquimbo
Av. Aldunate 795
(51) 328328
Ovalle
Victoria 271
(53) 620975
Valparaíso
Av. Arturo Prat 737
(32) 2455522
Viña del Mar
Av. Ecuador 104
(32) 2455080
Viña del Mar II
Av. Libertad 1075
(32) 2450811
Rancagua
Independencia 699
(72) 232674
San Fernando
Manuel Rodríguez 840
(72) 717596
Curicó
Estado 370
(75) 319111

Talca
Uno Sur 1132
(71) 514946
Chillán
Constitución 550
(42) 434317
Concepción
Av. Bernardo O’Higgins 612
(41) 2925200
Barrio Universitario
Galería El Foro s/n Barrio
Universitario
(41) 2225634
El Trébol Autopista
Concepción 8671,
loc. B5
(41) 2483294
Base Naval
Av. Jorge Montt 102
(41) 2546069
Talcahuano
Av. Colón 657
(41) 2929121
Los Ángeles
Colón 398
(43) 322424
Temuco
Arturo Prat 743
(45) 914601
Valdivia
Av. Ramón Picarte 370
(63) 534656
Osorno
Manuel Antonio Matta 624
(64) 544708
Puerto Montt
Av. Urmeneta 541
(65) 354742
Punta Arenas
Av. Magallanes 944
(61) 244740

Banco Condell’s santiago
metropolitan region
branch office network

Agustinas
Agustinas 799
(2) 6875223
Ahumada
Ahumada 252
(2) 6875811
El Faro
Av. Apoquindo 6069, Local 9
(Apumanque).
(2) 6875590
Estación Central
Av. Libertador Bernardo
O'Higgins 3015
(2) 6875040
Estado
Estado 350
(2) 6875550
Gran Avenida
Av. José Miguel Carrera 5120
(2) 6875530
Huérfanos
Huérfanos 1109
(2) 6875390
Maipú
Av. Pajaritos 1783
(2) 6875324
Melipilla
Serrano 287
(2) 6875363

Moneda
Moneda 893
(2) 6875574
Ñuñoa
Irarrázaval 2440
(2) 2095261
Paseo Puente
Puente 731
(2) 6875691
Plaza Egaña
Irarrázaval 5612
(2) 6875095
Plaza Vespucio
Vicuña Mackenna 7110
Loc.24-25-26 Boulevard
(2) 6875030
Providencia
Av. 11 de Septiembre 2096
(2) 6875017
Puente Alto
Concha y Toro 286
(2) 6875002
San Bernardo
Eyzaguirre 670
(2) 6875420

banco Condell’s regional
branch office network

Arica
21 de Mayo 115
(58) 252796
Iquique
Tarapacá 503
(57) 529518
Calama
Almirante Latorre 1925
(55) 318024
Antofagasta Matta
Manuel Antonio Matta 2537
(55) 410721
Antofagasta Plaza
Arturo Prat 342
(55) 410516
Copiapó
Av. Chacabuco 481
(52) 210175
La Serena
Balmaceda 540
(51) 554465
Coquimbo
Aldunate 795
(51) 327787
Ovalle
Victoria 271
(53) 624165
La Calera
José Joaquín Pérez 174
(33) 333090
Los Andes
Esmeralda 286
(34) 343277
Quillota
Maipú 352
(33) 310957
San Felipe
Prat 177
(34) 512643
Viña del Mar I
Arlegui 176
(32) 455070
Viña del Mar II
Av. Valparaíso 477
(32) 2466230
Valparaíso
Cochrane 754
(32) 455540
Valparaíso II
Calle Condell 1632
(32) 2459270
Villa Alemana
Av. Valparaíso 680 local A
(32) 2450259
Quilpué
Portales 777
(32) 450200

San Antonio
Centenario 127
(35) 212916
Rancagua
Independencia 584
(72) 230802
San Fernando
Manuel Rodríguez 792
(72) 583902
Curicó
Estado 370
(75) 316700
Talca
Uno Sur 1132
(71) 514941
Linares
Independencia 634-A
(73) 214808
Chillán
Constitución 550
(42) 434327
Concepción I
Barros Arana 428
(41) 2928200
Concepción II
Barros Arana 757
(41) 2861337
Talcahuano
Colón 457
(41) 2929127
Los Ángeles
Colón 398 (43) 325860
Temuco
Arturo Prat 743
(45) 914630
Temuco II
Manuel Montt 822
(45) 911570
Villarrica
Camilo Henriquez 565
(45) 911561
Valdivia
Av. Picarte 370
(63) 534673
Osorno
Manuel Antonio
Matta 624 (64) 544720
Puerto Montt
Antonio Varas 647
(65) 351130
Coyhaique
Francisco Bilbao 204
(67) 237041
Punta Arenas
Av. Presidente Roca 845
(61) 730124

affiliate
companies

The Bank, inspired on its Service vocation, pretends, through these affiliate
companies, to develop financial services that altogether be capable of providing
integral assistance to its clients, meeting their multiple needs, supporting them in
their projects through the Bank’s group of companies, while helping to position it
in all banking segments and products.
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By FY-2009 closing, these
companies contributed final net
profits to CorpBanca totaling
CLP 12,122,402,681.

CorpBanca owns strategic long-term
financial service companies, which develop
activities that complement banking activities.
The Bank, inspired on its Service vocation,
pretends, through these affiliate companies,
to develop financial services that altogether
be capable of providing integral assistance
to its clients, meeting their multiple needs,
supporting them in their projects through
the Bank’s group of companies, while helping
to position it in all banking segments and
products. These affiliate companies are:
CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A. stock
brokerage company, CorpBanca Corredores de
Seguros S.A. insurance brokerage company,
CorpCapital Asesorías Financieras S.A.
financial consulting company, CorpCapital
Administradora General de Fondos S.A. general
fund management company, CorpCapital
Agencia de Valores S.A. securities agency, plus
SMU Corp S.A., and CorpLegal S.A.

Affiliate Companies
CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.:
This company is member of the Santiago
Stock Exchange and is registered before the
Superintendence for Securities & Insurance
Companies as stock broker. Its business object
is to intermediate securities on account of
third parties, as well as manage fixed-income
investment portfolios in foreign exchange
trading markets.
During FY-2009, this company generated profits
of CLP 3,381 million, which represented a
profitability of 17.34% over the invested capital.
As of December 31, 2009, the subscribed &
paid-in capital of CorpCapital Corredores de
Bolsa S.A. amounted to CLP 19,496 million.
On the other hand CorpBanca’s direct & indirect
shareholding of the company represented 100%
of its stock capital; an investment equivalent to
0.305% of the Bank’s total assets.

By FY-2009 closing, these companies
contributed final net profits to CorpBanca
totaling CLP 12,122,402,681.

board of directors
Board Member

Cristóbal Prado Fernández

Board Member

Cristián Canales Palacios

Board Member

Sergio Benavente Riobó

Board Member

José Francisco Sánchez Figueroa

General Manager

Cristián Donoso Larraín

137

Affiliate Companies

CorpBanca Corredores de Seguros S.A.: In line
with CorpBanca’s strategy of expanding the scope
of its financial services, CorpBanca Corredores de
Seguros S.A. offers a complete line of insurance
products. Many of these products complement
various banking services and loans provided by
the Bank, such as unemployment insurance linked
to personal loans, as well as insurance policies
linked to mortgage loans. CorpBanca Corredores
de Seguros S.A. also provides insurance coverage

policies not linked to credits to existing clients
and to the public at large.
During FY-2009, this affiliate company recorded
profits of CLP 4,832 million. CorpBanca’s
direct & indirect shareholding of the company
represented 100% of its stock capital. The
investment made in this company is equivalent
to 0.003% of the Bank’s total assets.

board of directors
President

Pablo de la Cerda Merino

Board Member

Oscar Cerda Urrutia

Board Member

Cristóbal Prado Fernández

Board Member

Julio Henríquez Banto

Board Member

Armando Ariño Joiro

General Manager

Roberto Vergara Kyling
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CorpBanca Corredores de
Seguros S.A. offers a complete
line of insurance products.
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CorpCapital Administradora General de Fondos
S.A.: This affiliate company complements the
services offered to CorpBanca’s clients, and its
function consists in managing its clients’ fund
assets in fixed and variable-income securities,
both in domestic as well as foreign markets.
During FY-2009, this company generated profits
of CLP 2,453 million, which represented a

profitability of 130.48% over the investment. As
of December 31, 2009, the subscribed & paid-in
capital of CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.
amounted to CLP 1,880 million. CorpBanca’s
direct & indirect shareholding of the company
represented 100% of its stock capital; an
investment equivalent to 0.0294% of the Bank’s
total assets.

board of directors
President

Pablo de la Cerda Merino

Board Member

Claudio Chamorro Carrizo

Board Member

Armando Ariño Joiro

Board Member

Jorge Max Palazuelos

Board Member

Oscar Cerda Urrutia

General Manager

Benjamín Epstein Numhauser

139

Affiliate Companies

The Bank, inspired on its
Service vocation, pretends,
through these affiliate companies, to develop financial
services that altogether be capable of providing
integral assistance to its clients.

CorpCapital Asesorías Financieras S.A.: Provides
a wide array of financial consulting services
to a variety of companies and institutions
including studies, debt rescheduling, mergers
& acquisitions, privatizations, and company
appraisals.

board of directors
President

Fernando Massú Tare

Board Member

Héctor Valdés Ruiz

Board Member

Claudio Chamorro Carrizo

General Manager

Roberto Baraona Undurraga

As of the closing of FY-2009, CorpCapital
Asesorías Financieras S.A. generated profits of
CLP 1,245 million. Its subscribed & paidin capital amounted to CLP 169million.
CorpBanca’s direct & indirect shareholding of
the company represented 100% of its stock
capital; an investment equivalent to 0.0026% of
the Bank’s total assets.
CorpLegal S.A.: Focuses exclusively in providing
legal services as required by CorpBanca, its
affiliates and clients.
During FY-2009, Corp Legal S.A. generated
net profits of CLP 212million. As of December
31, 2009, its subscribed & paid-in capital
amounted to CLP 106million. CorpBanca’s
direct & indirect shareholding of the company
represented 100% of its stock capital; an
investment equivalent to 0.0017% of the Bank’s
total assets.
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board of directors
President

Miguel Ángel Poduje Sapiain

Board Member

Julio Barriga Silva

Board Member

Mario Chamorro Carrizo

Board Member

Cristián Canales Palacios

General Manager

Gustavo Irarrázaval Tagle (s)
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CorpCapital Agencia de Valores S.A.:
Is a closed stock company incorporated
in November 2009, authorized by the
Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions to initiate operations; however it is
still in need of the authorization to be issued by
the Superintendence for Securities & Insurance
Companies in order to begin operating.

board of directors
President

Mario Chamorro Carrizo

Board Member

Cristóbal Prado Fernández

Board Member

Álvaro Barriga Oliva

General Manager

Pablo Solari González

Through this affiliate, the Bank will
develop business activities related to Wealth
Management. CorpBanca’s shareholding in this
company is 100%.
SMU Corp S.A.: Is a business support stock
company, whose shareholding is 51% in the
hands of CorpBanca, and 49% in those of SMU
S.A. The company was legally incorporated
via Resolution dated July 27, 2009 issued by
the Superintendent of Securities & Insurance
Companies, and it will commence its
operations during the year 2010. Through this
affiliate, the Bank will make inroads in the
business of issuing credit cards to be used at
those supermarkets that comprise the Unimarc
supermarket chain and also to be used at other
commercial establishments.

board of directors
President

Luis Morales Fernández

Board Member

Manuel José Concha Ureta

Board Member

Jorge Id Sánchez

Board Member

Cristóbal Prado Fernández

Board Member

Armando Ariño Joiro

General Manager

Luisa Astorino Morales
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stock trading

During 2009, the Bank shares traded by the Bank’s majority shareholders,
its board members, and its senior executives, were the following:
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stock trading
Year 2005

Neg No

Monthly Average Volume

First Quarter

3,737

7,095,175,134

Second Quarter

3,218

5,719,405,525

Third Quarter

3,127

5,314,861,895

Fourth Quarter

2,042

3,587,103,889

Neg No

Monthly Average Volume

First Quarter

2,456

5,791,998,407

Second Quarter

2,490

3,752,069,182

Third Quarter

1,799

3,646,053,361

Fourth Quarter

2,829

5,459,203,768

Neg No

Monthly Average Volume

First Quarter

3,015

7,737,594,827

Second Quarter

3,346

5,473,998,474

Third Quarter

3,506

8,250,424,389

Fourth Quarter

2,584

8,845,513,736

Neg No

Monthly Average Volume

First Quarter

2,272

6,493,283,378

Second Quarter

1,579

5,099,118,474

Third Quarter

1,254

3,431,876,532

Fourth Quarter

1,268

1,924,237,675

Neg No

Monthly Average Volume

First Quarter

1,452

8,403,438,643

Second Quarter

1,440

3,138,159,073

Third Quarter

1,390

3,846,440,619

Fourth Quarter

1,732

3,669,956,148

Year 2006

Year 2007

Year 2008

Year 2009
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Compañía e Inmobiliaria y de Inversiones SAGA Limitada,
controlled by board member, Sr. Álvaro Saieh Bendeck
Purchase date

Sale date

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

May 14th

3,279,769,354

2.87

9,412,938,046

July 14th

3,279,769,354

3.14

10,298,475,772

3,279,769,354

3.14

10,298,475,772

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

92,000,000

2.606

239,752,000

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

10,000,000

2.65

26,500,000

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

2,000,000

2.61

5,220,000

July 14th

Sif Inversiones S.A., controlled by board member, Jorge Selume Zaror
Purchase date

Sale date

January 16th

Armando Ariño Joiro, oDivision manager
Purchase date

Sale date

April 13th

Inversiones Normandie Limitada, controlled by Chamorro Carrizo
(manager, corpgroup interhold)
Purchase date

January 30th
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Sif Investments Limitada, controlled by board member, Jorge Selume Zaror
ADR Purchase date

ADR Sale date

Quantity

$ US Price

Total investment cost

January 16th

18,400

20.95

385,480

Somerville y Compañía Limitada, controlled by board member, Hernán Somerville Senn
Purchase option cost

Sale option

subscription date

subscription date

December 28

th

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

1,871,795

3.5

6,551,283

Inversiones Santa Verónica Limitada, controlled by board member, Hernán Somerville Senn
Purchase option cost

Sale option

subscription date

subscription date

December 29th

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

39,590,834

3.5

138,567,919

Quantity

Price

Total investment cost

3,575,342

3.5

12,513,697

Poduje Abogados S.A., controlled by, Miguel Ángel Poduje
Purchase option cost

Sale option

subscription date

subscription date

December 31

st
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relevant fact

During FY-2009, CorpBanca reported the following essential facts:
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The Board of Directors agreed
to propose to the alluded
Shareholders’ Meeting to
establish a dividend distribution
policy consisting in distributing
at least 50% of all profits.

1. In the Board of Directors Meeting of
January 27, 2009 it was agreed to communicate
to the public, as an essential fact, a notification
for an Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting
to be held on February 26, 2009, in order to deal
with subject matters of its incumbency; among
others, should such Shareholders’ Meeting
approve the Company’s Financial Statements, to
rule about the Board of Directors’ proposal to
distribute 100% of the profits obtained during
FY-2008, amounting to CLP56,310,425,238.
Likewise, and considering the changes derived
from the implementation of IFRS accounting
norms, the Board of Directors agreed to propose
to the alluded Shareholders’ Meeting to establish
a dividend distribution policy consisting
in distributing at least 50% of all profits,
calculating them as all the profits obtained
during a fiscal year, discounting an equivalent
sum permitting to maintain the company’s
capital constant in real terms.
2. On September 2, 2009 it was reported as
an essential fact that via public deed dated
September 2, 2009, the Bank legally incorporated
the business support company denominated SMU
Corp S.A., with 51% shareholding by CorpBAnca
and 49% shareholding by SMU S.A., and whose
sole line of business shall be to issue, operate
and manage credit cards to be used for granting
credits to Unimarc’s clients through their own
stores; company that will also be entitled to
gather and evaluate background information
about such clients.

The Articles of Incorporation were authorized
by the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions through a letter dated July 27,
2009; it was approved by the Bank’s Board
Members’ Committee meeting of August 18,
2009, and by its Board of Directors meeting of
September 1, 2009.
3. On September 8, 2009, it was reported
as an essential fact that the Bank’s Board of
Directors, in an extraordinary meeting held on
that same date, unanimously agreed to issue a
notification calling for an Extraordinary General
Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on October
15, 2009, for it to rule regarding the reduction
in number of the Company’s Board Members
from 11 to 9, while increasing the number of
Alternate Board Members from 1 to 2, and to
amend the Company’s Bylaws to that effect,
while also appointing such 9 board members
and 2 alternate board members. Likewise, to
authorize the sale of Bank shares of stock owned
by the Bank, equivalent to 2.5% of its stock
capital, amounting to 5,672,732,264 shares,
to be offered -on a preferred option basis- to
shareholders in two periods; the first in 30 days
and the second in 45 days.
The alluded Shareholders’ Meeting will also be
asked to approve the adequacy of the Bylaws to
the pertinent articles of the Banking Law and
other legislation.
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it was reported as an
essential fact that the Bank has
issued and allocated bonds in
international markets,
in the amount of USD 67,425,000, pursuant to the norms
of Regulation “S” of the US Securities Market Law.

4. At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on October 15, 2009, it was decided to
reduce the number of Board Members from 11
to 9 and to increase the number of Alternate
Board Members from 1 to 2. Additionally, the
Meeting elected the Board of Directors, which is
now integrated as follows:
Board Members: Messrs. Álvaro Saieh Bendeck,
Jorge Andrés Saieh Guzmán, Fernando Massú
Tare, Fernando Aguad Dagach, Julio Barriga
Silva, Brian O’Neill, Segismund SchullinZeuthen Serrano, Jorge Selume Zaror and
Hernán Somerville Senn.
Alternate Board Members: Messrs. Juan Rafael
Gutiérrez Ávila and Héctor Valdés Ruiz.
5. On November 16, 2009 it was reported as an
essential fact that by virtue of public deed dated
November 16, 2009, the Bank incorporated
its affiliate company, denominated CorpCapital
Agencia de Valores S.A., securities agency. The
affiliate’s sole line of business shall be to execute
all such acts, contracts and operations incumbent
upon securities agents, pursuant to the norms
currently in effect and those that might become
effective subsequently, especially, article 24 of
Law N° 18,045 about the Securities Market.

6. On November 20, 2009, it was reported
as an essential fact that terms & conditions
were agreed to issue and allocated bonds in
international markets, for the total amount of
USD 115,119,000 to be allocated on November
30, 2009 pursuant to the norms of Regulation
“S” of the US Securities Market. Its date of
expiration shall be March 1, 2010. Its rate of
interest shall be 0.56219% per year.
Such securities will not be registered with
the Securities Register carried by Chile’s
Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions, nor with the US Securities &
Exchange Commission. Consequently, they
shall not be offered nor sold in the United
States of America or to persons of that country,
nor will they be the object of public bidding in
Chile. Attached is a summary fact sheet of such
bond issue.
7. On November 24, 2009, it was reported as an
essential fact that the Bank’s Board of Directors,
in its Extraordinary Meeting held on that date
and by the powers conferred upon it by the
General Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
of October 15, 2009 to sell 5,672,732,264
Bank shares, agreed to set the price for each
Bank share to be sold by the Bank during the
preferred option process, both in the first 30-day
preferred option process s well as in the second
45-day process, counted from the ending date of
the first preferred option process, in the sum of
CLP 3.50 (three point fifty local legal currency
CLP) per share.

The timetable that was agreed to be followed for
the sale of such Bank shares is the following: (i)
Publication ordered by article 104 of the Stock
Company Regulations, establishing the rights of
shareholders with respect to those registered in
the Company’s Shareholder Register 5 working
days prior to the date -November 26, 2009in which they may exercise their rights; (ii)
Publication date of the preferred option bids for
the sale of Bank shares: December 6, 2009; (iii)
Deadline for the first preferred option bidding
period: January 4, 2010; (iv) Beginning date
for the second preferred option bidding period:
January 5, 2010; (v) Deadline for the second
preferred option bidding period: February 8,
2010. The pertinent publications must be made
in La Tercera newspaper.
8. On December 10, 2009, it was reported as
an essential fact that the Bank has issued and
allocated bonds in international markets, in the
amount of USD 67,425,000, pursuant to the
norms of Regulation “S” of the US Securities
Market Law. Its date of expiration shall be
March 15, 2010. The rate of interest shall be of
0.55519% per year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To CORPBANCA’s
shareholders:
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CORPBANCA and affiliates as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, the opening consolidated financial statement as of January 1, 2008 and the corresponding statements of result, of
integral results, of changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flow for the years ending onDecember 31, 2009 and 2008. The
preparation of such financial statements (which include their corresponding notes), is the responsibility of CORBANCA’s
Management. Our responsibility consists in issuing an opinion about these financial statements based on our own audits.
Our audits were performed pursuant to auditing norms generally accepted in Chile. Such norms require that we plan out
and perform our work with the objective of achieving a reasonable degree of certainty that the financial statements are
exempt of significant incorrect representations. An audit includes the examination, based on proof, of evidence supporting
the amounts and information shown in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes an evaluation of the
accounting principles used and of significant estimates made by the Bank’s Management, as well as an evaluation of the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We consider that our audits are a reasonable basis on which to
found our opinion.
In our opinion, the mentioned consolidated financial statements reasonably present in all its significant aspects, the financial
situation of CORPBANCA and affiliates as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and as of January 1, 2008, the results of its
operations, the integral results, the changes in shareholders’ equity and the cash flows for the years ending as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, pursuant to Accounting Norms issued by Chile’s Superintendence for Banks & Financial Institutions.
As stated under note 2 of the consolidated financial statements, on November 9, 2007, the Superintendence for Banks
& Financial Institutions issued a new “Compendium of Accounting Norms” that contain the accounting and reporting
standards for the Banks, which were applied to these effects as of January 1, 2009 reformulating for comparative effects the
financial statements of 2008 and the opening balance sheet.

January 26, 2010

Juan Carlos Jara M.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the years ending on December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the opening balances as of January 1, 2008
(Figures are stated in million pesos - MM$)
Notes

12.31.2009
MM$

12.31.2008
MM$

01.01.2008
MM$

ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits

5

110,331

81,326

68,706

Operations with clearance underway

5

95,796

117,703

53,453

Negotiable securities

6

76,156

85,105

152,847

Buyback and security loan contracts

7

51,970

50,514

55,438

Financial derivative contracts

8

126,140

209,482

34,055

Owed by banks

9

86,220

37,671

82,708

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients

10

4,915,706

4,881,790

3,900,207

Investment securities available for sale

11

737,162

576,478

41,366

Investment securities until maturity

11

-

-

-

Investments in companies

12

3,583

3,699

3,699

Intangibles

13

13,630

12,252

13,916

Fixed assets

14

55,212

51,231

47,588

Current taxes

15

-

6,488

5,554

Deferred taxes

15

19,841

13,354

12,064

Other assets

16

87,712

76,886

59,018

6,379,459

6,203,979

4,530,619

337,099

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits and other sight liabilities

17

496,270

357,902

Operations with clearance underway

5

64,854

86,176

23,305

Buyback and security loan contracts

7

465,513

351,471

100,078
2,410,769

Deposits and other term deposits

17

3,316,045

3,350,742

Financial derivative contracts

8

114,703

195,608

34,237

Liabilities with banks

18

362,403

492,606

358,582

Issued debt securities

19

935,219

765,172

702,426
29,850

Other financial liabilities

19

26,853

47,394

Current taxes

15

7,831

-

-

Deferred taxes

15

15,644

10,606

10,049

Provisions

20

53,118

33,204

30,953

Other liabilities

21

17,471

18,552

15,387

5,875,924

5,709,433

4,052,735

Capital

326,038

324,039

314,398

Reserves

25,054

(2,178)

24,651

Valuation accounts

(6,557)

1,018

(2)

159,000

171,667

138,837

116,445

113,312

164,361

85,109

86,510

-

(42,554)

(28,155)

(25,524)

503,535

494,546

477,884

-

-

-

503,535

494,546

477,884

6,379,459

6,203,979

4,530,619

TOTAL LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Attributable to bank equity holders:

Withheld profits:

  Withheld profits from previous fiscal years (FY)
  Fiscal year profit
Minus: Minimum dividend provision
Minority interest

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED income statements
For the years ending on December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Figures are stated in million pesos - MM$)
Notes

12.31.2009
MM$

12.31.2008
MM$

Income on interest & Restatements

24

314,115

560,893

Expenses on interest & Restatements

24

(120,727)

(346,717)

193,388

214,176

Net Income on interest & Restatements
Income on commissions

25

53,128

54,865

Expenses on commissions

25

(9,867)

(12,813)

43,261

42,052

26

4,563

54,997

Net exchange rate profit (loss)

27

49,635

(42,887)

Other operating income

32

5,087

7,833

295,934

276,171

(68,855)

(54,996)

227,079

221,175

Net income on commissions
Net profit on financial operations

Total operating income
Credit risk provisions

28

NET OPERATING INCOME
Personnel remunerations & expenses

29

(65,733)

(57,716)

Overhead

30

(44,592)

(54,651)

Depreciation & amortization

31

(6,310)

(6,832)

Deterioration

31

(144)

(59)

Total operating expenses

32

(9,609)

(6,810)

(126,388)

(126,068)

100,691

95,107

445

262

101,136

95,369

(16,027)

(8,859)

85,109

86,510

85,109

86,510

-

-

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING RESULT
Result of investments in companies

12

Result before income tax
Income tax

15

YEAR’S PROFIT
Attributable to:
Bank equity holders
Minority interest
Profit per share attributable to bank equity holders: (stated in pesos)
Basic profit

23

0.385

0.382

Diluted profit

23

0.385

0.382

Notes N°1 to N°39 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED Integral income statements
for the years ending on December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Figures are stated in million pesos-MM$)

YEAR’S PROFIT

12.31.2009
MM$

12.31.2008
MM$

85,109

86,510

(7,580)

1,229

OTHER INTEGRAL RESULTS
Investment securities available for sale
    Exchange rate fluctuation effect - New York Branch

(1,284)

-

(8,864)

1,229

1,289

(209)

Total other integral results

(7,575)

1,020

INDIVIDUAL INTEGRAL RESULT OF THE YEAR

77,534

87,530

77,534

87,530

Other integral results before income tax
Income tax on other integral results

Attributable to:
Bank equity holders
Minority interest

-

-

Notes N°1 to N°39 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
for the years ending on December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Figures are stated in million pesos MM$, except when stating the number of shares)
Valuation accounts
Number of shares
Million

Shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2007
Distribution of previous year’s result
Sub total

Capital
MM$

Reserves
MM$

Investment securities
available for sale
MM$

Income tax on other
integral results
MM$

Conversion
difference
MM$

226,909

314,398

2,679

(2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

226,909

314,398

2,679

(2)

-

-

Effect of first application of accounting change net of
deferred tax

-

-

21,972

-

-

-

Restatement Circular N°3443 - Minimum dividends
2007

-

-

-

-

-

-

226,909

314,398

24,651

(2)

-

-

Shareholders’ equity as of January 2008
Dividends paid

-

-

-

-

-

-

(5,673)

(17,188)

-

-

-

-

Provision for minimum dividends

-

-

-

-

-

-

Integral result of the period

-

-

-

1,229

(209)

-

Restatement Circular N° 3.474 - Capital
appreciation replenishment

-

26,829

(26,829)

-

-

-

221,236

324,039

(2,178)

1,227

(209)

-

Distribution of previous year’s result

-

-

-

-

-

-

Monetary correction replenishment 2008

-

-

27,067

-

-

-

221,236

324,039

24,889

1,227

(209)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

618

1,999

-

-

-

-

Shares acquired by the Bank

Shareholders’ equity as of December 31 2008

Shareholders’ equity as of January 1 2009
Dividends paid
Provision for minimum dividends
Sale of bank-issued shares
Goodwill (greater sale value of shares)

-

-

165

-

-

-

Integral result of the period

-

-

-

(7,580)

1,289

(1,284)

221,854

326,038

25,054

(6,353)

1,080

(1,284)

Shareholders’ equity as of December 31 2009

Notes N°1 to N°39 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Withheld profits
Withheld profits from previous
fiscal years (FY)
MM$

Fiscal year profit
MM$

Provision for minimum dividends
MM$

Total attributable to equity holders
MM$

Minority interest
MM$

Total Shareholders’ equity
MM$

116,550

51,049

-

484,674

-

484,674

51,049

(51,049)

-

-

-

-

167,599

-

-

484,674

-

484,674

(3,238)

-

-

18,734

-

18,734

-

-

(25,524)

(25,524)

-

(25,524)

164,361

-

(25,524)

477,884

-

477,884

(51,049)

-

25,524

(25,525)

-

(25,525)

-

-

-

(17,188)

-

(17,188)

-

-

(28,155)

(28,155)

-

(28,155)

-

86,510

-

87,530

-

87,530

-

-

-

-

-

-

113,312

86,510

(28,155)

494,546

-

494,546

86,510

(86,510)

-

-

-

-

(27,067)

-

-

-

-

-

172,755

-

(28,155)

494,546

-

494,546

(56,310)

-

28,155

(28,155)

-

(28,155)

-

-

(42,554)

(42,554)

-

(42,554)

-

-

-

1,999

-

1,999

-

-

-

165

-

165

-

85,109

-

77,534

-

77,534

116,445

85,109

(42,554)

503,535

-

503,535
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
For the fiscal years comprised between January 1 and December 31 of 2009 and 2008
(Figures are stated in million pesos - MM$)
12.31.2009
MM$

12.31.2008
MM$

101,136

95,369

6,310

6,832

82,071

66,031

1,551

-

FLOW GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES:
Fiscal year profit before income tax
Charges (credits) to results that do not imply cash movement:
Depreciation and amortization
Provisions for credits, accounts receivable and other
Provisions and write-offs of goods received in payment
Contingency provisions

3,948

884

Market value adjustment of investments & derivatives

3,619

(9,221)

(193,388)

(214,176)

(43,261)

(42,052)

Net Income on interest & Restatements
Net income on commissions
Net foreign exchange profit (loss)  

(49,635)

42,887

Other charges that do not imply cash movement

(21,989)

(17,021)

(109,638)

(70,467)

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients and banks

(82,465)

(690,813)

Buyback and security loan contracts

(18,494)

582

11,316

35,996

(120,228)

(560,389)

3,433

(14,807)

Subtotals

Negotiable securities
Investment securities available for sale
Other assets and liabilities
Deposits and other term deposits

94,241

981,802

Deposits and other sight liabilities

138,368

21,729

Bonds for buyback contracts and security loans

114,148

262,580

445

262

Dividends perceived from investments in companies
Foreign loans
Foreign loan payments
Net increase (decrease) of other debt with banks
Other loans obtained
Payment of other loans obtained
Net positive (negative) flow originated by operating activities
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701,452

241,562

(737,194)

(326,232)

(53,738)

149,987

-

12,716

(17,917)

(9,884)

(76,271)

34,624
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12.31.2009
MM$

12.31.2008
MM$

(11,056)

(9,470)

-

84

FLOW ORIGINATED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
Fixed asset purchases
Fixed asset sales
Sale of goods received in payment or awarded
Negative net flow originated by investment activities

2,975

776

(8,081)

(8,610)

FLOW ORIGINATED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issued debt securities

254,528

94,894

Redemption of debt securities issued

(56,162)

(86,995)

-

(17,953)

2,164

-

Payment of shares acquired by the Bank
Sale of Bank-issued shares
Dividends paid

(56,310)

(55,592)

144,220

(65,646)

YEAR’S POSITIVE (NEGATIVE) NET FLOW

59,868

(39,632)

Initial cash and cash equivalent balance

181,696

221,328

Final cash and cash equivalent balance

241,564

181,696

Net variation of cash and cash equivalent

59,868

(39,632)

Positive (negative) net flow originated by investment activities

Notes 1 through 39 of the consolidated income statements issued by the external Deloitte auditors are
shown separately in the attached CD, which is an integral part of the present Annual Report.

Notes N°1 to N°39 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008
Nota 1.
Main Accounting Criteria Used
Corporate information
Corpbanca is a banking corporation organized
pursuant to the laws of the Republic of Chile
that provides a broad spectrum of general
banking services to its clients, who are
from natural persons to large corporations.
Corpbanca and its affiliates (hereinafter jointly
referred to as the “Bank” or “Corpbanca”) offer
commercial and consumer banking services,
including factoring, collections, leasing,
securities and insurance brokerage, mutual
funds and management of investment funds
and bank investments.

-provided they do not contradict its instructionsthey must abide by the generally accepted
accounting criteria that correspond to the
technical norms issued by Chile’s Accountant
Trade Union (Colegio de Contadores de Chile
A.G.) coinciding with the international financial
reporting standards (IFRS/NIIF) agreed by
the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). In case of discrepancies between the
accounting principles and the accounting criteria
issued by the SBIF (Compendium of Accounting
Norms), the latter shall prevail.
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Next we describe the main accounting policies
adopted in preparing these financial statements.
a) Consolidation bases

Corpbanca’s transition date is January 1, 2008.
The Bank prepared its opening balance under
these norms as of such date. Consequently, the
date of adoption of the new norms by the Bank
and its affiliates is January 1, 2009.

Furnished information
The present Consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared in accordance with the
Compendium of Accounting Norms issued
by the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions (SBIF), the regulatory agency that
according to Article 15 of the General Banking
Law establishes that, pursuant to the legal
provisions, banks must apply the accounting
criteria issued by that Superintendence and in
all such matters not specifically covered by it

The Notes to the financial statements contain
information additional to that submitted in the
State of Financial Situation, Income Statements,
Integral Income Statements, and Statement of
Changes in Net Shareholders’ equity, and Cash
Flow Statement. These statements provide a
narrative description of such statements in a
clear, reliable and comparable manner.

Note 2 of the financial statements, “Accounting
Changes” submits a conciliation between the
balances of the balance sheet at the opening and
closing of the fiscal year ending as of December
31, 2008 and the corresponding statements of
income generated during such year and that,
therefore, they are shown in the Bank’s financial
statements as corresponding to fiscal year 2008;
reason why the figures included in the attached
financial statements for the year 2008, differ
from those reported in the previous fiscal year.

The present Consolidated Financial Statements
include the separate (individual) financial
statements of the Bank and of the various
companies that participate in the consolidation
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and include
the Restatements and reclassifications necessary
to homogenize the accounting policies and
valuation criteria applied by the Bank, pursuant
to the norms stipulated in the Compendium of
Accounting Norms issued by the SBIF.
The consolidated group is integrated by
Corpbanca, its affiliates and the New York
Branch, which are identified below:
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(direct and indirect)
Shareholding
2009
%

2008
%

CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpCapital Administradora General de Fondos S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpCapital Asesorías Financieras S.A.1

100.00

100.00

CorpBanca Corredores de Seguros S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpLegal S.A.1

100.00

100.00

CorpCapital Agencia de Valores S.A.

100.00

-

CorpBanca Sucursal de Nueva York

100.00

-

1

The company, Corp Capital Agencia de Valores
S.A., whose business purpose is to engage
in securities intermediation operations, as
securities agent, was legally incorporated n
November 16, 2009.
The New York Branch will begin operating
officially on May 4, 2009.
All the balances and significant transactions
between the Bank, its affiliates and the New
York Branch have been eliminated from
the consolidation.
For consolidation purposes, the financial
statements of the New York Branch were
converted to Chilean pesos at the exchange rate
of $507.52 per USD1 as of December 31, 2009
($637.44 per USD1 as of December 31, 2008),
pursuant to IFRS/NIIF International
Financial Reporting System (IFRS/NIIF, in
its Spanish acronym) norm N°21, related
to the valuation of foreign investments in
economically stable countries.
1 Companies regulated by the Superintendence for Banks &
Financial Institutions (SBIF, in its Spanish acronym). The other
companies are regulated by the Superintendence for Securities &
Insurance Companies (SVS, in its Spanish acronym).

virtue of public deed dated September 2, 2009;
Corpbanca’s shareholding in this company is
equivalent to 51% of its capital. As of the date
of issue of the present financial statements,
this entity is in the process of paying-in its
committed capital.
The affiliates’ assets and operating income, net of
consolidation adjustments, represent 1.7% and
8.2%, respectively, of all assets and operating
income consolidated as of December 31, 2009
(1.6% and 7.7% en 2008, respectively).
b) Operating segments
Corpbanca provides financial information
by operating segment with the purpose of
identifying and disclosing -in the Notes to the
Financial Statements- the financial nature and
effect of its business activities and the economic
environments in which it operates, pursuant
to the provisions of IFRS/NIIF 8, referred to
Operating segments.
The objective of that norm is for the Bank to
provide information about the different types of
business activities in which it participates and
thus help Financial Statement users:
• Better understand the Bank’s performance;
• Better evaluate its future cash projections; and
• Better judge the Bank as a whole.
In order to meet the provisions of IFRS/NIIF
N°8, the following are the segments identified
by Corpbanca whose results are the base used by
Senior Management and the Board of Directors
to analyze the bank’s performance and make
operating, financing and investment decisions:

SMU Corp S.A. is a bank business support
company that was legally incorporated by
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The most objective and
habitual reference of the
reasonable value of a
given asset or liability is the
price at which it would be
paid in an organized and
transparent market (“Posted
price” or “Market price”).

Commercial banking:

c) Functional currency

b.1 Large companies and Cooperatives, includes
a full range of financial products & services
for companies with annual sales over
USD10 million. Financial products include
Commercial loans, working-capital lines
of credit, commercial financing, service
payments, and short-term deposits and others.

The Bank has defined the Chilean Peso as it’s
functional and presentation currency. This is the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Bank operates. Consequently,
all balances and transactions denominated
in currencies other than Chilean Pesos are
considered as denominated in “foreign currency”.

b.2 Companies, includes a full range of financial
products & services for companies with
annual sales under USD10 million. Leasing
and factoring have been included in this
business segment.

The Bank converts the accounting records
of its New York Branch to Chilean Pesos
from US dollars according to the instructions
established by the Superintendence for Banks
& Financial Institutions, which are consistent
with International Accounting Norm N°21. All
the amounts of the Income Statement and of the
Financial Statement are converted into Chilean
Pesos according to the rate of foreign exchange
indicated in Note 1 d).

Mass banking:
b.3 Traditional and Private banking offers, among
other products, checking accounts, consumer
loans, credit cards and mortgage loans for
medium and high-income segments.
b.4 Lower income mass banking, which
corresponds to Bancondell, offers among
other products, consumer loans, credit cards
and mortgage loans for medium-low and
low-income segments.
International treasury:
b.5 Includes mainly treasury activities such as
financial management, funds & liquidity, as
well as international businesses.

d) Foreign currency
According to the New Compendium of
Accounting Norms and pursuant to NIC 29
“Financial Information in Hyperinflationary
Economies”, monetary corrections will be
applied only when the entity’s functional
currency should correspond to the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy (understood to be an
economy with over 100% inflation in 3 years).
Given the reality of the Chilean economy, the
latter does not meet such previously described
requirements, reason why it is not necessary for
the Bank to apply monetary corrections.

Non-banking financial services:
b.6 These are services provided by the affiliates,
which include insurance brokerage,
financial consulting, asset management and
investment trading services.
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The balances of the financial statements of the
consolidated entities whose functional currency
is other than the Chilean Peso are converted into
the presentation currency as follows:
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d.1 Assets & liabilities, by applying the rate of
foreign currency exchange as of December
31, 2009 y 2008.
d.2 Income & expenses and cash flows, by
applying the rate of foreign currency
exchange as of the date of each transaction.
d.3 Net equity, at the historical rates of foreign
currency exchange.
The exchange differences produced upon
converting into Chilean pesos the functional
currency balances of the consolidated entities
whose functional currency is other than the Peso,
are recorded as a “Conversion difference” under
the Item denominated “Valuation accounts”,
until the element to which they correspond is
duly dropped out of the balance sheet; at which
time they are recorded under results.
The amount of net foreign exchange profits and
losses includes an acknowledgment of the effects
of the fluctuations of the rate of foreign currency
exchange over foreign-currency-denominated
assets & liabilities in current and future
transactions performed by the Bank.
Foreign currency assets & liabilities are presented
at their peso-equivalent value, calculated at the
rate of foreign currency exchange of $507.52 per
USD1 as of December 31, 2009 ($637.44 per
USD1 as of December 31, 2008).
The balance of MM$49,635 for the fiscal
year ending on ending on December 31,
2009, corresponding to net exchange profit
shown in the Statement of Income (exchange
loss of MM$42,887 in 2008), includes an
acknowledgment of the effects of the fluctuation
of the rate of foreign currency exchange over
foreign-currency-denominated assets & liabilities

or restatable (readjustable) for inflation by the
rate of foreign currency exchange and the result
obtained from the Bank’s exchange operations.
e) Asset & liability valuation criteria
The criteria for measuring the assets & liabilities
recorded in the attached financial statement are
the following:
• Assets & liabilities measured at their
amortized costs:
Amortized cost is understood to be the
purchase cost of a given asset minus the
incremental costs (plus or minus, as the
case might be) of the part systematically
charged to the profit & loss accounts of the
difference between the initial amount and
the corresponding reimbursement value
upon expiration.
In the case of financial assets, the amortized
cost includes, additionally, value corrections
motivated by whichever deterioration they
might have experienced.
In the case of securities, the part that is
systematically charged to the profit & loss
accounts is recorded using the effective rate
method. The effective interest method is that
type of updating that equals the value of a
given security to all the total estimated cash
flows on all items throughout its residual life.

value of a given asset or liability is the price
at which it would be paid in an organized
and transparent market (“Posted price” or
“Market price”).
In the absence of a market price toward
determining the reasonable amount for a
given asset or liability, in order to establish
its reasonable value the Bank resorts to
that established in recent transactions of
analogous securities.
In those cases in which it is not possible
to determine the reasonable value of a
financial asset or liability, it is valued at its
amortized cost.
The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis of amortized cost,
except for:
• Derivative financial securities are
measured at reasonable value.
• Assets available for sale are measured at
reasonable value.
• Negotiable instruments are measured at
reasonable value.
Certain fixed assets (Real Estate Property) were
measured at reasonable value when Senior
Management has considered estimating the
value of such assets and considering such value as
cost assigned for the first adoption.
f) Negotiable securities

• Assets measured at reasonable value:
Reasonable value is understood to be an asset
or liability on a given date, at the amount
by which such asset could be exchanged
and such liability settled, on that date
between two parties, acting independently
and with all the information available,
freely and prudently. The most objective
and habitual reference of the reasonable

Negotiable securities correspond to securities
acquired with the intention of generating profit
by way of short-term price fluctuations or
through intermediation margins or included in a
portfolio governed by short-term profit taking.
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Negotiable securities are valued at their
reasonable value according to market prices or
valuations obtained from the use of models as
of the closing of the balance sheet. Profits or
losses originating from adjustments for valuing
them at reasonable value, as well as the results
of the negotiation activities and interest and
Restatements accrued are reported as “Profit
(loss) net of financial operations”
All purchases and sales of negotiable securities
deliverable within the term established by
regulations or by market conventions are
acknowledged as of their date of negotiation,
which is the date in which the purchase or sale of
the asset is committed.

acknowledged with charge or credit to equity
accounts. When such investments are sold or
deteriorated, the amount of their reasonable value
Restatements accumulated in the equity accounts
is moved to results and is reported under the item
“Profit (loss) net of financial operations”.
Investments at maturity are registered at their
cost value plus interest and any Restatements
accrued, minus any deterioration provisions set
up, when their recorded amount is higher than
their estimated recovery amount.
Interest and Restatements of Investments
at maturity and of Securities available for
negotiation are included under the item “Income
on interest & Restatements”.

g) Investment securities
Investment securities are classified in two
categories: Investments at maturity and
Securities available for negotiation.
The Investments at maturity category, includes
only those securities that the Bank has the
capacity and intention of keeping until their
date of maturity. All other Investment securities
as considered as available for sale.
Investment securities are initially acknowledged
at cost, which includes transaction costs.
Securities available for negotiation are
subsequently valued at their reasonable value
according to market prices or valuations
obtained from the use of models. Not
materialized profits or losses originated from
the change of their reasonable value are
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Those Investment securities that are subject of
accounting hedge are restated according to the
hedging accounting rules.
Purchases and sales of Investment securities
deliverable within established regulatory or
market terms and conditions, are acknowledged
on the date of negotiation that commits the
purchase or sale of the asset.
The Bank has evaluated its portfolio classified
under the item, “Investment securities
available for sale”, to verify whether there
are deterioration indicators. Such evaluation
includes an economic evaluation as well as the
intention and capacity to manage and keep
these investments until their maturity. On
the basis of Management’s evaluation, it is
considered that these investments do not show
evidence of deterioration.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank
does not keep an “Investment securities at
maturity” portfolio.
h) Financial derivative contracts
Those financial derivative contracts that include
foreign currency and UF forwards, rate of
interest futures, currency and rate of interest
swaps and other financial derivative securities,
are initially acknowledged in the balance sheet
at their cost (including transaction costs) and
are subsequently valued at their reasonable
value. Their reasonable value is obtained from
market prices, cash flow discount models, and
options valuation models, as the case might
be. Derivative contracts are reported as an asset
when their reasonable value is positive and as
a liability when it is negative, under the item
“Financial derivative contracts”.
At the time of executing a derivative contract,
it must be designated by the Bank as a
derivative negotiable security or for the purse
of accounting hedge.
The changes to the reasonable value of financial
derivative contracts that are kept for negotiation
are included under the item “Profit (loss) net of
financial operations” in the Result Statement.
If the derivative security is classified for the
purposes of accounting hedge, it may be: (1)
a hedge against the final reasonable value of
existing assets or liabilities, or else (2) a hedge
against cash flows related to existing assets or
liabilities or expected transactions. A hedge
relation for the purposes of accounting hedge,
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must meet all the following conditions: (a) at
the moment of initiation a initiating the hedge
relation, such hedge relation has been formally
documented; (b) it is expected for the hedge to
be highly effective; (c) the effectiveness of the
hedge can be measured in a reasonable manner;
and (d) the hedge is highly effective regarding
the risk hedged, on a continued manner
throughout the entire hedge relation.
Certain transactions with derivates, which
are not eligible to be accounted for as hedge
derivatives, are treated and reported as
negotiable derivatives, even though they provide
an effective hedge in managing risk positions.
When a derivative hedges against exposure to
changes in the reasonable value of an existing
asset or liability item, the latter is recorded at
its reasonable value in relation to the specific
risk hedged. Profits or losses stemming from
reasonable value measurements, both of the
hedged item and the hedge derivative, are
acknowledged with effect on the year’s results.

accumulated effect of the valuation of the firm
commitment/exposure recorded in the general
balance sheet.
When a derivative hedges the exposure to
changes in the cash flows of existing assets or
liabilities, or expected transactions, the effective
portion of the changes in the reasonable value
with respect to the risk hedged is registered in
the equity. Any ineffective portion is directly
acknowledged in the year’s results. The amounts
directly registered under equity are registered
in the results of the same periods in which the
hedged assets or liabilities affect the results.
i) Acknowledgement of income and expenses
Below there is a summary of the most significant
criteria used by the Bank in acknowledging its
revenue and expenses:
i.1 Interest and expenses from interest and
subsumed concepts

Dividends received from investments in
companies are acknowledged in the result upon
the emergence of the right to receive them,
and they are recorded under item; “Results of
investments in companies”.
i.2 Commissions, professional fees and
subsumed concepts
Income and expenses for commissions and
professional fees are acknowledged in the
Consolidated Statement of Results applying
different criteria depending on their nature. The
most important of them are:
Those that stem from transactions or services
prolonged in time are acknowledged during the
lifetime of such transactions or services.
Those that respond to a singular event, are
acknowledged upon the production of the act
originating them
i.3 Income and non-financial expenses

If the hedged item in a reasonable value hedge
is a final commitment/exposure, the changes
of the reasonable value of the commitment/
exposure with respect to the risk hedged are
recorded as assets or liabilities with effect in
the year’s results.
The profits or losses stemming from reasonable
value measurements of the hedge derivative
are acknowledged with effect on the year’s
results. When an asset or liability is acquired
as a result of the commitment/exposure, the
initial acknowledgement of the acquired asset
or liability is restated in order to incorporate the

Generally, income and expenses from interest and
concepts subsumed under them are acknowledged
accounting-wise based on their accrual period, by
applying the effective interest method.

Are acknowledged accounting-wise according to
the accrual criterion.
i.4 Commissions in formalizing loans

Nevertheless, when a debt security is considered
to be deteriorated individually or is integrated
in the mass of those that suffer deterioration
because of expired prices 3 months old or older,
the acknowledgement in the consolidated loss
and profit account as well as the interest accrued
is interrupted. Such interest is acknowledged
as income, when perceived, as a recovery of the
deterioration loss.

The financial commissions that arise in
the formalization of loans, mainly opening
commissions, study and reporting, must be
accrued and registered in results throughout the
lifetime of the loan. In the case of the opening
commissions, the part corresponding to direct
related costs incurred in the formalization of
such operations are immediately registered in
the statements of result.
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j) Deterioration

financial assets are evaluated collectively in
groups sharing similar credit risks.

system of financial leasing. The assets will be
classified according to their use:

All deterioration losses are acknowledged in
results. Any accumulated loss in relation to
a financial asset available for sale previously
acknowledged in equity, is moved to results.

Fixed assets of own use

Financial assets
Financial assets are evaluated on each
presentation date in order to determine whether
or not there is objective deterioration evidence.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets
are deteriorated, and a loss of value would
have ensued if, and only if, there is objective
deterioration evidence as a result of one
or more events occurring after the initial
acknowledgement of the asset (a “loss-causing
event”) and such loss-causing event or events
would have an impact over the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets as it might be reliably estimated.
However, it might not be possible to identify a
unique event as the cause of deterioration.
A deterioration loss, in relation to financial assets
recorded at the amortized cost, is calculated as
the difference between the book value of the
asset and the current value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective rate
of interest.
A deterioration loss, in relation to financial assets
available for sale, is calculated by reference to its
reasonable value.
Assets are examined individually in order to
determine their deterioration. The remaining
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The reverse of a deterioration loss occurs only
if it may be objectively related to an event
occurring after its acknowledgement. In the case
of financial assets recorded at their amortized
cost and of those available for sale, the reverse is
acknowledged in results.
Non-financial assets
The book value of the Bank’s non-financial assets
is examined on each date of presentation in order
to determine whether or not there are indications
of deterioration. Should such indications exist,
then, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated. In the case of surplus or goodwill and
of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or
of those that are not yet available for use, their
recoverable amounts are estimated on each date
of presentation.
k) Tangible fixed assets
It includes the price of real estate properties,
land, furniture, vehicles, data processing
equipment and other installations owned by
the consolidated entities or acquired under the

Fixed assets of own-use (which include,
among others, those tangible assets received
by consolidated entities to settle, totally
or partially, financial assets that represent
collection rights before third parties and
which they expect to use continuously and
for their own use, as well as those that are
being acquired via financial leasing systems)
are shown at their cost of acquisition, minus
their corresponding accumulated amortization
and, if applicable, the losses estimated from
comparing the net value of each item with their
corresponding recoverable value.
To that effect, the cost of acquisition of the assets
awarded is assimilated to the net value of the
financial assets given in exchange of their award
or letting.
The amortization is calculated by applying
the straight-line method over the cost of
acquisition of the assets minus their residual
value, understanding that the land over which
the buildings and other constructions sit have
an indefinite life and that, consequently, they are
not subject of amortization.
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The Bank applies the following useful lives to the tangible assets that comprise its assets:
Item

Useful life (Years)

Buildings

100

Facilities

10

Furniture

10

Vehicles

10

Office equipment

10

Security instruments and implements

5

Other minor assets

5

At the closing of each fiscal year, the
consolidated entities analyze to check
if there are any indications that the net
value of the elements of its material assets
exceed their corresponding recoverable
value; in which case, they reduce the book
value of the assets in question up to their
recoverable value and adjust future charges
on account of amortization in proportion
to their adjusted book value and their new
residual useful life - should it be necessary
to re-estimate it.
Similarly, when there are indications that
the value of a material asset has been
recovered, the consolidated entities register
the reverse of the loss for deterioration
accounted for in previous periods and
adjust the future charges on account
of amortization accordingly. Under no

circumstance may the review of the loss
for deterioration of an asset imply the
increment of its book value over and above
that which it would have had if such
deterioration loss would not have been
acknowledged in previous years.
Likewise, at least at the end of the year, an

estimate is made of the useful life of
immobilized own-use material, in order to
detect significant changes; if so, they would
be adjusted by means of the corresponding
correction to the consolidated profit & loss
account of future years, by the re-calculated
amount of the amortization in line with
their new useful lives.
Conservation & maintenance expenses of
own-use material assets are charged to the
results of the year in which they are incurred.
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Assets assigned under operating lease
The criteria applied to acknowledge the cost of
acquisition of assets assigned under operating
lease for their amortization and for estimating
their respective useful lives and to register their
deterioration losses coincide with those described
in relation to own-use material assets.
l) Investments in companies
Those shares or rights in companies in which the
Bank and its affiliates have a significant influence
(i.e. 20% shareholding or more) are registered
as assets at their proportional equity value (VPP,
in its Spanish acronym). Those investments in
companies in which the bank and its affiliates do
not have a significant influence, are recorded at
their historical value acknowledging dividends
on a perceived basis.
m) Goodwill of investments in companies
The goodwill (lower value) of investments in
companies is shown at cost value, minus the
amortization accumulated according to the
residual useful life determined for same. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Bank does not
show balances under this concept.
n) Provisions for risky assets
The provisions necessary to hedge the loss risks
of those assets included under the items: Owed
by banks and Credits & accounts receivable from
clients, as well as under Contingent credits, are
calculated and constituted monthly, considering
the types of existing provisions and in relation
to the evaluation models used and the types of
operations that they hedge against.
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The models of evaluation, criteria and procedures
to evaluate credit risks integrally and determine
the amount of provision have been approved
by the Bank’s Directors’ Committee and are
specified in the Credit Policy; which, in turn, is
consistent with the norms issued by the SBIF.
Policy processes and compliance are evaluated
and supervised according to internal control
procedures in order to ensure compliance and
maintaining an adequate level of provisions that
would sustain losses attributable to expected and
incurred deterioration

a. That such provisions be approved by the Board;
b. That their constitution be justified by the risk
assumed in operations already carried out, and
that the Bank have documented criteria &
procedures toward determining them:
c. That provisions not be used to compensate
for deficiencies in the models used by the
Bank; and,
d. That they refer to general provisions to
hedge against commercial lending, for
housing or consumption, or for segments
identified in them.
Liability of the Board of Directors

Provisions are denominated “individual” when
corresponding to debtors evaluated individually,
which, because of their size, complexity or
level of exposure make it necessary to analyze
them on a case-by-case basis and, “group” when
corresponding to a high number of operations
whose individual amounts are low and relate to
natural persons or small-size companies.
• Provisions are classified as:
• Individual provisions over normal portfolio
• Individual provisions over deteriorated portfolio
• Group provisions over normal portfolio

The models used are reviewed annually toward
ensuring the best coverage of provisions
by the year’s closing and their results are
communicated to the Board, who examines
them at least once a year and in relation to
the closing of each fiscal year, the sufficiency
of the level of provisions, expressly stating its
conformity, in the sense that, in the Board’s
opinion, the provisions thus constituted are
sufficient to hedge against all losses that might
be derived from the credits granted.

Group provisions over deteriorated portfolio

o) Deteriorated credits and write-offs

Additionally, provisions may be constituted
beyond those derived from the application
of portfolio evaluation models in order to
hedge against unpredictable macroeconomic
fluctuations that might affect the sector, industry
or group of debtors.

The concept of Deteriorated portfolio comprises
those credits with debtors about whom there
is concrete evidence that they will not meet
some of their payment obligations as agreed,
regardless of the possibility of recovering the
amount owed resorting to the guarantees, by
exercising judicial collection actions or agreeing
on different conditions.

In order to constitute these additional
provisions, the following copulative conditions
must be met:
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Within such framework, the Bank will keep
these credits under the Deteriorated portfolio
until their behavior or payment conduct is not
regularized, without prejudice of writing off
credits individually considered that meet the
Write-off conditions indicated under this point.
Deterioration identification is provided on a
monthly basis in a centralized manner by the
Risk Classification & Provision System, as
defined in the Credit Policy, which is consistent
with the norms issued by the SBIF.
Write-offs
As a general rule, write-offs must be made upon
expiration of contractual rights over cash flows.
Since they have to do with lending, even if the
preceding did not occur, the corresponding
asset balances will be written-off according to
the provisions of Title II of Chapter B-2 of the
Compendium of Accounting Norms.
The write-offs in question refer to disposals
in the Statement of Assets & Liabilities in the
asset corresponding to the respective operation,
including, consequently, that part that
might not be expired if it were the case of an
installment loan or of a leasing operation (since
there are no partial write-offs).
Write-offs must always be accounted as a
charge to credit risk provisions constituted
according to the provisions of Chapter B-1 of the
Compendium of Accounting Norms, whichever
the cause leading to the write-off.

delinquent and effective installments, and
the time limit must be computed from the
beginning of the arrears; namely, it must be
made when the timing of a loan installment or
portion thereof catches up with the write-off
deadline provided below:
Lending type

Consumer credits with or without real guarantees
Consumer leasing

Deadline

6 months
6 months

Other non-real estate leasing operations

12 months

Other operations without real guarantees

24 months

Commercial credits with real guarantees

36 months

Real estate leasing (commercial and housing)

36 months

Mortgage loans for housing

48 months

The deadline corresponds to the time elapsed
since the date in which all or part of the debt in
arrears became due.
Subsequent payments to be obtained from
written-off operations shall be acknowledged in
results as recoveries from written-off credits.
Renegotiations of written-off credits shall not
originate income, for as long as the operation
continues to be classified as deteriorated; whereas
any payments so received must be treated as
recoveries of written-off credits.
A renegotiated credit may only re-enter the
assets if it ceases to be classified as deteriorated,
also acknowledging the activation income as
recovery of written-off credits.

As of the present year, credit and accounts
receivable write-offs are made over expired,
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p) Contingent assets & liabilities

Type of contingent credit

a) Collaterals and guarantees

Contingent credits are understood as those
operations or commitments in which the bank
assumes a credit risk upon committing itself
before third parties, before the occurrence of a
future fact, to make a payment or disbursement
that must be recovered from its clients.

Exposure

100%

b) Confirmed foreign letters of credit

20%

c) Documentary letters of credit issued

20%

d) Dank vouchers
e) Inter-bank vouchers
f) Freely disposable lines of credit

50%
100%
50%

g) Other credit commitments:

The bank and its affiliates keep a record of the
following balances -related to commitments
or to liabilities of its own line of business- in
order accounts: Collaterals and guarantees,
confirmed foreign letters of credit, documentary
letters of credit issued, bank vouchers, interbank vouchers, freely disposable lines of
credit, other credit commitments and other
Contingent credits.
The balances of such Contingent credits are
considered at closing of each financial statement
in order to determine the credit risk provisions
required under Chapter B-1 of the Compendium
of Accounting Norms of the SBIF, the amounts
must be computed according to a risk exposure
factor, according to the following table:

- Superior (university) study credits - Law N°20,027
- Other
h) Other Contingent credits

Nevertheless, in case of operations with clients
with deteriorated credits or with evidence of
deterioration, such exposure shall be always
equivalent to 100% of its Contingent credits.
q) Deferred taxes
The bank acknowledges, as appropriate,
liabilities on account of deferred taxes for
the future estimate of tax effects attributable
to differences between the accounting
value of liabilities and their tax values. The
measurement of the liabilities on account of
deferred taxes which, according to current tax
legislation, should be applied in the year in
which the liabilities on account of deferred
taxes are converted or sold. The future effects
of changes in the tax legislation or in the tax
rates are acknowledged under deferred taxes as
of the date in which the law that approves such
changes is published.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the bank has
acknowledged assets on account of deferred taxes;
since Management has evaluated that it is possible
for it to obtain taxable profits that would allow
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15%
100%
100%

the use the temporary differences of tax losses
existing at the closing of each fiscal year.
The effects of taxes deferred because of
temporary differences between the tax balance
and the financial balance, are registered on an
accrual basis, according to NIC 12.
r) Disposal of financial assets and liabilities
The accounting treatment of financial asset
transfers is conditioned by the degree and form
in which risks & benefits associated to the assets
to be conveyed are transferred to third parties:
1. If risks and benefits are substantially
conveyed to third parties, such as the case
of unconditional sales, of buyback sales
agreements at their reasonable value on their
buyback date, of sales of financial assets with
an acquired buyback option or sales issued
deeply out of cash, of the use of assets in
which the assignor does not withhold junior
financing nor concede any type of credit
improvement to the new credit holders, and
other similar cases, then, the financial assets
so conveyed are dropped out of the balance
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sheet simultaneously acknowledging any
right or obligation withheld or created as a
consequence of such conveyance.
2. If the risk and benefits associated to the
conveyed financial assets are substantially
withheld, such as the case of sales of financial
assets with buyback agreement at a fixed
price or for a sales price plus interest, of
security loan contracts where the borrower
has the obligation to return the same
or similar assets and of other analogous
cases, the financial assets so conveyed are
not dropped out of the balance sheet and
continue to be valued with the same criteria
used prior to such conveyance. Contrariwise,
they are acknowledged accounting-wise:
a) A financial liability linked by a value
equal to that of the service received,
which is subsequently valued at its
amortized cost.
b) Both the income of the conveyed financial
assets (but not dropped), as well as the
expenses of the financial liability.
3. If the neither the risks nor the benefits
linked to conveyed financial assets are
substantially conveyed – such as the
case of sales of financial assets with an
acquired buyback option or sales issued
that are neither deeply in or out of cash,
of uses in which the assignor assumes a
junior financing or another type of credit
improvement for a portion of the asset
conveyed, and other similar cases- one
distinguishes:
a) If the assigning entity does not retain
control of the conveyed financial assets:
it is dropped out of the balance sheet
and any right or obligation withheld
or created as a consequence of such
conveyance is acknowledged.

b) If the assignor entity retains control
of the conveyed financial asset: it
continues to acknowledge it in the
balance sheet for a value equal to its
exposure to value changes that might
be experienced and it acknowledges
a financial liability associated to the
conveyed financial asset. The net value
of the asset conveyed and the liability
associated shall be the amortized cost of
the rights & obligations withheld, if the
conveyed asset is measured according
to its amortized cost, or according
to the reasonable value of the rights
& obligations thus obtained, if the
conveyed assets are measured at their
reasonable value.
In line with the foregoing, financial assets are
only dropped out of the balance sheet when the
rights over the cash flows that they generate are
extinguished or when their implicit or ensuing
risks and benefits have been substantially
conveyed to third parties. Similarly financial
liabilities are only dropped out of the balance
sheet when the obligations that they generate are
extinguished or when they are acquired with the
intention of cancelling or placing them out again.
s) Personnel annual leave
The annual cost of annual leave and other
personnel benefits are acknowledged on an
accrual basis.
t) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are identified as non-monetary
assets (separated from Other assets) without a
physical substance that emerge as the result of a
legal transaction or that are developed internally

by the consolidated entities. These are assets whose
cost may be reliably estimated and for which
the consolidated entities consider it probable to
acknowledge future economic benefits.
Intangible assets are initially acknowledged
at their cost of acquisition or production and
are subsequently measured at cost minus
accumulated amortization and minus any loss on
account of accumulated deterioration.
u) Cash and cash equivalent
The preparation of cash the flow statement
applied the indirect method, in which, starting
with the bank’s result before taxes, non-monetary
transactions are subsequently incorporated, as well
as income and expenses associated to cash flows of
activities classified as investment or financing.
The preparation of the cash flow statements takes
the following items into account:
a) Cash flows: the inflow or outflow of cash and
cash equivalent, understanding as such the
balances in items such as: Central Bank of
Chile deposits, Domestic bank deposits, and
Foreign bank deposits.
b) Operating activities: they correspond to
normal activities performed by Banks, as well
as other activates that cannot be classified as
either investments or financing.
c) Investment activities: they correspond to the
acquisition, sale or disposal by other means,
of long-term assets and other investments not
included in cash and cash equivalent.
d) Financing activities: these are activities
that produce changes in the size and
composition of the net Shareholders’ equity
and liabilities that are not part of operating
activities or investments.
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For the purposes of cash flow, the Bank has
considered cash and cash equivalent, cash
balances and deposits in banks plus the net
balance of operations currently being sold, as
established by Chapter C-1 of Compendium
of Accounting Norms. The Cash and cash
equivalent balances and their conciliation with
the Cash Flow Statement are outlined under
Note 5 of these financial statements.
v) Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements
requires Management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of assets & liabilities, the disclosure of
contingencies regarding assets & liabilities as
of the date of the financial statements, as well
as income and expenses during the period. Real
results may differ from these estimates.
In certain cases, the SBIF Norms and the
accounting principles generally accepted
in Chile require that assets or liabilities be
registered or shown at their reasonable value.
The reasonable value is the current amount at
which a given asset may be acquired or sold,
or in the case of a liability, it could be incurred
or sold in an ordinary transaction between
the parties, rather than in a forced disposal or
sale. When market prices in active markets are
not available, the Bank has estimated those
values as values based on the best information
available, including the use of modeling and
other evaluation techniques.
The Bank has Established provisions to hedge
against possible losses on account of credits
in accordance with the regulation issued by
the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
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Institutions. These regulations require that in
order to estimate provisions, they be regularly
evaluated taking into consideration factors
such as changes in the nature and size of the
credit portfolio, trends in the foreseen portfolio,
credit quality and economic conditions that
might affect the debtors’ payment capacity.
Provision increments on account of credit losses
are shown as “Credit risk provisions”. Credits
are written-off when Management determines
that the credit or a portion thereof cannot be
collected. Write-offs are recorded as a reduction
of the credit risk provisions.

the amounts disbursed and the real nominal
value of the credits are registered as income
on account of interest during the financing
period. The responsibility to pay the credits is
incumbent upon the assignor.

w) Minimum dividends

Immediately prior to this classification,
assets (or the elements of a sellable group) are
measured once again, according to the Bank’s
accounting policies.

The Bank acknowledges in liabilities that
portion of the year’s profits that corresponds to
distribute according to the Law on Corporations
or pursuant to its dividend policy, which
establishes that at least 50% of the year’s net
results will be distributed as dividends.

z) Non-current assets kept for sale
Non-current assets (or sellable group that
comprises assets and liabilities) expected to be
recovered principally through sales rather than
being recovered via their continued use, are
classified as kept for sale.

As of that moment, assets (or a sellable group)
are measured at their least value between their
book value and their reasonable value minus its
sales cost.

x) Goods received or awarded in payment
Those goods received or awarded in payment
are valued by whichever amount is the lowest
between the initial value and the net sale value;
namely, the reasonable value (independent
appraisal) minus the costs necessary to keep it
and sell it. This net sale value of an asset shall be
determined, primarily, according to prevailing
market conditions, whereas it should correspond
to its reasonable value minus those costs
necessary to keep it and sell it.
y) Factoring lending
Factoring loans receivable are valued at the
amount disbursed. The price difference between

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank
does not keep current [SIC] assets for sale.
aa) Profit per share
The basic profit per share is determined by
dividing the net result attributed to the Bank in a
period between the weighted average quantities of
shares in circulation during that period.
The stock diluting benefit per share is determined
in a manner similar to the basic benefit, but the
weighted average number of shares in circulation
is adjusted in order to account for the stock
diluting potential of options over shares, warrants
and convertible debt.
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As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank
does not have securities that may generate
watering effects in its Shareholders’ equity.
bb) Temporary asset acquisition (assignment)
Purchases (sales) of financial assets under nonoptional re-sale (re-purchase) agreements at a
fixed price (“repos”) are acknowledged in the
Statement of Assets & Liabilities consolidated as
a financial assignment (reception), based on the
nature of the debtor (creditor), under the items:
“Deposits in Central Banks”, “Deposits in credit
entities” or “Credit to the clientele” (“Deposits
of Central Banks”, “Deposits in credit entities”
or “Deposits of the clientele”).
The difference between purchase and sale prices
is registered as financial interest during the
lifetime of the contract.
cc) Equity funds, Investment funds and
Pension funds managed by the Bank
The equity funds managed by Corp Capital
Administradora General de Fondos S.A. which
are owned by third parties are not included in
the consolidated balance sheet. The commissions
generated by this activity are included in the
balance of the item: “Income on commissions” of
the consolidated income and loss account.
dd) Consolidated statement of change in
consolidated Shareholders’ equity.
The consolidated statement of change in
consolidated Shareholders’ equity shown
in these consolidated financial statements
shows the total changes of the year in
consolidated Shareholders’ equity. This

information is submitted in two statements:
the consolidated statement of integral results
and the consolidated statement of changes in
Shareholders’ equity. The main characteristics
of the information contained in the two parts of
the statement are explained below:

The value of the income and expenses that
correspond to entities valued by the method
of the shareholding registered directly against
the net Shareholders’ equity in this statement,
whichever its nature, under item: “Entities
valued according to the shareholding method”.

Consolidated statement of integral results

Statement of changes in Shareholders’ equity

This part of the consolidated statement of
changes in Shareholders’ equity shows the
income and expenses generated by the Bank as
a consequence of its activity during the fiscal
year, distinguishing those registered as results
in the consolidated income and loss account
of the year and the other income and expenses
registered directly in the consolidated net
Shareholders’ equity.

This part of the statement of changes in net
Shareholders’ equity shows all movements
occurring in net Shareholders’ equity, including
those originating in changes in accounting
criteria and error corrections. This statement,
therefore, conciliates the book value at the
beginning and at the end of the year of all
those items that comprise the consolidated net
Shareholders’ equity, grouping the movements
that occurred according to their nature, in the
following items:
a) Adjustments for changes in accounting criteria
and error corrections: which includes those
changes in consolidated net Shareholders’
equity that emerge as a consequence of the
retroactive Restatement of the financial
statements originating from changes in
accounting criteria or error correction.
b) Income and expenses acknowledged in
the exercise: it aggregates all the items
registered in the consolidated statement of
results acknowledged previously indicated.

Therefore, in this statement we present:
a) The consolidated result of the fiscal year
b) The net value of income and expenses
temporarily acknowledged as net
consolidated equity-capital goodwill.
c) The value of income and expenses finally
acknowledged in the net consolidated
Shareholders’ equity.
d) The income tax accrued by those concepts
depicted under preceding letters b) and c),
except for valuation adjustments originating
in shareholding in associated companies or
multi-group valued by the shareholding
method, which are shown in net terms.
e) The total consolidated income and expenses
acknowledged, calculated as the sum
of the preceding letters, showing in a
separate manner the value attributed to
the dominant entity and the corresponding
minority interest.

The Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions (“SBIF”), jointly with other
superintendancies and other Chilean regulatory
agencies agreed on a plan of convergence into
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS/NIIF, in its Chilean acronym) with
the purpose of internationalizing the various
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Pursuant to legal provisions,
banks must use the accounting
criteria provided by the SBIF;
and, in all matters not covered
by such criteria nor opposed to
its instructions, they must abide
by the generally accepted
accounting principles that
correspond to the technical
norms issued by the Trade
Union of Chilean Accountants.

models of financial reporting of Chilean
public companies. Within the framework
of the strategic plan, the SBIF, through its
Circular Letter N°3,410 of November 9,
2007, subsequently complemented by Circular
Letter N°3,443 of August 21, 2008 and its
amendments, released its new “Compendium
of Accounting Norms”, which includes the
new accounting standards for the financial
industry to be applied by the sector as of
January 1, 2009, considering the temporary
norms established under Chapter E of such
Compendium.
Pursuant to legal provisions, banks must use the
accounting criteria provided by the SBIF; and,
in all matters not covered by such criteria nor
opposed to its instructions, they must abide by
the generally accepted accounting principles that
correspond to the technical norms issued by the
Trade Union of Chilean Accountants (Colegio
de Contadores de Chile A.G.) that coincide
with the international financial standards
agreed to by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). Should there be any
discrepancy between the accounting principles
and the accounting criteria issued by the SBIF
(Compendium of Accounting Norms), the latter
of the two shall prevail.
As a result of the foregoing, the Bank set up a
Transition Plan to apply the new accounting
norms that includes, among other aspects, an
analysis of the differences between accounting
criteria, a selection of accounting criteria
applicable to cases permitting alternative
treatment and an evaluation of information
procedures and systems.
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In accordance with such Transition Plan, the
norms of the new Compendium of Accounting
Norms have been applied retroactively as of
January 1, 2008 preparing an opening balance
sheet as of that date. Likewise, in order to show
comparative financial statements during 2009,
the Bank prepared a set of proforma financial
statements for 2008.
Note 2 of these financial statements depict and
explain the main impacts caused by migrating
into these new accounting norms, both at the
balance sheet level as well as at the level of
statement of results.
ee ) New accounting rulings
According to the instructions issued by
the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions (SBIF) regarding the application of
the norms about provisions in affect as of fiscal
year 2010, indicated under Chapters B-1 and
B-3 of the compendium of accounting norms,
the main changes and effects would be:
The adjustments to acknowledge the provisions
that must be maintained for debtor portfolios
evaluated individually according to the provisions
of Chapter B-1 will be performed during the
month of July 2010. Such adjustments must be
registered against the year’s results.
With respect to Contingent credits, as of January
2010 and during the first half of the year, the
difference between the total provisions to hedge
these credits calculated according to the previous
norm and the total that is obtained by applying
the Chapter B-3 norms, when the latter of the
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two should be higher, shall be acknowledged -for
all purposes- as an additional provision.
As of December 31 2009, the Bank has
estimated the following impacts regarding the
above-mentioned changes:
At closing of January 1, 2010, the Bank will
apply the new Provision Norms regarding the
acknowledgement against the Shareholders’
equity of the provisions made to hedge against

Contingent credits. The Shareholders’ equity
impact is estimated to amount to MM$4,440;
amount that will have to be credited as an
additional provision.
With respect to the impact to the fiscal year
result to be registered in July 2010, the impact
has been estimated to amount to MM$15,183.
The impacts estimated in the 2 preceding
paragraphs correspond to the review

Norms, amendments and interpretations

preliminarily performed as of August 2009;
which was reported to the SBIF on November
2009. As of the date of the present financial
statements, the Bank is in the process of
determining the final effects to be registered in
the balance sheet as of January 31, 2010.
Additionally, as of the date of issue of the
present financial statements, the new accounting
rulings issued by the IASB, but not yet in effect,
correspond to:

Mandatory application, fiscal years beginning on:

Review of IFRS/NIIF 3

Business mixes

July 1,2009

Amendment of NIC 27

Shareholding changes

July 1,2009

Amendment of NIC 39

Elements assignable as hedged items

July 1,2009

Amendment of NIC 32

Classification of rights over shares

CINIIF 12 (1)

Service concession agreements

CINIIF 15 (1)

Real estate construction agreements

CINIIF 17 (1)

Distribution of non-monetary benefits to shareholders

IFRS/NIIF 9

Financial securities: Classification & valuation

Improvement project 2009

Not-urgent IFRS/NIIF improvements

Amendment of IFRS/NIIF 2

Payments based on shares within the Group

January 1, 2010

Review of NIC 24

Breakdown of related parties

January 1, 2011

Amendment of CINIIF 14

Advances of mandatory minimum payments

January 1, 2011

CINIIF 19

Payment of financial liabilities with Shareholders’ equity
securities

Amendment of a IFRS/NIIF 1 (Reviewed 2008)

First-time adoption of IFRS/NIIF

February 1, 2010
April 1, 2009
January 1, 2010
November 1, 2009
January 1, 2013
Miscellaneous (mainly January 1, 2010)

July 1, 2010
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Improvements to the IFRS/NIIF - 2009
On April 16, 2009, the IASB issued
Improvements to the IFRS/NIIF 2009, by
amending 12 IFRS. This is the second collection
of amendments issued under the process of
annual improvements, designed to make
necessary –albeit not urgent- amendments to the
IFRS/NIIF. These amendments are effective for
the annual periods that begin on or after July
1, 2009 and for annual periods that begin on or
after January 1, 2010.
Management considers that these amendments
will be adopted in its financial statements
for the period beginning on January 1, 2010.
Management is currently evaluating the effects
of adopting this Improvement.
Review of the IFRS/NIIF 3 - Business mixes,
and Amendment to NIC 27 - Consolidated
and separate financial statements.
The reviewed IFRS/NIIF 3 and the amendments
to NIC 27 assume very relevant changes in
various aspects related with the accounting of
business mixes which, in general, emphasize
more the use of reasonable values. Some of the
more relevant changes are the treatment of
acquisition costs to be charged to expenses as
opposed to the current treatment of considering
them a greater cost of the mix; acquisitions
by stages, in which as of the takeover date the
acquirer must re-evaluate its shareholding prior
to its reasonable value; or the existence of the
option of measuring the minority interest in
the assets acquired at reasonable cost, before the
current and only treatment of measuring them as
the proportional share of the reasonable value of
the net assets acquired.
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Since the norm is of a prospective application
nature, in general and because of the business
mixes carried out, Management does not expect
significant changes.
Amendment of NIC 39 - Elements not
assignable as hedged items
This amendment to NIC 39 pretends to
clarify two specific questions regarding hedge
accounting: (a) when can inflation be hedged as a
risk, and (b) in which cases can acquired options
be used as hedges. With respect to hedging the
risk of inflation, the amendment establishes
that it may only be hedged inasmuch as it is a
contractually identified portion of those cash
flows to be hedged. With respect to hedging
options, only their intrinsic value may be used as
a hedging instrument, not so their time value.
Management considers that the enforcement of
such amendment will not significantly affect
its consolidated annual accounts, since it is not
hedging any of the situations affected by the
referred amendment.
IFRS/NIIF 9 Financial securities - Classification
& valuation
In the future, IFRS/NIIF 9 will substitute
the Classification & Valuation part of current
NIC39. There are very relevant differences with
the current norm; among others, the approval of
a new classification model based on two unique
categories of Amortized cost and Reasonable
value, the abolishment of the classifications
of “Investment securities until maturity” and
“Investment securities available for sale”, the
Deterioration analysis for only those assets listed

by Amortized cost and the non-bifurcation of
implicit derivatives in financial contracts.
The future impact of adopting this norm is
being currently evaluated.
Amendments to IFRS/NIIF 2 - Payments based
on shares
This amendment refers to the accounting of
payment programs based on shares within a
group. The main changes imply incorporating
into NIIF2 what was previously covered by
CINIIF 8 and CINIIF 11 in a manner such
that these interpretations shall be derogated
upon incorporating their content into the main
body of the norm. It is clarified that the entity
receiving the services from the employees or
suppliers must account for the transaction
regardless of the fact that the group entity to sell
it might be another one, and regardless of the
fact that the operation may be carried out in cash
or in shares.
Management has estimated that this amendment
will not have a significant impact in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements during the
period of its initial application.
Amendment of NIC 32 - Classification of
rights over shares
This amendment refers to the classification of
the rights issued in acquiring foreign-currencydenominated shares (rights, options or warrants).
According to this amendment when these
rights are for acquiring a fixed number of shares
for a fixed price, they are Shareholders’ equity
securities, regardless of the currency in which
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Management has estimated
that this amendment will not
have a significant impact in the
Bank’s consolidated financial
statements during the period of
its initial application.

such fixed amount is denominated and provided
that other norm requirements are met.
Management has estimated that this amendment
will not have a significant impact in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements during the
period of its initial application.
Review of NIC24 - Breakdown of related
parties
This NIC24 review governs the breakdowns
that must be made about the parties related to
the financial statements. There are two basic
novelties here. One of them introduces a partial
exemption over certain breakdowns when the
relatedness is produced because of their being
State-dependent or related parties (or equivalent
governmental institution) and, the other one,
reviews the definition of party clarifying certain
relationships heretofore not explicit in the norm.
Management has estimated that this amendment
will not have a significant impact in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements during the
period of its initial application.
CINIIF 12 - Service concession agreements
Service concessions are agreements where a
government or another public entity executes
contracts toward the supply of public services,
as might be highways, airports, water and
electricity supply to private sector operators.
The control over the assets remains in public
hands, but the private operator is responsible
for the construction activities as well as the
management and maintenance of the public

infrastructures. CINIIF 12 establishes the
manner in which the concessionaire entities
must apply the existing IFRS/NIIF in
accounting for the rights and obligations
assumed under this type of agreements.
Management has estimated that this amendment
will not have a significant impact in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements during the
period of its initial application.
CINIIF 15 - Real estate construction
agreements
This interpretation (ruling) covers the
accounting registration of income and
expenses related to the construction of real
estate properties, and it helps clarify when an
agreement for the construction of unmovable
property falls within the purview of NIC
11, Construction contracts, or in which cases
would it be classifiable under NIC 18, Income,
and thus, by virtue of the characteristics of
the agreement, when and how should they be
recorded as income.
Management has estimated that this amendment
will not have a significant impact in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements during the
period of its initial application.
CINIIF 17 - Distribution of non-monetary
benefits to shareholders
This interpretation covers the accounting
treatment of the distribution of assets other
than cash to shareholders (“dividends in kind”),
albeit; asset distributions within the same group
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or within entities under a common control are
beyond its purview. The ruling argues in favor of
registering the obligation at the reasonable value
of the asset to be distributed and to register any
difference with its book value in asset books
under results.

NOTA 2.
Accounting Changes – Transition
Bases to the New Criteria Issued by
the Superintendance for Banks &
Financial Institutions (Sbif)
a. Transition base

The future impact of adopting this norm is
being currently analyzed.
CINIIF 19 - Payment of debt with
Shareholders’ equity securities
This interpretation covers the accounting
treatment –from the point of view of the
debtor- of the total or partial payment of a
financial liability by issuing equity securities
(bonds) to the creditor. This interpretation
does not apply to those operations where the
counterparts involved are shareholders or
related parties acting as such, or when the
exchange of debt for equity securities was
already foreseen in the terms & conditions of
the original contract. In this case, the issuance
of equity securities shall be measured at
reasonable value as of the date of payment of
the liability and any difference between this
value and the book value of the liability in
question shall be acknowledged in results.
Management has estimated that this amendment
will not have a significant impact in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements during the
period of its initial application.
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The Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions through its Circular Letter N° 3,410
dated November 9, 2007 and its complements,
released the new “Compendium of Accounting
Norms” containing the new accounting &
reporting standards for the financial industry,
issuing instructions about the application of
these new accounting criteria that the banks
began to apply as of January 1, 2009 within
the context of the project of convergence to the
International Financial Reporting Standards
(NIIF according to its Spanish acronym, or IFRS
according to its English acronym), considering
the temporary norms established under Chapter
E of such Compendium.
b. Main changes in accounting criteria
1. Accrual of interest at effective rate
The bank accrues the interest of its credits at
the effective lending interest rate. To that effect,
it must consider direct and incremental costs
incurred in originating these credits.

2. Deteriorated portfolio
The concept of Deteriorated portfolio comprises
those credits with debtors about whom there
is concrete evidence that they will not meet
some of their payment obligations as agreed,
regardless of the possibility of recovering the
amount owed resorting to the guarantees, by
exercising judicial collection actions or agreeing
on different conditions.
Within the framework of the foregoing,
the bank will maintain credits under its
Deteriorated portfolio until their capacity or
payment behavior is not regularized, without
prejudice of writing-off credits individually
considered that meet the conditions indicated
herein below under N°4 – Lending write-offs.
3. Suspension of the acknowledgement of
income on an accrual basis
The Bank does not acknowledge accrual-based
income in its Result Statement for those credits
included under its Deteriorated portfolio, whose
situation is as follows:
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Credits subject to suspension:

Suspended:

Individual evaluation:
Of debtors classified under categories D1 and D2

For the sole circumstance of being in the Deteriorated portfolio.

Individual evaluation:
Of debtors classified under categories C3 and C4

For having completed 3 months in the Deteriorated portfolio.

Group evaluation:
Credits with real guaranteed below 80%

When the credit or one of its installments would have completed 6 months of payment
arrears.

4. Lending write-offs
As of the year 2009, credits and accounts
receivable may be written-off over installments
expired, in arrears and valid and their term must

be computed as of the beginning of their default;
namely, it must be performed when the time of
arrears of an installment or portion of a credit
or of an operation reaches the write-off term
provided below:

Lending type

Term

Consumer credits with or without real guarantees

6 months

Consumer leasing

6 months

Other non-real estate leasing operations

12 months

Other operations without real guarantees

24 months

Commercial credits with real guarantees

36 months

Real estate leasing (commercial and housing)

36 months

Mortgage loans for housing

48 months

The term corresponds to the time elapsed
since the date in which the payment or the
entire obligation of the default operation
becomes callable.

cost as the reasonable value of these assets based
on independent estimates.

5. Fixed assets

Intangible asset components remained valued
at their historical cost, with the monetary
correction applied up to December 31, 2007.
With respect to the Integrated Banking
System software –which corresponds to the
main software system that supports the Bank’s
operations- the Bank adopted its reasonable
value as attributed cost and reviewed the years of
its residual useful life based on a report issued by
independent professional experts.

Fixed asset items remained valued at their
historical cost or at that of their last estimate
up to December 31, 2007. In the case of
certain real estate property and pursuant to
the provisions of the compendium of norms
of the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions, the Bank adopted the attributed

6. Intangible assets
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7. Investments in companies
The investments in companies in which the
Bank does not have a significant influence -i.e.
under 20% shareholding- have been taken at
their historical cost with a monetary correction
applied until December 31,l 2007; henceforth
acknowledging all dividends on a perceived basis.

under these norms as of that date. Consequently,
the date of adoption of the new norms by the
Bank and its affiliates is: January 1, 2009.
According to IFRS/NIIF 1, in preparing the
above-referred consolidated financial statements,
all mandatory exceptions and certain optional
exemptions to the retroactive application of
IFRS/NIIF have been applied, as follows:

6. Transition date for subsidiaries, related
companies and entities jointly controlled
affiliates and associated companies with a
different transition date.
This exemption is not applicable. The bank
and its banking affiliates, governed by the
SBIF, implemented their accounting, process &
systemic modifications in a manner such as to
adopt the new norms on January 1, 2009.

8. Other assets
As of the application of the Compendium of
Accounting Norms of the Superintendence
for Banks & Financial Institutions and of the
International Financial Reporting Standards,
certain expenses susceptible of deferment
have ceased to be effective; which have since
been adjusted to Shareholders’ equity as a first
application of the new norms.
9. Monetary correction
The monetary correction applied up to
December 31, 2007 shall not be subject of
reversals. The reversed monetary amounts that
were applied to paid-in capital and reserves
in fiscal year 2008 must be replenished via
balance transfers to the respective capital &
reserve items. Such transfers are not related to
the application of an accounting criterion, but
to the need of keeping paid-in capital & reserve
amounts set up in line with the rules applied for
legal or statutory purposes up to the closing of
the previous fiscal year.
c. Conciliation between previous Chilean
accounting principles and the new norms.
Corpbanca’s transition date is: January 1, 2008.
The Bank prepared its opening balance sheet
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1. Business mix
Banco Corpbanca has applied the exemption
provided under IFRS/NIIF 1 for business mix.
Therefore, under IFRS/NIIF 3, it has not restated those business mixes that occurred prior
to the transition date of January 1, 2008.
2. Reasonable value or re-evaluation as an
attributable cost
Banco Corpbanca and affiliates opted in favor of
measuring certain items of personal property, plant
& equipment at their reasonable value as of the date
of transition of January 1, 2008, assuming that
this is their cost under IFRS/NIIF. Likewise, they
decided that for certain kinds of personal property,
plant & equipment they will use their monetary
value corrected as of January 1, 2008.
3. Personnel benefits
This exemption is not applicable to the Bank.
4. Conversion reserve
This exemption is not applicable to the Bank.
5. Compounded financial securities
Banco Corpbanca and affiliates have not issued
any compounded financial securities; reason why
this exemption is not applicable to them.

The non-banking companies, mostly governed
by the SVS, implement these adjustments to
the accounting norms & principles issued by the
SBIF and report about these adjustments in an
out-of-accounting manner.
7. Restatement of comparatives with respect to
NIC 32 and NIC 39
This exemption is not applicable. NICs 32 and
39 -with the exceptions previously introduced
by the SBIF- have been applied to all the
comparative balances included in these annual
financial statements.
8. Payments based on shares
This exemption is not applicable, because the
group does not have this type of payments.
9. Insurance contracts
This exemption is not applicable, because
neither the Bank nor its affiliates have any
insurance contracts.
10. Liabilities on account of restoration or
dismantling
This exemption is not applicable.
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11. Initial valuation of financial assets &
liabilities at their reasonable value
Banco Corpbanca and affiliates have not applied
the exemption contemplated under reviewed NIC
39, regarding the initial acknowledgement at
reasonable value with changes in results of financial
securities for which there is no active market.
Therefore, this exemption is not applicable.

14. Leases
Banco Corpbanca and affiliates, have decided to
use the exemption provided under IFRS/NIIF 1
and, consequently, have considered the evident
facts & circumstances occurring as of the date of
transition for the purposes of determining the
existence of implicit leases in its contracts &
agreements.

12. Service concessions
This exemption is not applicable.

d. Transition dates and adoption of the new
norms of the Compendium of Accounting
Norms” of the SBIF.

13. Comparative information for mineral
resource exploration & evaluation businesses.
This exemption is not applicable.

The conciliations submitted below show the
quantification of the impact of the transition to
the new norms in Corbanca and affiliates. The

conciliation provides the impact of the transition
with the following breakdown:
1. Summary of net Shareholders’ equity
consolidation.
2. Conciliation of the consolidated income
statement as of January 1, 2008.
3. Conciliation of the consolidated income
statement as of December 31, 2008.
4. Conciliation of the consolidated income
statement for the period ending on
December 31, 2008.
5. Conciliation of the consolidated cash
flow statement for the period ending on
December 31, 2008.
6. Summary of the conciliation of the
consolidated results.

1. Summary of the consolidation of the net Shareholders’ equity

Net Shareholders’ equity according to Chilean accounting principles
Restatement of credits and accounts receivable (a)
Restatement for investments in companies (b)

As of 01.01.2008
MM$

As of 12.31.2008
MM$

484,674

483,307

(88)

668

1,714

1,486

Restatement in intangibles (c)

10,721

9,391

Restatement of property, plant & equipment (d)

15,752

12,411

Restatement of deferred taxes (e)

(3,178)

(1,170)

Restatement to other assets (f)

(6,187)

(11,547)

Net effect on Shareholders’ equity of first application

18,734

11,239

(25,524)

-

477,884

494,546

Restatement Circular Letter N°3443 – Minimum dividends (g)
Total net Shareholders’ equity according to new norms
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2. Statement of Assets & Liabilities: Conciliation as of January 1, 2008 - Assets, Liabilities and Net Shareholders’ equity:
Previous PCGA

Transition effect

Restated balance
sheet

Ref.

ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits
Operations with clearance underway

68,706

68,706

53,453

53,453

152,847

152,847

Buyback and security loan contracts

55,438

55,438

Financial derivative contracts

34,055

34,055

Owed by banks

82,708

Negotiable securities

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity

3,900,295

82,708
(88)

41,366

3,900,207

(a)

41,366

-

-

Investments in companies

1,985

1,714

3,699

Intangibles

3,195

10,721

13,916

(b)
(c)

Fixed assets

31,836

15,752

47,588

(d)

Current taxes

5,554

Deferred taxes

12,049

15

12,064

(e)

Other assets

65,205

(6,187)

59,018

(f)

4,508,692

21,927

4,530,619

TOTAL ASSETS

5,554

LIABILITIES
Deposits and other sight liabilities

337,099

337,099

Operations with clearance underway

23,305

23,305

Buyback and security loan contracts

100,078

100,078

2,410,769

2,410,769

Deposits and other term deposits
Financial derivative contracts

34,237

34,237

Liabilities with banks

358,582

358,582

Issued debt securities

702,426

702,426

29,850

29,850

Other financial liabilities
Current taxes

-

-

Deferred taxes

6,856

3,193

10,049

Provisions

5,429

25,524

30,953

28,717

4,052,735

Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
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Previous PCGA

Transition effect

Restated balance
sheet

Ref.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Attributable to bank equity holders:
Capital
Reserves
Valuation accounts
Withheld profits:
Withheld profits from previous fiscal years (FY)
Fiscal year profit

314,398
2,679

21,972

24,651

167,599

(28,762)

138,837

116,550

(3,238)

113,312

(2)

(g)

(2)

51,049

Minus: Minimum dividend provision
Attributable to bank equity holders:

314,398

(g)

51,049

-

(25,524)

(25,524)

484,674

(6,790)

477,884

484,674

(6,790)

477,884

4,508,692

21,927

4,530,619

(g)

Minority interest
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Restatements as of January 1, 2008:
(a) Net lending Restatement by acknowledging
default interest & Restatements,
application of an effective rate of interest,
acknowledgement of Deteriorated portfolio,
and effect on provisions; all of which reduced
Credits & accounts receivable from clients
by MM$88.
(b) Net Restatement of investments in affiliate
companies and business-line support
companies, because of monetary correction
reversal, acknowledgement of dividends
on results, and reverse Restatement of
Shareholders’ equity; all of which generated
a net increase of MM$1,714.
(c) Restatement for software revaluation,
reverse monetary correction and depreciation
Restatement; all of which generated an
increase of assets of MM$10,721.
(d) Restatement for revaluation of buildings
and land, monetary correction reversal

and depreciation restatement; all of which
generated an increase of MM$15,752.
(e) Restatement for the effect of deferred taxes
over IFRS/NIIF conversion Restatements;
all of which generated a net increase of
MM$3,178.
(f) Restatement of external sales force of products
not eligible for allocation at effective rate and
monetary correction reversal of goods awarded
in payment, expense on account of sales force
and other expenses paid up in advance; all of
which generated a reduction in assets of
MM $6,187.
(g) Shareholders’ equity effect of the
Restatements indicated under the preceding
numbers: MM$21,972 corresponding to
Restatement of intangibles and fixed assets;
a reduction of MM$3,238 corresponding to
investments in companies, lending and other
assets; and, a Restatement of MM$25,524
pursuant to Circular Letter N° 3443 –
Minimum dividends 2007.

183

Corpbanca and Affiliates / Financial Statements

3. Statement of Assets & Liabilities: Conciliation as of December 31, 2008 - Assets, Liabilities and Net Shareholders’ equity
Previous PCGA
MM$

Transition effect
MM$

Restated balance
sheet MM$

Ref.

ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits

81,326

81,326

117,703

117,703

Negotiable securities

85,105

85,105

Buyback and security loan contracts

50,514

50,514

209,482

209,482

37,671

37,671

Operations with clearance underway

Financial derivative contracts
Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity
Investments in companies

4,871,875

9,915

576,478

(a)

576,478

2,213

4,881,790
-

1,486

3,699

(b)

Intangibles

2,861

9,391

12,252

(c)

Fixed assets

38,820

12,411

51,231

(d)

Current taxes

6,488

6,488

Deferred taxes

13,468

(114)

13,354

(e)

Other assets

97,680

(20,794)

76,886

(f)

6,191,684

12,295

6,203,979

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits and other sight liabilities

357,902

357,902

Operations with clearance underway

86,176

86,176

Buyback and security loan contracts

351,471

351,471

Deposits and other term deposits

3,350,742

3,350,742

Financial derivative contracts

195,608

195,608

Liabilities with banks

492,606

492,606

Issued debt securities

765,172

765,172

47,394

47,394

Other financial liabilities
Current taxes
Deferred taxes

9,550

1,056

10,606

Provisions

33,204

33,204

Other liabilities

18,552

18,552

TOTAL LIABILITIES

184

5,708,377

1,056
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(e)
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Previous PCGA
MM$

Transition effect
MM$

Restated balance
sheet MM$

Ref.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Attributable to bank equity holders:
Capital

324,039

Reserves

2,917

Valuation accounts

1,018

Withheld profits:
Withheld profits from previous fiscal years (FY)
Fiscal year profit
Minus: Minimum dividend provision
Attributable to bank equity holders:

324,039
(5,095)

(2,178)

(g)

1,018

155,333

16,334

171,667

127,178

(13,866)

113,312

56,310

30,200

86,510

(h)

(28,155)

(28,155)
483,307

11,239

494,546

483,307

11,239

494,546

6,191,684

12,295

6,203,979

Minority interest
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Restatements as of December 31, 2008:
(a) Net Restatement for acknowledgement of
default interest and restatements, application
of effective rate, acknowledgment of
effective rate and effect on provisions, thus
incrementing Credits & accounts receivable
from clients by MM$668 and reclassification
of lending sales force expenses by an amount
of MM$9,247.
(b) Net Restatement of investments in affiliates
and business-line support companies, reverse
of monetary correction, acknowledgement
of dividends on results and reversal of
Shareholders’ equity restatement, all of which
generated a net increase of MM$1,486.

(c) Restatement on account of software
revaluation, reverse of monetary correction
and depreciation restatement, all of which
generated asset increases of MM$9,391.
(d) Restatement for revaluation of buildings
& land, reversal of monetary correction
and depreciation restatement, all of which
generated an increase of MM$12,411.
(e) Restatement on account of deferred taxes
over the conversion restatements to the new
accounting norms, all of which generated a
net liability of MM$1,170.
(f) Restatement on account of external sales
force of products not assignable at effective
rate and reversal of monetary correction

of goods awarded in payment, expense on
account of sales force and other expenses
paid up in advance, generating a reduction
of assets of MM$11,547, and reclassification
of lending sales force expenses amounting to
MM$9,247.
(g) Corresponds to the difference between the
2008 monetary correction of the capital and
the effect on Shareholders’ equity for the first
application of the new accounting norms.
(See Shareholders’ equity Table).
(h) Net effect on Shareholders’ equity of the
restatements indicated in the previous
numbers and monetary correction.
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4. Conciliation of income and loss for the period ending on December 31, 2008

Income on interest & Restatements

Previous PCGA
balances
MM$

Transition effect
MM$

Restated balances
MM$

Ref.

559,702

1,191

560,893

(a)

Expenses for interest & restatements

(346,717)

-

(346,717)

Net Income on interest & Restatements

212,985

1,191

214,176

54,865

-

54,865

Expenses on commissions

Income for commissions & services

(12,813)

-

(12,813)

Net income on commissions

42,052

-

42,052

54,997

-

54,997

Net profit of financial operations
Net profit of change

(42,887)

-

(42,887)

Other operating income

7,833

-

7,833

Total operating income

274,980

1,191

276,171

(54,561)

(435)

(54,996)

220,419

756

221,175

Personnel remunerations & expenses

(57,716)

-

(57,716)

Overhead

(50,511)

(4,140)

(54,651)

(b)

(4,916)

(1,916)

(6,832)

(c)
(d)

Credit risk provisions
NET OPERATING INCOME

Depreciation & amortization
Deterioration
Total operating expenses
Total operating expenses
OPERATING RESULT
Result of investments in companies

(a)

(53)

(6)

(59)

(6,810)

-

(6,810)

(120,006)

(6,062)

(126,068)

100,413

(5,306)

95,107

418

(156)

262

(e)
(f)

Monetary correction

(33,654)

33,654

-

Result before income tax

67,177

28,192

95,369

Income tax

(10,867)

2,008

(8,859)

(g)

YEAR’S PROFIT

56,310

30,200

86,510

(h)
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Restatements as of December 31, 2008:
(a) Restatement for acknowledgement of default
interest and restatements, application
of effective rate, acknowledgement de
Deteriorated portfolio and effect on provisions.
(b) Restatement on account of external sales
force of products not assignable at effective
rate and reversal of monetary correction of
goods awarded in payment.
(c) Restatement for monetary correction
reversal and restatement for depreciation
& amortization.
(d) Acknowledgement of deteriorated fixed assets.
(e) Net Restatement of investments in affiliates
and business-line support companies,
reversal of monetary correction and
acknowledgement of dividends.
(f) Corresponds to the elimination of the
monetary correction of the 2008 period.
(g) Restatement caused by deferred taxes
over conversion restatements to the new
accounting norms.
(h) Net effect on results of the restatements
indicated in the previous numbers.

5. Conciliation of income and loss for the period ending on December 31, 2008.
As of 12.31.2008
MM$

Results according to PCGA
Restatement to Credits & accounts receivable from clients (a)
Restatement for investments in companies (e)
Restatement for deterioration (d)

56,310
756
(156)
(6)

Restatement of fixed assets (c)

(1,916)

Restatement of other assets (b)

(4,140)

Restatement of deferred taxes (g)

2,008

Restatement of monetary correction (f)

33,654

Restatements subtotal

30,200

Total result according to new norms

86,510
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6. Conciliation of the Cash Flow Statement for the period ending on December 31, 2008.
Saldos
Consolidados
PCGA
MM$

Efecto de la
Transición
MM$

Reclasificaciones
MM$

Saldos Ajustados
MM$

56,310

30,200

8,859

95,369

4,916

4,671

(2,755)

6,832

FLOW GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES:
Fiscal year profit before income tax
Charges (credits) to results that do not imply cash movement:
Depreciation and amortization
Provisions for credits, accounts receivable and other

65,596

Provisions and write-offs of goods received in payment
Contingency provisions

-

435

66,031

-

884

884

884

-

( 884)

-

Market value adjustment of investments & derivatives

(9,221)

-

-

(9,221)

Tax provisions

10,867

(2,008)

(8,859)

-

Monetary correction

33,654

(33,654)

-

-

Net Income on interest & Restatements

-

-

(214,176)

(214,176)

Net income on commissions

-

-

(42,052)

(42,052)

(51,940)

-

51,940

-

-

-

42,887

42,887

1,344

6,290

(24,655)

(17,021)

Net variation of interest, restatements and commissions accrued over assets & liabilities
Net foreign exchange profit (loss)
Other charges that do not imply cash movement

112,410

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients and banks
Buyback and security loan contracts
Negotiable securities
Investment securities available for sale
Fixed asset purchases
Fixed asset sales
Sale of goods received in payment or awarded
Other assets and liabilities
Deposits and other term deposits

(70,467)

(829,293)

-

138,480

(690,813)

534

-

48

582

36,815

-

(819)

35,996

(568,293)

-

7,904

(560,389)

9,470

-

(9,470)

-

84

-

(84)

-

776

-

(776)

-

( 29,693)

-

14,886

(14,807)

-

-

981,802

981,802

Deposits and other sight liabilities

-

-

21,729

21,729

Bonds for buyback contracts and security loans

-

-

262,580

262,580

Foreign loans

-

-

241,562

241,562

Foreign loan payments

-

-

(326,232)

(326,232)
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Consolidated PCGA Consolidated PCGA
balances
balances
MM$
MM$

Reclassifications
MM$

Restated balances
MM$

Net increase (decrease) of other debt with banks

-

-

149,987

149,987

Other loans obtained

-

-

12,716

12,716

-

-

(9,884)

(9,884)

371

(109)

-

262

Payment of other loans obtained
Dividends perceived from investments in companies
Net positive (negative) flow originated by operating activities

1,285,759

34,624

FLOW ORIGINATED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
Fixed asset purchases
Fixed asset sales

(9,470)

-

-

( 9,470)

84

-

-

84

776

-

-

776

(8,610)

-

-

(8,610)

Deposits and other term deposits

911,799

-

911,799

-

Bonds for buyback contracts and security loans

262,576

-

262,576

-

Sale of goods received in payment or awarded
Negative net flow originated by investment activities

FLOW ORIGINATED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issued debt securities
Redemption of debt securities issued
Foreign loans
Foreign loan payments
Net increase (decrease) of other debt with banks
Other loans obtained
Payment of other loans obtained
Payment of shares acquired by the Bank
Dividends paid

94,894

-

-

94,894

(86,995)

-

-

(86,995)

222,070

-

(222,070)

-

(264,986)

-

264,986

-

150,363

-

(150,363)

-

12,716

-

(12,716)

-

(9,884)

-

9,884

-

(17,953)

-

-

(17,953)

-

(55,592)

-

1,240,737

-

(45,022)

5,390

-

(39,632)

Initial cash and cash equivalent balance

226,718

-

5,390

221,328

Final cash and cash equivalent balance

181,696

-

-

181,696

Net variation of cash and cash equivalent

45,022

-

5,390

(39,632)

Positive (negative) net flow originated by investment activities

YEAR’S POSITIVE (NEGATIVE) NET FLOW

(55,592)
(65,646)
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NOTA 3.
Relevant Facts

York, United States of America. The Bank’s New
York Branch was officially inaugurated on May
4, 2009.

Corpbanca
At the Board Meeting held on January 27, 2009
it was agreed to summon the General Ordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting on February 26, 2009 in
order to debate matters of its competence and,
among others, should such Meeting approve the
Company’s Financial Statements, to decide about
the Board’s proposal to distribute 100% of the
profits of 2008, amounting to $56,310,425,238,
which means distributing a dividend of
$0,25452585986414 for each share; which, if
approved, will be paid upon adjournment of the
Shareholders’ Meeting.
Likewise, and considering the changes derived
from the implementation of the Compendium of
Accounting Norms of the Superintendence for
Banks & Financial Institutions, the Board agreed
to propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting to set
as dividend policy to distribute at least 50% of
profits, calculated as the total profits of the fiscal
year minus a sum equivalent that would permit
maintaining the company’s Shareholders’ equity
in real terms.
On October 22, 2008, the US Federal Reserve
Board authorized the Bank to establish a
Corpbanca Branch Office in the City of New
York, United States of America. The opening of
the referred branch office is subject –under any
circumstance- to the issuance of the respective
license by the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency (OCC). On October 24, 2008, the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC)
issued the respective approval for the opening of
a Branch Office of this Bank in the City of New
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By virtue of public deed dated September 2,
2009, the Bank legally incorporated the linesupport company denominated SMU Corp S.A.,
with 51% shareholding by Corbanca and 49%
shareholding by SMU S.A. and whose only line
of business will be the issue, operation, and
management of credit cards.
The Articles of Incorporation of that company
were duly authorized by the Superintendence
for Banks & Financial Institutions via its letter
dated July 27, 2009; which was approved by the
Bank’s Director’s Committee at its meeting of
August 18, 2009 and by the Board of Directors
at its meeting of September 1, 2009.
At the General Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting held on October 15, 2009, it was
agreed to reduce the number of Board Members
from 11 to 9 members and to increase the
number of Alternate Board Members from
1 to 2 alternate members. Additionally the
meeting elected the Board of Directors, whose
composition now stands as follows:
Board members: Messrs. Alvaro Saieh Bendeck,
Jorge Andrés Saieh Guzmán, Fernando Massú
Tare, Fernando Aguad Dagach, Julio Barriga
Silva, Brian O´Neill, Segismundo SchulinZeuthen Serrano, Jorge Selume Zaror and
Hernán Somerville Senn. Alternate Board
Members: Juan Rafael Gutiérrez Avila and
Héctor Valdés Ruiz.
The sale of the Bank’s own issued shares,
amounting to 5,672,732,264 shares of stock
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–equivalent to 2.5% of the company’s stock
capital- was authorized pursuant to article 27
of the Law on Corporations and article 29 of
its Rules shall be offered, primarily, to those
shareholders who appear registered in the
corresponding Shareholders’ Register at least 5
working days in advance, prorated according to
their respective shareholding, for a period of 30
days as of the date of publication of this option.
The company, Corp Capital Agencia de Valores
S.A., was legally incorporated by virtue of public
deed dated 16 of November of 2009, of which
it shares 9,999 shares, out of the total of 10,000
shares, subscribed & paid in the same act of
legal incorporation. The remaining share was
subscribed and paid by Corp Capital Corredores
de Bolsa S.A. The affiliate’s only line of business
shall be to execute all such acts, contracts and
operations proper of stock brokers, pursuant
to the norms currently in effect and those that
might eventually become effective subsequently,
especially article 24 of Law 18,045 on the Stock
Market, and it shall be eligible to perform
ancillary consulting activities and all such other
activities that the Securities Superintendence
authorizes Stock Brokers to perform.
That company’s articles of incorporation were
authorized by the Superintendence for Banks &
Financial Institutions via letter N°13.396 dated
November 2, 2009.
On November 20, 2009 the bank agreed to
the terms of issue and placement of bonds
in international markets, for a total of
USD 115,119,000, which were placed on
November 30, 2009, according to the rules of
regulation “S” of the Securities Exchange Act
of the United States of America. Their due

date is March 1, 2010. The interest rate was
0.56219% per annum.
These securities were not recorded in the
Securities Registry held by the Chilean
Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions, nor with the Securities and Exchange
Commission of the United States of America.
They were therefore not offered or sold in the
United States of American, or to people of said
country, nor were they offered in public bid
in Chile.
At the Extraordinary Board of Directors’
Meeting held on November 24, 2009, in
exercise of the powers entrusted by the General
Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders held on
October 15, 2009, for the sale of 5.672.732.264
of the Bank’s own issued stock, it was agreed to:
Set the price for each Corpbanca own issue share
to be sold by the Bank’s preferential bidding
process, both in the first period of preferential
bidding for 30 days as from the date of its
respective publication, as in the second period
for 45 days as from the date of expiry of the first
preemptive right period, in the sum of $ 3.50
(three point fifty dollars legal tender); (2) The
timeline agreed to for purposes of proceeding
with the sale of the Bank’s own issue stock is:
(i) Publication referred to in Article 104 of the
Corporations Regulations which sets out the
rights of shareholders over those entered in the
Register of Shareholders of the company with
5 prior business days to the one from which
rights can be exercised: November 26, 2009.
(ii) Publication regarding preferential bids for
the disposal of own issue shares: December 6,
2009. (iii) Termination date of first preferential

bidding period: January 4, 2010. (iv) Starting
date of second preferential bidding period:
January 5, 2010. (v) Termination of second
preferential bidding period: February 8, 2010.
(3) The pertinent publications must be placed in
the Diario La Tercera daily newspaper.
On December 10, 2009, Corpbanca proceeded
to issue and place international bonds for a
total of US $ 67,425,000.-, under the rules of
Regulation “S” of the Securities Exchange Act
of the United States of America. Their maturity
date is March 15, 2010. The interest rate was
0.55519% per annum.
These securities were not recorded in the
Securities Registry held by the Chilean
Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions, nor with the Securities and
Exchange Commission of the United States
of America.
They were therefore not offered or sold in the
United States of American, or to people of said
country, nor were they offered in public bid
in Chile.
Corp Capital Asesorías Financieras S.A.
At a Regular Board of Directors’ meeting
held on May 4, 2009, the Board Chairman,
Mr. Patricio Leighton Zambelli presented his
resignation, effective July 15, 2009.
Following this the Board of Directors agreed to
appoint Mr. Fernando Massú Tare as Chairman
of the Board.
On November 30, 2009, the First Board of
Directors’ Meeting was held with the attendance
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of directors Messrs. Mario Chamorro Carrizo,
Cristóbal Prado Fernández and. Alvaro
Barriga Oliva, appointing Mr. Pablo Andrés
Solari González as the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer.

At Regular Board of Directors’ Meeting Nº
233, held on November 15, 2009, the Chief
Executive Office announced the voluntary
resignation of Mr. Jorge Granetovic Yob, which
was duly accepted.

Corp Capital Administradora General de
Fondos S.A.

At Regular Board of Directors’ Meeting Nº 234,
held on December 22, 1009, Mr. Jorge Max
Palazuelos was appointed Director of the Board.

The Twenty-fourth Annual General
Shareholders’ Meeting, held on February 26,
proceeded to renew the company’s Board of
Directors, appointing Messrs. Armando Ariño
Joiro, Oscar Cerda Urrutia, Jorge Franetovic
Yob, Claudio Chamorro Carrizo, and Pablo de la
Cerda Merino. The Board will be in office for a
period of 3 years.
Furthermore, it was agreed to distribute
retained earnings and the profit for the year
ended 2008 in the amount of MM $ 1,346
(historical) as dividends.
At Regular Board of Director’s Meeting
No. 229, held on April 14, 2009, the Board
unanimously agreed to appoint Mr. Pablo de la
Cerda Merino as the Board’s Chairman.
At Regular Board of Director’s Meeting No.
232, held on September 15, 2009, the Board
agreed to cancel the dividends corresponding
to the Management Company’s 2008 Year’s
retained earnings, which were duly canceled on
September 29, 2009.
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Corpbanca Corredores de Seguros S.A.
At the Twelfth Ordinary General Shareholders’
Meeting held on April 30, 2009, it was agreed
to distribute to shareholders the entire 2008
Year’s profit, as soon as the company has funds
available for this purpose and in any event no
later than June 30, 2009.
Corp Capital Agencia de Valores S.A.

Corp Capital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.
At the Regular Board of Directors’ Meeting
held on July 10, 2009, the Chairman of
the Board Mr. Patricio Leighton Zambelli
announced his resignation effective July 20,
2009; Mr. Fernando Massú Tare was appointed
as his replacement.

On November 30, 2009, the First Regular
Board of Directors’ Meeting was held, which was
attended by the Directors Messrs. Mario Carrizo,
Cristóbal Prado Fernández and Alvaro Barriga
Oliva, appointing Mr. Pablo Andrés Solari
Gonzalez as company Chief Executive Officer.
Corplegal S.A.

At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on
November 25, 2009, Messrs. Fernando Massú
Tare as Chairman of the Board and Héctor
Valdéz Ruiz, Company Director tendered their
voluntary resignations.
Mr. Cristián Canales Palacios was appointed
Director of the company.
At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on
December 10, 2009, Mr. José Francisco Sánchez
Figueroa was appointed Director.

No relevant facts were reported.
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The Bank’s business activities
are mainly set in the local
market and it has strategically
aligned its operations in four
divisions.

Nota 4.
Business Segments
The segments report is defined by the Bank
based on its different business units, which
differ primarily in the risks and returns that
affect them.
The reportable segments and criteria used to
report to the highest Bank authority on the
operation’s decision making are consistent with
IFRS/NIIF 8 instructions.
The Bank’s business activities are mainly set in
the local market and it has strategically aligned
its operations in four divisions consisting of
four business segments based on its market
segments and the needs of its customers and
business partners. The four business segments
are Business Banking, Retail Banking, Treasury
and International Banking and Other Financial
Services. The Bank manages these business
segments through an internal profitability
information system. Management reviews its
segments based on gross operating margin and
only uses average balances to assess performance
and allocate resources.
The following is the description of each business
segment:
Business Banking
• Big Business and Corporate Banking
provides a comprehensive range of financial
products and services to companies with
annual sales in excess of USD10 million.

•

Financial products include Commercial
loans, lines of credit for working capital,
trade financing, payment services and shortterm deposits and others.
Companies: includes a comprehensive
range of financial products and services to
companies with annual sales under USD10
million. Leasing and factoring services have
been included in this business
activity segment.

Retail Banking
• Traditional and Private Banking offers,
among others, current accounts, consumer
loans, credit cards and mortgage loans to
the middle and high income segments.
Retail Banking includes consumer loans,
personal loans, financing for automobiles
and credit cards.
• The Banco Condell Consumer Division
offers consumer loans, credit cards and
mortgage loans, among others, to the natural
persons segment with incomes between
M$100 and M$600.
Treasury and International Banking
• It mainly includes treasury activities such as
financial management, financing and liquidity,
as well as international business activities.
Other Financial Services
• These are services rendered by our affiliate
companies which include insurance
brokerage, financial assessment services, asset
management and securities brokerage.
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The information presented in this Note is consistent with the analysis and identification of:
a) Results:
As of December 31, 2009
Business Banking

Net Interest Income
Commissions and income from services, net
Commissions and income from investments, net
Earnings in foreign currency (loss), net

Retail Banking

Companies
MM$$

Traditional and
Private Banking
MM$

Banco Condell
Consumer
Division
MM$

Treasury and
International
MM$

Other Financial
Services
MM$

Total
MM$

37,932

49,816

56,237

22,443

11,106

15,854

193,388

8,284

10,061

16,228

3,846

(430)

5,272

43,261

-

(3,500)

-

-

6,204

1,859

4,563

8,603

887

-

-

36,969

3,176

49,635

Big Company
and Corporate
MM$

Other operating income

-

2,490

-

-

227

2,370

5,087

Provision for loan losses

(13,700)

(12,370)

(20,672)

(21,891)

-

(222)

(68,855)

41,119

47,384

51,793

4,398

54,076

28,309

227,079

-

-

-

-

-

-

445

Gross Operating Margin
Other income and expenses
Operating Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

(126,388)

Profit before tax

-

-

-

-

-

-

101,136

2,471,150

1,150,829

1,258,486

207,940

33,794

-

5,122,199

-

-

-

-

452,914

-

452,914

Averages of Loans
Averages on Investments
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As of December 31, 2008
Business Banking

Retail Banking

Companies
MM$$

Traditional and
Private Banking
MM$

Banco Condell
Consumer
Division
MM$

Treasury and
International
MM$

Other Financial
Services
MM$

Total
MM$

21,525

39,104

51,612

29,820

61,775

10,340

214,176

4,492

8,356

15,117

5,411

270

8,406

42,052

-

(5,059)

-

-

60,056

-

54,997

2,810

4,656

62

-

(50,415)

-

(42,887)

Other operating income

-

472

700

-

194

6,467

7,833

Provision for loan losses

(3,366)

(7,082)

(21,507)

(23,640)

-

599

(54,996)

Gross Operating Margin

25,461

40,447

45,984

11,591

71,880

25,812

221,175

Other income and expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

262

Operating Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

(126,068)

Net Interest Income
Commissions and income from services, net
Commissions and income from investments, net
Earnings in foreign currency (loss), net

Profit before tax
Averages on Loans
Averages on Investments

Big Company
and Corporate
MM$

-

-

-

-

-

-

95,369

1,850,688

1,146,589

1,104,849

272,065

10,003

-

4,384,194

-

-

-

-

233,167

107,905

341,072
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b) Assets and Liabilities
As of December 31, 2009
Business Banking

Retail Banking

Companies
MM$$

Traditional and
Private Banking
MM$

Banco Condell
Consumer
Division
MM$

Treasury and
International
MM$

Other Financial
Services
MM$

Total
MM$

190

10,707

791,393

4,212

-

233

806,735

65

1,462

251,322

175,138

-

64

428,051

Commercial

2,464,030

1,056,163

320,076

71

22,756

-

3,863,096

Loans before provisions

2,464,285

1,068,332

1,362,791

179,421

22,756

297

5,097,882

Big Company
and Corporate
MM$

Loans:
Housing
Consumer

Lending provisions

(24,375)

(25,573)

(25,543)

(20,465)

0

2,439,910

1,042,759

1,337,248

158,956

22,756

297

5,001,926

Negotiable securities

-

-

-

-

54,867

21,289

76,156

Buyback and security loan contracts

-

-

-

-

152

51,818

51,970

Financial derivative contracts

-

-

-

-

125,484

656

126,140

Investment securities available for sale

-

-

-

-

737,162

-

737,162

Loans net of provisions

Assets not included in segments

(95,956)

-

-

-

-

-

-

386,105

2,439,910

1,042,759

1,337,248

158,956

940,421

74,060

6,379,459

Current Accounts

74,946

149,155

106,665

-

588

-

331,354

Other sight balances

22,723

16,800

125,422

3,642

-

-

168,587

544,388

189,955

323,616

5,984

Total assets

Deposits and term deposits

2,242,992

-

3,306,935

Buyback and security loan contracts

428,378

37,035

465,413

Financial derivative contracts

114,532

171

114,703

Liabilities with banks

362,403

362,403

Issued debt securities

935,219

935,219

Liabilities not included in segments

191,310

Equity
Total liabilities and equity
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503,535
642,057

355,910

555,703

9,626

4,084,112

37,206

6,379,459
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As of December 31, 2008
Business Banking

Retail Banking

Companies
MM$$

Traditional and
Private Banking
MM$

Banco Condell
Consumer
Division
MM$

Treasury and
International
MM$

Other Financial
Services
MM$

Total
MM$

155

11,178

678,011

2,890

-

-

692,234

6,964

253

208,859

290,039

-

-

506,115

Commercial

2,312,610

1,022,267

426,466

5,470

29,009

-

3,795,822

Loans before provisions

2,319,729

1,033,698

1,313,336

298,399

29,009

-

4,994,171

Big Company
and Corporate
MM$

Loans:
Housing
Consumer

Lending provisions

(11,891)

(16,795)

(24,748)

(21,251)

(25)

-

(74,710)

2,307,838

1,016,903

1,288,588

277,148

28,984

-

4,919,461

Negotiable securities

-

-

-

-

62,827

22,278

85,105

Buyback and security loan contracts

-

-

-

-

-

50,514

50,514

Financial derivative contracts

-

-

-

-

204,361

5,121

209,482

Investment securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Available for sale

-

-

-

-

576,478

-

576,478

Assets not included in segments

-

-

-

-

-

-

362,939

2,307,838

1,016,903

1,288,588

277,148

872,650

77,913

6,203,979

48,973

124,037

83,993

-

1,661

-

258,664

Loans net of provisions

Total Assets
Current Accounts
Other sight balances

15,891

10,992

13,744

58,611

-

-

99,238

238,682

240,306

388,562

19,755

2,463,437

-

3,350,742

Buyback and security loan contracts

-

-

-

-

307,300

44,171

351,471

Financial derivative contracts

-

-

-

-

190,871

4,737

195,608

Liabilities with banks

-

-

-

-

492,606

-

492,606

Issued debt securities

-

-

-

-

765,172

-

765,172

Liabilities not included in segments

-

-

-

-

-

-

195,932

Deposits and term deposits

Equity
Total liabilities and equity

303,546

375,335

486,299

78,366

4,221,047

494,546
48,908

6,203,979
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Nota 5.
Cash and Cash Equivalent
a) Breakdown of cash and cash equivalent
The breakdown of balances included in cash and
cash equivalent is as follows:

As of December
31, 2009
MM$

As of December
31, 2008
MM$

As of January 1,
2008
MM$

Cash

70,463

42,951

20,468

Deposits in Banco Central de Chile

18,185

13,923

25,103

1,872

1,656

1,528

Cash and bank deposits

Deposits in local banks
Deposits abroad

19,811

22,796

21,607

110,331

81,326

68,706

Net Operations with clearance underway

30,942

31,527

30,148

High liquidity financial securities

67,164

18,678

67,912

33,127

50,165

54,562

241,564

181,696

221,328

Subtotal Cash and bank deposits
(1)

Buyback contracts (2)
Total cash and cash equivalent

1. Corresponds to negotiable securities and Investment securities available for sale, whose maturities do not exceed three months from the date of
acquisition.
2. Corresponds to buyback contracts, whose maturities do not exceed three months from the date of acquisition, that are presented under the
“Buyback and security loan contracts” line in the statement of results.

The level of cash funds held and in the Banco
Central de Chile respond to regulations on the
average statutory reserves that the bank must
maintain over monthly periods.
b) Operations with clearance underway
Operations with clearance underway are
transactions which are awaiting only the
clearance that will increase or decrease funds
in the Banco Central de Chile and in foreign
banks, usually within 12 or 24 working hours
following the close of each financial year,
detailed as follows:
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As of December
31, 2009
MM$

As of December
31, 2008
MM$

As of January 1,
2008
MM$

Documents provided by other banks (reserves)

34,555

33,651

29,570

Receivable Funds

61,241

84,052

23,883

Subtotal assets

95,796

117,703

53,453

Payable Funds

64,854

86,176

23,305

Subtotal liabilities

64,854

86,176

23,305

30,942

31,527

30,148

Assets

Liabilities

Net Operations with clearance underway
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nota 6.
Negotiable Securities
The breakdown of securities designated as financial securities for negotiation is the following:
As of December 31,
2009
MM$

As of December 31,
2008
MM$

As of January 1,
2008
MM$

260

54,179

100,272

589

3,599

3,475

8,332

7,930

11,549

Government and Banco Central de Chile Securities:
Banco Central de Chile Bonds
Banco Central de Chile Notes
Other Government and Banco Central de Chile Securities
Other local institution securities:
Bonds

-

Notes

-

Other Securities

54,788

13,599

-

-

2,495

-

9,692

5,798

27,827

Foreign Institution Securities:
Bonds
Notes
Other Securities
Mutual funds Investments:
Funds managed by related organizations
Funds managed by third parties
Totals

As of December 31, 2009, securities sold
under buyback contracts to customers and
financial institutions are included under the
heading Government and Banco Central de
Chile Securities, amounting to MM$4,000
(MM$62,563 in 2008).

9,724

-

-

-

76,156

85,105

152,847

As of December 31, 2009, the buyback
contracts have an average maturity of 5 days at
Year’s closing.
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NOTA 7.
Buyback and Securities Loans Contracts
a) The Bank acquires financial securities agreeing to resell them at a future date.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the securities acquired with resale commitments are:

Balances As of December 31, 2009
From 1 day and
under than 3
months
MM$

Over three months
and under 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Total
MM$

152

-

-

152

Government and Banco Central de Chile Securities:
Banco Central Securities
Treasury Bonds and Notes

-

-

207

207

Other fiscal securities

-

-

-

-

Other securities issued locally:

-

-

-

-

Other local bank securities

18,034

18,170

-

36,204

Bonds and company business papers

14,755

466

-

15,221

186

-

-

186

Other securities issued locally
Securities issued abroad:

-

-

-

-

Government and Central Bank securities

-

-

-

-

Other Securities issued abroad

-

-

-

-

Mutual Funds Investments:

-

-

-

-

Funds managed by related companies

-

-

-

-

Funds managed by third parties
Totals
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-

-

-

-

33,127

18,636

207

51,970
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Balances as of
January 1, 2008

Balances as of December 31, 2008

Government and Banco Central de Chile Securities
Banco Central Securities
Treasury Bonds and Notes

From 1 day and
under than 3
months
MM$

Over three months
and under 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Total
MM$

Total
MM$

-

-

-

-

-

1,497

511

-

2,008

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other fiscal securities

-

-

-

-

-

Other securities issued locally:

-

-

-

-

-

34,476

3,902

-

38,378

-

9,893

235

-

10,128

-

Other local bank securities
Bonds and company business papers
Other securities issued locally

-

-

-

-

55,438

Securities issued abroad:

-

-

-

-

-

Government and Central Bank securities

-

-

-

-

-

Other Securities issued abroad

-

-

-

-

-

Mutual Funds Investments:

-

-

-

-

-

Funds managed by related companies

-

-

-

-

-

Funds managed by third parties

-

-

-

-

-

45,866

4,648

-

50,514

55,438

Totals
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b) The Bank also acquires funds by selling financial securities and agreeing to buy them back at
a future date, plus a prefixed interest rate.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, securities sold under buyback contracts are the following:

Balances As of December 31, 2009
From 1 day and
under than 3
months
MM$

Over three months
and under 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Government and Banco Central de Chile Securities

Total
MM$

-

Banco Central Securities

-

424,378

-

424,378

Treasury Bonds and Notes

-

-

-

-

Other fiscal institutions

-

-

-

-

Other securities issued locally
Other local bank securities

39,648

-

-

39,648

-

-

-

-

1,487

-

-

1,487

Government and Central Bank securities

-

-

-

-

Other Securities issued abroad

-

-

-

-

Bonds and company business papers
Other securities issued locally
Securities issued abroad

-

Mutual Funds Investments

-

Funds managed by related companies

-

-

-

-

Funds managed by third parties

-

-

-

-

41,135

424,378

-

465,513

Totals
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Balances as of
January 1, 2008

Balances as of December 31, 2008
From 1 day and
under than 3
months
MM$

Over three months
and under 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Total
MM$

Total
MM$

100,253

-

-

100,253

55,709

Government and Banco Central de Chile
Banco Central Securities
Treasury Bonds and Notes
Other fiscal institutions

1,957

-

-

1,957

-

-

-

-

-

-

248,771

177

-

248,948

44,369

313

-

-

313

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other securities issued locally
Other local bank securities
Bonds and company business papers
Other securities issued locally
Securities issued abroad
Government and Central Bank securities

-

-

-

-

-

Other Securities issued abroad

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mutual Funds Investments
Funds managed by related companies
Funds managed by third parties
Totals

-

-

-

-

-

351,294

177

-

351,471

100,078
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NOTA 8.
Financial Derivative Contracts and Accounting Hedges
a) The Bank and its Affiliates use the following derivate securities for purposes of accounting
hedge and negotiation:
As of December 31, 2009
Notional amount of contract with final maturity in

Reasonable value

Flow Hedging (F)
or Reasonable
value
(VR)

Under 3 months
MM$

From 3 months
to 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Assets
MM$

Liabilities
MM$

Currency Forwards

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency and rate Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate futures

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency Forwards

1,964,823

705,582

39,959

57,271

60,825

Interest rate Swaps

35,498

358,087

1,973,385

37,564

38,897

18

60,732

578,041

31,305

14,981

Currency and rate Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

Currency call options

-

-

-

-

-

Rates call options

-

-

-

-

-

Currency put options

-

-

-

-

-

Rates put options

-

-

-

-

-

Derivatives held for accounting hedge

Total derivatives held for accounting hedge
Derivatives held for negotiation

Currency Swaps

Interest rate futures

-

-

-

-

-

Total derivatives held for negotiation

2,000,339

1,124,401

2,591,385

126,140

114,703

Total financial derivatives

2,000,339

1,124,401

2,591,385

126,140

114,703
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As of December 31, 2008
Notional amount of contract with final maturity in

Reasonable Value

Flow Hedging (F)
or Reasonable
value
(VR)

Under 3 months
MM$

From 3 months
to 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Assets
MM$

Liabilities
MM$

Currency Forwards

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Derivatives held for accounting hedge

Currency and rate Swaps

VR

-

-

42,905

543

-

Currency call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate futures

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

42,905

543

-

Total derivatives held for accounting hedge
Derivatives held for negotiation
Currency Forwards

1,812,586

983,058

307,939

178,597

163,634

Interest rate Swaps

-

115,744

1,143,598

8,922

7,154

Currency Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

Currency and rate Swaps

-

-

382,998

21,420

24,820

Currency call options

-

-

-

-

-

Rates call options

-

-

-

-

-

Currency put options

-

-

-

-

-

Rates put options

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate futures

-

-

-

-

-

Total derivatives held for negotiation

1,812,586

1,098,802

1,834,535

208,939

195,608

Total financial derivatives

1,812,586

1,098,802

1,877,440

209,482

195,608
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As of January 1, 2008
Notional amount of contract with final maturity in

Reasonable Value

Flow Hedging (F)
or Reasonable
value
(VR)

Under 3 months
MM$

From 3 months
to 1 year
MM$

Over one Year
MM$

Assets
MM$

Liabilities
MM$

Currency Forwards

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency and rate Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate futures

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total derivatives held for accounting hedge

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency Forwards

-

988,681

988,970

112,085

25,103

25,963

Interest rate Swaps

-

39,215

30,000

6,328,261

8,372

7,651

Currency Swaps

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency and rate Swaps

-

-

784

355,776

556

576

Currency call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates call options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Currency put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rates put options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Interest rate futures

-

Derivatives held for accounting hedge

Derivatives held for negotiation

26,470

-

-

24

47

Total derivatives held for negotiation

1,054,366

1,019,754

6,796,122

34,055

34,237

Total financial derivatives

1,054,366

1,019,754

6,796,122

34,055

34,237

b) Hedging
As of December 31, 2009 the Bank does not
present hedging derivatives.
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As of December 31, 2008 the bank presents
reasonable value hedging to hedge interest rate
risks. As of December 31, 2008 the inefficiency
of the hedging is acknowledged under the item

“Net Exchange rate profit (loss)” in the financial
results, totaling MM$257.
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c) The following is the estimate as of
December 31, 2008 of those financial years in
which flows were expected, and the estimated
result of said years:

The Bank uses an average camera Swap to hedge
its exposure to changes in the reasonable value of
liabilities, BCOR-K707.

Currency Swaps

Within 1 year

From 1 to 3
Years

From 3 to 8
Years

Over 8 Years

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

(1,923.28)

(1,947.16)

4,413.52

-

543.08

As of December 31,

NOTE 9.
Owed by Banks
At the closing of these financial statements as of
December 31, 2009, 2008 and January 1, 2008,
the balances shown under item “Owed by banks”
is as follows:

As of January 1,

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2008
MM$

-

-

-

63,600

20,005

-

Banco Central non transferable securities

-

-

-

Other debts with the Banco Central

-

-

-

Interbank Loans

-

-

28,014

Current Account Overdrafts

-

-

-

Non transferable deposits in local banks

-

-

-

Other debts with local banks

-

-

-

Provisions and deterioration of credits with
local banks

-

-

-

9,037

3,248

54,816

-

-

-

Local Banks
Loans and advances to Banks
Non available deposits in the Banco Central

Foreign Banks
Loans to foreign banks
Current Account Overdrafts
Non transferable deposits in foreign banks

-

-

-

13,589

14,443

-

(6)

(25)

(122)

Subtotal

22,620

17,666

54,694

Totals

86,220

37,671

82,708

Other debts with foreign banks
Provisions and deterioration of credits with
foreign banks
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The breakdown of movements in the years 2009 and 2008 of provisions and deterioration for credits
with domestic and foreign banks is as follows:
As of 31 December 2009

Balance as of January 1, 2009

Local Banks

Foreign Banks

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

-

(25)

(25)

Write-offs

-

-

-

Established provisions

-

(6)

(6)

Provisions released

-

25

25

Deterioration

-

-

-

Deterioration reversal

-

-

-

Balances as of December 31, 2009

-

(6)

(6)

As of 31 December 2008

Balance as of January 1, 2008

Local Banks

Foreign Banks

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

-

(122)

(122)

Write-offs

-

-

-

Established provisions

-

(100)

(100)

Provisions released

-

197

197

Deterioration

-

-

-

Deterioration reversal

-

-

-

Balances as of December 31, 2008

-

(25)

(25)
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NOTA10
Credits and Asset (Receivable)
Accounts from Clients

a) Credits and asset (receivable) accounts
from clients
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and
January 1, 2008, the loan portfolio was
comprised of the following:

Assets before Provisions

As of December 31, 2009

Provisions

Normal
Portfolio
MM$

Deteriorated
Portfolio
MM$

Total
MM$

Individual
MM$

Group
MM$

Total
MM$

Net Asset
MM$

2,978,831

165,386

3,144,217

23,286

14,232

37,518

3,106,699

163,683

69,795

233,478

14,781

597

15,378

218,100

44,863

3,457

48,320

149

700

849

47,471

Commercial loans:
Commercial loans
Foreign trade credits
Current account debtors
Factoring operations

50,034

3,514

53,548

-

286

286

53,262

Leasing transactions

264,971

30,886

295,857

1,263

885

2,148

293,709

1,334

116

1,450

5

30

35

1,415

3,503,716

273,154

3,776,870

39,484

16,730

56,214

3,720,656

Letters of credit loans

134,979

9,728

144,707

-

1,501

1,501

143,206

Endorsable mutual mortgage loans

202,550

9,918

212,468

-

2,232

2,232

210,236

Other mutual housing credits

387,154

6,136

393,290

-

1,625

1,625

391,665

160

-

160

-

-

-

160

53,300

2,810

56,110

-

681

681

55,429

778,143

28,592

806,735

-

6,039

6,039

800,696

Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Housing loans:

Leasing transactions
Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Consumer loans:
Consumer loans in installments

273,389

21,007

294,396

-

21,789

21,789

272,607

Current account debtors

26,128

309

26,437

-

359

359

26,078

Credit card debtors

53,437

1,922

55,359

-

3,562

3,562

51,797

503

20

523

-

6

6

517

45,887

5,449

51,336

-

7,981

7,981

43,355

399,344

28,707

428,051

-

33,697

33,697

394,354

4,681,203

330,453

5,011,656

39,484

56,466

95,950

4,915,706

Consumer leasing transactions
Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Totals
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Assets before Provisions

As of December 31, 2008

Provisions

Normal
Portfolio
MM$

Deteriorated
Portfolio
MM$

Total
MM$

Individual
MM$

Group
MM$

Total
MM$

Net Asset
MM$

2,676,035

153,185

2,829,220

15,803

9,076

24,879

2,804,341

403,992

59,121

463,113

4,973

612

5,585

457,528

80,667

3,339

84,006

167

615

782

83,224

Commercial loans:
Commercial loans
Foreign trade credits
Current account debtors
Factoring operations

49,668

4,665

54,333

-

213

213

54,120

Leasing transactions

298,888

26,284

325,172

1,365

1,163

2,528

322,644

1,808

499

2,307

25

60

85

2,222

3,511,058

247,093

3,758,151

22,333

11,739

34,072

3,724,079

Letters of credit loans

157,143

12,930

170,073

-

1,838

1,838

168,235

Endorsable mutual mortgage loans

264,964

5,511

270,475

-

1,337

1,337

269,138

Other mutual housing credits

230,014

5,416

235,430

-

1,233

1,233

234,197

366

-

366

-

1

1

365

15,019

871

15,890

-

193

193

15,697

667,506

24,728

692,234

-

4,602

4,602

687,632

Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Housing loans:

Leasing transactions
Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Consumer loans:
Consumer loans in installments

319,602

21,627

341,229

-

19,754

19,754

321,475

Current account debtors

29,908

318

30,226

-

418

418

29,808

Credit card debtors

67,054

3,883

70,937

-

5,455

5,455

65,482

233

41

274

-

3

3

271

56,196

7,253

63,449

-

10,406

10,406

53,043

472,993

33,122

506,115

-

36,036

36,036

470,079

4,651,557

304,943

4,956,500

22,333

52,377

74,710

4,881,790

Consumer leasing transactions
Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Totals
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Assets before Provisions

As of January 1, 2008

Provisions

Normal
Portfolio
MM$

Deteriorated
Portfolio
MM$

Total
MM$

Individual
MM$

Group
MM$

Total
MM$

Net Asset
MM$

2,068,792

140,312

2,209,104

14,091

4,978

19,069

2,190,035

272,555

8,476

281,031

1,637

325

1,962

279,069

33,246

1,719

34,965

121

152

273

34,692

Commercial loans:
Commercial loans
Foreign trade credits
Current account debtors
Factoring operations

89,211

2,506

91,717

-

917

917

90,800

Leasing transactions

232,643

24,105

256,748

2,091

414

2,505

254,243

352

115

467

5

5

10

457

2,696,799

177,233

2,874,032

17,945

6,791

24,736

2,849,296

Letters of credit loans

176,965

4,631

181,596

-

854

854

180,742

Endorsable mutual mortgage loans

199,639

699

200,338

-

372

372

199,966

Other mutual housing credits

152,714

1,943

154,657

-

465

465

154,192

192

-

192

-

-

-

192

15,578

450

16,028

-

144

144

15,884

545,088

7,723

552,811

-

1,835

1,835

550,976

Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Housing loans:

Leasing transactions
Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Consumer loans:
Consumer loans in installments

355,010

23,504

378,514

-

17,671

17,671

360,843

Current account debtors

27,262

309

27,571

-

394

394

27,177

Credit card debtors

59,599

2,206

61,805

-

3,578

3,578

58,227

335

-

335

-

1

1

334

56,057

2,891

58,948

-

5,594

5,594

53,354

498,263

28,910

527,173

-

27,238

27,238

499,935

3,740,150

213,866

3,954,016

17,945

35,864

53,809

3,900,207

Consumer leasing transactions
Other credits and asset (receivable)
accounts
Subtotals
Totals
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Collateral held by the Bank in ensuring
recovery of the interests reflected in its loan
portfolio relate to Mortgage type collateral
(urban and rural properties, agricultural lands,
maritime vessels and aircraft, mining claims
and other assets) and Liens ( Inventories,
agricultural goods, industrial goods,
plantations and other property as security).
As of December 31, 2009, December 31
and January 1, 2008, the reasonable value of
collateral held corresponds to 85.1%, 88.3%
and 90.9% of assets covered, respectively.

1, 2008 the reasonable value of collateral held
corresponds to 70.0%, 71.7% and 75.8% of the
balance on loans receivable, respectively.

In the case of mortgage collaterals, as of
December 31, 2009, December 31 and January

Over the 2009 financial year, the Bank has
received financial assets such as homes,

apartments, commercial and agricultural
lands, among others, for a total of MM $ 2,763
through the execution of guarantees (MM$2,426
in 2008 and MM$3,095 as of 01.01.2008).

The Bank finances its customers’ asset
purchases, both movable and immovable,
through the leasing contracts presented
under this item. As of December 31, 2009,
MM$207,928 corresponds to leasing of movable
assets (MM$253,607 as of 31.12.2008) and
MM$88,612 to leasing of real estate assets
(MM$72,205 as of 31.12.2008).

Local Loans

b) Portfolio characteristics
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the
portfolio before provisions presents a
breakdown by customer economic activity
based on the following:

Foreign Loans

Total

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

234,016

313,828

201

816

234,217

314,644

Commercial loans:
Manufacturing
Mining

83,855

80,685

-

-

83,855

80,685

Power, gas and water

239,087

250,874

-

6,192

239,087

257,066

Agriculture and livestock

151,272

165,756

-

4,438

151,272

170,194

14,006

19,322

-

2,179

14,006

21,501

68,281

86,195

-

-

68,281

86,195

184,558

111,077

-

2,766

184,558

113,843

48,739

28,635

-

-

48,739

28,635

510,805

388,817

-

-

510,805

388,817

Forestry
Fishing
Transport
Telecommunications
Construction
Business

454,058

396,208

60,462

6,124

514,520

402,332

Services

1,621,353

1,513,287

305

651

1,621,658

1,513,938

105,872

343,276

-

37,025

105,872

380,301

3,715,902

3,697,960

60,968

60,191

3,776,870

3,758,151

Housing Loans

806,735

692,234

-

-

806,735

692,234

Consumer loans

428,051

506,115

-

-

428,051

506,115

4,950,688

4,896,309

60,968

60,191

5,011,656

4,956,500

Others
Subtotals

Totals
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c) Provisions
The provisions movement during the 2009 and 2008 financial years is summarized as follows:

Balances as of January 1, 2008

Individual
Provisions
MM$

Group
Provisions
MM$

Total
MM$

17,945

35,864

53,809

Deteriorated portfolio write-offs:
Commercial loans

(1,358)

(4,792)

(6,150)

Housing loans

-

(493)

(493)

Consumer loans

-

(39,296)

(39,296)

Total Write-offs

(1,358)

(44,581)

(45,939)

Provisions established

12,894

62,494

75,388

Provisions released

(7,148)

(1,400)

(8,548)

Deterioration

-

-

-

Deterioration reversal

-

-

-

Balances as of December 31, 2008

22,333

52,377

74,710

Balances as January 1, 2009

22,333

52,377

74,710

(2,273)

(6,563)

(8,836)

-

(524)

(524)

Consumer loans

-

(51,412)

(51,412)

Total Write-offs

(2,273)

(58,499)

(60,772)

Provisions established

30,622

71,159

101,781

(11,198)

(8,571)

(19,769)

Deteriorated portfolio write-offs:
Commercial loans
Housing loans

Provisions released
Deterioration

-

-

-

Deterioration reversal

-

-

-

39,484

56,466

95,950

Balances as of December 31, 2009

Besides these credit risk provisions, country
risk provisions are maintained to hedge overseas
transactions and additional provisions approved
by the Board of Directors, which are shown in
liabilities under the Provisions item (Note 20).
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NOTA 11
Investment Securities
The breakdown of securities that the Bank has
designated as Available for sale investments and
Investment at maturity is as follows:

a) Available for sale investments
As of December 31

As of January 1

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2008
MM$

548,073

284,498

2,984

26,748

22,326

1,474

11,934

146,934

206,604

38,382

1,827

2,951

-

-

48,165

-

4,100

-

-

-

-

-

1,563

-

-

-

-

-

6,443

-

-

Other securities

-

-

-

Deterioration Provision

-

-

-

737,162

576,478

41,366

Government and Banco Central de Chile Securities
Banco Central de Chile Securities
General Treasury Bonds and Notes
Other fiscal securities
Other local institution securities
Bank deposit Notes
Bank mortgage bonds
Bank bonds
Other securities
Securities Issued abroad
Foreign Government or Central Bank securities
Other securities issued abroad
Deterioration Provision
Unquoted securities in active markets
Company bonds and business papers

Totals

Al 31 de As of December 31, 2009, the
Securities available for negotiation portfolio
includes a net loss on unrealized deferred taxes
amounting to MM$5,273 (MM$1,020 as of
December 31, 2008), recorded as an Equity
value restatement.
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b) Investments held at maturity
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 or January
1, 2008, the Bank does not hold Investments
at maturity.
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c) Deterioration of Investment securities
The amount acknowledged each year due to
deterioration of Investment securities presents
the following movement:
As of December 31
2009
MM$

2008
MM$

Balance as of January 1

-

-

Charges for the year

-

-

Deterioration reversal

-

-

Balance as of December 31

-

-

All investments quoted on non active markets,
classified as available for sale, have been recorded
at their reasonable value.

NOTA 12
Investments in Companies
As of December 31, 2009, January 1 and December 31, 2008 the main investments in companies are
detailed as follows:
31-Dec.-09
Sociedad

31-Dec.-08

%

1-Jan.-08

%

%

Share

MM$

Share

MM$

Share

MM$

12.90

1,057

12.90

1,057

12.90

1,057

Transbank S.A.

8.72

939

8.72

939

8.72

939

Combanc S.A.

4.72

135

8.67

251

8.67

251

Redbanc S.A.

2.50

110

2.50

110

2.50

110

Sociedad Interbancaria de Depósitos de Valores S.A.

Nexus S.A.

3.91

75

3.91

75

3.91

75

Santiago Stock Exchange shares

-

1,056

-

1,056

-

1,056

Chilean Electronic Stock Exchange shares

-

211

-

211

-

Totals

3,583

3,699

211
3,699

During the 2009 financial year, the Bank perceived dividends from its companies amounting to
MM$445 (MM$262 same period 2008).
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b) The movement of investment in companies
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, was the
following:

Initial book value on January 1
Investment acquisitions

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

3,699

3,699

-

-

(116)

-

Share in results

-

-

Dividends perceived

-

-

Investment sales

Exchange rate differences
Totals

-

-

3,583

3,699

On May 26, 2009, the Bank sold 46% of its
share in the company Combanc S.A. for a sum
of MM$116, generating a profit of MM$77
(Note 32).

c) The balance change produced by way of
deterioration is as follows:
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2009
MM$

2008
MM$

Balance at onset of deterioration January 1

-

-

Net Increase/Decrease

-

-

Year-end balance

-

-
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Nota 13
INTANGIBLES
a) This item, as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and January 1, 2008 consists of the following:
2009
Useful life
years

Concept

Remaining
amortization
years

Final gross
balance

Amortization and
Deterioration for
the Period

Final Net
Balance

MM$

MM$

MM$

Independently acquired intangibles
Integrated banking system

15

8

9,756

(1,126)

8,630

Computer equipment system or software

3

3

1,081

(304)

777

IT Projects

6

6

4,173

(575)

3,598

Other projects

5

5

652

(27)

625

15,662

(2,032)

13,630

Totals

2008

Concepto

Useful life
years

Remaining
amortization
years

01.01.08

Final gross
balance

Amortization and
Deterioration for
the Period

Final Net
Balance

Final Net
Balance

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

9,756

11,510

Independently acquired Intangibles
Integrated banking system

15

9

11,626

(1,870)

Computer equipment system or software

3

2

1,074

(230)

844

314

IT Projects

6

5

1,872

(319)

1,553

1,107

Other Projects

4

1

Totals

725

(626)

99

985

15,297

(3,045)

12,252

13,916
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b) The movement in the intangible asset item during the 2009 and 2008 financial year is as follows:

Net Initial Balance 2009

Balances as of January 1, 2009

Integrated banking
system
MM$

Computer equipment
system or software
MM$

9,756

Purchases
Retirements
Amortization
Others
Balances as of December 31, 2009

Net Initial Balance 2008

Balances as of January 1, 2008
Purchases
Retirements
Amortization
Others
Balances as of December 31, 2008

IT Projects
MM$

Others
MM$

Total
MM$

844

1,553

99

12,252

94

2,772

-

2,866

-

-

(57)

-

(57)

(1,126)

(304)

(575)

(27)

(2,032)

-

143

(95)

553

601

8,630

777

3,598

625

13,630

Sistema
BIntegrated banking
system
MM$

Computer equipment
system or software
MM$

IT Projects
MM$

Others
MM$

Total
MM$

11,510

314

1,107

985

13,916

-

509

642

-

1,151

-

-

-

-

-

(1,870)

(230)

(319)

(626)

(3,045)

116

251

123

(260)

230

9,756

844

1,553

99

12,252

c) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank has made the following intangible asset
purchasing commitments, detailed below:
Invested Amount
2009
MM$

Invested Amount
2008
MM$

-

4

750

-

License detail:
Business object - Borja Consultores Ltda.
Ingram Micro Chile S.A.
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Nota 14.
FIXED ASSETS
a) The composition and movement of Fixed assets as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and January 1,
2008, respectively, is as follows:
2009

Item

Buildings & land

Useful life
years

Remaining
amortization years

Final gross
balance
MM$

Depreciation and
Deterioration for the Period
MM$

Final Net
Balance
MM$

21

20

47,947

(2,452)

45,495

Equipment

5

4

5,541

(823)

4,718

Others

6

5

Totals

6,002

(1,003)

4,999

59,490

(4,278)

55,212

2008

Item

Buildings & land

Useful life
years

Remaining
amortization years

Final gross
balance
MM$

epreciation and
Deterioration for the Period
MM$

Final Net
Balance
MM$

Final Net Balance
as of 01/01/2008
MM$

43,519

19

18

48,417

(2,838)

45,579

Equipment

5

4

2,354

(373)

1,981

1,167

Others

5

4

4,247

(576)

3,671

2,902

55,018

(3,787)

51,231

47,588

Totals
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b) The Fixed assets item movement during the 2009 and 2008 financial years is as follows:
Buildings & land

Equipment

Others

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

45,579

1,981

3,671

51,231

2,895

3,506

1,766

8,167

-

(101)

(7)

(108)

(2,452)

(823)

(1,003)

(4,278)

Net Initial Balance 2009

Balances as of January 1, 2009
Purchases
Retirements
Amortization
Others
Balances as of December 31, 2009

(527)

155

572

200

45,495

4,718

4,999

55,212

Buildings & land

Equipment

Others

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

43,519

1,167

2,902

47,588

5,039

1,133

1,691

7,863

Net Initial Balance 2008

Balances as of January 1, 2008
Purchases
Retirements
Amortization

(593)

(8)

(53)

(654)

(2,838)

(373)

(576)

(3,787)

Others
Balances as of December 31, 2008

452

62

(293)
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45,579

1,981

3,671

51,231

c) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank holds operating lease contracts that cannot be
rescinded unilaterally. The future payment information is broken down as follows:
Future Operating Lease Payments
Land, Buildings & Equipment
Up to 1 Year

From 1 to 5 Years

Over 5 Years

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

As of December 31, 2009

4,234

15,498

22,988

42,720

As of December 31, 2008

4,641

18,995

10,685

34,321
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d) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank holds financial leasing contracts that cannot be
rescinded unilaterally. The future payment information is broken down as follows:
Future Financial Leasing Payments
Land, Buildings & Equipment
Up to 1 Year

From 1 to 5 Years

Over 5 Years

Total

As of December 31, 2009

410

570

-

980

As of December 31, 2008

860

1,199

-

2,059

NOTA 15.
CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES
a) Current Taxes
At the closing of each financial year the Bank
incorporated a First Class Income Tax Provision,
which was determined on the basis of existing
tax laws. The Provision, net of payable taxes
is reflected in the liabilities account in the

amount of MM$7,831 as of December 31, 2009
(MM$6,488 in tax refunds in December 2008
and MM$5,554 on January 1, 2008), according
to the following breakdown:

As of December 31,
2009

As of December 31,
2008

As of January 1,
2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

Income tax. 17% tax rate Less:

16,858

9,778

8,662

Monthly Provisional Payments

(7,258)

(13,313)

(12,636)

Training Expense Credit

(1,147)

(276)

(882)

Donations Credits

(273)

(179)

(220)

Real Estate Tax Credit

(325)

(1,097)

(84)

Other refundable taxes

(24)

(1,401)

(394)

7,831

(6,488)

(5,554)

Total

Other refundable taxes amounting to MM$24
as of December 31, 2009 (MM$1.401 as of
December 31, 2008 and MM$394 as of January
1, 2008), correspond to income tax refunds of
prior periods.
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b) Tax Results
The tax expense effect for the periods from January 1 to December 31, 2009 and 2008 includes the following items:
As of December 31,
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

(16,858)

(9,778)

1,449

733

(15,409)

(9,045)

(618)

186

(16,027)

(8,859)

Income Tax expense
Current year Tax
Deferred tax credit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Subtotals
Others
Net Income Tax charge on results

c) Reconciliation of Effective Tax rate
The following shows the reconciliation between the rate of income tax and the effective rate applied to
the income tax expense defined as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.
As of December 31,
2009

Profit before taxes
Permanent Differences and others
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2008

Tax Rate

Amount

Tax Rate

%

MM$

%

Amount
MM$

17.0

17,193

17.0

16,212

(1.2)

(1,166)

(7.7)

(7,353)

15.8

16,027

9.3

8,859
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d) Deferred tax effect on Equity
Deferred taxes acknowledged as charges or credits on equity during the periods between January 1 and
December 31, 2009 and 2008, include the following items:
As of December 31,
2009

MM$

(3,178)

(3,178)

1,080

(209)

(2,098)

(3,387)

New norms conversion restatement
Available for sale financial investments
Total charge on Equity

2008

MM$

e) Deferred Tax Effect
The deferred tax effects shown in the Bank’s asset and liabilities account are as follows:
As of December 31,

As of January 1,

2009

2008

Assets

Liabilities

Net

Assets

Liabilities

Net

Assets

Liabilities

Net

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

13,939

-

13,939

9,429

-

9,429

8,365

-

8,365

3,019

-

3,019

2,311

-

2,311

1,281

-

1,281

104

-

104

215

-

215

1,239

-

1,239

Concepts:
Lending provisions
Accrued interest and restatements
Non-performing loans
Unearned Price difference
Personnel related provision
Others

346

-

346

813

-

813

611

-

611

2,433

-

2,433

586

-

586

568

-

568

Plant and Equipment Depreciation

-

(3,948)

(3,948)

-

(271)

(271)

-

(202)

(202)

Leasing Division and others

-

(11,696)

(11,696)

-

(10,335)

(10,335)

-

(9,847)

-(9,847)

19,841

(15,644)

4,197

13,354

(10,606)

2,748

12,064

(10,049)

2,015

Total net assets (liabilities)
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Nota 16.
OTHER ASSETS
a) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the item consists of the following:
As of December 31,
2009

Lease Rentals paid in Advance

(1)

Accounts and Notes receivable

As of December 31,
2008

As of January 1,
2008

MM$

MM$

23,311

24,640

-

32,323

15,588

13,229

Expenses paid in Advance

8,330

12,371

13,357

Projects under development (2)

6,540

5,797

4,958

Assets for Leasing

3,629

8,772

8,719

5,456

4,631

3,317

657

972

1,145

(3)

Awarded and Recovered Assets (4)
Documents cleared without presence
Others

7,466

4,115

14,293

Totals

87,712

76,886

59,018

1. Lease rentals paid in advance to SMU S.A. for ATM locations
(See Note 33.b)

equipment, industrial equipment, computer equipment, real

4. The provisions for assets received or awarded in liabilities

estate and transport. These properties are available for sale

settlements are recorded as described in chapter B-5 No.

2. IT projects and other ongoing projects.

assets, the sale of which is considered highly likely to occur. The

3 of the compendium of accounting standards that implies

3. “Fixed Assets available for delivery in the form of financial

sale of the majority of assets is expected to be completed within

acknowledgement of a provision for the difference between

leases. Included under the same heading are the leasing assets

one year from the date an asset is classified as a Fixed Asset for

initial value and any additions or currency restatement and its

recovered for sale that correspond to items of construction

sale and / or asset recovered in leasing lease held for sale”.

realizable value, where the former is greater.

b) The movement of provisions on assets
received in payment or awarded during the
financial years 2009 and 2008 is as follows:
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Provisions on Assets received
in payment
Accumulated Amortization and deterioration

Balance as of January 1, 2008

MM$

33

Release of Provisions

(282)

Entering of Provisions

249

Balance as of December 31, 2008

-

Balance as of January 1, 2009

-

Release of Provisions

(744)

Entering of Provisions

657

Balance as of December 31, 2009

(87)
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Nota 17.
DEPOSITS AND OTHER SIGHT LIABILITIES AND TERM DEPOSITS
As of December 31, 2009 - 2008 and January 1, 2008 the item consists of the following:
As of December 31,

As of January 1,

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2008
MM$

328,078

258,664

202,601

Other deposits and sight accounts

39,319

25,988

28,962

Other sight liabilities

27,788

22,473

22,650

Payments on account of un-liquidated claims

82,317

38,644

14,456

Other sight liabilities

18,768

12,133

68,430

496,270

357,902

337,099

3,306,935

3,340,558

2,400,855

-

-

-

9,011

10,079

9,813

99

105

101

3,316,045

3,350,742

2,410,769

a) Deposits and other sight liabilities
Current Accounts

Totals
b) Deposits and other term deposits
Term deposits
Deposits due
Term Savings Accounts
Other term creditor Balances
Totals

As of December 31

nota 18.
LIABILITIES WITH BANKS
At the closing of the 2009 and 2008 financial
statements, the Liabilities with Banks item
include the following:

2009

2008

MM$

MM$

Loans drawn from Financial Institutions and the Banco Central
de Chile:

4,008

-

Local Financial Institution Loans

1,016

59,205

Financial Institution Loans abroad
Totals

357,379

433,401

362,403

492,606
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nota 19.
ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
As of December, 31, 2009 and 2008 and as of January 1, 2008, the item includes the following:
As of December 31

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

Letters of credit

271,430

331,588

353,431

Current bonds

410,473

324,662

305,113

Junior bonds

253,316

108,922

43,882

Subtotal

935,219

765,172

702,426

Public Sector liabilities

23,406

43,518

26,048

Other local liabilities

3,447

3,599

3,493

-

277

309

26,853

47,394

29,850

Issued debt securities

Other financial liabilities

Liabilities abroad
Subtotal

As of December 31, 2009
Long Term

Short Term

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

Letters of credit

240,247

31,183

271,430

Current bonds

127,508

282,965

410,473

Junior bonds

236,824

16,492

253,316

Issued debt securities

604,579

330,640

935,219

23,406

3,447

26,853

Other financial liabilities
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As of December 31, 2008
Long Term

Short Term

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

Letters of credit

294,726

36,862

331,588

Current bonds

306,315

18,347

324,662

Junior bonds
Issued debt securities
Other financial liabilities

99,060

9,862

108,922

700,101

65,071

765,172

43,518

3,876

47,394

As of January 1, 2008
Long Term

Short Term

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

Letters of credit

315,138

38,293

353,431

Current bonds

287,803

17,310

305,113

Junior bonds
Issued debt securities
Other financial liabilities

37,530

6,352

43,882

640,471

61,955

702,426

26,048

3,802

29,850

Letters of credit
As of December 31

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

Maturity within 1 year

31,183

36,862

38,293

Maturity from 1 to 2 years

25,286

28,594

28,413

Maturity from 2 to 3 years

24,665

28,571

28,486

Maturity from 3 to 4 years

23,966

27,853

28,377

23,574

27,062

27,583

Maturity over 5 years

Maturity from 4 to 5 years

142,756

182,646

202,279

Total letters of credit

271,430

331,588

353,431
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Current bonds
As of December 31

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

BCOR-D0405

168,703

172,855

158,054

BCOR-J0606

55,230

65,455

67,958

BCOR-K0707

42,261

42,956

39,431

BCOR-L0707

42,333

43,396

39,670

BCOR-M1207

560

-

-

Term Deposits

101,386

-

-

410,473

324,662

305,113

Total current bonds

As of December 31

Maturity within 1 year

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

282,965

18,347

17,310

Maturity from 1 to 2 years

12,187

180,614

16,453

Maturity from 2 to 3 years

49,923

12,034

160,279

Maturity from 3 to 4 years

10,069

49,392

10,624

Maturity from 4 to 5 years

8,956

9,461

43,659

Maturity over 5 years

46,373

54,814

56,788

Total Current bonds

410,473

324,662

305,113

Junior bonds
As of December 31

Series UCOR-W1197

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

76

64,584

111

8,829

100

12,796

Series UCOR-Y1197

9,186

11,615

9,324

Series UCOR-Z1197

21,343

9,818

21,651

Series UCOR-V0808

111,269

22,805

-

Series UCOR AA-0809

102,613
108,922

43,882

Series UCOR-X1197

Total Junior bonds
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As of December 31

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

Maturity within 1 year

16,492

9,862

6,352

Maturity from 1 to 2 years

15,599

9,210

5,879

Maturity from 2 to 3 years

14,703

8,602

5,439

Maturity from 3 to 4 years

11,331

8,036

5,032

Maturity from 4 to 5 years

10,733

5,112

4,655

Maturity over 5 years

184,458

68,100

16,525

Total Junior bonds

253,316

108,922

43,882

Other Financial Liabilities
As of December 31

Maturity within 1 year

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

1,040

3,335

12,442

Maturity from 1 to 2 years

942

751

4,793

Maturity from 2 to 3 years

1,497

1,736

2,951

Maturity from 3 to 4 years

3,433

4,942

2,259

Maturity from 4 to 5 years
Maturity over 5 years
Total long term financial liabilities

686

5,275

1,537

15,808

27,479

2,066

23,406

43,518

26,048

3,447

3,599

3,493

Short term liabilities:
Amount owed on credit card operations
Others
Total short term financial liabilities
Total other financial liabilities

-

277

309

3,447

3,876

3,802

26,853

47,394

29,850
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Nota 20.
PROVISIONS
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Bank has recorded the following changes in its provisions:
a) Provisions for contingent credits
The provisions for contingent credits as of December 31, 2009 y 2008 are as follows:
As of December 31
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

Collaterals and Guarantees

22

12

Documentary Letters of credit

97

69

759

690

18

4

896

775

Bank Vouchers
Others
Total Provisions for contingent credits

b) Other Provisions
The liability provisions as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
As of December 31

Personnel remunerations & benefits provisions
Minimum dividends provisions
Contingent Credit risk provisions
Contingency provisions
Country Risk Provisions
Total
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As of January 1

2009

2008

MM$

MM$

2008
MM$

6,473

3,902

3,889

42,554

28,155

25,525

896

775

1,120

3,177

370

404

18

2

15

53,118

33,204

30,953
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c) The provision changes during 2009 and 2008, were as follows:
Provisions On
Personnel
remunerations &
benefits provisions

Minimum
Dividends

Contingent Credit
Risks

Country Risk and
Contingencies

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

Balances as of January 1, 2009

3,902

28,155

775

372

33,204

Application of provisions

9,709

-

-

-

9,709

Provisions created
Provisions released
Other movements
Balances as of December 31, 2009

(7,317)

42,554

709

2,829

38,775

(676)

(28,155)

(588)

(6)

(29,425)

855

-

-

-

855

6,473

42,554

896

3,195

53,118

Provisions On
Personnel
remunerations &
benefits provisions

Minimum
Dividends

Contingent Credit
Risks

Country Risk and
Contingencies

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

Balances as of January 1, 2008

3,889

25,525

1,120

419

30,953

Provisions created

6,497

-

1,991

117

8,605

Application of provisions
Provisions released
Other movements
Balances as of December 31, 2008

(6,090)

-

-

-

(6,090)

-

-

(1,216)

(164)

(1,380)

(394)

2,630

(1,120)

-

1,116

3,902

28,155

775

372

33,204

d) Provisions for personnel remunerations and benefits
As of December 31

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

Years of service indemnity Provision (Note e)

-

54

46

Years of service benefits Provision

-

-

-

Personnel share benefits Provision

-

-

-

Other personnel benefits Provision

4,431

2,816

2,793

Annual leave Provision

2,042

1,032

1,050

Others

-

-

-

Totals

6,473

3,902

3,889
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e) Years of Service Indemnity
As of December 31

Current liability value at beginning of fiscal year

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

54

46

93

1,800

2,867

1,700

Payments

-

(2,859)

(1,747)

Prepayments

-

-

-

(1,854)

-

-

-

-

-

Provision increase

Provision releases
Discount rate effect
Others

-

-

-

Totals

-

54

46

Nota 21.
OTHER LIABILITIES
As of December 31, 2009, and 2008 and as of January 1, 2008, the item contains the following:
As of December 31

Accounts and Notes payable

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

MM$

MM$

MM$

13,060

15,837

8,205

Dividends declared payable

50

32

36

Income perceived in advance

37

53

5

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,663

-

4,013

Valuation restatements due to macro hedging
Sundry Creditors
Creditor Intermediation
Other liabilities
Totals

232

1,661

2,630

3,128

17,471

18,552

15,387
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CONTINGENT CREDITS
Collaterals and Guarantees
Collaterals and Guarantees in Chilean currency

Nota 22.
CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND
RESPONSIBILITIES
a) Commitments and responsibilities accounted
for in out-of-balance order accounts:
The Bank, its affiliates and overseas branches keep
in out of balance suspense accounts records of the
following balances related to commitments and
typical banking responsibilities:

As of December
31, 2009

As of December
31, 2008

MM$

MM$

906,956

980,742

15,137

17,898

-

-

Collaterals and Guarantees in foreign currency

15,137

17,898

Confirmed foreign letters of credit

32,819

1,941

Issued documentary letters of credit

31,614

24,077

301,708

314,916

-

-

525,678

621,910

Other credit commitments

-

-

Other contingent credits

-

-

Bank Vouchers
Interbank letters of guarantee
Cleared lines of credit

THIRD PARTY OPERATIONS

584,444

139,656

Collections

26,004

77,273

Foreign Collections

14,973

63,178

Local Collections

11,031

14,095

Placement or sale of financial securities

-

-

Placement of public securities issues

-

-

Sale of bank transaction letters of credit

-

-

Other security sales

-

-

Transferred financial assets administered by the bank

64,002

62,383

Assets assigned to Insurance Companies

64,002

62,383

-

-

Securitized assets
Other assets assigned to third parties

-

-

Third party funds under management

494,438

-

Financial assets under management on behalf of third parties

494,438

-

Other assets under management on behalf of third parties

-

-

Financial assets acquired in own name

-

-

Other assets acquired in own name

-

-

328,075

153,113

73,130

62,861

SECURITIES CUSTODY
Securities in custody held by the bank

169,768

-

Bank-issued Securities

Securities in custody deposited in another entity

85,177

90,252

Term deposit notes

85,177

90,252

Saleable letters of credit

-

-

Other documents

-

-

COMMITMENTS

-

-

Underwriting transaction guarantees

-

-

Asset acquisition commitments
Totals

-

-

1,819,475

1,273,511

The above only includes the more significant balances.
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b) Pending lawsuits
As of December 31, 2009 the Bank has pending
credit-related lawsuits and other claims that
according to the Legal Services Management
Division of the Bank do not present a significant
loss risk to the bank.
Before the Santiago Fifth Criminal Court, in
the case for fraud, Role No. 149913-7, by
virtue of a criminal lawsuit (which is still in
its preliminary proceedings) filed by Banco del
Estado de Chile -a case of which the subsidiary
CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A is not a
party- Term Deposit No. 00243045 amounting
to $ 42,788,060 (historical) that Concepción

S.A. Corredores de Bolsa (nowadays CorpCapital
Corredores de Bolsa S.A.) had acquired from
its first beneficiary, was seized for considering
it as “corpus delicti”; unjustifiably so, in the
opinion of the Company. Said term deposit is
fully provisioned; however, it is shown net of
provisions in the Notes Receivable account in
the subsidiary’s financial statements.
c) Contingent Credits
The following table shows the contractual
amounts of transactions that require the bank to
extend loans and the provisions established due
to the assumed credit risk:

As of December 31
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

15,137

17,898

Documentary Letters of credit

31,614

24,077

Confirmed foreign letters of credit

32,819

1,941

Bank Vouchers

301,708

314,916

Available funds for lines of credit and cards

525,678

621,910

-

-

906,956

980,742

(896)

(775)

906,060

979,967

Collaterals and Guarantees

Others
Subtotal (Note 22)
Declared contingent credit provisions (Note 20)
Total
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d) Responsibilities
The bank and its affiliates hold the following
commitments arising from their normal course
of business.
As of December 31
2009

MM$

Collections

26,004

77,273

Transferred financial assets administered by the bank

64,002

62,383

Third party funds under bank management

494,438

327,841

Securities Custody

328,075

260,918

912,519

728,415

Total

As of December 31

e) Guarantees

2009

Assets given in guarantee.

f) Other Liabilities
•

•

•

2008

MM$

CORPBANCA is empowered to pass on to
their customers the liabilities arising from
deferred customs duties on imports of goods
for leasing; transfers performed under prior
authorization of the National Customs
Service. As of December 31, the Bank has
transferred to its customers deferred customs
duty liabilities amounting to MM$92
(MM $92 in December 2008).
As of December 31, 2009 signed leasing
contracts of undelivered goods amounted to
MM$44,652 (MM$45,827 in 2008).
Pursuant to Article 30 of Law No. 18,045
(Securities Act) Corp Capital Corredores
de Bolsa S.A has created a security through

•

2008

MM$

MM$

Assets given in guarantee

5,299

6,618

Total

5,299

6,618

Compañía de Seguros de Crédito Continental
S.A, in the amount of UF 4,000 (Unidad de
Fomento: Chilean inflation-indexed unit) with
maturity on April 22, 2010, designating
the Bolsa de Comercio de Santiago (Santiago
Stock Exchange) as creditor beneficiary
representative. Furthermore, this warranty is
the trustee and custodian of said policy.
An insurance policy, dated June 30,
2009, was taken with CHUBB DE
CHILE Compañía de Seguros Generales
(Chubb Chile General Insurances Company)
to anticipate potential situations of
official fidelity, with coverage up to USD
10,000,000. This policy matures on June
30, 2010 and its direct beneficiary is
CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.

•

Corp Capital Corredores de Bolsa S.A holds,
on the Santiago Stock Exchange, fixed
interest securities to ensure transactions
through the Securities Clearing and
Settlement Service (SCL), amounting to
MM$ 4,589 in 2009 and MM$725 in
December 2008, also held in this area are
shares provided to ensure simultaneous
transactions in December 2009 for
MM$17,188 (MM$5,741 in December
2008). Furthermore, a US100,000 guarantee
is provided to ensure transactions with
foreign traders in December 2009 in the
amount of MM$51; in December 2009
Corp Capital Corredores de Bolsa S.A
constituted guarantees in Corpbanca totaling
MM$49,407 to ensure long-term credit in
the amount of MUSD100,000.
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•

In order to comply with the provisions of
Article 58, d) of DFL 251, of 1930 that
states that “for insurance brokers to conduct
business they must meet the requirement of
contracting insurance policies as determined
by the Superintendence of Securities and
Insurance in response to the proper and
full compliance of the obligations arising
from their activities and especially for the
damages they may cause the policyholders

who contracted insurance through them”
the Company has taken out the following
policies with Consorcio General de Seguros
S.A (General de Seguros SA Consortium),
which go into effect April 15, 2009 and
mature on April 14, 2010:
CorpCapital Administradora General de
Fondos S.A. (CorpCapital General Funds
Management SA) took out an Insurance
Policy with Chubb de Chile Compañía

•

Policy

Type of Insurance

4281982

Civil Liability

4282273

Guarantee

Insured Amount( UF)

60,000
500

•

de Seguros Generales S.A., dated June
30, 2009 aimed at anticipating potential
situations of official fidelity. Its coverage
amounts to USD 10,000,000. This policy
matures on June 30, 2010.
On 4 January 2009, Capital Corp
Administradora General de Fondos SA
renewed its Guarantee Insurance Policies
for General Funds Managements, intended
to ensure the faithful performance of the
Management’s obligations in the handling
of third party funds and compensations for
damages arising from their failure according
to the provisions of Article 226 of Law No.
18,045. The maturity of these policies falls
on January 10, 2011.

nota 23.
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
a) Movements in reference to capital accounts
and reserves (attributable to the Bank’s
shareholders)
As of December 31, 2009, the Bank has been
selling bank-issued shares acquired through
a Takeover Bid during 2008. This bid for
5,672,732,264 shares took place between
December 5, 2009 and February 18, 2010.
As of December 31, 2008 the bank was
authorized to purchase 5.672.732.264 bankissued shares, equivalent to 2.5% of all
subscribed and paid shares.
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Ordinary Shares 2009

Ordinary Shares 2008

(amount)

(amount)

226,909,290,577

226,909,290,577

Issuance of paid shares

-

-

Issuance of shares due

-

-

(5,672,732,264)

(5,672,732,264)

618,186,238

-

221,854,744,551

221,236,558,313

Issued as of January 1

Repurchase of bank-issued shares
Sale of bank-issued shares
Total
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Subscribed and paid shares
As of December 30, 2009, the Bank’s paid-in
capital is represented by 226,909,290,577 no
par value, ordinary subscribed and paid shares,
The Board of Directors, in its Session dated
April 15, 2008, agreed to the following:
“Agreement A: To set the price of the public
tender of shares at $3.03 per share. Agreement
B: the total amount of shares to be put up
for tender will be 5,672,732,264 shares,
equivalent to 2.5% of the total Corpbanca
subscribed and paid stock. Agreement
C: The share purchasing process shall be
implemented through a Public Takeover Bid,
consistent with Article 198, paragraph five
of the Securities Market Law and Circular
Nº1,514, dated January 4, 2001 of the
Superintendence of Securities and Insurance
and other regulations; on the Stock Exchange,
Securities Exchange through the “Final
Block Tender System” (Sistema de Ofertas a
Firme en Bloque). Agreement D: All pertinent
publications announcing the above mentioned
public tender of shares shall be published in
“La Tercera” and “Diario Financiero” daily
newspapers of April 29, 2008. Agreement E:
the bid will go into effect on April 30, 2008,
and will run for a 30 day period. Agreement
F: This public takeover bid call is understood
to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
to which reference has been made, as well as to
the content of the resolutions adopted thereon
by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting.
The Board of Directors at its session dated
September 8, 2009, agreed to call an

Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting for October
15, 2009, at which the following agreements
were confirmed:
I)

Reduce the number of Directors from 11
to 9 and increase the number of Alternate
Directors from 1 to 2, a proposal already
authorized by the Superintendence for
Banks & Financial Institutions.
II) Election of Directors and Alternate
Directors
III) Disposal of Bank-issued shares, equivalent
to 2.5% of capital stock, totaling
5,672,732,264 shares, acquired through a
Public takeover bid (OPA) during 2008, via
a Preferential Offer price of $3.50 during
the period between December 6, 2009 and
February 18, 2010.
IV) Amendment of By-laws.

Profit Distribution
The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
held on February 27, 2007 approved a profit
distribution policy change, establishing that
at least 50% of distributable profits will be
distributed, keeping the undistributed balance
in the “Withheld profits” account, classified as
“Other Reserves”.
With respect to 2008 net earnings, the Annual
General Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on
February 26, 2009, agreed to distribute earnings
amounting to MM$56,310 representing 100%
of the profit.
b) List of major shareholders
The movement of shares during 2009 is as follows:

Common Stock

Corp Group Banking S.A.

N° of Shares

Share %

112,530,207,591

50.72247%

Compañia Inmobiliaria y de Inversiones Saga Limitada

20,898,831,865

9.42005%

Inv. Mineras del Cantabrico S.A.

15,417,194,024

6.94923%

Inv. La Punta S.A.

5,686,087,838

2.56298%

Manufacturas Interamericana S.A.

5,413,342,266

2.44004%

Compañía de Seguros CorpVida S.A.

4,491,865,961

2.02469%

Moneda S.A. Afi para Pionero Fondo de Inversión

4,232,215,102

1.90765%

Banchile C de B S.A.

3,630,329,782

1.63635%

Celfin Capital S.A. C de B

3,507,334,611

1.58091%

Banco de Chile por cuenta de terceros ca

3,373,020,864

1.52037%

Inversiones Heracles Limitada

3,279,769,354

1.47834%

Afp Provida S.A. para Fondo de Pensión C

2,319,975,027

1.04572%

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones Boquiñeni Ltda.

2,294,225,537

1.03411%

Other Shareholders
Total

34,780,344,724

15.67707%

221,854,744,546

100.00000%
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c) As of December 31, the diluted profit and basic profit are comprised by the following:
2009

2008

N° Shares

Monto

N° Shares

Monto

MM

MM$

MM

MM$

Diluted profit and basic profit
Beneficio básico por acción
Basic earnings per share
Net profit for year

85,109
221,278

Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Assumed conversion of convertible debt

86,510
226,474

221,278

226,474

0.385

Restated number of shares

0.382

Diluted earnings per share
Net profit for year
Weighted average number of shares outstanding

85,109

86,510

221,278

226,474

221,278

226,474

Diluted effect from:
Assumed conversion of convertible debt
Ordinary share conversion
Option Rights
Restated number of shares
Diluted earnings per share (Chilean pesos)
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nota 24.
INCOME & EXPENSES ON INTEREST AND RESTATEMENTS
a) At the closing of these financial statements as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the INCOME
& EXPENSES ON INTEREST AND RESTATEMENTS item stood as follows:

As of December 31,
2009

2008

Interests

Restatements

Total

Interests

Restatements

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

2,342

(608)

1,734

7,763

4,692

12,455

Normal Portfolio
Buy-back contracts
Loans granted to banks

408

-

408

1,323

-

1,323

208,321

(31,275)

177,046

217,619

92,429

310,048

Housing Loans

32,910

(9,922)

22,988

22,667

54,631

77,298

Consumer Loans

82,107

(831)

81,276

93,987

3,351

97,338

Investment securities

18,926

(6,391)

12,535

8,503

13,771

22,274

949

(2)

947

3,969

11

3,980

345,963

(49,029)

296,934

355,831

168,885

524,716

11,425

(561)

10,864

18,286

11,994

30,280

875

(439)

436

730

1,329

2,059

Commercial loans

Other Income on interest & restatements
Subtotals
Deteriorated Portfolio
Interest and restatement Recovery
Commercial loans
Housing Loans
Consumer Loans

5,904

(23)

5,881

3,790

48

3,838

Investment securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

Hedge accounting results

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Income on interest & restatements

-

-

-

-

-

-

Subtotals
Totals Income on interest & restatements

18,204

(1,023)

17,181

22,806

13,371

36,177

364,167

(50,052)

314,115

378,637

182,256

560,893
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b) At year closing, the breakdown of suspended Income on interest & restatements of the
deteriorated portfolio is the following:
As of December 31,
2009

Commercial loans
Housing Loans
Consumer Loans
Investment securities
Totals

2008

Interest

Restatements

Total

Interest

Restatements

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

3,813

109

3,922

2,490

686

3,176

721

379

1,100

597

726

1,323

36

(1)

35

147

14

161

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,570

487

5,057

3,234

1,426

4,660

c) At year closing, the breakdown of Expenses on Interest & Restatements is the following:
As of December 31,
2009

Sight Deposits
Buy-back contracts
Deposits and Term Deposits

2008

Interests

Restatements

Total

Interests

Restatements

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

(10)

22

12

(8)

(86)

(94)

(4,633)

153

(4,480)

(10,581)

(3,513)

(14,094)

(102,375)

11,855

(90,520)

(179,651)

(37,326)

(216,977)

Liabilities with banks

(11,445)

-

(11,445)

(15,031)

-

(15,031)

Issued debt securities

(31,189)

18,050

(13,139)

(30,134)

(64,250)

(94,384)

(1,280)

481

(799)

(1,178)

(1,743)

(2,921)

(2)

(177)

(179)

545

257

802

-

(177)

(177)

-

(4,018)

(4,018)

(150,934)

30,207

(120,727)

(236,038)

(110,679)

(346,717)

Other financial liabilities
Hedge accounting results
Other Expenses on interest & restatements
Totals Expenses on interest & restatements
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nota 25.
INCOME AND EXPENSES ON COMMISSIONS
The amount of commission income and expenses shown in the financial statements corresponds to the
following items:
As of December 31,
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

Commissions on credit lines and Overdrafts

5,168

6,975

Commissions on Collateral and letters of credit

4,084

2,595

Commissions on credit card services

8,290

7,956

Commissions on account management

5,281

4,730

Commissions on collections, receipts and payments

8,529

8,771

Commissions on securities brokerage and management

2,136

4,696

Commissions on mutual fund investments and others

6,466

6,835

Insurance intermediation fees

6,897

6,672

Other commissions earned

2,511

3,190

Other payments for services rendered

3,766

2,445

53,128

54,865

(6,911)

(7,215)

Commissions on securities transactions

(394)

(3,411)

Commissions on interbank transactions

-

-

Other paid commissions

(547)

(1,243)

Commissions spent via CCA

(863)

(230)

Contract Services for customer benefits

(531)

(165)

Commissions spent on foreign trade transactions

(296)

(192)

(99)

(187)

a) Income on Commissions

Totals Income on Commissions
b) Expenses on Commissions
Payment for credit card transactions

Expenses on return commissions
Commissions spent on Happy Ending benefits
Expenses on Commissions Totals

(226)

(170)

(9,867)

(12,813)

Commissions earned on letters of credit transactions are shown in these financial statements under the item “Income on interest & restatements”
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nota 26.
NET PROFIT ON FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS

The net profit on financial operations
amount shown in the financial statements
corresponds to the following items:

nota 27.
NET RESULT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
EXCHANGES

The breakdown of the foreign currency
exchanges at closing is as follows:

As of December 31,

Business Portfolio
Derivative securities contracts
Other securities at reasonable value with effect on results
Portfolio available for sale

2009

2008

MM$

MM$

2,612

2,598

(26,124)

48,954

(107)

109

27,021

3,065

Profit on bank-issued term deposit buy-back

1,827

279

Loss on bank-issued term deposit buy-back

(697)

(114)

Others

31

106

Totals

4,563

54,997

As of December 31,
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

51,208

(46,406)

Net result of foreign currency exchanges
Net result change of foreign currency exchange position
Other foreign currency exchange results
Subtotals

1,097

(54)

52,305

(46,460)

(4,150)

5,122

Net earnings on exchange rate restatements
Restatement of loans awarded to clients
Other liabilities restatements
Subtotals
Totals
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1,480

(1,549)

(2,670)

3,573

49,635

(42,887)
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nota 28.
CREDIT RISK DETERIORATION AND PROVISIONS

The recorded movement on results during the fiscal years 2009 and 2008 for deterioration
and provisions is summarized as follows:
As of December 31, 2009
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Owed by
banks
MM$

Commercial
loans
MM$

Housing
Loans
MM$

Consumer
Loans
MM$

Contingent
Credits
MM$

Total
MM$

(6)

(30,864)

-

(826)

(389)

(32,085)

Entry of provisions:
Individual Provisions
Group Provisions
Results of provision entries

-

(13,566)

(2,185)

(55,632)

(319)

(71,702)

(6)

(44,430)

(2,185)

(56,458)

(708)

(103,787)

25

11,179

-

25

330

11,559

-

2,338

213

7,348

258

10,157

25

13,517

213

7,373

588

21,716

-

1,776

111

11,329

-

13,216

19

(29,137)

(1,861)

(37,756)

(120)

(68,855)

Release of provisions:
Individual Provisions
Group Provisions
Release of provisions Results
Recovery of asset write-offs
Net Results

As of December 31, 2008
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Owed by
banks
MM$

Commercial
loans
MM$

Housing
Loans
MM$

Consumer
Loans
MM$

Contingent
Credits
MM$

Total
MM$

(20)

(11,902)

-

-

(342)

(12,264)

Provisioning:
Individual Provisions
Group Provisions
Results of provision entries

-

(10,912)

(3,459)

(48,253)

(71)

(62,695)

(20)

(22,814)

(3,459)

(48,253)

(413)

(74,959)

117

6,700

-

-

711

7,528

-

956

20

377

47

1,400

Release of provisions:
Individual Provisions
Group Provisions
Release of provisions Results
Recovery of asset write-offs
Net Result

117

7,656

20

377

758

8,928

-

1,607

285

9,143

0

11,035

97

(13,551)

(3,154)

(38,733)

345

(54,996)
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nota 29.
PERSONNEL REMUNERATIONS AND
EXPENSES
Personnel remunerations and expenses during
the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years consisted
of the following:

As of December 31
2009

MM$

Personnel remuneration

(36,369)

(34,047)

Bonuses and gratifications/awards

(19,619)

(17,236)

Compensations in shares
Indemnity for years of service
Training Expenditure
Post employment benefit expense
Other personnel expense
Totals
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2008

MM$

-

-

(5,303)

(3,049)

(493)

(609)

-

-

(3,949)

(2,775)

(65,733)

(57,716)
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As of December 31,

nota 30.
OVERHEAD

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the
item consists of the following:

2009

2008

MM$

MM$

Maintenance and repair of fixed assets

(1,585)

(1,260)

Office rental

(5,466)

(4,245)

Equipment leasing

(2,128)

(1,426)

(415)

(219)

Insurance premiums

(914)

(1,102)

IT and communications expense

Office supplies

(2,938)

(2,092)

Lighting, heating and other services

(2,603)

(2,265)

Security Service and transportation of securities

(1,146)

(507)

Public relations expense and staff travel expenses

(939)

(1,421)

Legal and Notary Costs

(164)

(88)

(7,339)

(6,168)

(581)

(467)

(54)

(56)

Technical report fees
Professional services fees
Securities classification fees
Fines imposed by the SBIF
Fines imposed by other entities
Other overhead expense

(5)

-

(110)

(1)

(6,425)

(9,988)

Subtotal

(32,812)

(31,305)

Subcontracted services

(4,449)

(15,732)

Data processing

(2,023)

(2,066)

Product Sales
Loan assessment

(65)

(149)

(1,596)

(12,425)

Others

(765)

(1,092)

Board of Directors Expenditure

(186)

(219)

Board of Directors Remunerations

(186)

(216)

Other Board of Directors expense

-

(3)

Advertising and propaganda

(4,553)

(5,266)

Taxes, contributions, levies

(2,592)

(2,129)

Real estate contributions

(287)

(273)

Patents

(521)

(465)

(25)

(27)

Other taxes
Contribution to SBIF
Totals

(1,759)

(1,364)

(44,592)

(54,651)
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nota 31.
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND
DETERIORATION
a) The values corresponding to depreciations,
amortizations and deterioration charged to
results during the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years
are detailed below:

Balances as of December 31,
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

Fixed asset depreciation (Note 14)

(4,278)

(3,787)

Amortization of intangibles (Note 13)

(2,032)

(3,045)

Balances as of December 31,

(6,310)

(6,832)

Depreciation and amortization

Balances of as December 31,

b) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
the deterioration expense consists of
the following:

246

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

Deterioration of investments available for sale

-

-

Deterioration of investments held to maturity

-

-

Fixed Asset Deterioration

(144)

(59)

Totals

(144)

(59)
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nota 32.
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE
a) Other operating income

As of December 31,
2008

MM$

MM$

1,160

1,657

Income for goods received in payment
Profit on sales of goods received in payment
Other income

The breakdown of other operating incomes
is as follows:

2009

-

-

1,160

1,657

Country risk provisions

-

13

Special provisions for loans abroad

-

-

Additional provisions for loans

-

-

Subtotals
Contingency provisions release

Other contingency provisions

-

9

Subtotals

-

22

5

17

77

1,707

Other Income
Profit on fixed asset sales
Profit on sale of company shareholdings
Insurance company compensation
Subtotals
Other Income

-

-

82

1,724

260

1,575

Leasing goods contributions income

1,187

1,122

Other operating income -affiliates

1,073

376

Profit on Leasing Goods sales

661

125

Other operating income -Leasing

378

1,080

Income on Leasing loans expense recovery

286

152

Subtotals

3,845

4,430

Totals

5,087

7,833
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As of December 31,

b) Total operating expenses
During the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years, the
Bank presents other operating expenses based
on the following:

2009

2008

MM$

MM$

- Provisions for goods received in payment

(246)

(3)

- Write-offs of goods received in payment

(1,305)

(2,617)

(210)

(124)

(1,761)

(2,744)

(16)

-

Provisions and expense of goods received in payment

- Maintenance expenses of goods received in payment
Subtotals
Contingency provisions
- Country risk provisions
- Special provisions for loans abroad

-

-

- Additional provisions for loans

(2,400)

-

- Other contingency provisions

(1,532)

(906)

Subtotals

(3,948)

(906)

- Loss on fixed asset sales

-

-

- Loss on sales of company shareholdings

-

-

- Restructuring costs

-

-

- Other expenses

(3,900)

(3,160)

Subtotals

(3,900)

(3,160)

Totals

(9,609)

(6,810)

Other expenditures.
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Nota 33.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES
In compliance with the General Banking
Law regulations and instructions issued by
the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions’, those natural or juristic persons
who are directly, or through third parties,
connected to the ownership or management of
the Institution are considered Related Parties.
a) Loans extended related parties

2009

Investment
Companies
MM$

Natural
Persons
MM$

197,804

3,732

844

-

-

1,886

Credits and Accounts Receivable:
Commercial loans
Housing Loans
Consumer Loans
Gross Loans
Loans provision
Net Loans
Contingent Credits
Contingent Credit Provisions

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the
loans extended related parties consisted of
the following:

Productive
Companies
MM$

Net Contingent Credits

2008

1,234

-

112

199,038

3,732

2,842

(335)

(13)

(11)

198,703

3,719

2,831

545

-

-

-

-

-

545

-

-

Productive
Companies
MM$

Investment
Companies
MM$

Natural
Persons
MM$

48,408

2,477

1,039

-

-

854

Credits and Accounts Receivable
Commercial loans
Housing Loans
Consumer Loans
Gross Loans
Loans provision
Net Loans
Contingent Credits
Contingent Credit Provisions
Net Contingent Credits

156

-

143

48,564

2,477

2,036

(144)

(9)

(20)

48,420

2,468

2,016

1,047

-

-

-

-

-

1,047

-

-
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b) Other transactions with related parties

For the fiscal years ending as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank has carried
out the following transactions with related parties in amounts over 1,000 Unidades
de Fomento (UF):
As of December 31, 2009:

Company or business name

Description

Balances
Receivable
(Payable)
MM$

Income
MM$

Expense
MM$

Effect on Results

Inmobiliaria Edificio CorpGroup S.A.

Office rental and condominium fees

-

-

2,389

Transbank S.A.

Credit Card Administration

-

-

2,294

CorpGroup Interhold S.A.

Administrative Assessments

-

-

2,078

Operadora de Tarjeta de Crédito Nexus S.A.

Credit Card Administration

-

-

1,153

Redbanc S.A.

ATM network administration

-

-

892

Recaudaciones y Cobranzas S.A.

Office rental and collection service

-

-

695

Empresa Periodística La Tercera S.A.

Publishing Service

-

-

363

Asesorías Santa Josefina Ltda.

Administrative and financial assessments

-

-

139

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones San Francisco Ltda.

Financial assessments

-

-

134

Fundación CorpGroup Centro Cultural

Donations

-

-

90

Compañía de Seguros Vida Corp S.A.

Insurance Premium Brokerage and Office rental

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones Boquiñeni Ltda.

Financial Assessment

-

-

SMU S.A., Rendic Hnos S.A.

ATM rental spaces
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As of December 31, 2008:

Company or Legal Name

Description

Balances
Receivable
(Payable)
MM$

Income
MM$

Expense
MM$

Effect on Results

Transbank S.A.

Credit Card Administration

-

-

2,957

Inmobiliaria Edificio CorpGroup S.A.

Office rental and condominium fees

-

-

2,529

CorpGroup Interhold S.A.

Administrative Assessments

-

-

1,783

Operadora de Tarjeta de Crédito Nexus S.A.

Credit Card Administration

-

-

1,733

Redbanc S.A.

ATM network administration

Recaudaciones y Cobranzas S.A.

Office rental and collection service

-

-

472

(4)

-

366

Empresa Periodística La Tercera S.A.

Publishing Service

-

-

263

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones San Francisco Ltda.

Financial assessments

-

-

167

Asesorías Santa Josefina Ltda.

Administrative and financial assessments

-

-

160

Compañía de Seguros Vida Corp S.A.

Insurance Premium Brokerage and Office rental

101

Fundación CorpGroup Centro Cultural

Donations

-

-

68

Promoservice S.A.

Promotional Services

-

-

56

-

-

55

24,640

-

-

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones Boquiñeni Ltda.

Financial assessments

SMU S.A., Rendic Hnos S.A.

ATM rental spaces

These transactions were carried out consistent with normal prevailing market conditions at contract signing.
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c) Other assets and liabilities with related parties
As of December 31,
2009
MM$

2008
MM$

Financial derivative contracts

-

14

Other assets

-

-

ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Financial derivative contracts
Sight deposits
Deposits and other term deposits
Other liabilities

-

6

5,553

12,810

431

20,223

-

-

d) Operating Results with related parties
As of December 31,
2009

2008

Tipo de ingreso o gasto reconocido

Income
MM$

Expense
MM$

Income
MM$

Expense
MM$

Income and Expenditure on interest & restatements

4,223

427

4,922

1,680

Income and expense on commissions and services

288

11

276

10

Profit and loss on negotiation

-

-

-

-

Profit and Loss on other financial transactions

-

-

-

-

Foreign currency exchanges

-

-

-

-

Operating support expense

-

10,305

-

10,642

Other income and expense
Totals
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-

-

-

4,511

10,743

5,198

12,332
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e) Contracts with related parties
2009
Company or Legal Name

Description

Transbank S.A.

Credit Card Administration

Inmobiliaria Edificio CorpGroup S.A.

Office rental and condominium fees

CorpGroup Interhold S.A

Administrative Assessment

Operadora de Tarjeta de Crédito Nexus S.A.

Credit Card Administration

Redbanc S.A.

ATM Administration

Recaudaciones y Cobranzas S.A.

Office rental and collection services

Empresa Periodística La Tercera S.A.

Publishing Service

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones San Francisco Ltda.

Financial Assessment

Asesorías Santa Josefina Ltda.

Administrative and Financial Assessment

Compañía de Seguros de Vida Corp S.A.

Insurance Premium Brokerage and office rental

Fundación CorpGroup Centro Cultural

Donations

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones Boquiñeni Ltda.

Financial Assessment

SMU S.A. Rendic Hermanos S.A.

Advance rental of ATM spaces

2008
Company or Legal Name

Description

Transbank S.A.

Credit Card Administration

Inmobiliaria Edificio CorpGroup S.A.

Office rental and condominium fees

CorpGroup Interhold S.A.

Administrative Assessment

Operadora de Tarjeta de Crédito Nexus S.A.

Credit Card Administration

Redbanc S.A.

ATM Administration

Recaudaciones y Cobranzas S.A.

Office rental and collection services

Empresa Periodística La Tercera S.A.

Publishing Service

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones San Francisco Ltda.

Financial Assessment

Asesorías Santa Josefina Ltda.

Administrative and Financial Assessment

Compañía de Seguros de Vida Corp S.A.

Insurance Premium Brokerage and office rental

Fundación CorpGroup Centro Cultural

Donations

Promoservice S.A.

Promotional services

Inmobiliaria e Inversiones Boquiñeni Ltda.

Financial Assessment

SMU S.A. Rendic Hermanos S.A.

Advance rental of ATM spaces
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The most objective and typical
reference of the reasonable
value of an asset or liability is
the quoted price that would be
paid in an organized, liquid
and transparent market.

f) Payments to Board of Directors and key Management Personnel
Remunerations received by key management personnel correspond to the following categories:
2009
MM$

2009
MM$

12,763

11,922

Post-employment benefits

-

-

Other long term benefits

-

-

1,527

486

-

-

14,290

12,408

Short term employee remuneration

Contract termination indemnities
Share-based payments
Totals

At the Ordinary Shareholder’s’ Meeting held
in February, 2009, it was agreed not to pay
remunerations to the Board of Directors with the
exception of members of the Board of Directors

Committee and the president and vice-president
of the Auditing Committee whose fees totaled
MM$186 in 2009 and MM$216 in 2008.

g) Group companies
The Bank presents the following investment
relationship with companies in the group:
Share
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2009 %

2009 %

CorpCapital Corredores de Bolsa S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpCapital Administradora General de Fondos S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpCapital Asesorías Finaniceras S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpBanca Corredores de Seguros S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpLegal S.A.

100.00

100.00

CorpCapital Agencia de Valores S.A.

100.00

-

CorpBanca Sucursal de Nueva York

100.00

-
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h) Formation of key personnel
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Bank’s key
personnel is constituted in the following manner:

Number of Executives
Post

Directors

37

35

7

6

Division Managers

12

16

Deputy Managers

During the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years
transactions with key personnel were carried
out as follows:

nota 34.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT
REASONABLE VALUE
The reasonable value is defined as the amount
of money at which a financial security (Asset
or Liability) can be released or discharged,
at valuation date, between two independent
and expert parties, that are acting freely
and prudently, in other words not under a
forced sale or liquidation situation. The most
objective and typical reference of the reasonable
value of an asset or liability is the quoted price
that would be paid in an organized, liquid and
transparent market.

2008

General Managers
Area Managers

i) Transactions with key personnel

2009

62

69

102

113

Income MM$
Cargo

2009

2008

Credit Cards

26

55

Consumer

10

25

Commercial

35

10

Mortgages

36

132

In financial securities for which there is no
market price available, reasonable value is
estimated by using recent similar security
transactions and, in the absence thereof, current
values or other valuation techniques based
on mathematical valuation models that have
been sufficiently verified by the international
financial community and the pertinent
regulatory bodies. These models take into
account the specific features of the asset or
liability to be valued and the different types of
risks associated to the asset or liability.

These reasonable value assessments are by nature
subjective since their price estimation is based
on a number of assumptions of an original
axiomatic nature. In so being, the reasonable
value estimation process is affected by the
variables that the assumptions are targeted
to, such as interest rates, prepayment options,
covenants, etc. Thus, it is possible that this
reasonable value estimate might not entirely
relate to that resulting from independent prices.
However, they represent the best approximations
available in many cases.
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Determination of the reasonable value of financial securities
A summary of the reasonable value of the main financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2009
and 2008 is detailed below, including those that have not been presented at reasonable value in these
Financial Statements.
As at December 31,
2009

2008

Estimated
Reasonable
Value
MM$

Unacknowledged (loss)/
gain
MM$

110,331

110,331

-

Operations with clearance underway

95,796

95,796

Negotiable securities

76,156

Buyback and security loan contracts

51,970

Tipo de ingreso o gasto reconocido

Estimated
Reasonable
Value
MM$

Unacknowledged (loss)/
gain
MM$

81,326

81,326

-

-

117,703

117,703

-

76,156

-

85,105

85,105

-

51,970

-

50,514

50,514

-

126,140

126,140

-

209,482

209,482

-

86,220

86,220

-

37,671

37,671

-

4,915,706

5,052,682

136,976

4,881,790

4,806,207

(75,583)

737,162

737,162

-

576,478

576,478

-

-

-

-

-

Book Value
MM$

Book Value
MM$

ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits

Financial derivative contracts
Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity
LIABILITIES
Deposits and other sight liabilities

496,270

496,270

-

357,902

357,902

-

Operations with clearance underway

64,854

64,854

-

86,176

86,176

-

Buyback and security loan contracts

465,513

465,513

-

351,471

351,471

-

Deposits and other term deposits

3,316,045

3,393,520

77,475

3,350,742

3,410,722

59,980

Financial derivative contracts

114,703

114,703

-

195,608

195,608

-

Liabilities with banks

362,403

366,400

3,997

492,606

482,215

(10,391)

Issued debt securities

935,219

949,700

14,481

765,172

722,789

(42,383)

26,853

27,066

213

47,394

32,507

(14,887)

Other financial liabilities
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A summary of the method used to estimate the
reasonable value of bank assets and liabilities to
date is as follows:
Cash and Bank Deposits
They are valued at face value given their short
term and liquidity nature.
Operations with clearance underway,
Negotiable and Available for Sale
securities portfolio, buy-back and
securities loan contracts.
They are valued daily at their market price
through operator quotations, using third party
transaction prices of similar securities or the
valuation models that make use of the two
previous points as input. These models can, in
addition, take into account the probability of
prepayment, market liquidity estimators and
other pertinent measures for estimating the
reasonable value of these or similar instruments.

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts
from clients
In variable interest loans, unchanged at their
risk level, their values are taken at face value.
Commercial loans undergo a cash flow analysis
discounted at the rates offered to individuals
with similar market credit rating. Non-accrued
loans undergo a similar analysis, but are subject
to the same discounts used for underlying
collateral values.
Deposits
Interest free deposits use face value as their
reasonable value. Term deposits with interest
are discounted at reasonable value using
relevant bank rates applied to deposits on the
date of year closing.
Short and long term issued debt securities
External price sources are used that calculate
the discount rate based on the Bank’s and other
similar institutional credit ratings. They use a
base curve and a different Spread curve by term.
Financial derivative contracts
A rates mix of operators, specific models and
transactions is used to create valuation factors,
all on a daily basis. The estimated value of
Forwards is based on relevant market prices,

similarly for the majority of swaps, subject to
a separate analysis for each of its components.
Fixed components are assessed in the same way
as a debt security, while the value of floating or
variable components is based on what the bank
expects to receive or deliver, based on the rate
structure at the time of valuation.
Reasonable value and hierarchy measure
This follows the order established by the NIC39
segregation of valued elements according to 3
level valuation techniques. At a first level for
those elements that have been valued through
observable inflows or inputs; a second level for
elements valued through observable inputs and a
third level for unobservable inputs.
The financial securities acknowledged at
reasonable value in the financial statements
are classified according to the following
order of hierarchy:
Level 1: The inputs are active market prices (not
restated) of identical assets and liabilities that
the Bank has access to at the date of measure.
Level 2: The inputs differ from the quoted prices
used in Level 1 and are observable in terms of
assets and liabilities, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: The asset and liability inputs are
unobservable.
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Reasonable Value Measure at report date using

December 31, 2009

Reasonable Value
Amount

Active Market
Prices for identical
assets (Level 1)

Other significant
observable inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

ASSETS
Negotiable securities

76,156

9,182

66,974

-

Investment securities available for sale

737,162

574,821

162,341

-

Financial derivative contracts

126,140

-

126,140

-

Total

939,458

584,003

355,455

-

LIABILITIES
Financial derivative contracts
Total

114,703

-

114,703

-

114,703

-

114,703

-

Reasonable Value Measure at report date using

December 31, 2008

Reasonable Value
Amount

Active Market
Prices for identical
assets (Level 1)

Other significant
observable inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

ASSETS
Negotiable securities

85,105

65,489

19,616

-

Investment securities available for sale

576,478

306,824

269,654

-

Financial derivative contracts

209,482

-

209,482

-

498,752

-

Total

871,065

372,313

LIABILITIES
Financial derivative contracts
Total
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195,608

-

195,608

-

195,608

-

195,608

-
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nota 35.
RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction:
By nature of its activity, the Bank is exposed
to various types of risks primarily in terms of
financial securities. A description of the Banks
main business activities and policies with regard
to risk management follows:
Risk Management Structure:
Board of Directors
At Corpbanca, the Board plays a leading role
in the field of Corporate Governance, and is
responsible for establishing and monitoring
the Bank’s risk management structure, for
which purpose it has a system of corporate
governance aligned with international trends
and Chilean regulations, mainly stemming
from the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions. One of the main functions of the
Board is to monitor, assess and lead senior
management to ensure that actions conform
to best practices. For this, various committees,
support areas, codes and manuals have been
implemented that provide for staff behavior
guidelines and allow them to assist in the
development of the Bank’s risk management
control related functions.

of all its activities. To this effect, amongst other
functions, it is responsible for reviewing the
accounting and financial reports of transactions
with related parties and the remuneration and
compensation plan systems for Managers and
Senior Executives.
Auditing Committee
The purpose of the Auditing Committee is to
endorse the effectiveness of the internal control
systems at the Bank and their compliance with
regulations. Furthermore, it should strengthen
and support both the Bank’s Comptroller
Management function as well as its autonomy
from the Administration section and in turn be
the link with and coordinate all tasks between
internal auditing and the External Auditors as
well as being a nexus between these and the
Board of Directors of the Bank.
Committee on the Prevention of Money
Laundering and Terrorist Financing
This is an internal body assigned to the
prevention of money laundering of assets and
terrorist financing, whose primary purpose is to
plan and coordinate all policy and procedural
compliance activities on the subject; taking
note of the work carried out by the Compliance
Officer, as well as deciding on improvements to
control the measures proposed.

Board of Directors’ Committee

Compliance Committee

The purpose of the Board of Directors’
Committee is to strengthen self-regulation
within the Bank, enabling a more efficient
Board performance by developing control work

It aims to ensure compliance with the rules of
the Codes of Conduct and other complementary
legislation, the setting and development of
the necessary procedures for compliance with

these codes, as well as the interpretation,
management and monitoring of performance
standards therein contained and the resolution of
conflicts that might arise from their application.
The Compliance Committee is formed by one
Director, the General Manager, The Legal
Services Division Manager, The Organizational
Development Division Manager and the
Compliance Officer.
Comptroller
The Comptroller Division’s main function is
to support the Board of Directors and Senior
Management in safeguarding the maintenance,
implementation and operation of the Bank’s
internal control system, as well as monitor
compliance of its rules and procedures.
General Code of Conduct, and Market
Interest Information Management Handbook
Corpbanca’s objective is to continue advancing
towards being the best bank with first class
human resources. All employees and Directors of
Corpbanca and its Affiliates are subject to ethical
standards that are based on guiding principles and
values aimed at upholding the highest standards.
In response to our clients’ trust and respect,
which are determining factors in the success of
our organization, all employees and directors
must carefully ensure that trust, through strict
compliance with the General Code of Conduct
adopted in 2008 by Management and the
Auditors’ Committee.
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Main risks affecting the Bank:

involving Risk Managers. Over certain amounts,
the attendance of Bank Directors is required.

Credit Risk:
For Corpbanca, proper risk management in all
areas and in particular with respect to Credit
Risk is one of the fundamental pillars of the
Bank’s portfolio management, and ensures that
it maintains an adequate risk / return ratio.
Credit Risk management at Corpbanca is based
on the following core elements:
• Credit Policies
• Credit Processes
• Solid risk culture, consistent with
Bank strategy
• A risk prevention and regulatory view
• High level expertise human resources for
decision making
• Active involvement of Credit Risk
Management in the approval process, using a
segmented market structure
• Defined Monitoring and Collections
Processes, with the involvement of Business
and Risk areas.
• Risk culture transmission within the Bank
through internal and external Training
Programs for the Business and Risk areas.
• Corporate Risk Management performs
the checks & balances task related to the
business areas.
Moreover, it has a Credit Committee structure
associated with the Credit Risk Rating of
Borrowers empowered mainly in committees
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These are the committees that define individual
and group customer exposure levels, as well as
mitigating conditions such as guarantees, credit
agreements or others.
The tool used by the Bank to manage risks
divides its portfolio as follows:
• Normal Risk Portfolio
• Watch List Portfolio
• Deteriorated Portfolio
• Normal risk portfolio
The risk involved is reviewed in the following
events:
• For each credit proposal, both for line
renewals as for special operations.
• As determined by Asset Rating and Control
Management
• Each time the account executive determines
that significant changes have occurred in
some of the debtor’s risk factors that would
merit acknowledgement of a higher risk.
• Through a monthly sample reflected by the
warning signals system.
• Through regular review of different centers of
responsibility.
Watch List Portfolio (watch list)
To safeguard the quality of the loan portfolio,
the Bank has established that those debtors
on the Watch List should be included in the

following type of portfolio depending on the
problems they are affected by:
• Watch List Portfolio
• Irregular Portfolio
Watch List Portfolio (WL)
It should be noted that the loans in this
category not necessarily represent expected
losses to the Bank.
A WL asset presents weaknesses that can be
corrected, needing therefore special attention
from the business area including active
control and monitoring by Asset Rating and
Control Management.
The WL portfolio is administered by the
Business Areas who should comply with the
action plans set by the Watch List Committee.
The WL portfolio is, in addition, reviewed by
the Watch List Committee consisting of the
Corporate Risk Division Manager and/or Credit
Risk, Asset Rating and Control Managers and
the Managers of the corresponding Business
Area, based on the following schedule:
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Every 4 months

Debtor review based on the following strategies:
V1
Exit
V2
Guarantee
V3
Reduce
Every 6 months
V4
Monitor
Every 2 months
V5
Structured exit
		
In the event that the loan remains unpaid

The Committee reviews all debtors in Watch
List with debts of MM$50 or over.
The Risk Manager of each business segment
and the Asset Rating and Control Manager
are responsible through the account executive
for compliance monitoring of all Watch List
Committee actions and agreement plans.

Action Plans
All of them should have a defined action plan.
Action plans are agreed to between the account
executive and Asset Rating Control Management
(GCCA) which are then reviewed by the Watch
List Committee.

The action plans are as follows:
Debtors with an exit plan
The Bank takes a full risk exit decision. These debtors must have a defined payment plan.

V1

Debtors with a plan to increase their guarantee hedging

V2

Debtors with a plan de reduce exposure.
Reduce debt to an amount at which the Bank feels comfortable.

V3

Debtors with a monitoring plan.
Lower degree of concern, for example: monitoring a company’s committed and not specified capitalization, specific payments arrears, payment of
claims disputed by the insurance company.

V4

Debtors with a structured payment plan.
A defined payment plan for the full debt, needing only control of timely paid installments.

V5

Satisfactory Asset Debtors
Debtors who have exited the system due to satisfactorily complying with the action plans agreed.

V0
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Irregular Portfolio

Contingent commitments

This includes the entire portfolio managed by
the Standardization Manager’s Office. All clients
with an individual rating of 7 or worse should be
transferred to this Management area, as well as
all those clients who hold any matured/expired
transaction regardless of their rating.

The Bank operates with a number of securities
which, despite involving credit risk exposure, are
not reflected in the Balance Sheet: Collaterals and
Guarantees, documentary letters of credit, Bank
Vouchers and commitments to extend loans.

Asset Rating and Control Management
ensures, on a monthly basis, that this
regulation is met with.
The portfolio is reviewed monthly by a
Committee consisting of the General Manager,
the Corporate Risk Division Manager, and
the Manager of Standardization, the Deputy
Manager of Standardization and the Asset
Rating and Control Manager.
The Asset Rating and Control Management
analysts review the portfolio through an analysis
of information provided by Annex 5.3 of the
Credit Risk Summary sent to Standardization
Manager’s Office or by way of the Debtors
Rating Sheet.

Collaterals and Guarantees represent an
irrevocable payment commitment. In the event a
guaranteed client does not meet its commitment
to third parties bonded by the Bank, the latter
shall make the corresponding payments, in a way
that these transaction represent similar credit
risk exposure as in joint loans.
Documentary Letters of credit are commitments
recorded by the Bank on behalf of a client that
are secured by the goods shipped to which they
relate and, therefore, have less risk than direct
borrowing. Bank Vouchers are used to secure
contingent commitments which are realized
only if the customer does not comply with the
execution of works agreed to with a third party,
and therein guaranteed.

When it comes to commitments to extend
credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to
losses in an amount equal to the total unused
commitment. However, the probable amount of
loss is less than the total unused commitment.
The Bank monitors the maturity of credit lines
because usually long term commitments have a
higher credit risk than short-term commitments.
Financial securities
For these assets the Bank measures the
probability of bad debt issuers through
internal and external ratings, such as
independent risk assessors.
Maximum credit risk exposure
The table below presents the distribution, by
financial asset, of the Bank’s maximum credit
risk exposure as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
for the different balance sheet items, including
derivates, before deducting collateral or other
credit improvements received:

Maximum exposure

Financial derivative contracts
The Bank maintains strict control of the open
positions in derivative contracts negotiated
directly with their counterparts. In every case,
credit risk is limited to the reasonable value
of those contracts that benefit the Bank (asset/
active position) that represents only a small
fraction of the notional values of these securities.
This credit risk exposure is managed as part of
the loan limits to customers, together with the
potential exposures due to market fluctuations.
To mitigate the risks banks usually operate with
counterpart deposits.
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Note

2009

2008

MM$

MM$

Owed by banks

9

86,220

37,671

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients

10

4,915,706

4,881,790

Financial derivative contracts

8

126,140

209,482

Buy-back and securities loans contracts

7

51,970

50,514

Investment securities available for sale

10

737,162

576,478

Investment securities until maturity

11

-

-

Other assets

16

87,712

76,886

Contingent Credits
Totals

380,891

358,861

6,385,801

6,191,682
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For further detail on maximum credit risk
exposure and concentration by financial security
type, please refer to the specific Notes.

An analysis of credit risk concentration by
industry of financial securities follows:

2009
Maximum gross
exposure

Manufacturing
Mining

2008
%

Maximum gross
exposure
MM$

MM$

6.2%

314,624

311,751

Maximum gross
exposure

MM$

MM$

234,217

230,731

Maximum gross
exposure

%

8.4%

83,855

82,607

2.2%

80,681

79,942

2.1%

Power, gas and water

239,087

235,528

6.3%

257,052

254,755

6.8%

Agriculture and Livestock

151,272

149,021

4.0%

170,184

168,667

4.5%

Forestry

14,006

13,798

0.4%

21,500

21,323

0.6%

Fishing

68,281

67,265

1.8%

86,190

85,401

2.3%

184,558

181,811

4.9%

113,837

112,820

3.0%

48,739

48,014

1.3%

28,633

28,371

0.8%

Transport
Telecommunications
Construction

510,805

503,202

13.5%

388,794

385,235

10.4%

Business

514,520

506,862

13.7%

402,308

398,681

10.7%

Services

1,621,658

1,597,521

42.9%

1,513,848

1,499,995

40.3%

105,872

104,296

2.8%

380,500

377,138

10.1%

100%

100%

Others

3,776,870

3,720,656

3,758,151

3,724,079

Consumer Loans

Subtotal Business

806,735

800,696

692,234

687,632

Housing Loans

428,051

394,354

506,115

470,079

5,011,656

4,915,706

4,956,500

4,881,790

Totals

Guarantees
To mitigate credit risk effects, guarantees are
held in favor of the Bank. The main collateral
offered by customers is as follows:

In corporate loans, collateral mainly includes:
Machinery and/or equipment, Construction
Projects, specifically targeted Buildings and
Urban Sites and Lands.

For loans to natural persons the main guarantees
are: Houses, Apartments and Automobiles.
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Credit quality by financial asset class
With regard to the quality of credits, these are
described consistent with the compendium

of norms of the Superintendence for Banks &
Financial Institutions. A breakdown by credit
quality is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2009
Individual Portfolio

Owed by Banks

Group Portfolio

A1

A2

A3

B1

B2

B3

C

Deteriorated

Total

Normal

Deteriorated

Total

General Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

72,636

9,524

4,065

-

-

-

-

-

86,225

-

-

-

86,225

Credits and asset (receivable)
accounts from clients
Commercial loans:
9,005

24,269

1,301,811

891,532

503,887

-

-

115,519

2,846,023

248,326

49,867

298,193

3,144,216

Foreign Trade loans

Commercial loans

-

-

57,910

47,411

45,758

-

-

68,736

219,815

12,603

1,059

13,662

233,477

Current Accounts Receivable

-

-

1,724

5,879

11,431

-

-

1,466

20,500

25,831

1,990

27,821

48,321

Factoring operations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

50,034

3,514

53,548

53,548

Leasing Operations

-

22,435

27,013

82,705

103,085

-

-

23,554

258,792

29,733

7,332

37,065

295,857

-

-

157

114

210

-

-

18

499

853

99

952

1,451

9,005

46,704

1,388,615

1,027,641

664,371

-

-

209,293

3,345,629

367,380

63,861

431,241

3,776,870

Other loans and accounts
receivable
Subtotal Commercial loans
Consumer

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

399,344

28,707

428,051

428,051

Housing

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

778,143

28,592

806,735

806,735

9,005

46,704

1,388,615

1,027,641

664,371

-

-

209,293

3,345,629

1,544,867

121,160

1,666,027

5,011,656

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total Credits and asset
(receivable) accounts from
clients

Investment securities
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December 31, 2008
Individual Portfolio

Group Portfolio

A1

A2

A3

B1

B2

B3

C

Deteriorated

Total

Normal

Deteriorated

Total

General Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

20,005

-

-

17,691

-

-

-

-

37,696

-

-

-

37,696

Commercial loans

-

36,230

1,142,273

844,734

423,950

-

-

115,919

2,563,106

228,848

37,266

266,114

2,829,220

Foreign Trade loans

-

-

162,114

111,366

116,613

-

-

58,058

448,151

13,898

1,063

14,961

463,112

Current Accounts Receivable

-

5

31,350

9,155

12,271

-

-

1,570

54,351

27,887

1,769

29,656

84,007

Factoring operations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

49,668

4,665

54,333

54,333

Leasing Operations

-

23,579

29,962

95,434

120,684

-

-

16,535

286,194

29,230

9,749

38,979

325,173

-

-

-

26

273

-

-

236

535

1,508
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1,771

2,306

-

59,814

1,365,699

1,060,715

673,791

-

-

192,318

3,352,337

351,039

54,775

405,814

3,758,151

Owed by Banks
Credits and asset (receivable)
accounts from clients
Commercial loans:

Other loans and accounts
receivable
Subtotal Commercial loans
Consumer

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

472,993

33,122

506,115

506,115

Housing

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

667,506

24,728

692,234

692,234

Total Credits and asset
(receivable) accounts from
clients

-

59,814

1,365,699

1,060,715

673,791

-

-

192,318

3,352,337

1,491,538

112,625

1,604,163

4,956,500

Investment securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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The seniority default analysis by financial asset class is as follows:
December 31, 2009

Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts
from clients:
Commercial
Housing
Consumer

Less than
30 days

Between 30
and 89 days

More than
90 days

Total Debt in
arrears

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

-

-

-

-

5,491

6,671

31,384

43,546

487

293

7,037

7,817

1,109

2,548

3,251

6,908

7,087

9,512

41,672

58,271

Investment securities
Totals

December 31, 2008

Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts
from clients:
Commercial
Housing
Consumer

Less than
30 days

Between 30
and 89 days

More than
90 days

Total Debt in
arrears

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,865

31,707

28,852

70,424

353

174

4,650

5,177

1,487

2,662

5,143

9,292

11,705

34,543

38,645

84,893

Investment securities
Totals

The reasonable value of collateral on nonperforming but not deteriorated assets
amounts to MM$63,076 as of December
31, 2009 and MM$73,604 as of December
31, 2008.
The Liquidity Risk is the risk run by
an entity of encountering difficulties in
raising the funds with which to meet their
financial liability commitments.
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The Bank is exposed daily to cash requirements
from withdrawals from current accounts,
term deposit payments, guarantee payments,
payment of derivatives transactions, and so
on. As it is inherent to the banking activity,
the Bank does not maintain cash to cover the
balance of these positions, since experience
shows that a only minimum level of these funds
will be withdrawn, which can be predicted
with a high degree of certainty.

The Board sets limits on a small portion
of available current funding to meet these
payments and on a minimum level of interbank
transactions and other borrowing facilities
that should be available to hedge against an
unexpected transfer demand level, which is
reviewed regularly. Furthermore, the Bank
must comply with regulatory limits for the
maturity mismatch.
These limits affect mismatches between the
individual future Bank income and expense flows
and these are as follows:
(i) mismatches of up to 30 days for all
currencies up to once the core capital;
(ii) mismatches of up to 30 days for foreign
currencies up to once the core capital; and
(iii) mismatches of up to 90 days for all
currencies up to twice the core capital;
Considering the nature of its operations, the
Bank adopts a restatement methodology for
purposes of measuring its mismatches and
their compliance with regulatory limits. This
methodology allows us to take into account, in
mismatch measuring, a portion of the sight and
term deposits, and deposits in retail customer
savings accounts. While contractually these
may be withdrawn at any time, they tend to
remain in the bank for relatively long periods,
a behavior that the Bank can predict with
sufficient reliability.
The Bank is exposed to the volatile effects of the
exchange rates in which their financial positions
and cash flows are expressed or indexed. The
Board sets limits for levels of net exposure by
currency and total positions during the day and
at closing, which are monitored daily.
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The currency positions of assets and liabilities at year end are as follows:

USD

Euros

Yens

Pounds

Other
currencies

UF

Pesos

TC

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

Cash and bank deposits

26,288

815

12

57

113

-

83,046

-

110,331

Operations with clearance underway

31,288

580

4,298

16

-

-

59,614

-

95,796

1,949

-

-

-

-

54,686

19,521

-

76,156

152

-

-

-

-

23,189

28,629

-

51,970

13,663

-

-

-

-

-

112,477

-

126,140

Total

As of December 31, 2009

Negotiable securities
Buy-back and securities loan contracts
Financial derivative contracts
Owed to Bank
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity
Investments in Companies

22,625

-

-

-

-

-

63,595

-

86,220

554,670

632

-

61

-

1,916,877

2,429,129

14,337

4,915,706

5,663

-

-

-

-

391,007

340,492

-

737,162

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,583

-

3,583

Intangibles

142

-

-

-

-

-

13,488

-

13,630

Fixed Assets

106

-

-

-

-

-

55,106

-

55,212

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,947

-

-

-

-

-

17,894

-

19,841

Current Taxes
Deferred Taxes
Other Assets

5,384

81

(4,068)

-

(98)

-

86,413

-

87,712

Total Assets

663,877

2,108

242

134

15

2,385,759

3,312,987

14,337

6,379,459

Deposits and other sight liabilities

(39,584)

(435)

(1)

(12)

(15)

(1,631)

(454,592)

-

(496,270)

Operations with clearance underway

(27,334)

(296)

(241)

(77)

-

-

(36,906)

-

(64,854)

(1,487)

-

-

-

-

(2,169)

(461,857)

-

(465,513)

(402,767)

(632)

-

-

-

(283,980)

(2,628,665)

(1)

(3,316,045)

Buy-back and securities loan contracts
Deposits and other term deposits
Financial derivative contracts

(14,930)

-

-

-

-

-

(99,773)

-

(114,703)

Liabilities with Banks

(357,290)

(744)

-

(45)

-

-

(4,294)

(30)

(362,403)

Issued debt securities

(101,386)

-

-

-

-

(833,612)

(221)

-

(935,219)

Other financial liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

(17,763)

(4,060)

(5,030)

(26,853)

Current Taxes

-

-

-

-

-

-

(7,831)

-

(7,831)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(15,644)

-

(15,644)

(118)

-

-

-

-

-

(53,000)

-

(53,118)

Deferred Taxes
Provisions
Other Liabilities

(191)

-

-

-

-

(14)

(17,266)

-

(17,471)

Total Liabilities

(945,087)

(2,107)

(242)

(134)

(15)

(1,139,169)

(3,784,109)

(5,061)

(5,875,924)

Net Assets (liabilities)
Contingent Credits
Net asset (liability) position

(281,210)

1

-

-

-

1,246,590

(471,122)

9,276

503,535

134,236

3,107

5,783

-

-

139,485

98,280

-

380,891

(146,974)

3,108

5,783

-

-

1,386,075

(372,842)

9,276

884,426

As of December 31, 2009
Total Assets

663,877

2,108

242

134

15

2,385,759

3,312,987

14,337

6,379,459

Total Liabilities

(945,087)

(2,107)

(242)

(134)

(15)

(1,139,169)

(3,784,109)

(5,061)

(5,875,924)

Net Assets (liabilities)

(281,210)

1

-

-

-

1,246,590

(471,122)

9,276

503,535

134,236

3,107

5,783

-

-

139,485

98,280

-

380,891

(146,974)

3,108

5,783

-

-

1,386,075

(372,842)

9,276

884,426

Contingent Credits
Net asset (liability) position

The analysis, by contractual maturity, of assets and liabilities can be found in Note 36.

267

Corpbanca and Affiliates / Financial Statements

USD

Euros

Yens

Pounds

Other
Currency

UF

Pesos

TC

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

Cash and bank deposits

28,620

2,864

64

325

270

-

49,183

-

81,326

Operations with clearance underway

46,600

393

35

-

189

-

70,486

-

117,703

2

-

-

-

-

65,187

19,916

-

85,105

As of December 31, 2008

Negotiable securities
Buy-back and securities loan contracts

13,565

18,737

18,212

Financial derivative contracts

26,257

-

-

-

-

-

183,225

-

209,482

695,956

1,529

-

-

-

1,893,205

2,267,167

23,933

4,881,790

-

-

-

-

-

285,372

291,106

-

576,478

Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Investment securities available for sale
Owed to Bank

17,691

Investments in companies
Intangibles

9,391

Fixed assets

12,411

Current taxes
Deferred taxes

50,514

19,980

37,671

3,699

3,699

2,861

12,252

38,820

51,231

6,488

6,488

13,354

13,354

Other assets

1,338

(360)

83

-

110

-

75,710

5

76,886

Total Assets

839,420

4,426

182

325

569

2,274,912

3,060,207

23,938

6,203,979

Deposits and other sight liabilities

(33,456)

(180)

(16)

(20)

(54)

(958)

(323,218)

-

(357,902)

Operations with clearance underway

(24,508)

(607)

-

(506)

(294)

-

Buy-back and securities loan contracts

(14,987)

Deposits and other term deposits
Financial derivative contracts
Liabilities with Banks
Issued debt securities
Other financial liabilities

-

(60,261)

(5,300)

(331,184)

(86,176)
(351,471)

(460,671)

(3,398)

-

-

-

(612,741)

(2,273,931)

(1)

(3,350,742)

(27,304)

-

-

-

-

-

(168,304)

-

(195,608)

(437,435)

(967)

-

-

-

-

(54,204)

-

(492,606)

-

-

-

-

-

(764,939)

(233)

-

(765,172)

(278)

-

-

-

-

(20,467)

(17,893)

(8,756)

(47,394)

Deferred taxes

(10,606)

(10,606)

Provisions

(33,204)

(33,204)

Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets (liabilities)

(58)
(998,697)

(18,494)

(18,552)

(5,152)

(16)

(526)

(348)

(1,404,405)

(3,291,532)

(8,757)

(5,709,433)

(159,277)

(726)

166

(201)

221

870,507

(231,325)

15,181

494,546

Contingent Credits

115,159

2,530

221

20

-

-

240,931

-

358,861

Net asset (liability) position

(44,118)

1,804

387

(181)

221

870,507

9,606

15,181

853,407

As of December 31, 2008
Total Assets

839,420

4,426

182

325

569

2,274,912

3,060,207

23,938

6,203,979

Total Liabilities

(998,697)

(5,152)

(16)

(526)

(348)

(1,404,405)

(3,291,532)

(8,757)

(5,709,433)

Net Assets (liabilities)

(159,277)

(726)

166

(201)

221

870,507

(231,325)

15,181

494,546

Contingent Credits

115,159

2,530

221

20

-

-

240,931

-

358,861

Net asset (liability) position

(44,118)

1,804

387

(181)

221

870,507

9,606

15,181

853,407

The analysis, by contractual maturity, of assets and liabilities can be found in Note 36.
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QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE INFORMATION
REGARDING MARKET RISK
General
This section describes the financial risks, the
liquidity risk and the market risk to which
Corpbanca is exposed in its business activities.
Furthermore, it includes an explanation of the
internal tools and regulatory methods used to
control these risks, the portfolios on which they
are applied and quantitative information that
demonstrates the level of exposure to financial
risk assumed by the Bank.
The main types of risk inherent in our business
activities are market, liquidity, operational and
credit risks. The effectiveness with which the
Bank is able to manage the balance between risk
and profitability is an important factor in its
ability to generate stable growth in earnings over
the long term. Corpbanca’s Senior Management
places strong emphasis on risk management.
Policy
Corpbanca policy regarding the management of
assets and liabilities (A&L) seeks to maximize
net interest income on assets and return on assets
in a manner consistent with the management
of interest rate, liquidity and currency risks,
while at the same time keeping to the limits
established by Chilean banking regulations and
internal risk policies and limits.

Our asset and liability management policies
are developed by the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALC – Comité de Activos y Pasivos
– CAPA) following guidelines set by the Board
of Directors. The ALC is made up of eleven
members, including two directors, the General
Manager, the Financial and International
Division Manager, the Financial Risk Manager,
the Financial Manager, and the Division
Managers of Planning and Management Control,
Retail Banking, Branches, Business Banking
and Corporate and Large Company Banking.
The role of the Financial Risk Manager and
the ALC is to ensure that cash transactions are
consistently in compliance with the policies
and internal risk limits, as well as applicable
regulations. The ALC meets monthly. Three
additional committees make up the corporate
governance of market risk management: The
Balance Sheet Management Committee (meets
bi-weekly) the Market Committee (meets
weekly) and the Daily Coordination Committee.
These committees analyze the Bank’s asset and
liabilities positions, reviewing and updating
their core working scenario and defined
strategies. The members of the Financial Risk
Area are independent from the areas in charge
of banking transactions and the Financial and
International Division.
The Finance and International Division manages
treasury trading activities under the guidelines
set by the ALC and Corpbanca’s Credit Risk
Control and Market Risk units. The activities
of the Market Risk Control unit consist of (i)

applying VaR techniques (as analyzed below), (ii)
determining the market value of their fixed asset
portfolio (including derivates) and measuring
daily profit and loss originating from its own
activities; (iii) monitoring, controlling and
comparing the VaR and other relevant exposures
against established limits; and (iv) relaying
information regarding relevant activities to the
ALC and other members of Senior Management
and the Finance and International Division.
The market risk analysis is focused on the
management of risk exposure associated with (i)
the fixed asset portfolio interest rate risk (which
comprises a “negotiable” portfolio and another
“available for sale” portfolio), which includes,
primarily, government bonds, corporate bonds,
mortgage bonds issued by third parties and
interest rate and currency derivatives; (ii) the
interest rate risk related to asset and liabilities
positions; (iii) liquidity risk; and (iv) the net
exchange rate position that includes all our
foreign currency assets and liabilities (mainly
United States dollars) including derivatives that
protect certain foreign currency gaps that stem
from investments and their funding.
Market Risk
The market risk is the risk of loss as a result of
unexpected changes in interest rates, exchange
rates, inflation rates and other rates or prices.
Corpbanca is exposed to market risk primarily as
a result of the following activities:
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• Purchase/sale of financial securities, which
exposes interest rate and exchange rate risks;
• Bank activity involvement which carries an
interest rate risk since a change in interest
rates affects net interest income.
• Bank activity involvement, which carries an
inflation rate risk since a change in expected
inflation affects net income restatements
(income and expenses) through the impact
on transactions stated in Chilean inflationindexed unit (Unidades de Fomento);
• Local Stock Market trading, which subjects
us to potential losses originating from stock
market fluctuations; and
• Asset investment in which returns or accounts
are stated in currencies other than the peso,
which carry an exchange rate risk between the
Chilean peso and said other currencies.

rate decline would have a negative impact on net
interest income. Consequently, a negative gap
position indicates asset sensitivity and means
that a decline in the rates of interest would have
a negative effect on net interest income while
increased interest rates would have a positive
impact on net interest income.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

A key component of the Bank’s financial
management policy is the management of
interest rate sensitivity. Interest rate sensitivity
is the relation between market interest rates and
net interest income, resulting from the maturity
or re-pricing characteristics of high interest
bearing assets and liabilities. Any mismatch of
interest bearing assets and liabilities is known as
a gap position. A positive gap position indicates
the existence of asset sensitivity and means that
an increase in interest rates would have a positive
effect on net interest income while an interest

The peso devaluation or appreciation rate against
the various foreign currencies with which the
bank operates (mostly United States dollars)
could be expected to have the following effects:
• Should the Bank maintain a net asset position
in United States dollars and there is a peso
devaluation against the dollar, a related gain
would be recorded, and if a peso appreciation
occurs, this would show a related loss;
• Should the Bank maintain a net liabilities
position in United States dollars and there
is a peso devaluation against the dollar,
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Our interest rate sensitivity strategy takes into
account not only return rates and the underlying
degree of risk, but also liquidity requirements,
including reserve requirements and reserves,
minimum liquidity ratios, withdrawal of
deposits at maturity, capital costs and additional
funding demands. Maturity gaps and positions
are monitored by the various committees
mentioned above and submitted to ALC and are
managed within established limits.

a related loss would be recorded, and if a
peso appreciation occurs, this would show a
related gain;
• Should the inflation rate, reflected by a UF
value variation, for a period exceed the peso
devaluation against the United States dollar
over the same period, then the Bank would
record a related gain if it held a net asset
position in UF that exceeds a net liabilities
position in United States dollars, and the
Bank would record a relative loss if we held
a net liabilities position in United States
dollars that exceeds a net asset position in
UFs. The same impact would be felt if there
were a peso appreciation against the United
States dollar; and
• Should the inflation rate, reflected by a UF
value variation, for the same period be lower
than the peso devaluation against the United
States dollar over the same period, then the
Bank would record a related gain if it held a
net asset position (or positive gap) in United
States dollars and a net liabilities position
(or negative gap) in UFs, and consequently
a related loss would be recorded if the Bank
held a net liabilities position (or negative
gap) in United States dollars and a net asset
position (or positive gap) in UFs.
The Bank manages its exposure through an
absolute limit of maximum mismatch and also
through the Value at Risk (VaR) methodology.
During 2009 the monthly average VaR
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associated with the exchange rate position was 15
thousand dollars, peaking at 69 thousand dollars.

Market risk exposure control:

Norms of the Banco Central de Chile and in
chapter 12-9 of the Updated Digest of Norms
of the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions, financial institutions should
measure their market risk exposure according to
the following:

Consistent with the instructions set out in
Chapter III.B.2 of the Compendium of Financial

Market Risk Position and its measurement:
Market Risk Exposure is measured and

Regulatory Limits for Market Risk Control

The Trading Methodology Book measures the
impact on the Bank in light of market price
changes in its financial positions, resulting
from variations and volatility of interest and
exchange rates.

Average Currency VaR (MCLP)

70.000

controlled through the methodology set
out by the Banco Central de Chile in the
aforementioned chapter, both for the Trading
Methodology Book as for the Banking
Methodology Book.

Average Currency VaR

60.000

The Banking Methodology Book measures the
impact of maturity mismatches, restatements
and sensitivity on asset and liability
commissions, and fluctuations in interest rates
and restatement indices on the profit margin and
present value of the organization.

50.000
40.000
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As of December 31,
2009

2008

MM$

MM$

7,929

5,712

Currency Risk

944

1,804

Interest Rate options risk

389

358

9,262

7,874

8% weighted assets due to Credit Risk

400,913

420,985

Limit: Effective Shareholders’ Equity

727,436

570,114

317,261

141,255

Market Risk Exposure

Trading Book:
Interest Rate risk

Market Risk Exposure

Usable Margin:
Banking Book:
Short Term Exposure
Interest Rate risk

28,646

22,393

Restatement Risk

25,291

8,714

2,539

5,111

Short Term Market Risk Exposure in the Banking Book

56,476

36,218

Limit:

68,600

58,335

12,124

22,117

Interest Rate risk

122,432

143,703

Long Term Market Risk Exposure in the Banking Book

122,432

143,703

Limit: 27% Effective Shareholders’ Equity

198,625

153,931

Usable Margin:

76,193

10,228

Interest Rate sensitive commissions

Usable Margin:
Long Term Exposure:

Simulation Scenario Assumptions and
Limitations / Sensitivity Analysis
(Regulatory Method)
Our scenario simulation method should be
interpreted in light of the limitations of our
models, which include:
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• The scenario simulation makes the
assumption that the volumes remain on
the balance sheet and that they are always
renewed at maturity, regardless of the
fact that credit risk considerations and
prepayments may affect the maturity of
certain positions.

• This model assumes established changes
in interest rates and sensitivity factors for
differing time periods and does not take into
account some other scenarios for each time
period or other sensitivity factors.
• The model does not take into account the
volume sensitivity to these interest
rate changes.
• The model does not take into account
our subsidiaries which are impacted by
market risks.
Internal Methods of Market Risk Control
Corpbanca has established policies that include a
series of tools for monitoring market risks, both
statistical as well as sensitivity related, where the
main tool is the Value at Risk methodology.
VaR Methodology
General
Corpbanca used Value-at-Risk, or VaR (Value
at Risk “) methodology as a statistical tool to
measure and manage both the interest rate
risks in relation to their trading portfolio and
the exchange rate risk related to its net foreign
currency position, which includes all assets and
liabilities in foreign currency (mainly United
States dollars) including forward and swaps
contracts used to protect positions.
In the calculation method used by Corpbanca,
the VaR is an estimate of the expected loss in
market value of a given portfolio over a one day
horizon at a confidence level of 95.0%. In other
words, it is the expected one day loss, stated in
Chilean pesos that Corpbanca would expect to
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feel in terms of a given portfolio, 95.0% of the
time, subject to certain limitations discussed
below. On the contrary, this is the loss figure
that Corpbanca would expect should exceed
only 5.0% of the time. Volatility is calculated
through 100 historical observations used as
input for an exponentially weighted moving
average mode, where the volatility calculation
includes a decay factor that places more
emphasis on the newer values. A maintenance
factor of 1 day is used (loss carried one day). VaR
estimates are used to warn Senior Management
whenever the statistically expected losses of our
fixed asset portfolio and exchange rate position
exceed certain previously set levels.
Internal Limits
This daily VaR limit has been set by the ALC
at $450 million for the negotiations portfolio, a
figure which is revised annually.

•

•

Changes in market rates and prices might
not be random variables distributed
independently and identically or be
distributed normally. Specifically, the
normal distribution assumption could
underestimate the probability of extreme
market movements.
The historical data the Bank uses in its VaR
model might not provide the best estimate
of the risk factor changes in the future and
any data alteration could be inadequate.
In fact, the use of historical data could fail
to capture the risk of potential extreme
and adverse market movements, regardless
of the time range used. For example, the
use of long periods of historical data could
lead, mistakenly to a significant decrease
in volatility, especially after the Asian
crisis. Depending on the circumstance,
the Bank normally uses between 100 and
260 historical market data observations,
but they also monitor other ranges of

•

market data for purposes of having a
more conservative view. However, reliable
historic risk factor data may not be readily
available for some portfolio securities.
A one day time horizon may not fully
capture the market risk positions that
cannot be cleared or protected within a day.

Currently, the Bank calculates VaR at the end of
the working day and transaction positions may
change substantially during the course of trading.
Quantitative disclosures of the VaR model
The Bank manages its exposure in the
negotiations book through sub-limits for the
Trading and Structuring sub-portfolios. During
2009, the average monthly VaR associated to
the Trading Portfolio position amounted to
MM$264, peaking at MM$744. The average
VaR value of the Structuring Portfolio was
MM$65, reaching a maximum of MM$147.

The VaR model makes the assumption that
changes in market risk factors are distributed
normally and that the standard deviation
parameter changes of the risk factors and the
correlation between them have been estimated
correctly. The model assumes that the correlation
and changes in market rates / prices included
in our historical database are random variables
distributed independently and identically,
and provide a good estimate of correlation and
changes in rates / prices in the future.
Our VaR methodology should be interpreted
in light of the limitations of our models,
which include:

Millones
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Non-Statistical Market Risk Control Tools

Interest Rate Sensitivity

In addition to its VaR methodology, the Bank
controls its portfolio market risk through certain
A&L Committee approved non-statistical tools.
The A&L Committee sets certain limits based
on guidelines from the Board of Directors on
business strategy, market volatility, liquidity of
assets and overall risk tolerance. In general, the
A&L Committee updates the market risk limits
at least once a year.

For a non-negotiable securities portfolio, the
Bank performs gap analyses by way of sensitivity
to asset and liability mismatches, estimating the
risk using:

Sensitivity Simulations
Corpbanca uses sensitivity simulation on
available for sale portfolios in order to assess the
market value change in a said portfolio. This is
a complementary tool to the VaR methodology,
used as a measure of portfolio sensitivity
regardless of the level of volatility. This assumes
an unexpected move of 90 base points in the
available for sale portfolio within a 5% limit of
the institution’s effective Shareholders’ equity.

Risk = Σm Gapj * ∆rj * Durj
Duration Analysis
Corpbanca performs duration analyses by
monitoring changes in the present value of assets
and liabilities associated with unexpected 100
base point interest rate movements. Along with
this, it examines the impact of “re-pricing”
on the net profit margin for the next twelve
months that has interest rate movements of the
aforementioned dimension. The bank has set
limits represented as a percentage of Effective
Shareholders’ equity and the gross margin.
Stress Tests

Volume Limits

Scenario Analysis

Net Exchange Rate Position: High Net Position.
The bank has set an absolute limit on the size of
the exchange rate position. As of December 31,
2009 the limit in force was USD25 million in
net positions in United States dollars, and the
equivalent of USD 15 million in the exchange
rate position in Euros. This limit is a useful
measure for managing the exposure to exchange
rate and interest rate changes. These limits are
set by the ALC and are estimated and monitored
daily by the Market Risk Unit.

The bank uses a series of multiple scenarios
to perform asset and liability stress tests
attempting to analyze the impact of extreme
market conditions and adopt policies and
procedures aimed at protecting its equity and
results from such contingencies. This tool is
used to measure interest rate risks in relation
to our fixed asset trading and available for sale
portfolios as well as the exchange rate risks
associated with foreign currency exposure and
the inflation risk associated with the gap in
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inflation-indexed assets versus liabilities
indexed by inflation.
The bank uses historically correlated and
uncorrelated scenarios, hypothetical and projected
scenarios as a series of possible market conditions
for analyzing portfolios under stress conditions.
The historically correlated scenarios used in
2009 included the events of December 2009,
while uncorrelated scenarios and the hypothetical
scenarios tested high-level effort scenarios. The
projected scenarios included a projection test on
inflation and other rates over a 12-month period.
Sensitivity Analysis
The Bank performs a sensitivity analysis on
certain financial positions: currency gaps, out of
balance assets and liabilities, both in inflationindexed portfolios (UF) as in those not indexed
for inflation and interest rate gaps in bank books.
The bank performs a hypothetical simulation by
calculating the potential loss that would have
been reflected in financial results in connection
with extreme movements in exchange, inflation
and interest rates.
The most significant assumption used in these
scenario simulations and portfolio sensitivity
analyses is the use of a 100 base point variation in
the yield curve. The Bank uses a 100 base point
variant given that a sudden variant of
this dimension is considered realistic and
would produce a significant impact on our
financial results.
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Our scenario simulation methodology should
be interpreted in light of the limitations of our
models, which include:
• The scenario simulation makes the
assumption that the volumes remain on
the balance sheet and that they are always
renewed at maturity, regardless of the
fact that credit risk considerations and
prepayments may affect the maturity of
certain positions.
• The model does not take into account
the volume sensitivity to these interest
rate variants.
• The variant is simulated to occur in only one
day, and it is assumed that the loss will occur
over the same period of time.

reasonable price and the risk of being compelled
to pay debts earlier than anticipated. The overall
policy is to maintain sufficient liquidity to
ensure the capacity to meet deposit withdrawals,
make payments on other debts when due, extend
loans and cover working capital needs.

In fact, as provided by the Central Bank of
Chile, in point of paragraph 1.13 of Chapter III
B.2 and item 2 of Chapter 12.9 of the Updated
Digest of Norms of the Superintendence for
Banks & Financial Institutions, the individual
liquidity situation must be defined.

Regulatory Compliance

Liquidity Position and its measurement: The
liquidity position is measured and controlled
through the difference between cash flow
payable items associated with liabilities and
expense statements; and cash receivables, which
are associated with assets and income accounts,
i.e. for a specific period of time frame, which
is called maturity mismatch. The indicated
measurement is established by monitoring the
individual liquidity position and that of its
affiliate companies. The maturity mismatch
calculation is carried out separately for domestic
and foreign currency.

Liquidity Risk

The minimum liquidity amount is determined
by the reserve requirements set by the Banco
Central de Chile. These reserve requirements
are currently set at 9.0% on sight deposits and
3.6% on term deposits. The bank is currently
in compliance with these requirements.
Furthermore, the Bank is subject to an
applicable technical requirement consistent of
keeping a certain number of assets in cash or in
highly liquid securities, if the amount of the
sum of the following liabilities exceeds 2.5 times
the amount of its net equity base:
• Current account deposits;
• Other sight deposits or payable sight
liabilities incurred in the ordinary course
of business;
• Other deposits payable unconditionally and
immediately or within a term of no less than
30 days; and
• Term deposits payable within a 10 day period.

The liquidity risk arises from the overall funding
of financing, trading and investment activities.
This includes the risk of unexpected increases
in the cost of financing the assets portfolio to
maturity and appropriate rates, the risk of failing
to liquidate a position in a timely manner at a

Chilean regulations also require that the gaps
between assets and liabilities due within 30 days
do not exceed the net equity base of a bank and
the gaps between assets and liabilities maturing
within 90 days do not exceed twice the bank’s
net equity base.

As of December 31, 2009, the bank held
financial investment positions in United States
Dollars through its New York subsidiary with
bond investment holdings amounting to
USD 11,000,000.
As of December 31, 2009, a sudden 100%
rise in interest rates resulted in a MM$63,822
decline in Corpbanca’s market value, or 9% of its
statutory equity.

In the specific case of derivative securities,
the Bank estimates their impact on liquidity
indicators as follows:
a) Physically delivered derivatives: Each one of
the derivative’s components must be included
in the corresponding time frame in which the
cash interchanges will be made, identified by
its corresponding currency.
b) Compensation derivatives: the net
compensation is determined and it is added
to the time frame and the currency in which
the compensation will be executed.
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The following table reflects a maturity analysis of the Banks main expenses and revenues:
Time Frame

Pesos

Restatable

Foreign Currency

General Total

971,299

23,958

260,216

1,255,473

7 to 15 days

461,071

11,117

130,438

602,626

15 to 30 days

504,667

1,273

221,889

727,829

Expenses (MM$)
Up to 7 days

30 to 60 days

842,568

26,717

211,086

1,080,371

60 to 90 days

427,248

20,942

118,499

566,689

1,462,589

251,520

282,608

1,996,717

90 to 180 days
181 days up to 1 year
Over 1 year
General Total

405,847

228,092

311,554

945,493

1,150,541

1,583,909

749,137

3,483,587

6,225,830

2,147,528

2,285,427

10,658,785

548,830

386,557

104,657

1,040,044

Income MM$
Up to 7 days
7 to 15 days

198,469

26,523

48,142

273,134

15 to 30 days

313,970

17,297

45,991

377,258

30 to 60 days

459,713

47,919

70,452

578,084

60 to 90 days

437,187

47,995

66,609

551,791

1,300,810

254,201

157,603

1,712,614

90 to 180 days
181 days up to 1 year
Over 1 year
General Total

507,109

210,001

255,081

972,191

2,067,739

2,829,612

937,159

5,834,510

5,833,827

3,820,105

1,685,694

11,339,626

For risk limit purposes, the following definitions
are made:

Second time frame: from 8 days and up to and
including 30 days

Time frames: the maturity mismatches are
executed in the following time frames:

Third time frame: from 31 days and up to and
including 90 days

First time frame: up to and including 7 days

Provisions on limit enforcement: Banco
Corpbanca, in compliance with the

276

aforementioned Banco Central de Chile and
the Superintendence for Banks & Financial
Institutions norms, has determined that, by
policy approved by the Board of Directors, the
measuring and monitoring of the liquidity
position shall be performed through the
calculation of maturity mismatches on an
Adjustable Basis.
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As of December 31, 2009, the gap ratio between
assets and liabilities at 30 days or less and equity
and reserves was 0.30.
As of December 31, 2009, the gap ratio between
assets and liabilities at 90 days or less and equity
and reserves was 0.49.
Internal Methods
In addition to the regulatory tools described
above that the bank uses to control liquidity
risk, the following internal liquidity limits
have been set:
Low Liquidity Requirement. To ensure that the
bank maintains the necessary permanent liquid
assets to meet all payments associated with
deposits made by third parties in the bank,
a limit on the minimum amount of available
liquid assets held daily is contemplated. The
amount of money to be paid out as a result
of deposit payments over the next three day
period cannot be greater than the total amount
of liquid assets held by the bank, as defined
by the Banco Central de Chile in its liquidity
mechanism regulations. As of December 31,
2009, liquid assets amounted to MM$380,995
while deposits payable over the following three
days totaled MM$30,320.
Internal Liquidity Indicator (ILI). The bank
seeks to ensure that, even under adverse
conditions, it has access to the necessary funds
to meet customer needs, maturing liabilities
and capital requirements. As part of the policy,
the bank has developed an internal liquidity

model called “contingency internal liquidity
indicator” (or ILI). The purpose of the ILI
model is to assess its funding capacity by
assuming a hypothetical scenario of illiquidity.

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Market Risk Unit applies this ILI model
on a daily basis. The ILI is based on a stress
scenario in which the assumption is that an
unusually large proportion of liabilities will be
withdrawn over the following 10 days while
in turn non-payments in terms of assets will
increase at an unusually high rate. So that we
can maintain a normal level of liquidity the
proportion between income and expense arising
from this scenario should be above 1. As of
December 31, 2009, the ILI was 6.35.

The Board of Directors must ensure that the
management mechanisms used for handling
operational risk, such as the definition of roles
and responsibilities (set out in this policy) are
consistent with the guidelines laid out by the
Bank’s shareholders on this subject.

Operational Risk
Corpbanca adopts the Basel Committee’s
definition of operational risk, which is
presented below:
“The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or
from external events”
These risks, it not handled appropriately, can
result in service unavailability, information
deficiencies, financial losses, increased costs, loss
of professional reputation or failure to maintain
or increase market share.
For its operational risk management,
Corpbanca has established and imposed an
appropriate structure of responsibilities, which
is detailed below:

Board of Directors

Operational Risk and Information Safety
Committee
It is responsible for maintaining visibility
and commitment with the operational risk
management area, at the highest level of
Senior Management.
Area in charge of Operational Risk
Management
Its mission is to identify, promote, implement
and monitor the policy framework for
managing operational risk, which must be
consistent with the Bank’s approach, objectives
and strategic goals.
Division Management
The Division Management areas are in
charge of managing operational risk in their
respective divisions. Their responsibilities are,
among others:
Implement operational risk policy in their
respective business units.
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The more significant operational risk
management responsibilities within divisions
include the following activities:
Risk awareness.
Risk assessment (both qualitative and quantitative).
Risk improvement.
Be a direct support in the monitoring of their
business unit’s operational risk.

III.2 Assessment

I. Operational Risk Management Process

Every Division Manager should ensure that
operational risks are reviewed regularly and that
appropriate measures are taken.

The Corpbanca Operational Risk Management
model takes into account the following activities
or functions:
III.1 Creation of Risk Awareness
Training and communication
Communication and ongoing training regarding
the threats faced by the business, together
with business oriented training is crucial in
meeting objectives. Operational risks assessment
is based on identifying the threats to the
business process, their impact and a subsequent
evaluation of the controls needed to mitigate
operational risk.

278

Operational risks assessment is based on
identifying the threats to the business process,
their impact and a subsequent evaluation of the
controls needed to mitigate operational risk.
III.3 Improvement

Shareholders’ equity requirement
Consistent with the General Banking Law, the
Bank should maintain a ratio of at least 8%,
net of required provisions between Effective
Shareholders’ Equity and Consolidated Assets
Weighted by risk, and a ratio of at least 3%,
net of required provisions, between its Equity
Base and Total Consolidated Assets. To this
effect, effective Equity is determined by the
Equity and Reserves or Equity Base with the
following adjustments:
a. subordinated bonds with a 50% limit of the
Equity Base are added, and

b. the balance of Goodwill assets or surcharges
paid and investments in companies not
involved in the consolidation are subtracted.
Assets are weighted based on their risk
categories, to which a risk percentage is
assigned according to the amount of capital
needed to back each one of those assets. 5 risk
categories are applied (0%, 10%, 20%, 60%
and 100%). For example, cash, deposits in
other banks and financial securities issued by
the Banco Central de Chile have a 0% risk
factor, which means that, consistent with
current regulations, no capital is needed to
back these assets. Fixed assets carry a 100%
risk, which means that a minimum capital
equivalent to 8% of the value of these assets
must be available.
All derivative securities negotiated off-exchange
are taken into account in determining risk
assets with conversion factors on notional
values, thereby obtaining a credit risk exposure
amount (or “credit equivalent”). The off-balance
contingent credits are also considered “credit
equivalent” in terms of weighting.
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At year end the ratio of assets and risk weighted
assets is the following:
Consolidated Assets

Risk Weighted Assets

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

110,331

81,326

0

0

Operations with clearance underway

95,796

117,703

20,784

45,532

Negotiable securities

76,156

85,105

21,980

9,188

In-Balance Assets (net of provisions):
Cash and bank deposits

Buyback and security loan contracts
Financial derivative contracts
Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts from clients
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity

51,970

50,514

22,842

17,501

126,140

209,482

144,029

186,575

86,220

37,671

22,620

17,666

4,915,706

4,881,790

4,617,872

4,613,302

737,162

576,478

446,803

54,969

0

0

0

0

3,583

3,699

3,583

3,699

Intangibles

13,630

12,252

13,630

12,252

Fixed assets

55,212

51,231

55,212

51,231

Investments in companies

0

6,488

0

649

Deferred taxes

Current taxes

19,841

13,354

1,984

1,335

Other assets

87,712

76,886

87,712

76,886

Off-Balance assets:
Contingent Credits

380,891

358,861

228,534

215,317

6,760,350

6,562,840

5,687,585

5,306,102

2009
MM$

2008
MM$

2009

2008

Equity Base

503,535

494,546

7.45%

7.54%

Effective Shareholders’ Equity

735,648

584,629

12.93%

11.02%

Total risk weighted assets

Amount

Ratio
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c) At the closing of the 2009 financial
statements, the bank includes among
its objectives, policies and management
processes, the following information:
• In consolidated terms, the Bank holds a total
equity of MM$503,535.
• During the year 2009, no increases in equity
or extraordinary investments were realized,
with the exception of the sale of bank-issued
shares described in Note 23.
• At the regulatory level, the Bank closed
the year 2009 with a solvency indicator of
7.45%, while the Basel Index was 12.93%.

NOTA 36.
MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Maturity of financial assets
Below are the main financial assets grouped
according to their remaining terms, including
interest accrued to December 31, 2009 and
2008. As these are negotiable or available for sale
securities, they are included at reasonable value
and under the term at which they may be sold.

As of December 31, 2009
Up to 1
month
MM$

From 1 month to
3 months
MM$

From 3 months to
1 yearo
MM$

From 1 year to
3 years
MM$

From 3 years to
6 years
MM$

Over 6
years
MM$

Total
MM$

7,815

529

51,942

9,635

4,936

1,299

76,156

Buyback and security loan contracts

17,521

15,606

18,636

58

149

-

51,970

Financial derivative contracts

20,628

18,967

46,505

10,282

27,257

2,501

126,140

Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts
from clients (*)
Commercial loans and others

63,651

39

13,494

-

9,036

-

86,220

544,603

406,699

1,152,397

974,810

811,645

967,281

4,857,435

506,828

381,091

1,035,439

743,848

627,200

388,279

3,682,685

Negotiable Securities

Mortgage loans for housing
Consumer Loans
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity

1,535

5,589

25,653

71,113

113,375

575,614

792,879

36,240

20,019

91,305

159,849

71,070

3,388

381,871

7,792

45,439

101,812

148,783

331,534

101,802

737,162

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(*) Excluding the amounts for which the maturity date has transpired, totaling MM$58,271 as of December 31, 2009.
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As of December 31, 2008
Up to 1
month

From 1 month to
3 months

From 3 months to
1 year

From 1 year to
3 years

From 3 years to
6 years

Over 6
years

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

5,776

-

79,329

-

-

-

85,105

14,601

35,564

349

-

-

-

50,514

Financial derivative contracts

53,665

45,981

76,569

16,478

14,277

2,512

209,482

Owed by banks
Credits and asset (receivable) accounts
from clients (*)
Commercial loans and others

23,284

5,094

9,293

-

-

-

37,671

839,310

526,952

885,582

892,548

787,415

865,090

4,796,897

759,629

500,228

762,298

657,879

588,585

370,567

3,639,186

Negotiable Securities
Buyback and security loan contracts

Mortgage loans for housing
Consumer Loans
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities until maturity

8,368

4,950

22,666

62,826

100,443

488,379

687,632

71,313

21,774

100,618

171,843

98,387

6,144

470,079

7,112

-

214,456

29,252

124,900

200,758

576,478

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(*)Excluding the amounts for which the maturity date has transpired, totaling MM$84.893 as of December 31, 2008.

b) Maturity of financial liabilities
Below are the main financial liabilities grouped according to their remaining terms, including interest
accrued to December 31, 2009 and 2008.
As of December 31, 2009
Up to 1
month

From 1 month to
3 months

From 3 months to
1 year

From 1 year to
3 years

From 3 years to
6 years

Over 6
years

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

Buyback and security loan contracts

47,760

14,131

403,415

58

149

-

465,513

Deposits and other Term Deposits (*)

1,571,873

680,310

925,814

127,214

458

1,365

3,307,034

28,587

18,658

4,942

28,369

33,453

694

114,703

Liabilities with banks

Financial derivative contracts

133,041

57,119

171,353

890

-

-

362,403

Issued debt securities

112,841

172,359

31,953

118,538

101,836

397,692

935,219

(*) Excludes term savings accounts totaling MM$9,011 during 2009.
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As of December 31, 2008
Up to 1
month

From 1 month to
3 months

From 3 months to
1 year

From 1 year to
3 years

From 3 years to
6 years

Over 6
years

Total

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

MM$

Buyback and security loan contracts

351,471

-

-

-

-

-

351,471

Deposits and other Term Deposits (*)

1,550,404

631,946

860,007

250,371

46,580

1,355

3,340,663

44,197

39,617

78,443

20,312

11,391

1,648

195,608

173,765

72,734

231,916

14,191

-

-

492,606

-

1,950

34,068

255,463

161,959

311,732

765,172

Financial derivative contracts
Liabilities with banks
Issued debt securities

(*) Excludes term savings accounts totaling MM$ 10,079 during 2008.

NOTA 37.
LEASING
The following table reflects the maturity of leasing contracts as of December 2009 and 2008 and as of
January 1, 2008.
As of December 31

Up to 1 month
From 1 month to 3 months

As of January 1

2009

2008

2008

Net Leasing
MM$

Net Leasing
MM$

Net Leasing
MM$

826

620

246

694

594

416

8,156

10,849

7,346

From 1 year to 3 years

80,737

86,667

70,091

From 3 years to 6 years

90,458

96,628

81,660

From 3 months to 1 year

Over 6 years
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113,515

127,922

95,010

294,386

323,280

254,769
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NOTA 38.
FOREIGN CURRENCY
Assets and liabilities in foreign currency or adjustable by variation of the foreign currency exchange
rate are included in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and January 1,
2008, in the amounts indicated below:
Payable in Foreign currency
31.12.09
MUSD

31.12.08
MUSD

Payable in Chilean Currency (*)
01.01.08
MUSD

31.12.09
MUSD

Total

31.12.08
MUSD

01.01.08
MUSD

31.12.09
MUSD

31.12.08
MUSD

01.01.08
MUSD

ASSETS
Cash and bank deposits

53,763

50,425

60,542

-

-

81

53,763

50,425

60,623

Operations with clearance underway

71,293

74,071

23,084

-

-

-

71,293

74,071

23,084

3

3

Negotiable securities
Investment Securities Available for sale
Buyback and security loan contracts
Financial derivative contracts
Credits and Accts. Rec. from customers
and banks
Other assets
Intangibles
Fixed Assets

3,841

3

3

-

-

-

3,841

11,157

-

-

-

-

-

11,157

300

21,280

11,812

-

-

-

300

21,280

11,812

26,920

41,191

5,064

-

-

-

26,920

41,191

5,064

1,138,848

1,121,950

929,808

28,249

37,546

41,493

1,167,097

1,159,496

971,301

2,560

1,839

4,314

-

-

-

2,560

1,839

4,314

279

-

-

-

-

-

279

-

-

207

-

-

-

-

-

207

-

-

3,837

-

-

-

-

-

3,837

-

-

1,313,005

1,310,759

1,034,627

1,341,254

1,348,305

1,076,201

Deposits and other sight liabilities

78,907

52,908

29,785

-

78,907

52,908

29,785

Operations with clearance underway

55,070

40,655

16,488

-

-

-

55,070

40,655

16,488

Buyback and security loan contracts

2,930

23,512

35,568

-

-

-

2,930

23,512

35,568

794,844

728,019

599,373

1

-

1

794,845

728,019

599,374

Deferred taxes
TOTAL ASSETS

28,249

37,546

41,574

LIABILITIES

Deposits and other term deposits
Financial derivative contracts

-

-

29,417

42,833

4,823

-

-

-

29,417

42,833

4,823

Liabilities with banks

705,549

687,754

648,578

58

218

270

705,607

687,972

648,848

Issued debt securities

199,768

-

-

-

-

-

199,768

-

-

-

436

621

9,911

13,737

12,305

9,911

14,173

12,926

Other financial liabilities
Deferred taxes
Provisions
Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

233

-

-

-

-

-

233

-

-

376

162

126

1,867,094

1,576,279

1,335,362

9,970

13,955

12,576

376

162

126

1,877,064

1,590,234

1,347,938

* Includes transactions expressed in foreign currencies payable in pesos or readjustable transactions due foreign currency exchange rate.
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NOTA 39.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
During January 2010, Corpbanca continued the
process of selling its 5.672.732.264 bank-issued
shares (Note 23), which it had repurchased in
May 2008, leaving a balance of 13,665,603

Jaime Del Solar Honorato
Accounting Manager
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shares as of January 25, 2010, the issue date of
these financial statements. The amount collected
to that date, as a result of this increase in assets,
amounts to MM$17,643.

In the period between January 1 and 26, 2010,
the issue date of these financial statements, there
have been no other subsequent events that have
significantly affected these financial statements.

Cristián Canales Palacios
General Manager (S)
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STATEMENT OF LIABILITY

SWORN AFFIDAVIT
The undersigned hereby declare to be
responsible for the veracity of the information
included in the present Annual Report ended on
December 31, 2009.
Nombre

Cargo

C. Identidad

Presidente

5.911.895-1

Primer Vicepresidente

8.311.093-7

Segundo Vicepresidente

6.783.826-2

Fernando Aguad Dagah

Director

6.867.306-2

Julio Barriga Silva

Director

3.406.164-5

Brian O’Neill

Director

Pasaporte
113017071

Segismund Schulin-Zeuthen Serrano

Director

4.689.635-1

Jorge Selume Zaror

Director

6.064.619-8

Hernán Somerville Senn

Director

4.132.185-7

Juan Rafael Gutiérrez Avila

Director Suplente

4.176.092-3

Héctor Valdés Ruiz

Director Suplente

5.226.609-2

Mario Chamorro Carrizo

Gerente General

7.893.316-K

Álvaro Saieh Bendeck

Jorge Andrés Saieh Guzmán

Fernando Massú Tare

Firma
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Design & Production

Magia Diseño
Photography

CorpBanca’s image bank
Publisher

Ograma

El papel de este producto
proviene de bosques
manejados de manera
sustentable y fuentes
controladas.
www.pefc.org

A bank committed with a bluer planet

At CorpBanca we are deeply committed with the environment and with sustainable development. Thus, in the preparation of this annual report we have selected environmentally
clean materials, production processes and finishes, thereby contributing to reducing their
environmental impact.
With this same objective in mind, we have avoided the use of varnishes, lacquers and plasticbased finishes in our printing process. This facilitates our recycling processes and contributes
to meeting one of the objectives that we have set for ourselves as a bank within the scope of
our corporate social responsibility.
Finally, our report uses Certified 106 and 104-gram threaded paper. This certification implies
an evaluation of the forest production line from the tree to the final product (paper), including all processing, transformation, manufacturing and distribution stages, in order to verify
that the wood being used originates from well managed forests applying sustainability criteria and that the products being used have not been mixed with other products originating
from non-certified forests.
Tapas: Cartón piedra en su estado natural, cuño y serigrafía 1 color.
Encuadernación: Tela Cialux y serigrafía.
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